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Introduction to this Document

INTRODUCTION TO THIS DOCUMENT

What is this document?

This document (the " Base Prospectus™) constitutes a "base prospectus” forthe purposes of Article 5.4
of Directive 2003/71/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council as amended, including by
Directive 2010/73/EU (the "Prospectus Directive™) and relates to the Global Medium Term Note
Programme (the "Programme"). This Base Prospectus is valid for 12 months after its approval and
may be supplemented from time to time to reflect any significant new factor, material mistake or
inaccuracy relating to the information included in it.

How do | use this Base Prospectus?

This Base Prospectus (which includes information incorporated by reference) is intended to provide

you with information necessary to enable you to make an informed investment decision before
purchasing any Notes (as defined in Section E.1. below).

The contractual terms of any particular issuance of Notes will comprise the General Conditions of the
Notes (see Section F.1 below) together with the additional terms and conditions (see Section F.2

below) set out in the section ofthis Base Prospectus entitled the " Valuation and Settlement Schedule™
and if the Notes are linked to:

@ one ormore inflation indices, the section of this Base Prospectus entitled " Underlying Schedule
1 (Inflation Index Conditions)";

(b) one ormore rates, the sectionofthis Base Prospectus entitled " Underlying Schedule 2 (Rate
Conditions)"; and

(©) the credit of a reference entity, the section of this Base Prospectus entitled " Underlying
Schedule 3 (Credit Linked Interest Conditions)",

and, in relation to any tranche of Notes, as completed or supplemented, replaced and/or modified, as
applicable, by the information set out in the applicable Issue Terms (as described in "What are Issue
Terms" below).

This Base Prospectus also includes other general information such as:

@ the principal risks the Issuer (as defined below) and (if applicable) the Guarantor (as defined
below) believe to be inherent in investing in the Notes;

(b) information relating to the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor;

(©) information relating to the Programme and the Notes;

(d) information on transfer and selling restrictions; and

(e) taxation considerations.

All capitalised terms used will be defined in this Base Prospectus or the Issue Terms and are referenced
in the Index of Defined Terms.

You should read this Base Prospectus, the information incorporated by reference into this Base
Prospectus fromsuch other documents and the applicable Issue Terms.

What are Issue Terms?
"Issue Terms" means, when it relates to:
@ Notes which are not Exempt Notes (as defined in the section entitled " Important Notices"

below), the applicable Final Terms which completes the terms and conditions of the relevant
Notes; or
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(b) Notes which are Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement which supplements the
terms and conditions of the relevant Notes and may also specify other terms and conditions
which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the terms and

conditions of the relevant Notes, supplement, replace and/or modify such terms and
conditions.

Who is the Issuer and (if applicable) Guarantor of the Notes?

Notes under this Base Prospectus will be issued and (if applicable) will be guaranteed by any of the
following:

@) Citigroup Inc. (" Citigroup” or " Citi") (in which case, the Notes will not be guaranteed by any
entity);

(b) Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (*CGMHI") and guaranteed by Citigroup Inc. (in
such capacity, the "CGMHI Guarantor™); and

(©) Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. ("CGMFL") and guaranteed by
Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") (in such capacity, the " CGMFL Guarantor").

CGMHI and CGMFL is each an " Issuer" and collectively, the " Issuers". The CGMHI Guarantor and
the CGMFL Guarantoris each a " Guarantor" and collectively, the " Guarantors". References in this
Base Prospectus to "Issuer" and "Guarantor"” shall be construed accordingly.

What type of Notes does this Base Prospectus relate to?

This Base Prospectus relates to the issuance of Notes which are zero couponnotes (which do not bear
interest) as well as the following types of interest bearing notes:

@) fixed rate notes;

(b) floating rate notes;

(c) CMS interest linked notes;
(o)) inflation rate notes;

(e) DIR inflation linked notes;
® range accrual notes;

@ digital notes;

() digital band notes;

(1) inverse floating rate notes;

0) spread notes;

(K volatility bond notes;

() previous coupon linked notes;

(m) any combination of the foregoing;

(n) any combination of (a) to (I) above in combination with (o) below; and
(0) credit linked interest notes.

In addition,any ofthe above Notes (i) will have more than one interest basis applicable to different
interest periods and/or different interest payment dates if an "automatic change of interest basis" is
specified to apply in the relevant Issue Terms (as described below); and/or (ii) at the option of the
Issuer, be switched fromone interest basis to another interest basis ifa " switcher option™ is specified to
apply in the relevant Issue Terms.

The Notes may provide for early redemption at theoptionofthe issuer (a call option) orthe investor (a
put option) and will, at maturity, pay a fixed redemption amount as specified in the relevant Issue
Terms.



Introduction to this Document

What is the status of the Notes?

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
(if applicable) the Guarantor and payments to be made by such Issuerand (if applicable) the Guarantor
underthe Notes are subjectto thecredit risk of such Issuerand (ifapplicable) the Guarantor. As such,
the potential returnon and value of the Notes will be adversely affected in the event of a default or
deteriorationin the financial position of such Issuerand (ifapplicable) the Guarantor. The information
on the Issuers and the Guarantors set out in this Base Prospectus (which includes information
incorporated by reference) provides a description of the Issuers' and the Guarantors' business activities
as well as certain financial information and material risks faced by the Issuers and the Guarantors.
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IMPORTANT NOTICES
Distribution of Notes

Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to Citigroup Global Markets Limited and/or Citigroup
Global Markets Inc.and/orany additional dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by
the Issuers (eacha " Dealer" andtogether the " Dealers™) which appointment may be fora specific issue
or on an ongoing basis. In relation to each issue of Notes, the Dealer(s) will be specified in the
applicable Issue Terms (as defined below). However, each Issuer reserves the right to sell Notes
directly on its own behalf to other entitiesandto offer Notes in specified jurisdictions directly to the
public through distributors, in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations. Notes may be
resold at prevailing market prices, or at prices related thereto, at the time of such resale, as determined
by the Issuerorthe relevant Dealer. Notes may also be sold by the Issuer throughthe Dealer(s), acting
as agent of the Issuer.

Pursuant to this Base Prospectus, Notes may be issued whose return (in respect of any interest payable
on such Notes) s linked to one or more inflation indices (" Inflation Rate Notes™) or one or more rates
("Rate Linked Notes") or the credit ofa reference entity (" Credit Linked Interest Notes"), together,
"Underlying Linked Notes", as more fully described herein.

The Issuer may agree with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a formnot contemplated by the
relevant Terms and Conditions set out herein, in which event, if the Issuer is Citigroup Inc., a
supplement to the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus (as defined below) or, if the Issueris CGMHI, a
supplement to the CGMHI Base Prospectus (as defined below) or, if the Issuer is CGMFL, a
supplement to the CGMFL Base Prospectus (as defined below), if appropriate, which describes the
effect of the agreement reached in relation to such Notes, will be made available.

Approvals of the Base Prospectus

Each of the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus, the CGMHI Base Prospectus and the CGMFL Base
Prospectus has been approved by the Central Bank of Ireland (the " Central Bank™), as competent
authority (the " Competent Authority™) underthe Prospectus Directive. For the purpose of this Base
Prospectus, "Prospectus Directive™ means Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by Directive
2010/73/EV), and includes any relevant implementing measures in a relevant Member State of the
European Economic Area (the "EEA™). The Central Bank only approves the Base Prospectus as
meeting the requirements imposed under Irish and EU law pursuant to the Prospectus Directive. An
electronic copy of this Base Prospectus will be published on the Central Bank's website at
www.centralbank.ie. Such approval relates only to Notes which are to be admitted to trading on a
regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC as amended from time to time (the
"Markets in Financial Instruments Directive") or which are to be offered to the public in any
Member State ofthe EEA. However, there can be noassurance that suchapplications will be approved
or that, ifapproved, any such approval will be given within a specified timeframe. Application will be
made to the Irish Stock Exchange plc (the " Irish Stock Exchange™) for the Notes issued during the
period of twelve months after the date of this Base Prospectus to be admitted to the official list (the
"Official List")and to tradingon its regulated market. Application may be made for the Notes issued
by Citigroup Inc. to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the
regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Application may be made for the Notes to be
listed on the London Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the regulated market of the London
Stock Exchangeand for any Notes issued underthe Programme to be listed on the Italian Stock Exchange
and admittedto trading on the electronic "Bond Market" organised and managed by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A. (the "MoT") or any other relevant market organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., but
there can be no assurance that any such listingwill occuron or prior to the date of issue of any Notes,
as the case may be, oratall. Application may be made for the Notes to be listed on the official list of
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) and admitted to trading on the regulated market of the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) but there canbenoassurance that any such listing will
occuron orpriorto the date of issue of any Notes, as the case may be, or at all. Application may be
made for the Notes to be listed to the official list and admitted to trading on the Open Market
(Regulated Unofficial Market) (Freiverkehr) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) but
there can be no assurance that any such listingwill occuron or prior to the date of issue of any Notes,
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as the case may be, oratall. The Central Bankmay, at the request of the Issuer, send to a competent
authority ofanother Member State of the EEA (i) a copy of this Base Prospectus, (ii) a certificate of
approval pursuant to Article 18 of the Prospectus Directiveattesting that this Base Prospectus has been
drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive and (iii) if so required by the relevant Member
State, a translation of the Summary set out herein.

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive only applies to Notes which are
to be admitted to trading on a regulated market in the EEA and/or offered to the public in the EEA
other than in circumstances where an exemption is available under Article 3.2 of the Prospectus
Directive (as implemented in the relevant Member State(s)). References in this Base Prospectus to
"Exempt Notes" are to Notes for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus
Directive. The Central Bank has neither approved nor reviewed information contained in this Base
Prospectus in connection with Exempt Notes.

Notes are issued in Series and each Series may comprise oneor more Tranches of Notes. Each Tranche
is the subject of a Final Terms document (the Final Terms and reference to the " applicable Final
Terms" shallbe construed accordingly) or, in the case of Exempt Notes, a pricing supplement (the
"Pricing Supplement” and references to the "applicable Pricing Supplement" shall be construed
accordingly) which, in the case of the Final Terms, completes or, (in the case of Exempt Notes)
completes, modifies and/or supplements the General Conditions and the applicable Schedule(s). In the
event ofany inconsistency between (i) the General Conditions and the applicable Schedule(s) and (ii)
the applicable Issue Terms, the applicable Issue Terms (as defined below) shall prevail.

As usedherein, " Issue Terms" means either (i) where the Notes are not Exempt Notes, the applicable
Final Terms or (ii) where the Notes are Exempt Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement, and
references should be construed accordingly.

References in this Base Prospectus to Notes being listed (and all related references) shall mean that
such Notes are intended to be admitted totrading on the Irish Stock Exchange's regulated market and
are intended to be listed on the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange and/or listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange and/or listed on the London Stock Exchangeand admitted to trading on the regulated
market of the London Stock Exchange and/or listed on the Italian Stock Exchange and admitted to
trading on the MoT oron any other relevantmarket organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.
and/orlisted on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) and admitted to trading on the
regulated market of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) and/or listed on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) and/or admitted to trading on the Open Market (Regulated
Unofficial Market) (Freiverkehr) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG). As specified
in the applicable Final Terms, an issue of Notes may or may not be listed oradmittedto trading, as the
case may be, on the Irish Stock Exchange, the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Italian Stock
Exchange, the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and/or any other regulated market for the purpose of the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer. As specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, an issue of Notes may or may not be listed
or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on the Global Exchange Market (as defined below) and/or
any otherstockexchange or market that is not a regulated market for the purpose of the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the approval of the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectus, the CGMHI Base Prospectus andthe CGMFL Base Prospectus as Base Listing Particulars
(the "Citigroup Inc. Base Listing Particulars", the "CGMHI Base Listing Particulars", and the
"CGMFL Base Listing Particulars", respectively, and together, the "Base Listing Particulars").
Applicationwill be made to the Irish Stock Exchange for Notes issued during the 12 months fromthe
date of the Base Listing Particulars to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the global
exchange market (the " Global Exchange Market")which is the exchange regulated market of the Irish
Stock Exchange. The Global Exchange Market is not a regulated market for the purposes of the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive. Save where expressly provided or the context otherwise
requires, where Notes are to be admittedto trading onthe Global Exchange Market, references herein
to "Base Prospectus”, "Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus”, "CGMHI Base Prospectus™ and
"CGMFL Base Prospectus" shallbe construedto be to "Base Listing Particulars", "Citigroup Inc.
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Listing Particulars”, "CGMHI Listing Particulars™ and "CGMFL Listing Particulars™,
respectively.

Arthur CoxListing Services Limited is acting solely in its capacity as Irish listing agent for the Issuer
in connection with the Notesandis not itself seeking admission of the Notes to the official list or to
trading on the Main Securities Market ofthe Irish Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Prospectus
Directive or the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange.

The Issue Terms will specify with respect to the issue of Notes to which it relates, inter alia, the
specific designation of the Notes, the aggregate principal amount and type of the Notes, the date of
issue ofthe Notes, the issue price, the relevant interest provisions (if any), and the redemption amount
of the Notesand, as relevant, the underlying inflation indexor rate (each an " Underlying") to which
the Notes relate and certain other terms relating to the offeringand sale of such Notes. The applicable
Final Terms completes the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Notes. The applicable Pricing
Supplement supplements the Terms and Conditions of the relevant Notes and may specify other terms
and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the Terms and
Conditions ofthe relevant Notes, supplement, replace and/or modify such Terms and Conditions. In
respect of Notes to be listed on the Irish Stock Exchange, the applicable Issue Terms will be delivered
to the Irish Stock Exchange on or beforethe date of issue of the Notes of that Tranche. The issue price
and amount ofthe Notes ofany Tranche will be determined by the Issuerand the relevant Dealer(s) at
the time of the issue of such Tranche in accordance with prevailing market conditions.

Risk warnings

AN ISSUE OF NOTES MAY BE OF A SPECIALIST NATURE AND SHOULD ONLY BE
BOUGHT AND TRADED BY INVESTORS WHO ARE PARTICULARLY
KNOWLEDGEABLE IN INVESTMENT MATTERS. PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF
NOTES SHOULD ENSURE THAT THEY UNDERSTAND THE NATURE OF THE
RELEVANT NOTES AND THE EXTENT OF THEIR EXPOSURE TO RISKS AND THAT
THEY CONSIDER THE SUITABILITY OF THE RELEVANT NOTES AS AN INVESTMENT
IN LIGHT OF THEIR OWN CIRCUMSTANCES AND FINANCIAL CONDITION. IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS TO ENSURE THAT THEY HAVE
SUFFICIENT KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND PROFESSIONAL ADVICE TO MAKE
THEIR OWN LEGAL, FINANCIAL, TAX, ACCOUNTING AND OTHER BUSINESS
EVALUATION OF THE MERITS AND RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE NOTES AND ARE
NOT RELYING ON THE ADVICE OF THE ISSUER, (IF APPLICABLE) THE GUARANTOR
OR ANY DEALER IN THIS REGARD. NOTES MAY INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK,
INCLUDING THE POTENTIAL LOSS OF PRINCIPAL. INVESTORS MAY SUSTAIN A
LOSS OF ALL OR PART OF THEIR INVESTMENT. SEE "RISK FACTORS"™ SET OUT

HEREIN.

The terms and conditions of the Notes will be as set outin " Terms and Conditions ofthe Notes" and in
the relevant Schedule(s) thereto.

Prospectiveinvestors should note that the Events of Default in respect of the CGMHI Guarantor are
limited to the events stated in General Condition 9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) (Events of Default) relating to
default in payment of principal or interestin respect of the Notes but will not include the insolvency or
bankruptcy of the CGMHI Guarantor (or any similar event), any other default of the CGMHI
Guarantororthe deed of guarantee dated 21 December 2015, as amended and/or s upplemented and/or
replaced from time to time (the "CGMHI Deed of Guarantee™) executed by the CGMHI Guarantor
and not being (orbeing claimed not tobe) in full force and effect. Therefore, even though the CGMHI
Guarantormay be declared insolvent or have entered into bankruptcy proceedings or disclaimed the
CGMHI Deed of Guarantee, holders of Notes issued by CGMHI will not be able to triggeran Event of
Default under the Notes and thus will not be able to cause the Notes to be immediately due and
payable, andthe Notes will not redeemuntil maturity (unless there has beenan Eventof Default due to
non-payment of interest or principal or bankruptcy or other default of CGMHI in the meantime). It is
possible that holders may receive a lower return at maturity than if they were able to accelerate the
Notes for immediate repayment in such circumstances.

Vii
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Belgian Code of Economic Law

In respect of public offers of Notes in Belgium, the Issuer could be required to comply with the
provisions of the Belgian Code of Economic Law, especially the provisions on unfair terms in the
application ofthe terms and conditions assetout in the Base Prospectus and the relevant Issue Terms
relating to such Notes in Belgium, insofar as these provisions are applicable.

Notes (that are not Swedish Notes or Finnish Notes) and are Registered Notes

Subject as provided below in the case of Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes, Notes to be issued
hereunderwill be in registered form (" Registered Notes") and will be represented by registered note
certificates (" RegisteredNote Certificates"), one Registered Note Certificate being issued in respect
of each holder's entire holding of Registered Notes of one Series.

Registered Notes which are held in Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (" Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking
S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") orthe Depository TrustCompany ("DTC"), as the case may be,
will be representedby a global Registered Note Certificate (a " Global Registered Note Certificate™)
registered in the name of a nominee for either Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, as the
case may be, and the Global Registered Note Certificate will be delivered to the appropriate depositary,
common safekeeper or custodian, as the case may be. Interestsin a Global Registered Note Certificate
will be exchangeable for definitive Registered Note Certificates as described under " Form ofthe Notes"
setout herein. In addition, indirect interests in Notes may be delivered, held and settled via the CREST
Depository Interest ("CDI") mechanismin Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited ("CREST").

Swedish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes issued in accordance with the Swedish Act on Central Securities
Depositories and Financial Instruments Accounts (Sw. lag (1998:1479) om vardepapperscentraler och
kontoforingav financiellainstrument) ("SFIA Act") (" Swedish Notes") will be issued in uncertificated
and dematerialised book-entry formin accordance with the SFIA Act, allas more fully described in the
applicable Issue Terms. No global or definitive registered Swedish Notes will be issued. The Swedish
Notes will be transferable only in accordance with the provisions of the SFIA Act, other applicable
Swedish legislation and therules and regulations applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Sweden AB
("Euroclear Sweden").

Finnish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Notes issued in accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry
System and Clearing (Fin. laki arvo-osuusjarjestelmasta ja selvitystoiminnasta (749/2012, as
amended)) and with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry Accounts (Fin. laki arvo- osuustileista
(827/1991, as amended)) ("Finnish Notes™)will be issued in uncertificated and dematerialised book
entry formin accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry Systemand Clearing (Fin. laki arvo-
osuusjarjestelmasta ja selvitystoiminnasta (749/2012, as amended)) and with the Finnish Act on Book-
Entry Account(Fin. laki arvoosuustileista (827/199, as amended)), all as more fully described in the
applicable Issue Terms. No global or registered Notes will be issued. The Finnish Notes will be
transferable only in accordance with the legislation, rules and regulations applicable to, and/or issued
by, Euroclear Finland Ltd ("Euroclear Finland™).

U.S. notices

None of the Notes, the deed of guarantee dated 21 December 2015, as amended and/or
supplemented and/or replaced from time to time, executed by the CGMFL Guarantor (the
"CGMFL Deed of Guarantee') and the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee (collectively, the *"Deeds of
Guarantee™) has been nor will be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the ""Securities Act™), or with any securities regulatory authority of any state or other
jurisdiction of the United States. Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL may be
offered and sold outside of the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S
under the Securities Act ("'Regulation S'). Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI may be
offered and sold within the United States to "qualified institutional buyers'™ (*'QIBs"™) in
transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Actin reliance on Rule 144A under
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the Securities Act (""Rule 144A™). Notes may not be offered or soldwithin the United States or to,
or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) other than, in the case
of Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI, to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144 A. Notes issued by
CGMFL, which are guaranteed by the CGMFL Guarantor, will not be offered and sold in the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons at any time. For a description of
certain restrictions on offers, sales and transfers of Notes, see ""Subscription and Sale and
Transfer and Selling Restrictions™. Any purchaser of Notes that is a registered U.S. investment
company should consult its own counsel regarding the applicability of Section 12(d) and Section
17 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and the rules promulgatedthereunder to its purchase
of Notes and should reach an independent conclusion with respect to the issues inwlwvedin such
purchase.

The Notes and Deeds of Guaranteedo notconstitute, and have not been marketed as, contracts of sale
of a commodity for future delivery (or options thereon) subject to the United States Commodity
Exchange Act, as amended (the " CEA"), and trading in the Notes has notbeenapproved by the United
States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the " CFTC") pursuant to the CEA.

The Notes may not be offered or sold to, or acquired by, any person that is, or whose purchase
and holding of the Notes is made on behalf of or with "'plan assets"* of, an employee benefit plan
subject to Title | of the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended
(ERISA), a plan, individual retirement account or other arrangement subject to Section 4975 of
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code) or an employee benefit plan or
plan subjectto any laws, rules or regulations substantially similar to Title | of ERISA or Section
4975 of the Code.

Each Noteholder of New York Law Notes issued by CGMFL (""CGMFL New York Law Notes "'
(including each holder of a beneficial interest in such CGMFL New York Law Notes)
acknowledges, accepts, consents and agrees, notwithstanding any other term of the CGMFL New
York Law Notes or any other agreements, arrangements, or understandings between CGMFL
and such Noteholder, by its acquisition of such CGMFL New York Law Notes, to be bound by
the exercise of any bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority. See General Condition 19
(Agreement and acknowledgement with respectto the exercise of the bail-in power in respect of New
York Law Notes issued by CGMFL) and alsorisk factor "'Risks relatingto the exercise of any bail-
in power by the relevant resolution authorityin respect of New York Law Notes issued by CGMFL
and Noteholder agreement to be bound thereby™.

If the Issue Terms in respect of any Notes includes a legend entitled " Prohibition of Sales to EEA
Retail Investors", the Notes, from 1 January 2018, are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to and, with effect from such date, should not be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to any retail investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is
one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU
("MIFID 1I'); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC (the " Insurance Mediation
Directive™), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of
Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive.
Consequently no key information documentrequired by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the " PRIIPs
Regulation") for offering orselling the Notes or otherwise making themavailable to retail investors in
the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them
available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO NON-EXEMPT OFFERS OF NOTES
Restrictions on Non-exempt Offers of Notes in Relevant Member States

Certain Tranches of Notes with a denomination of less than EUR100,000 (or its equivalentin any other
currency) may be offered in circumstances where there is no exemption fromthe obligation under the
Prospectus Directive to publish a prospectus. Any such offer s referred to as a Non-exempt Offer. This
Base Prospectus has been prepared on a basis that permits Non-exempt Offers of Notes. However, any
person making or intending to make a Non-exempt Offer of Notes in any Member State of the EEA
which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a " Relevant Member State™) may only do so
if this Base Prospectus has beenapproved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State
(or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent
authority in that Relevant Member State) and published in accordance with the Prospectus Directive,
PROVIDED THAT the Issuer has consentedto theuse of this Base Prospectus in connectionwith such
offeras provided under " Consent given in accordance with Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive
(Retail Cascades)" and the conditions attached to that consent are complied with by the person making
the Non-exempt Offer of such Notes.

Save as provided above, none of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the
CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) and the Dealers have authorised, nor do they
authorise, themaking of any Non-exempt Offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises
for the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the
Issueris CGMFL) or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

Consent given in accordance with Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive (Retail Cascades)

In the context ofa Non-exempt Offer of such Notes, thelssuer and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the
Issueris CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issueris CGMFL) accept responsibility, in the
jurisdictions to whichthe consent to use the Base Prospectus extends, for the content of this Base
Prospectusunder Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive in relation to any person (an " Investor") who
acquires any Notes in a Non-exempt Offer made by any personto whomthe Issuer has given consent
to the use of this Base Prospectus (an " Authorised Offeror") in that connection, PROVIDED THAT
the conditions attached to that consentare complied with by the Authorised Offeror. The consent and
conditions attachedto it are set outunder " Consent” and "Common Conditions to Consent™ below.

None of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor
(wherethe Issuer is CGMFL) and any Dealer makes any representation as to the compliance by an
Authorised Offerorwith any applicable conduct of business rules or other applicable regulatory or
securities law requirementsin relation to any Non-exempt Offer and none of the Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) and
any Dealer has any responsibility or liability for the actions of that Authorised Offeror.

Sawe as provided below, none of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI)
or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) and any Dealer has authorised the
making of any Non-exempt Offer by any offeror and the Issuer has not consented to the use of
this Base Prospectus by any other person in connection with any Non-exempt Offer of Notes. Any
Non-exempt Offer made without the consentof the Issuer is unauthorised and none of the Issuer,
the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the
Issuer is CGMFL) and any Dealer accepts any responsibility or liability for the actions of the
persons making any such unauthorised offer.

If, in the context of a Non-exempt Offer, an Investor is offered Notes by a person which is not an
Authorised Offeror, the Investor should check with that personwhetheranyone is responsible for this
Base Prospectus forthe purposes of Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive in the context of the Non-
exempt Offer and, if so, who that personis. If the Investor is in any doubtabout whether it can rely on
this Base Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its contents it should take legal advice.
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Consent

The Issuer consents to the use ofthis Base Prospectus in relation to any offer of Notes issued by it for
the period of 12 months fromthe date hereof subject in relation to any offer as provided below.

In connection with each Tranche of Notes and subjectto the conditions set out below under "Common
Conditions to Consent™:

@)

(b)

the Issuer consents tothe use of this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the relevant time,

(i

(ii)

if applicable) in connectionwith a Non-exempt Offer of such Notes by the relevant Dealer and
by:

any financial intermediary named as an Initial Authorised Offeror in the applicable
Final Terms; and

any financial intermediary appointed after the date of the applicable Final Terms and

whose name is published on the Issuer's website and identified as an Authorised
Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-exempt Offer.

if (and only if) Part B of the applicable Final Terms specifies "General Consent” as
"Applicable", the Issuer hereby offers to grant its consent to the use of this Base Prospectus
(as supplementedas at therelevant time, if applicable) in connectionwith a Non -exempt Offer
of Notes by any financial intermediary which satisfies the following conditions:

)

(ii)

it is authorised to make such offers under applicable legislation implementing the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive; and

it accepts such offer by publishing on its website the following statement (with the
information in square brackets completed with the relevant information):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the [insert title of
relevant Notes] (the "*Notes™) described in the Final Terms dated [insert date] (the
"Final Terms') published by [Citigroup Inc./Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc./Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.] (the "'Issuer*). We
hereby accept the offer by the Issuer of its consent to our use of the Base Prospectus
(as defined in the Final Terms) in connection with the offer of the Notes in
accordance with the Authorised Offeror Terms and subjectto the conditions to such
consent, each as specified in the Base Prospectus, and we are using the Base
Prospectus accordingly.”

The " Authorised Offeror Terms" are that the relevant financial intermediary will, and
it agrees, represents, warrants and undertakes for the benefit of the Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMFL) and the relevant Dealer that it will, at all times in connection with the
relevant Non-exempt Offer comply with the conditions to the consentreferred to under
"Common Conditions to Consent" belowandany further requirements relevant to the
Non-exempt Offer as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Any financial intermediary who is an Authorised Offeror falling within (b) abowe
who meets all of the conditions set out in (b) and the other conditions stated in
""Common Conditions to Consent™ below and who wishes to use this Base
Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt Offer is required, for the duration of
the relevant Offer Period, to publish on its website the statement (duly completed)
specified at paragraph (b)(ii) abowe.
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Common Conditions to Consent

The conditionsto the Issuer's consent are (in addition to the conditions described in paragraph (b)
above if Part B of the applicable Final Terms specifies ""General Consent™ as "Applicable") that such
consent:

@) is only valid during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(b) only extends to the use of this Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant
Tranche of Notesin Austria, Belgium, Cyprus, The Netherlands, France, Germany, Greece,
Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg (in the case of Citigroup Inc.), the United Kingdom, Portugal and
Spain, as specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(©) the consent is subject to any other conditions set out in Part B of the applicable Final Terms.

The only RelevantMember States which may, in respect ofany Tranche of Notes, be specified in the
applicable Final Terms (if any Relevant Member States are so specified) as indicated in (b) above, will
be Austria, Belgium, Cyprus, The Netherlands, France, Germany, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg
(in the case of Citigroup Inc.), the United Kingdom, Portugal and Spain, and accordingly each Tranche
of Notes may only be offeredto Investors as part ofa Non-exempt Offer in Austria, Belgium, Cyprus,
The Netherlands, France, Germany, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg (in the case of Citigroup Inc.),
the United Kingdom, Portugal and Spain, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, or otherwise in
circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a
prospectus for such offer.

Arrangements between investors and Authorised Offerors

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY NOTES IN A NON-
EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND
SALES OF SUCH NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL
BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER ARRANGEMENTS IN
PLACE BETWEEN SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING
AS TO PRICE ALLOCATIONS AND SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS. THE ISSUER
WILL NOT BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH SUCH INVESTORS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE NON-EXEMPT OFFER OR SALE OF THE NOTES
CONCERNED AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL
TERMS WILL NOT CONTAIN SUCH INFORMATION. THE INVESTOR MUST LOOK TO
THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER FOR THE PROVISION
OF SUCH INFORMATION AND THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR SUCH INFORMATION. NONE OF THE ISSUER, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR
(WHERE THE ISSUER IS CGMHI), THE CGMFL GUARANTOR (WHERE THE ISSUER IS
CGMFL) AND ANY DEALER (EXCEPT WHERE SUCH DEALER IS THE RELEVANT
AUTHORISED OFFEROR) HAS ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY TO AN
INVESTOR IN RESPECT OF SUCH INFORMATION.

Credit Ratings

Citigroup Inc. has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by Standard & Poor's
Financial Services LLC ("S&P"), Baal/P-2by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (*Moody's™) and A/F1
by Fitch Ratings, Inc. ("Fitch"). CGMHI has a long termy/short termsenior debtrating of BBB+/A-2 by
S&P and A/Flby Fitch and a long term senior debt rating of Baal by Moody's. CGMFL has a long
term/short termsenior debt ratingof A+/A-1by S&P and A/F1by Fitch. CGML has a long term/short
term senior debt rating of A+/A-1 by S&P, A2/P-1 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. The rating of a
certain Trancheof Notes may be specified in the applicable Issue Terms. Whether or not each credit
rating applied for in relation to a relevant Tranche of Notes will be issued by a credit rating agency
established in the European Unionandregistered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended)
(the "CRARegulation™) will be disclosed in the applicable Issue Terms. See also " Credit Ratings —
Rating Agencies of the Issuers™ in the section "Risk Factors" below.

The Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee constitute
unconditional liabilities of the respectiveissuers. None of the Notes, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee
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and the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
or any other deposit protection insurance scheme.

Avrticle 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive

This Base Prospectus (excluding the CGMHI Base Prospectus and CGMFL Base Prospectus (as
defined below)) comprises a base prospectus for the purpose of Article5.4 ofthe Prospectus Directive
in respect of Notes to be issued by Citigroup Inc.

This Base Prospectus (excluding the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus and CGMFL Base Prospectus (as
defined below)) comprises a base prospectus for the purpose of Article 5.4 ofthe Prospectus Directive
in respect of Notes to be issued by CGMHI.

This Base Prospectus (excluding the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus and CGMHI Base Prospectus (as

defined below)) comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 ofthe Prospectus Directive
in respect of Notes to be issued by CGMFL.

Responsibility statement

Citigroup Inc. accepts responsibility for the information contained in (i) the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectusand (ii) the Issue Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme where
Citigroup Inc. isthe Issuerofsuch Tranche of Notes. Citigroup Inc. does not take responsibility for the
CGMHI Base Prospectus or the CGMFL Base Prospectus. To the best ofthe knowledge of Citigroup
Inc. (having taken all reasonable care to ensurethat suchis the case), the information containedin the
Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectusisin accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import ofsuch information. This paragraph should be read in conjunction with " Important
Information relating to Non-exempt Offers of Notes" and "Arrangements between investors and
Authorised Offerors™ above.

CGMHI accepts responsibility for the information contained in (i) the CGMHI Base Prospectus and
(ii) the Issue Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme where CGMHI is the
Issuer of such Tranche of Notes. CGMHI does not take responsibility for the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectus or the CGMFL Base Prospectus. To the best ofthe knowledge of CGMHI (havingtaken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in the CGMHI Base
Prospectusisin accordancewiththefacts and does notomit anything likely toaffect the importofsuch
information. This paragraph shouldbe readin conjunction with " Important Information relating to
Non-exempt Offers of Notes" and " Arrangements between investors and Authorised Offerors™ above.

The CGMHI Guarantor accepts responsibilityfor the information contained in (i) the CGMHI Base
Prospectus (excluding the information in Section D.2 entitled "Description of Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc." andthe informationset out in Elements B.1 to B.18 (inclusive) of the section
entitled "Summary") and (ii) the Issue Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme
where CGMHI is the Issuer of such Tranche of Notes. The CGMHI Guarantor does not take
responsibilityfor the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus or the CGMFL Base Prospectus. To the best of
the knowledge ofthe CGMHI Guarantor (having takenall reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case), the information contained inthe CGMHI Base Prospectus (excludingtheinformationin Section
D.2 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc." and the information set out in
Elements B.1to B.18(inclusive) ofthe sectionentitled " Summary™) isin accordancewiththefacts and
doesnot omitanything likely to affect the importofsuch information. This paragraph should be read in
conjunctionwith " Important Information relating to Non-exempt Offers of Notes™ and "Arrangements
between investors and Authorised Offerors” above.

CGMFL accepts responsibility for the information containedin (i) the CGMFL Base Prospectus and
(ii) the Issue Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme where CGMFL is the
Issuer of such Tranche of Notes. CGMFL does not take responsibility for the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectus or the CGMHI Base Prospectus. To the best ofthe knowledge of CGMFL (havingtaken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in the CGMFL Base
Prospectusisin accordancewiththefactsanddoes notomit anything likely toaffect the importofsuch
information. This paragraph shouldbe readin conjunction with " Important Information relating to
Non-exempt Offers of Notes" and " Arrangements between investors and Authorised Offerors™ above.
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The CGMFL Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information contained in (i) the CGMFL Base
Prospectus (excluding the information in Section D.3 entitled "Description of Citigroup Global
Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.", theinformation set outin Elements B.1 to B.18 (inclusive) of
the sectionentitled "Summary" and information set out in Section D.6 entitled "— ALTERNATIVE
PERFORMANCE MEASURES - CITIGROUP INC. ") and (ii) the Issue Terms for each Tranche of
Notesissued under the Programmewhere CGMFL isthe Issuer of such Tranche of Notes. The CGMFL
Guarantor does not take responsibility for the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus or the CGMHI Base
Prospectus. To the best ofthe knowledge ofthe CGMFL Guarantor (havingtakenall reasonable care
to ensure that suchisthe case), the information contained in the CGMFL Base Prospectus (excluding
the information in Section D.3 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg
S.C.A."), the information set out in Elements B.1 to B.18 (inclusive) ofthe section entitled " Summary"
and the informationset out in Section D.6 entitled "— Alternative Performance Measures - Citigroup
Inc.™) isinaccordancewiththe factsanddoes not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information. This paragraph shouldbe readin conjunction with " Important Information relating to
Non-exempt Offers of Notes" and " Arrangements between investors and Authorised Offerors™ above.

Unless otherwise expressly stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and in relation to Exempt
Notesonly, any information contained therein relating to the Underlying(s), will only consist of
extracts from, or summaries of, and will be basedsolely on, information contained in financial and
other information released publicly by the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may be, of such
Underlying(s). Unless otherwise expressly stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement andin relation
to Exempt Notes only, the Issuer and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the
CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) accept(s) responsibilityfor accurately reproducing
such extracts or summaries and, as far as the Issuer and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMHI) or the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) is/are aware and is/are able to
ascertain frominformation published by the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may be, of such
Underlying(s), no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate
or misleading. This paragraph should beread in conjunction with the two paragraphs immediately
above.

The Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see Section C.1 entitled " Documents Incorporated by Reference for
the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus”). The Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus shallbe readandconstrued

on the basis that such documents are incorporated into and form part of the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectus.

The CGMHI Base Prospectus should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see Section C.2 entitled " Documents Incorporated by Reference for

the CGMHI Base Prospectus™). The CGMHI Base Prospectus shall be read and construed on the basis
that such documents are incorporated into and form part of the CGMHI Base Prospectus.

The CGMFL Base Prospectus should be read in conjunction with all documents which are
incorporated by reference therein (see Section C.3 entitled " Documents Incorporated by Reference for

the CGMFL Base Prospectus"). The CGMFL Base Prospectus shall be read and construed onthe basis
that such documents are incorporated into and form part of the CGMFL Base Prospectus.

The Citigroup Inc. base prospectus (the " Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus™) will comprise this Base
Prospectus with the exception of:

@) in the "Summary"”, theinformationin Section Bunder the heading "TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CGMHI ONLY";

(b) in the "Summary", theinformation in Section Bunder the heading "TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CGMFL ONLY";

(©) the information in Section C.2 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI
Base Prospectus”;

(d) the information in Section C.3 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
CGMFL Base Prospectus" and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby;
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©)

(f)

)
(h)
(i

the information in Section D.2 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc.";

the information in Section D.3entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg S.C.A.";

the information in Section D.4 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Limited";
the information in Section D.5 entitled "Form Of CGMFL All Monies Guarantee™; and

the information in Section D.7 entitled "Alternative Performance Measures - CGMFL
Guarantor".

The CGMHI base prospectus (the "CGMHI Base Prospectus™) will comprise this Base Prospectus
with the exception of:

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

()
)
(h)

in the "Summary", theinformation in Section Bunder the heading "TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CITIGROUP INC. ONLY";

in the "Summary", theinformation in Section Bunder the heading "TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CGMFL ONLY";

the information in Section C.1 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus”;

the information in Section C.3 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
CGMFL Base Prospectus";

the information in Section D.3entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg S.C.A.";

the information in Section D.4 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Limited";
the information in Section D.5 entitled "Form Of CGMFL All Monies Guarantee"; and

the information in Section D.7 entitled "Alternative Performance Measures - CGMFL
Guarantor".

The CGMFL base prospectus (the "CGMFL Base Prospectus™) will comprise this Base Prospectus
with the exception of:

@)

(b)

©

(d)

©)
()

in the "Summary", theinformation in Section Bunder the heading " TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CITIGROUP INC. ONLY";

in the "Summary", theinformation in Section Bunder the heading " TO BE INCLUDED FOR
NOTES ISSUED BY CGMHI ONLY";

the information in Section C.1 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the
Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus";

the information in Section C.2 entitled "Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI
Base Prospectus™ and all information incorporated therein by reference thereby;

the information in Section D.1 entitled " Description of Citigroup Inc."; and

the information in Section D.2 entitled " Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc.".

No person hasbeenauthorised to giveany information or to makeany representation other than those
containedin this Base Prospectus inconnection with the issue or sale of any Notes and, if given or
made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
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Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer
is CGMFL) orany ofthe Dealers. Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor any sale made in
connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
changein theaffairs ofthe Issuer and/or, where applicable, the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMFL
Guarantor sincethe date hereof or the date uponwhichthis Base Prospectus has been most recently
amendedor supplemented or thatthere has beenno adverse change in the financial position of any
Issuer and/or CGMHI Guarantor or CGMFL Guarantor since the date hereofor the date upon which
this Base Prospectus has beenmost recently amended or supplemented or that any other information
suppliedin connectionwiththe Programme is correct as ofany time subsequentto the dateon whichit
issupplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

Important information relating to the use of this Base Prospectus and offers of Notes generally

This Base Prospectus does notconstitute an offer to sell orthe solicitation of an offerto buy any Notes
in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction. The distribution of this Base Prospectus andthe offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by
law in certain jurisdictions. Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL
Guarantorand the Dealers donotrepresentthat this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or
that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other
requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuantto an exemption available thereunder, orassume any
responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, unless specifically
indicated to thecontrary in the applicable Issue Terms, no action has been taken by Citigroup Inc.,
CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor orthe Dealers which is intended to
permit a public offering ofany Notes or distribution ofthis Base Prospectus in any jurisdiction where
action forthat purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered orsold, directly or indirectly,
and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or
published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any
applicable laws and regulations. Persons intowhose possession this Base Prospectus orany Notes may
come must informthemselves about, and observe, any suchrestrictions onthe distribution of this Base
Prospectus andthe offeringandsale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions onthe distribution of
this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the EEA, United Kingdom,
Australia, Austria, the Kingdomof Bahrain, Brazil, Chile, Columbia, Costa Rica, Republic of Cyprus,
Denmark, Dominican Republic, Dubai International Financial Centre, Ecuador, El Salvador, Finland,
France, Guatemala, Honduras, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Hungary, Ireland, Israel,
Italy, Japan, State of Kuwait, Mexico, Norway, Oman, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Poland, Portugal, State
of Qatar, Russian Federation, Kingdomof Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, Republic of
Turkey, United Arab Emirates and Uruguay. See "Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling
Restrictions for Notes™.

The price and principal amountofsecurities (including any Notes) to be issued under the Programme
will be determined by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue in accordance with
prevailing market conditions.

The Dealers havenotseparately verified the information contained in this Base Prospectus. None of
the Dealers makes any representation, express or implied, or accepts any responsibility, with respect to
the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this Base Prospectus.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any financial statements or other information suppliedin connection
with the Programme or any Notes are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation
and shouldnotbe considered as a recommendation or a statement of opinion, or a report of either of
those things, by anylIssuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor or any of the Dealers that
any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other financial statements or any other information
suppliedin connectionwiththe Programme or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each potential
purchaser ofany Notes should determine for itselfthe relevance of the information contained in this
Base Prospectus andits purchase ofany Notes shouldbe based upon such investigation as it deems
necessary. Eachpotential purchaser is authorised to usethis Base Prospectus solely for the purpose of
consideringthe purchase of Notes described in this Base Prospectus; any other usage of this Base
Prospectusisunauthorised. None of the Dealers (in the case of CGML, in its capacity as Dealer)
undertakesto reviewthe financial condition or affairs of any Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor or the
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CGMFL Guarantor during the life ofthe arrangements contemplated by this Base Prospectus nor to
advise anyinvestor or potential investor in any Notes of any information coming tothe attention ofany
of the Dealers.

For convenience, the website addresses of certain third parties have been provided in this Base
Prospectus. Except as expressly set forth in this Base Prospectus, no information in such websites
should be deemed to be incorporated in, or form a part of, this Base Prospectus and none of the

Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer takes responsibility for the
information contained in such websites.

In connection withany Tranche (as definedin section E.3 below), oneor more of the Dealers may act
as a stabilisation manager (the "Stabilisation Manager(s)"). The identity of the Stabilisation

Manager(s), ifany, will be disclosed in the applicable Issue Terms.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (ifany) named as the
Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in the
applicable Issue Terms may over allotNotes or effect transactions witha viewto supporting the market
price ofthe Notes ata level higher than thatwhich might otherwise prevail. However, stabilisation
may not necessarilyoccur. Any stabilisation actionmay begin onor after the dateon which adequate
publicdisclosure ofthe terms ofthe offer ofthe relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may
cease atany time, but it must end nolater thanthe earlier of 30 days after the issue date ofthe relevant
Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any
stabilisationactionor over-allotmentmust be conducted by the relevant Stabilisation Manager(s) (or
pelrson(s) acting onbehalfofany Stabilisation Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and
rules.

In this Base Prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, references to
"Euro","euro","€"or "EUR" are to the single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of

the European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the
EuropeanUnion, as amended (the " Treaty"), referencesto "U.S." "dollars","U.S.$"and"$" are to the

currency of the United States of America, references to "Yen" are to the currency of Japan and
references to "Sterling", and "GBP" are to the currency of the United Kingdom.

The language ofthis Base Prospectus is English. Certain legislative references and technical terms
have beencited in their original languagein order that the correcttechnical meaning maybe ascribed
to them under applicable law.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is
CGMFL) and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits and risks involved. None
of the Notes has been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United
States, nor hawe the foregoing authorities approved this Base Prospectus or confirmed the
accuracy or determined the adequacy of the information contained in this Base Prospectus. Any
representation to the contrary is unlawful. The Notes do not constitute, and hawe not been
marketed as, contracts of sale of a commodity for future delivery (or options thereon) subject to
the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended, and trading in the Notes has not been
approved by the CFTC pursuant to the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.

None of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor and any Dealer makes any
representation to any investor in any Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any
applicable laws. Any inwestor in any Notes should be able to bear the economic risk of an
investment in such Notes for an indefinite period of time.

U.S. information

This Base Prospectus is being submitted in the United States to a limited number of QIBs only
for informational use solely in connection with the consideration of the purchase of Notes issued
by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the United
States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be
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distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective inwestors to
whom it is originally submitted.

Notes may be offered or sold within the United States only if the applicable Issue Terms specifies
that they are being offered in reliance on Rule 144A and then only to QIBs in transactions
exempt from registration under the Securities Act. Each U.S. purchaser of Notes is hereby
notified that the offer and sale of any Notes to it is being made in reliance upon the exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A and one or more
exemptions and/or exclusions from regulation under the CEA.

Each purchaser or holder of Notes will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of any such
Notes, to have made certain representations and agreements intended to restrict the resale or
other transfer of such Notes as set out in **Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling
Restrictions™. Unless otherwise stated, terms used in this ""U.S. information' section hawe the
meanings given to themin ""Form of the Notes".

Any tax discussion herein was written to support the promotion or marketing of the Notes to be

issued pursuant to this Base Prospectus. Each taxpayer should seek advice based on the
taxpayer's particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

Notwithstandingany limitation on disclosure by any party provided for herein, or any other provision
of this Base Prospectus and its contents or any associated Issue Terms, and effective fromthe date of
commencement of any discussions concerning any of the transactions contemplated herein (the
"Transactions"), any party (and each employee, representative, or other agent of any party) may
discloseto anyand all persons, without limitation of any kind, the taxtreatment and taxstructure of the
Transactions andall materials ofany kind (including opinions or other taxanalyses) that are provided
to it relating to suchtaxtreatment andtaxstructure, except to theextent that any suchdisclosure could
reasonably be expected to causethis Base Prospectus, any associated Issue Terms, or any offering of
Notes thereunder not to be in compliance with securities laws. For purposes of this paragraph, the tax
treatment of the Transactions is the purported or claimed U.S. federal income taxtreatment of the
Transactions, andthe taxstructure of the Transactions is any factthat may be relevantto understanding
the purported or claimed U.S. federal income taxtreatment of the Transactions.

Available information

Citigroup Inc. has, in respect of Notes issued by it, undertakenin a deed poll dated 21 December 2015
(the "CitigroupInc. Rule 144 A DeedPoll")and CGMHI and Citigroup Inc. have, in respect of Notes
issuedby CGMHI, undertaken in a deed poll dated 21 December 2015 (the " CGMHI Rule 144A Deed
Poll" and, together with the Citigroup Inc. Rule 144A Deed Poll, the " Rule 144A Deed Polls™) to
furnish, upon therequest of a holder of any Notes offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A or any
beneficial interest therein, to such holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by him the
information required to be deliveredunder Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of
the request, Citigroup Inc. is neither a reporting company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), nor exempt from reporting
pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

Notice to residents in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

This Base Prospectus may not be distributed in the Kingdomof Saudi Arabia except to such personsas
are permitted underthe Offers of Securities Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (the "CMA").

The CMA does not make any representations as to the accuracy or completeness of this Base
Prospectusandexpressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in
reliance upon, any part of this Base Prospectus. Prospective purchasers of Notes issued under the
Programme should conduct their own duediligenceon theaccuracy of the information relating to the
Notes. Ifa prospective purchaser does notunderstand thecontents of this Base Prospectus he or she
should consult an authorised financial adviser.
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Important Information Relating to Non-exempt Offers of Notes

Notice to residents in the Kingdom of Bahrain

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Notes issued in connection with this Base
Prospectus and related offering documents may only be offeredin registered formto existing account
holders and accredited investors as defined by the Central Bank of Bahrain (the *CBB") in the
Kingdomof Bahrain where suchinvestors make a minimum investmentofat least U.S.$100,000 or any
equivalent amount in other currency or such other amount as the CBB may determine.

This Offering Circular does not constitutean offer of securities in the Kingdomof Bahrain pursuant to
the terms of Article (81) ofthe Central Bank and Financial Institutions Law 2006 (decree Law No. 64
of 2006). This Base Prospectus and related offering documents have not been and will not be registered
as a prospectus with the CBB. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered, sold or made the subject of an
invitation for subscriptionor purchase nor will this Base Prospectus or any other related document or
material be used in connection with any offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase Notes,
whetherdirectly orindirectly, to persons in the Kingdomof Bahrain, other thanto accredited investors
for an offer outside the Kingdom of Bahrain.

The CBB has not reviewed, approved or registered this Base Prospectus or related offering documents
and it has not in any way considered the merits of the Notes to be offered for investment, whether in or
outsidethe Kingdomof Bahrain. Therefore, the CBBassumes no responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the statements and information contained in this Base Prospectus and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever forany loss howsoever arising fromreliance upon the whole or any
part of the content of this Base Prospectus. No offer of Notes will be made to the public in the
Kingdomof Bahrain and this Base Prospectus must be read by the addressee only and must not be
issued, passed to, or made available to the public generally.

Notice to residents in the State of Qatar

This Base Prospectus does notandis not intended to constitute an offer, sale or delivery of certificates,
bonds orother debt financing instruments under the laws of the State of Qatar and has not been and
will not be reviewed or approved by or registered with the Qatar Financial Markets Authority, the
Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority or the Qatar Central Bank in accordance with their regulations

orany other regulations in the State of Qatar. The Notes are not and will not be traded on the Qatar
Stock Exchange.
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Summary

SECTION A - SUMMARY

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as "Elements". These Elements are
numbered in Sections A — E (A.1 — E.7). This Summary contains all the Elements required to be
includedin a summaryfor Notes, the Issuer and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI)
orthe CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL). Because some Elements are not required to
be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering sequence ofthe Elements. Eventhough an Element
may be requiredto be insertedin a summarybecause ofthe type of securities, issuer and guarantor, it
is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
descriptionofthe Element should be included in the summary explaining why it is not applicable.

SECTION A — INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS

Element

Title

Al

Introduction

This summary should be read as an introduction to the Base
Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms. Any decision to
invest in the Notes should be based on consideration of the Base
Prospectus as awhole, including any documents incorporated by
reference and the applicable Final Terms. Where a claim
relating toinformation contained inthe Base Prospectus and the
applicable Final Terms is brought before a court, the plaintiff
investor might, under the national legislation of the Member
States, hawe to bear the costs of translating the Base Prospectus
and the applicable Final Terms before the legal proceedings are
initiated. Civil liability in Member States attaches only to those
persons who hawe tabled the summary including any translation
thereof, but only if the summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Base
Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms, or it does not
provide, when read together with the other parts of the Base
Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms, key information in
order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the
Notes.

A2

Consent

[Not Applicable][The Notes may be offered in circumstances where
there is no exemption from the obligation under the Prospectus
Directive to publish a prospectus (a "Non-exempt Offer").]

[Non-exempt Offer in [e]:

Subject to the conditions set out below, [CGMFL and
CGML][Citigroup Inc.]J[CGMHI and Citigroup Inc.] consent(s) to
the use of the Base Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt
Offer of Notes by the Dealers[, [®], [and] [each financial
intermediary whose name is published on [CGMFL's][Citigroup
Inc.'s][CGMHI's]website (www.[e]) and identified as an Authorised
Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-exempt Offer] [and any
financial intermediary which is authorised to make such offers under
applicable legislation implementing the Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC) and publishes on its
website the following statement (with the information in square
brackets being completed with the relevant information):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the
[inserttitleof relevant Notes] (the "Notes™) described in the Final
Terms dated [insert date] (the "Final Terms™) published by
[Citigroup Inc./Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc./Citigroup
Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A.] (the "lIssuer™). We
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Element

Title

hereby acceptthe offer by the Issuer ofits consent to our use of the
Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final Terms) in connection with
the offer of the Notes in accordance with the Authorised Offeror
Terms and subject to the conditions to such consent, each as
specified in the Base Prospectus, and we are using the Base
Prospectus accordingly."]

(each an "AuthorisedOfferor™ in [specify Relevant Member State]).

[CGMFL's and CGML's][Citigroup Inc.'s][CGMHI's and Citigroup
Inc.'s]consent referred to above is given for Non-exempt Offers of
Notes during [e] (the "[specify Relevant Member State] Offer
Period").

The conditions to the consent of [CGMFL and CGML][Citigroup

Inc.][CGMHI and Citigroup Inc.] [(in addition to the conditions
referred to above)] are that such consent:

@) is only valid during the [specify Relevant Member State]
Offer Period; [and]

(b) only extends to the use of the Base Prospectus to make
Non-exempt Offers ofthe relevant Tranche of Notes in [specify each

Relevant Member State in which the particular Tranche of Notes can
be offered][; and

(©) [specify any other conditions applicable to the Non-exempt
Offer ofthe particular Tranche in the RelevantMember State, as set
out in the Final Terms]].]

[replicate sectionfor each Relevant Member State in which a Non-
exempt Offer of the Notes is made]

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING
ANY NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN
AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND
SALES OF SUCH NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE MADE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER
ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN  SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR
INCLUDING AS TO PRICE ALLOCATIONS AND
SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS. THE INVESTOR MUST
LOOK TO THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF
SUCH OFFER FOR THE PROVISION OF SUCH
INFORMATION AND THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SUCH INFORMATION.

SECTION B - ISSUERS AND GUARANTOR

[TO BE INCLUDED FOR NOTES ISSUED BY CGMFL ONLY:

Element Title
B.1 Legal and | Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. ("CGMFL™)
commercial

name of the
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Element Title
Issuer
B.2 Domicile/ CGMFL is a corporate partnership limited by shares (société en
legal  fornV | commandite par actions), incorporated on 24 May 2012 under
legislation/ Luxembourg law for an unlimited duration with its registered office
country of | as 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Grand Duchy of
incorporation | Luxembourg, telephone number +352 45 14 14 447 and registered
with the Register of Trade and Companies of Luxembourg under
number B 169.199.
B.4b Trend Not Applicable. There are no knowntrends, uncertainties, demands,
information commitments orevents that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on CGMFL's prospects for its current financial year.
B.5 Description of [ CGMFL is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.
the Group Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations
primarily by earnings fromits operatingsubsidiaries (Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries, the " Group™).
Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
company, whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutions with a broad range of financial products
and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately 200 million customer
accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and
jurisdictions. As of 31 December 2016, Citigroup operated, for
management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments:
Citicorp, consisting of Citigroup's Global Consumer Banking
business and Institutional Clients Group; and Citi Holdings,
consisting of businesses and portfolios of assets that Citigroup has
determined are not central to its core Citigroup business. Beginning
in the first quarter of2017, the remaining businesses and portfolio of
assets in Citi Holdings were reported as part of Corporate/Other and
other Citi Holdings ceased to be a separately reported business
segment.
B.9 Profit forecast | Not Applicable. CGMFL has not made a profit forecast or estimate
or estimate in the Base Prospectus.
B.10 Audit report | Not Applicable. There are no qualifications in any audit report onthe
qualifications | historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.
B.12 Selected The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
historical key | extracted from CGMFL's Annual Report for the year ended 31
financial December 2016:
information:

At or for the At or for the
year ended 31 year ended 31
December 2016  December 2015
(audited) (audited)
EUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 681,476 822,481
Structured notes purchased 2,283,259,926 455,484,248
Index linked certificates 81,407,634 -

purchased
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Derivative assets
Currentincome taxassets
Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Bank loans and overdrafts
Structurednotes issued

Index linked certificates
issued

Derivative liabilities

Redeemable preference
shares

Other liabilities
Current tax liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND EQUITY

71,586,573
8,838

141,203
2,437,085,650

2,283,259,926
81,407,634

71,586,573
1,234

388,353
6,144
2,436,649,864

500,000
(64,214)
435,786
2,437,085,650

792,416
8,838

3,786
457,111,769

93,496
455,484,248

792,416
1

291,328

456,661,489

500,000
(49,720)
450,280
457,111,769

The tables below set out a summary of key financial information
extracted from CGMFL's unaudited interim report and financial
statements for the sixmonths ended on 30 June 2017:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Structured notes purchased

Index linked certificates
purchased

Derivative assets

Current income taxassets
Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Bank loans and overdrafts
Structurednotes issued

Index linked certificates
issued

Derivative liabilities
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At30 June 2017 At30June 2016

(unaudited) (unaudited)
EUR

599,642 924,143
2,659,765,264 1,669,142,697
520,665,896 -
214,964,815 7,382,059
16,198 8,839
497,460 40,620
3,396,509,275 1,677,498,358
- 93,496
2,659,765,264 1,669,142,698
520,665,896 -
214,964,815 7,382,059
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Redeemable preference
shares

Other liabilities
Current tax liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Other Comprehensive
Income

Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND EQUITY

Interest and similarincome

Interest expense and similar
charges

Net interestexpense

Net fee and commission
income

Net trading income

Net income from financial
instruments at fairvalue
through profit orloss

Otherincome

Total operating income
General and administrative
expenses

Profit (Loss) before
income tax

Income taxexpense

Profit(Loss) for the
period

Othercomprehensive
income for the period net
of tax

Total comprehensive
income for the financial
period

2,700

613,367
6,144
3,396,018,186

439

164,533
79,507
1,676,862,732

500,000 500,000
11,508 -
(20,419) 135,626
491,089 635,626
3,396,509,275 1,677,498,358
For the six For the six
months ended 30 months ended
June 2017 30 June 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)
EUR
175,152 162,019
175,152 162,019
(131,358) 102,834
43,794 264,853
- (79,507)
43,794 185,346
43,794 185,346
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Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been: (i) no significant change in the financial or trading
position of CGMFL since 30 June 2017 and (ii) no material adverse

change in the financial position or prospects of CGMFL since 31
December 2016.

B.13 Events Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to CGMFL
impacting the | which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of CGMFL's
Issuer's solvency, since 31 December 2016.
solvency

B.14 Dependence See Element B.5 Description of the Group and CGMFL's position
upon  other | within the Group. CGMFL is dependent on other members of the
group entities | Group.

B.15 Principal The principal activity of CGMFL is to grant loans or other forms of

activities funding directly orindirectly in whatever formor means to Citigroup
Global Markets Limited, another subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., and
any other entities belonging to the Group.

B.16 Controlling The entire issued share capital of CGMFL is held by Citigroup

shareholders | Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.a r.l. and Citigroup
Global Markets Limited.

B.17 Creditratings | CGMFL has a long/short term senior debt rating of A+/A-1 by
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC and a long/short term
senior debt rating of A/F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc.

[The Notes have been rated [e].]

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securitiesand may be subject tosuspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.

B.18 Description of | The Notes issuedwill be unconditionally andirrevocably guaranteed

the Guarantee | by CGML pursuant to the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee. The CGMFL
Deed of Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and unsecured obligations of CGML and ranks and will rank pari
passu (subjectto mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws)
with all other outstanding, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations
of CGML.

B.19 Information

about the
Guarantor
B.19/B.1 Legal and | Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML")
commercial
name of the
Guarantor
B.19/B.2 Domicile/ CGML is a private company limited by shares and incorporated in
legal form/ | England under the laws of England and Wales.
legislation/
country of
incorporation
B.19/B.4b | Trend The banking environmentand markets in which the Group conducts
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information

its business will continue to be strongly influenced by developments
in the U.S. and global economies, including the results of the
European Union sovereign debt crisis and the implementation and
rulemaking associated with recent financial reform.

B.19/B.5 Description of [ CGML is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.
the Group Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations
primarily by earnings fromits operating subsidiaries
See Element B.5 above for a description of the Group.
B.19/B.9 Profit forecast | Not Applicable. CGML has not made a profit forecast or estimate in
or estimate the Base Prospectus.
B.19/B.10 | Audit report | Not Applicable. There are no qualifications in any audit report onthe
qualifications | historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.
B.19/B.12 | Selected The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
historical key | extracted from CGML's Financial Report for the year ended 31
financial December 2016:
information

At or for the year ended 31
December

2016 (audited) 2015 (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Gross Profit 2,735 3,259
Commission income and 1,320 2,063
fees

Net dealing income 1,612 1,237
Operating profit/loss 380 373
ordinary activities before

taxation

Balance Sheet Data:

Totalassets 345,608 323,339
Debt (Subordinated) 4,585 5,437
Total Shareholder's funds 13,880 13,447

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information

extracted from CGML's Interim Report for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2017:

At or for the six month period

ended 30 June
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

1,423
593

Gross Profit 1,775

Commission income and 583

fees
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942
277

1,391
474

Net dealing income

Operating profit/loss
ordinary activities before
taxation

At or for the six month period
ended

30 June 2017 31 December
(unaudited) 2016 (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

Totalassets 372,404 345,608
Debt (Subordinated) 2,918 4,585
Total Shareholder's funds 15,957 13,880

Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been: (i) no significant change in the financial or trading
positionof CGML or CGML and its subsidiaries as awhole since 30
June 2017 and (i) no material adverse change in the financial
position or prospects of CGML or CGML and its subsidiaries as a
whole since 31 December 2016.

B.19/B.13 | Events Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to CGML
impacting the | which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of CGML's
Guarantor's solvency since 31 December 2015.
solvency:

B.19/B.14 | Dependence CGML is a subsidiary of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
upon  other | Bahamas Limited, which is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of
Group entities | Citigroup Inc.

See Element B.19/B.5 for CGML's position within the Group.
CGML is dependent on other members of the Group.

B.19/B.15 | The CGML is a broker and dealer in fixed income and equity securities
Guarantor's and related products in the international capital markets and an
principal underwriter and provider of corporate finance services, operating
activities globally from the UK and through its branches in Europe and the

Middle East. CGML also markets securities owned by other group
undertakings on a commission basis.

B.19/B.16 | Controlling CGML is a subsidiary of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
shareholders Bahamas Limited.

B.19/B.17 | Credit ratings | CGML has a long term/short termsenior debt rating of A+/A-1 by

Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, A2/P-1 by Moody's
Investors Service, Inc. and A/F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc.

[The Notes have been rated [e].]

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold

securitiesand may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.
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[TO BE INCLUDED FOR NOTES ISSUED BY CITIGROUP INC. ONLY

Element | Title
B.1 Legal and Citigroup Inc.
commercial
name of the
Issuer
B.2 Domicile/ legal | Citigroup Inc.was establishedas a corporationincorporated in
form/ Delaware pursuantto the Delaware General Corporation Law.
legislation/
country of
incorporation
B.4b Trend The banking environmentand markets in which the Group conducts its
information businesswill continueto be strongly influenced by developments in
the U.S. and global economies, including the results of the European
Union sovereign debt crisis and the implementation and rulemaking
associated with recent financial reform.
B.5 Description of | Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations
the Group primarily by earnings fromits operating subsidiaries (Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries, the "Group™).
Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
company, whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutions with a broad range of financial products
and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately 200 million customer
accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and
jurisdictions. As of 31 December 2016, Citigroup operated, for
management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments:
Citicorp, consisting of Citigroup's Global Consumer Banking business
and Institutional Clients Group; and Citi Holdings, consisting of
businesses and portfolios ofassets that Citigroup has determined are
not central to its core Citigroup business. Beginning in the first quarter
of 2017, the remaining businesses and portfolio of assets in Citi
Holdings were reported as part of Corporate/Other and other Citi
Holdings ceased to be a separately reported business segment.
B.9 Profit forecast | Not Applicable. Citigroup Inc. has not made a profit forecast or
or estimate estimate in the Base Prospectus.
B.10 Audit  report | Not Applicable. There are no qualifications in any audit report on the
qualifications historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.
B.12 Selected The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
historical key | extracted fromthe consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc.
financial contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K as filed with the SEC
information: on 24 February 2016:

At or for the year ended 31
December

2016 2015
(audited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Totalrevenues, net of 69,875 76,354

interest expense
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Income from continuing 15,033 17,386
operations

Citigroup's Net Income 14,912 17,242
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 1,792,077 1,731,210
Totaldeposits 929,406 907,887
Long-termdebt (including 206,178 201,275
U.S.$ 26,254 and U.S.$

25,293 as of 31 December

2016 and 2015,

respectively, at fair value)

Total Citigroup 225,120 221,857

stockholders'equity

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
extracted fromCitigroup Inc.'s Quarterly Report for the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2017:

For the nine months ended 30

September
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Income Statement Data:
Totalrevenues, net of 54,194 52,863
interest expense
Income from continuing 12,138 11,442
operations
Net Income 12,095 11,339
For the three months ended 30
September
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Totalrevenues, net of 11,442 11,479
interest expense

Income from continuing 4,137 3,887
operations

Net Income 4,133 3,840

As at 30 September
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:
Totalassets 1,889,133 1,818,117
Total deposits 964,038 940,252
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Long-termdebt 232,673 209,051
Total Citigroup 227,634 231,575
stockholders'equity
Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been: (i) no significant change in the financial or trading
position of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a
whole since 30 September 2017 and (ii) no material adversechange in
the financial position or prospects of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries as a whole since 31 December 2016.
B.I3 Events Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to Citigroup Inc.
impacting the | which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of Citigroup
Issuer's Inc.'s solvency since 31 December 2016.
solvency
B.14 Dependence See Element B.5 description of Citigroup Inc. andits subsidiaries and
upon other | Citigroup Inc.'s position within the Group.
group entities
B.15 Principal Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
activities company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutionswith a broad range of financial products and
services.
B.16 Controlling Citigroup Inc. is not aware of any shareholder or group of connected
shareholders shareholders who directly or indirectly control Citigroup Inc.
B.17 Credit ratings | Citigroup Inc. has a long termv/short term senior debt rating of

BBB+/A-2 by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, Baal/P-2 by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and A/F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc.

[The Notes have been rated [eo].]

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securitiesand may be subject tosuspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.

[TO BE INCLUDED FOR NOTES ISSUED BY CGMHI ONLY

Element

Title

B.1

Legal and
commercial
name of the
Issuer

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. (" CGMHI")

B.2

Domicile/ legal
form/
legislation/
country of
incorporation

CGMHI is a corporation incorporated in the State of New York and
organised under the laws of the State of New York.

B.4b

Trend
information

The banking environmentand markets in which the Group conducts its
businesswill continue to be strongly influenced by developments in the
U.S. and global economies, including the results of the European
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Union sovereign debt crisis and the implementation and rulemaking
associated with recent financial reform.

B.5

Description of
the Group

CGMHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. Citigroup Inc.
is a holding company and services its obligations primarily by
earnings from its operating subsidiaries (Citigroup Inc. and its
subsidiaries, the Group)

Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutions with a broad range of financial products
and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately 200 million customer
accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and
jurisdictions. As of 31 December 2016, Citigroup operated, for
management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments:
Citicorp, consisting of Citigroup's Global Consumer Banking business
and Institutional Clients Group; and Citi Holdings, consisting of
businesses and portfolios of assets that Citigroup has determined are
not centralto its core Citigroup business. Beginning in the first quarter
of 2017, the remaining businesses and portfolio of assets in Citi
Holdings were reported as part of Corporate/Other and other Citi
Holdings ceased to be a separately reported business segment.

B.9

Profit fo

recast

or estimate

Not Applicable. CGMHI has not made a profit forecast or estimate in
the Base Prospectus.

B.10

Audit
qualificat

report
ions

Not Applicable. There are no qualifications in any audit report on the
historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.

B.12

Selected
historical
financial

key

information:

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information

extracted fromCGMHI's Financial Report forthe fiscal year ended 31
December 2016:

At or for the year ended 31
December
2016 2015 2014

(audited)  (audited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Consolidated revenues, net 9,877 11,049 11,760
of interestexpense
Consolidated income (loss) 2,179 2,481 (1,052)

from continuing operations
before income taxes

Consolidatednetincome 1,344 2,022 (1,718)
(loss)

Balance Sheet Data:

Totalassets 420,815 390,817 412,264
Termdebt 49,416 53,702 42,207
Stockholder's equity (fully

paid):

Common 32,747 26,603 24,883
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The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
extracted from CGMHI's unaudited interim report and financial
statements for the sixmonths ended on 30 June 2017:

For the six months ended 30 June

2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Revenues, netofinterest 5,451 4,737

expense
Income before income taxes 1,093 736
CGMHI's netincome 607 431

At 30 June 2017 At 31 December
(unaudited) 2016
(audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:
420,815
49,416

Totalassets
Termdebt

451,496
45,506

Stockholder's equity (fully
paid):
Common

33,340 32,747

Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been: (i) no significant change in the financial or trading
position of CGMHI or CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken as a whole
since 30June 2017 and (ii) no material adverse change in the financial
positionor prospects of CGMHI or CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken
as a whole since 31 December 2016.

B.13

Events
impacting the
Issuer's
solvency

Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to CGMHI

which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of CGMHI's
solvency since 31 December 2016.

B.14

Dependence
upon other
group entities

See Element B.5 description of CGMHI and its subsidiaries and
CGMHI's position within the Group.

B.15

Principal
activities

CGMHI operating through its subsidiaries, engages in full-service
investment banking and securities brokerage business. The Issuer
operatesin the Institutional Clients Group segment (which includes
Securities and Banking).

B.16

Controlling
shareholders

CGMHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.

B.17

Credit ratings

CGMHI has along termVshort termsenior debtrating of BBB+/A-2by
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, a long term/short term
senior debt rating of A/F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc. and a long term
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senior debt rating of Baal by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
[The Notes have been rated [e].]
A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject tosuspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.
B.18 Description of | The Notes issuedwill be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
the Guarantee | by Citigroup Inc. pursuant to the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee. The
CGMHI Deed of Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional,
unsubordinatedand unsecured obligations of Citigroup Inc. and ranks
and will rank pari passu (subjectto mandatorily preferred debts under
applicable laws) with all other outstanding, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Citigroup Inc.
B.19 Information
about the
Guarantor
B.19/B.1 | Legal and | Citigroup Inc.
commercial
name of the
Guarantor
B.19/B.2 | Domicile/ Citigroup Inc. was established as a corporation incorporated in
legal form/ | Delaware pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law.
legislation/
country of
incorporation
B.19/B.4b | Trend The banking environmentand markets in which the Group conducts its
information businesswill continueto be strongly influenced by developments in
the U.S. and global economies, including the results of the European
Union sovereign debt crisis and the implementation and rulemaking
associated with recent financial reform.
B.19/B.5 | Description of | Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations
the Group primarily by earnings fromits operating subsidiaries (Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries, the " Group™).
Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
company, whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
governments and institutions with a broad range of financial products
and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately 200 million customer
accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and
jurisdictions. As of 31 December 2016, Citigroup operated, for
management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments:
Citicorp, consisting of Citigroup’s Global Consumer Banking business
and Institutional Clients Group; and Citi Holdings, consisting of
businesses and portfolios ofassets that Citigroup has determined are
not centralto its core Citigroup business. Beginning in the first quarter
of 2017, the remaining businesses and portfolio of assets in Citi
Holdings were reported as part of Corporate/Other and other Citi
Holdings ceased to be a separately reported business segment.
B.19/B.9 | Profit forecast | Not Applicable. Citigroup Inc. has not made a profit forecast or
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or estimate estimate in the Base Prospectus.

B.19/B.10 | Audit report | Not Applicable. There are no qualifications in any audit report on the
qualifications historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.

B.19/B.12 | Selected The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
historical key | extracted fromthe consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc.
financial contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K as filed with the SEC
information: on 24 February 2017:

At or for the year ended 31
December

2016 2015
(audited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Totalrevenues, net of 69,875 76,354
interest expense

Income from continuing 15,033 17,386
operations

Citigroup's Net Income 14,912 17,242
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 1,792,077 1,731,210
Totaldeposits 929,406 907,887
Long-termdebt (including 206,178 201,275
U.S.$ 26,254 and U.S.$

25,293 as of 31 December

2016 and 2015, respectively,
at fair value)

Total Citigroup 225,120 221,857
stockholders'equity

The table below sets out a summary of key financial information
extracted fromCitigroup Inc.'s Quarterly Report forthe three and nine
months ended 30 September 2017.

For the nine months ended 30
September

2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of 54,194 52,863
interest expense

Income from continuing 12,138 11,442
operations

Net Income 12,095 11,339

For the three months ended 30
September
2017 2016

37



Summary

Element Title
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Income Statement Data:
Totalrevenues, net of 11,442 11,479
interest expense
Income from continuing 4,137 3,887
operations
Net Income 4,133 3,840
As at 30 September
2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets 1,889,133 1,818,117
Totaldeposits 964,038 940,252
Long-termdebt 232,673 209,051
Total Citigroup 227,634 231,575
stockholders'equity
Statements of no significant or material adverse change
There has been: (i) no significant change in the financial or trading
position of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a
whole since 30 September 2017 and (ii) no material adversechange in
the financial position or prospects of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc.
and its subsidiaries as a whole since 31 December 2016.
B.19/B.13 | Events Not Applicable. There are no recent events particular to Citigroup Inc.
impacting the | which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of Citigroup
Guarantor's Inc.'s solvency since 31 December 2016.
solvency
B.19/B.14 | Dependence See Element B.19/B.5 description of Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries
upon other | and Citigroup Inc.'s position within the Group.
Group entities
B.19/B.15 | The Guarantors | Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services holding
principal company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations,
activities governments and institutions with a broad range of financial products
and services.
B.19/B.16 | Controlling Citigroup Inc. is not aware ofany shareholder or group of connected
shareholders shareholders who directly or indirectly control Citigroup Inc.
B.19/B.17 | Credit ratings | Citigroup Inc. has a long termVshort term senior debt rating of

BBB+/A-2 by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, Baal/P-2 by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and A/F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc.

[The Notes have been rated [eo].]
A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold

securitiesand may be subject tosuspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.

38




Summary

SECTION C - SECURITIES

Element

Title

C1l

Description of
Notes/ISIN

Notes are issued in Series. The Series number is [®]. The Tranche
number is [e].

[The Notes are titled Certificates and therefore all references to

"Note(s)" and "Noteholder(s)" shall be construed to be to
"Certificate(s)" and " Certificateholder(s)".]

The Notes may be Credit Linked Interest Notes, Fixed Rate Notes,
Floating Rate Notes, Zero Coupon Notes, Inflation Rate Notes, DIR
Inflation Linked Notes, CMS Interest Linked Notes, Range Accrual
Notes, Digital Notes, Digital Band Notes, Inverse Floating Rate Notes,
Spread Notes, Volatility Bond Notes, Previous Coupon Linked Notes
or any combination of the foregoing.

If the applicable Final Terms specify "Switcher Option™ to be
applicable forthe relevant Notes, the Issuer will be able to switch from
one interest basis to another as provided therein.

The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) is [e]. The
Common Code is [e]. [The [CUSIP/WKN/Valoren] is [e].]

C2

Currency

The denomination currency andthe currency for payments in respect of
the Notes is [e].

C5

Restrictions on
the free

transferability
of the Notes

The Notes will be transferable, subject to the offering, selling and
transfer restrictions with respect to the United States, European
Economic Area, United Kingdom, Australia, Austria, the Kingdom of
Bahrain, Brazil, Chile, Columbia, Costa Rica, Republic of Cyprus,
Denmark, Dominican Republic, Dubai International Financial Centre,
Ecuador, El Salvador, Finland, France, Guatemala, Honduras, Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, Hungary, Ireland, Israel, Italy,
Japan, State of Kuwait, Mexico, Norway, Oman, Panama, Paraguay,
Peru, Poland, Portugal, State of Qatar, Russian Federation, Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan, Republic of Turkey,
United Arab Emirates and Uruguay andthe laws of any jurisdiction in
which the Notes are offered or sold.

C.8

Rights attached
to the Notes,
including
ranking  and
limitations on
those rights

The Notes have terms and conditions relatingto, among other matters:

Ranking

The Notes will constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the Issuer and rank and will at all times rank pari passu and rateably
among themselvesandat least paripassu with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations ofthe Issuer save for such obligations as
may be preferred by provisions of law that are both mandatory and of
general application.

Negative pledge and cross default

The terms of the Notes will not contain a negative pledge provisionora
cross-default provision in respect of the Issuer [or the Guarantor].

Events of default

The terms of the Notes will [contain, amongst others,/be limited to ] the
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following events of default:

[To be included where Schedule A is not applicable: (a) default in
payment of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes,
continuing foraperiod of 30days in the case of interest or 10 days in
the case of principal, in each case after the due date; (b) default in the
performance, or breach, of any other covenant by the Issuer [or
Guarantor] (to be included for Notes issued by CGMFL only), and
continuance for a period of 60 days after the date on which written
notice is given by the holders of at least 25 per cent, in principal
amount of the outstanding Notes specifying such default or breach and
requiring it to be remedied; (c) events relating to the winding up or
dissolutionorsimilar procedureofthe Issuer [or the Guarantor] (to be
includedfor Notes issued by CGMFL only); and (d) the appointment of
a receiver or other similar official or other similar arrangement of the
Issuer [orthe Guarantor] (tobe included for Notes issued by CGMFL

only).]

[To beincluded for Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. only where Schedule
Aisapplicable: (i) failure to pay principal orinterest for 30 days after it
is due and (ii) certain events of insolvency or bankruptcy (whether
voluntary ornot). Only those specified Events of Default will provide
for aright of accelerationofthe Notesand no other event, including a
default in the performanceofany other covenantof Citigroup Inc., will
result in acceleration.]

Taxation

Payments in respect of all Notes will be made without withholding or
deduction of taxes: (i) in Luxembourg where the Issuer is CGMFL, or
in the United Kingdomin the case ofthe CGMFL Guarantor, subjectin
all casesto specified exceptions, or (i) in the United States where the
Issuer is Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI or in the case of the CGMHI
Guarantor, in each case except as required by law. In that event,
additionalinterest will be payable in respect of such taxes, subject to
specified exceptions.

Meetings

The terms of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of
holders of such Notes to consider matters affecting their interests
generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
holders, includingholders who did notattend and vote at the relevant
meeting and holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

C9

Description of
the rights
attached to the
Notes, including
nominal interest

rate, the date
from which
interest
becomes
payable  and
interest

payment dates,

Interest periods and rates of interest:

Otherthan Zero Coupon Notes, the length of all interest periods for all

Notes and the applicable rate of interest or its method of calculation
may differ from time to time or be constant for any Series.

Notes may (at the option of the Issuer, if specified in the applicable
Final Terms) or shall (in the case where " Automatic Change of Interest
Basis" applies) have more thanoneinterestbasis applicable to different
interest periods and/or interest payment dates.

Other than Zero Coupon Notes, Notes may have a maximum rate of
interest or interest amount (or both), a minimum rate of interest or
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description of
the underlying
(where the rate
is not fixed),
maturity date,
repayment
provisions and
indication  of
yield

interest amount (or both).

Interest:

Notes may or may not bear interest. Notes which do not bear interest
may be specified in the applicable Final Terms as "Zero Coupon
Notes", and any early redemption amount payable on Zero Coupon
Notes may be equal to an amortised face amount calculated in
accordance with the conditions of the Notes.

Interest-bearing Notes will either bear interestpayable at, or calculated
by reference to, one or more of the following:

(i)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

a fixed rate ("Fixed Rate Notes");
a floating rate ("Floating Rate Notes™);

a CMSrate, which is a swap rate for swap transactions (or if
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the lower of two swap
rates, or the difference between two swap rates) ("CMS
Interest Linked Notes™");

a rate determined by reference to movements in an inflation
index (" Inflation Rate Notes");

a rate determined by reference to movements in an inflation
index and the specific interest payment date to allow

interpolation between the two monthly fixings ("DIR
Inflation Linked Notes");

a rate (which may be a rate equal, or calculated by reference,
to a fixed rate, a floating rate or a CMS rate (as described in
paragraph (iii) above) multiplied by an accrual rate, which is
determined by reference tothe number of days in the relevant
interest period on whichthe accrual condition or both accrual
conditions are satisfied. An accrual condition may be satisfied
on any relevantday ifthe relevant reference observation is, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms:

. greater than or equal to; or
. greater than; or

. less than or equal to; or

. less than,

the specified barrier, or if the relevant reference observation s,
as specified in the applicable Final Terms:

. either greater than or equal to, or greater than, the
specified lower range; and

. eitherless thanorequalto, or less than, the specified
upper range.

A reference observation may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms as asingle reference rate, a basketoftwo or more
reference rates, the difference between two reference rates or
the difference betweenthesums of two sets of reference rates
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(vii)

(viii)

(iX)

)

("Range Accrual Notes™);

a rate which will either be: (a) a specified back up rate, or
(b) if the specified digital reference rate on the specified
determination date is, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms:

. less than the specified reserve rate; or

. less than or equal to the specified reserve rate; or
. greater than the specified reserve rate; or

. greater than or equal to the specified reserve rate,

a specified digital rate, and each of the specified back up rate,
specified digital reference rate, specified reserve rate and
specified digital rate may be a fixed rate, a floating rate or a
CMS rate (which would include a rate determined by
reference to the Spread Notes provisions) (" Digital Notes");

a rate (which may be a rate equal, or calculated by reference,
to a fixed rate, a floating rate, a CMS rate or a rate equal to
one specified rate (which may be a floating rate or a CMS
rate) minus another specified rate (which may be a floating
rate ora CMS rate)), and plus or minus a margin (if specified)
which will be determined foreach interestperiod by reference
to within which band of specified fixed rates either:

@) the specified reference rate (which rate may be a
floating rate or a CMS rate) determined on the
relevant interestdetermination date for the reference
rate falls; or

(b) the result of reference rate one (which rate may be a
floating rate ora CMS rate) minus reference rate two
(which may be a floating rate or a CMS Rate), each
as determined on the relevant interest determination
date for such rate falls.

The rate for an interest period will be equal to the rate
specified as theband rateset for the appropriate band within
which, in the case of (a), the specified reference rate falls, or
in the case of (b), the relevant result of reference rate one
minus reference rate two falls ("Digital Band Notes");

a rate which will be equalto a specified fixed rate minus either
(i) a reference rate or (ii) one reference rate minus another
reference rate (any reference rate may be a floating rate or a
CMS rate (which would include a rate determined by
reference to the Spread Notes provisions), and plus or
minus a margin (if specified)and/or multiplied by an interest
participation rate (if specified)) ("Inwerse Floating Rate
Notes");

a rate which is to be determined by reference to any of the
following (as specified in the applicable Final Terms):
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(xi)

(xii)

€) one (1) minus the result of a specified spread rate
minus another specified spread rate, or

(b) a specified spread rate minus another specified spread
rate, or

(c) the lesserof: () aspecified spread rate, plus or minus

a spread cap margin (if specified), and (II) the sum
of (A) a specified percentage rate per annumand (B)

the product of (X) a multiplier, and (y) the difference
between two specified spread rates,

and, in each case, plus or minus a margin (if specified), and
multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified). A
specified spread rate may be (A) one specified reference rate,
or (B) the sumoftwo or more specified reference rates or (C)
specified reference rate one minus a specified reference rate
two, and in each case, plus or minus a margin (if specified),
and multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified).
Each specified reference rate may be determined by reference
to the fixed rate note provisions, floating rate note provisions
or the CMS rate note provisions ("Spread Notes™);

a rate which is to be determined by reference to the absolute
value of a specified volatility bond rate 1 minus a specified
volatility bondrate 2all, plus orminus a margin (if specified),
and multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified).

\olatility bond rate 1 and volatility bond rate 2 may each be
(A) one specified referencerate, or (B) the sumoftwo ormore
specified reference rates or (C) a specified reference rate one
minus a specified referencerate two, and in each case, plus or
minus a margin (if specified), and multiplied by an interest
participationrate (if specified). Each specified reference rate
may be determined by reference to the fixed rate note
provisions, floating rate note provisions or the CMS rate note
provisions or, if "Shout Option™is specified to be applicable,
following valid exercise of the shout option for a relevant
interest period by all the holders, the reference rate(s)
comprising volatility bond rate 2 shall be determined by
reference to the implied forward rate for such reference rate(s)
as determined by the calculation agent (*Volatility Bond
Notes");

a rate (a "previous coupon linked interest rate")
determined from a previous coupon reference rate, plus or
minus a margin (if specified), and multiplied by an interest
participation rate (if specified). The previous coupon
reference rate for an interest period is a rate equal to: (a) the
interest rate for the immediately preceding interest period
and/or preceding interest payment date (such rate, a
"previous coupon”, such period, a "preceding interest
period’ and such payment date, a "preceding payment
date™), (b) plus or minus a specified rate (if specified)
multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified), and
() plus or minus another specified rate (if specified)
multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified). A
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specified rate may be a fixed rate, a floating rate, a CMS rate
or any other specified reference rate determined by reference
to the terms and conditions of the Notes. The previous
coupon for a preceding interest period and/or preceding
paymentdate (as applicable) is the interest rate determined in
accordancewith the interest basis applicable to such preceding
interest period and/or such preceding payment date, which
may be the previous coupon linked interest rate (determined
for the preceding interest period and/or preceding payment
date), orany other interest rate determined in accordance with
the applicable interest basis for such precedinginterest period
and/orsuchpreceding payment date (the "Previous Coupon
Linked Notes™);

(xiiiy  any combination of the foregoing; or

(xv)  any combination of the interest rates outlined in (i) to (xii)
above in combination with Credit Linked Interest Notes,
the Notes shall cease to bear interest from the date of the
interest period end date (or if earlier the issue date of the
Notes) prior to the date on which a credit event is
determined pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Credit Linked Interest Notes (the "Credit Linked Interest
Notes").

In respect of Notes (other than Fixed Rate Notes), the amount of
interest payable on the Notes for an interest period may be zero.

Any reference rate (including any specified rate) or interest rate may
be subjecttoan interestparticipation rate and/or a margin if specified
in the applicable Final Terms in relation to such reference rate or
interest rate.

Any reference rate (including any specified rate), interest rate or

interest amount described above may be subject to a minimum or
maximum rate, or both, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

[CREDIT LINKED INTEREST NOTES: The Notes are interest
bearing notes and shall bear interest as specified below. In addition,
the Notes are Credit Linked Interest Notes meaning that upon the
occurrence of a Credit Event (as set out below) in respect of a
Reference Entity (as set out below) the Notes shall cease to bear
interest fromthe date of the interest period end date (or if earlier the
issue date of the Notes) prior to the date on which a credit event is
determined.

The Reference Entity is [ ] (insert details of the Reference Entity).
The Credit Event[s] applicable [is][are] as follows:

(insert all Credit Events applicable)

[Bankruptcy- the Reference Entity goes bankrupt]

[Failure to Pay - subject to a minimum threshold amount, the
Reference Entity fails to pay any amounts due on any of its
borrowings (including its bonds or loans) or, where applicable,
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guarantees]

[Governmental Intervention - following an action taken or an
announcement made by a Governmental Authority, any of the
Reference Entity's borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees,
subject to aminimum thresholdamount of such borrowings or, where
applicable, guarantees, are restructured in such a way as to adversely
affecta creditor (such as areduction or postponement of the interest
or principal payable on a bond or loan)]

[Obligation Default- the Reference Entity defaults on a minimum
amount of its borrowings (including its bonds or loans) or, where
applicable, guaranteesandas a result such obligations are capable of
being accelerated]

[Obligation Acceleration - the Reference Entity defaults on a
minimum amount ofits borrowings (including its bonds or loans) or,
where applicable, guarantees and as a result such obligations are
accelerated]

[Repudiation/Moratorium - (i) the Reference Entity repudiates or
rejects, in whole or in part, its obligations in relation to its
borrowings or, where applicable, its guarantees, or it declares or
imposes a moratorium with respect to its borrowings or, where
applicable, guarantees and (ii) thereafter within a certain period it
fails to pay any amounts due on any of its borrowings (including its
bondsorloans) or, where applicable, its guarantees, or it restructures
any of its borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees in suchaway as
to adversely affect a creditor.]

[Restructuring - following a deterioration of the Reference Entity's
creditworthiness, any of its borrowings or, where applicable,
guarantees, subject to a minimum threshold amount of such
borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees, are restructured in such
a way as to adversely affect a creditor (such as a reduction or
postponementofthe interest or principal payable on a bond or loan)]

[ZERO COUPON NOTES: The Notes are Zero Coupon Notes
meaning that they do not bear interest and will be issued at the issue
price specified in the applicable Final Terms and with the final
redemption amount being specified in the applicable Final Terms.]

[AUTOMATIC CHANGE OF INTEREST BASIS: The Notes

have more than one interest basis applicable to different interest
periods and/or interest payment dates.

The [interest rate] [and] [interest amount] in respect of an [interest
period beginningon (andincluding) an Interest Commencement Date
(specified below) and ending on (but excluding) the first succeeding
Interest Period End Date after such Interest Commencement Date,
and each successive period beginningon (and including) an Interest
Period End Date, and ending on (but excluding) the next succeeding
Interest Period End Date] / [or in respect of an] [Interest Payment
Date] [(as applicable)] (specified below) will be determined in
accordancewith the interest basis applicable to such [interest period /
[or] Interest Payment Date] [(as applicable)] as set forth in the table
below in the column entitled "Type of Notes" in the row
corresponding to [the Interest Period End Date on which such period
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ends / [or] such Interest Payment Date].]

Interest Basis Table

Interest
Commencement
Date

[Interest Period End
Date(s) / Interest
Payment Date(s)]

Type of Notes

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as required)

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as required)

[Fixed Rate Notes /
[and] Floating Rate

Notes/ [and] Inflation
Rate Notes / [and]
DIR Inflation Linked
Notes / [and] CMS
Interest Linked Notes
/ [and] Inverse
Floating Rate Notes /
[and] Range Accrual
Notes / [and] Digital
[Band] Notes / [and]
Spread Notes / [and]
Volatility Bond Notes
/ [and] Previous
Coupon Linked
Notes] (repeat as
required)]

[FIXED RATE NOTES: The Notes are Fixed Rate Notes

which means that the Notes [Insert if "Accrual” is applicable: bear
interest from [ ] [at the fixed rate of [ ] per cent. per annum
[plus/minus] [insert margin (if any)] [multiplied by [insert interest
participation rate (ifany)]] [in respect of [the/each] interest period(s)
ending on (but excluding): [insert relevant interest period end date(s)]]
[and from[ ] atthefixed rate of[ ] percent.perannum[plus/minus]
[insert margin (ifany)] [multiplied by [insert interest participation rate
(if any)]] [in respect of [the/each] interest period(s) ending on (but
excluding): [insert relevant interest period end date(s)]]. (repeat as
necessaryifthere are different rates for different periods or tabulate
this information by inserting the paragraph and the table below)]

[Insertif "Accrual” isnotapplicable: pay an interestamount of [insert
amount]on[insert relevant interest payment date(s)] [and a broken
amount of [insert amount] on [insert relevant interest payment
date(s)]]. (repeat as necessary if there are different amounts for
different interest payment dates or tabulate this information by
inserting the paragraph and the table below)]

[The Notes are Fixed Rate Notes which meansthat the Notes [Insert if
"Accrual" is applicable: bear interest from[ ] at the Specified Fixed
Rate [, plus orminus (as specified below) the Margin] [, and multiplied
by the Interest Participation Rate] [each] in respect of each Interest
Period ending on (but excluding) the Interest Period End Date(s) (as
specified below)] / [Insert if "Accrual™ is not applicable: pay an
Interest Amount Jor Broken Amount (as applicable)] on each Interest
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Payment Date (as specified below)].]

Brok
[Interest Period [Specified AEmroou:t?/
End Date(s)] / Fixed Rate] / .
[Margin] [Interest
[Interest Payment [Interest .
Participation
Date(s)] Amount]
Rate]
[insert date(s)] [[specify] [per +/-[specify] [specify]
(repeatas required) [ cent. per annum] (repeat as (repeat as
(repeat as required) required)
required)

[Interest is payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrearson [ ] [and [ ]] in each [year][month] [from, and including, [e]
to and including, []]]]

The "calculation amount™ is [@].]

[FLOATING RATE NOTES/CMS INTEREST LINKED NOTES:]
[The Notes are [Floating Rate Notes/CMS Interest
Linked Notes] which means thatthey bear interestfrom|[ ]at [a] [floating
rate[s] calculated by reference to [[ ]-month] [LIBOR / EURIBOR /
STIBOR / NIBOR / CIBOR / TIBOR / HIBOR / BBSW (being the
Sydney average mid rate for AUD bills of exchange) / BKBM (being
the Wellington rate of New Zealand Dollar bills of exchange)]] /
[Insert if "Single CMS Interest Rate" applies: CMS reference rate
calculated by reference to the mid-market swap rate for swap
transactions in [insert currency] with a maturity of [ ] years]
[[plus/minus] the relevant Margin [specified below/of [insert margin (if
any)] per cent. per annum]] [multiplied by the relevant Interest
Participation Rate [specified below/of [insert]]] / [Insert if "Worse of
CMS Interest Rates" or "CMS Spread Interest Rate" applies: a rate
equal to the [lesser of/difference between] (i) the mid-market swap
rate for swap transactions in [insert currency] with a maturity of [ ]
years ("CMS ReferenceRate 1") [, plus or minus (as specified below)
Margin 1] [and] [multiplied by [the Interest Participation Rate 1
[specified below/of [insert]], [and/minus] (ii) the mid-market swap
rate for swap transactions in [insert currency] with a maturity of [ ]
years ("CMS ReferenceRate 2") [, plus or minus (as specified below)
Margin 2] [and] [multiplied by [the Interest Participation Rate 2
[specified below/of [insert]]] [in respect of [the/each] interest
period(s) ending on (but excluding): [insert relevant interest period
end date(s)]]. (repeat as necessary if there are different rates for
different periods or tabulate this information by inserting the
paragraph and the table below)

[The Notes are [Floating Rate Notes/CMS Interest Linked Notes]
which means that they bear interest from [ ] at a rate calculated by
reference to [the Floating Rate] / [the CMS Reference Rate] / [the
[lesser of/difference between] CMS Reference Rate 1 [, plus or minus
(as specified below) Margin 1] [and] [(multiplied by the Interest
Participation Rate 1)] and CMS Reference Rate 2 [, plus or minus (as
specified below) Margin 2] [and] [(multiplied by the Interest
Participation Rate 2)]] [Insert for Floating Interest Rate or "Single
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CMS InterestRate™:, plus or minus (as specified below) the Margin] |,
and multiplied by the Interest Participation Rate] [each] in respect of
each Interest Period ending on the Interest Period End Date(s) (as
specified below).]

[Floating Rate] [CMS Reference Rate] [1] [2]*
[Floating
Interest Rate] [maximum /
Period End [CMS [and] [Interest
Date(s Reference minimum [Margin] L
ate(s) ) " Participation
Rate] [1] | [interest] rate (11121 Rate] [1] [2]*
[2]* (Cap / Floor /
Collan]*

[insert date(s)] | [specify] [[ 1percent. | [+/-] [specify] | [specify] (repeat
(repeat as (repeat as per annum] (repeat as as required)]
required) required) (repeat as required)]

required)

*Insert additional columns as required

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly]
in arrears on[ ][and[ ]]in each [year][month] [from, and including,
[e] to and including, [e].]

[The interest rate in respect of the interest period(s) ending on the
interest period end date(s) [falling on: [insert date(s)]/specified
above] is subject to a [maximum interest rate (cap) [of [®]/(as
specified in the table above)]] / [minimum interest rate (floor) [of
[®]/(as specified in the table above)]] / [maximum interest rate and
minimum interest rate (collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively] [(each as
specified in the table above)]].] (Specify for each interest rate if
different for each interest period or tabulate this information as per
table above)

[The [Floating Rate] [CMS Reference Rate] [1] [2] in respect of the
interest period(s) ending on theinterest period end date(s) [falling on:
[insert date(s)]/specified above] [is/are] subject to a [maximum rate
(cap) [of [e]/specified above]] [minimum rate (floor) of [e]]
[maximum rate and minimum rate (collar) [of [e] and [e] respectively]
[(each as specified in the table above)]. (If any reference rate is
specified asafloating rate or a CMS rate, specify for each reference
rate ifdifferent for each interest period or tabulate this information)]

[The "interest participation rate" or "IPR" in respect of [CMS
Reference Rate] [1] for [each/the] interestperiodending onthe interest
period end date(s) falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details of
relevant IPR]. (repeat as required for CMS Reference Rate 2 (if
applicable) or each Interest Period if different, or tabulate this
information as per table above)]

The "calculation amount" is [@®].]

[INFLATION RATE NOTES: The Notes are Inflation Rate Notes
which means that the Notes are linked to [®]. Interest will be payable
on the relevant interest payment date and will be calculated by the
calculation agentby multiplyingthe calculation amountby theyear-on-
year change in the inflation rate as determined by dividing [®] (the
"Inflation Index™) [®] months prior to the relevant interest payment
date by the Inflation Index [®] months prior to the relevant interest
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payment date and subtracting 1 [as adjusted for a Margin [of [+[®]] [-
[®]]% per annum]/specified below] multiplied by the relevant day
count fraction [[and] [multiplied by the relevant Interest Participation
Rate (IPR) specified below]].

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [@] [and [®]] in each [year][month] [from,and including, [e
] to and including, [e].

[maximum / [and]

o ) [Interest
Interest minimum interest . L
[Margin] Participation Rate
Payment Date(s) amount (Cap / (IPR)]

Floor / Collan]*
[insert date(s)] [specify] (repeat as [+/-] [specify] [specify] (repeat as
(repeat as required)] (repeat as required)]
required) required)]
*Insert additional columns as required

[The interest amount in respect of the interest payment date(s)
[falling on:[insert date(s)]/specified above] is subject to a [maximum
interest amount (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the table above)]] /
[minimum interest amount (floor) [of [®]/(as specified in the table
above)]] / [maximum interest amount and minimum interest amount
(collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table
above)]].] (repeat as required or tabulate this information for each
interest payment date ifdifferentby inserting the relevanttable set out
above)

The "calculation amount” is [@®].

[The "interest participation rate” or "IPR" in respect of [an/the]
interest payment date(s) falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details of
relevant IPR]. (repeatas required or tabulate this information for each
interest payment date if different)]

[DIR INFLATION LINKED NOTES: The Notes are DIR Inflation
Linked Notes which means that the Notes are linked to [®]. Interest
will be payable on the relevant interest payment date and will be
calculated by the calculation agent by multiplying the calculation
amount by the DIR indexratio which shall be determined by reference
to two specified monthly levels of [@] (the "Inflation Index") and the
relevant interestpaymentdate minus oneandthe numberofdaysin the
month of such interest payment date to determine an interpolated rate
and divided by a specified base figure of the Inflation Index] [as
adjusted fora Margin of [+[®]] [-[®]] per cent. per annum] multiplied
by the relevant day count fraction [[and] [multiplied by the relevant
Interest Participation Rate ("IPR") specified below]].

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [®@] and [®] in each [year/month].

[The interestamountin respect ofthe interest payment date(s) [falling
on:[insert date(s)]/specified above] is subject to a [maximum interest
amount (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the table above)]] / [minimum
interest amount (floor) [of [@]/(as specified in the table above)]] /
[maximum interest amount and minimum interest amount (collar) [of
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[®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table above)]] ]
(repeat as required or tabulate this information for each interest
payment date if different by inserting the relevant table set out at
"INFLATION RATE NOTES:" above)

The "calculation amount” is [@].

[The "interest participation rate” or "IPR" in respect of [an/the]
interest payment date(s) falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details of
relevant IPR]. (repeatas required or tabulate this information for each
interest payment date if different)]

[RANGE ACCRUAL NOTES: The Notes are Range Accrual Notes
which means that the relevant day count fraction applicable to an
interest period will be multiplied by an accrual rate. The accrual rate in
respect ofan [interest period] [and] [interest payment date] will be an
amount expressed as a decimal determined by the calculation
agent in accordance with the following formula:

days accrued
days observed
where:

"accrual condition [1]" is satisfied on an interest observation date in
the relevant interest period if the reference observation [1] is

[insertifbarrierisspecified: [greaterthan] [less than] [orequal to] the
barrier [of [®]/specified belowand corresponding to the interest period
end date (specified below) on which the relevantinterest period ends]]
[insert if lower range and upper range are specified: [greater than]
[equalto orgreater than] the lower range [of [®]/specified below and
corresponding to the interest period end date (specified below) on
which the relevantinterest period ends] and [less than] [equal to or less
than]the upperrange [of [®]/specified belowand corresponding to the
interest period end date (specified below) on which the relevantinterest
period ends]].

["accrual condition 2" is satisfied onan interestobservation date in the
relevant interest period if the reference observation 2 is [insert if
barrierisspecified: [greater than] [less than] [or equal to] the barrier
[of [®@]/specified belowand corresponding to the interest period end
date (specified below) on which the relevant interest period ends]]
[insert if lower range and upper range are specified: [greater than]
[equalto orgreaterthan] the lower range [of [@®]/specified below and
corresponding to the interest period end date (specified below) on
which the relevantinterestperiodends] and [less than] [equal to or less
than]the upperrange [of [®]/specified belowand corresponding to the
interest period end date (specified below) on which the relevantinterest
period ends]].] (insertif "Dual Reference Observation™ is applicable)

"days accrued" means the number of interestobservation dates in the

relevant interestperiod on which [the accrual condition/both accrual
condition 1 and accrual condition 2] [is/are] satisfied.

"days observed" means the actual number of [calendar/business] days
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in the relevant interest period.

"interestobservation date" shallbe: (i) each [calendar/business] day
falling from (and including) the first day of an interest period to (but
excluding) the f[fifth/[specify other]] [calendar/business] day
immediately precedingtheinterestperiodend date falling at the end of
such interest period (suchday, the " Accrual Cut-Off Date™), and (ii) in
respect of each [calendar/business] day falling from(and including) the
Accrual Cut-Off Date to but (excluding) the interest period end date
falling at the end of suchinterest period, the Accrual Cut-Off Date shall
be deemed to be an "interest observation date"” for each such day.

"reference observation [1]" [is a reference rate which is [®]] [means
reference rate one minus reference rate two] [sumof reference rate ones
minus the sum of reference rate twos] [a basket of reference rates,
which are [®], [®] [and] [®]] (insert relevant reference rates
which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate or a CMS
rate or a rate determined by Spread Notes provisions).

["reference observation 2" [is a reference rate which is [®]] [means
reference rate one minus reference rate two] [sumof reference rate ones
minus the sum of reference rate twos] [a basket of reference rates,
which are [®], [®] [and] [®]] (insert relevant reference rates which
may be a fixed interestrate, a floating interest rate ora CMS rate or a
rate determined by Spread Notes provisions).] (insert if "Dual
Reference Observation™ is applicable)

['reference rate [one[s]]" means [®], [®] [and] [®] (insert relevant
reference rate(s) which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest
rate ora CMS rate or a rate determined by Spread Notes provisions).]

["reference rate [two[s]]" means [®], [®] [and] [®] (insert relevant

reference rate(s) which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest
rate ora CMS rate or a rate determined by Spread Notes provisions).]

Interest Period

[Interest Rate]*
[Reference

[Barrier] /

[Lower Range]

End Date(s) Observation]* [Upper Range]

[insert date(s)] | [specify] (repeat [specify] [specify]
(repeat as as required) (repeat as (repeat as
required) required) required)

*insert additional column for
Observation" for each Interest Period if different.

"Interest Rate"

and/or "Reference

| Accrual Condition 1 Accrual Condition 2
nterest
Period End . .
Date(s) [Barrier 1] [Barrier 2]
[Interest [Lower Range [Upper [Lower Range [Upper
Rate]* 17> 21>
1 [Reference Range 1] [Reference Range 2]
Observation 1]* Observation 2]*
[insert date(s)] | [specify] (repeat [specify] [specify] (repeat [specify]
(repeat as as required) (repeat as as required) (repeat as
required) required) required)
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and/or "Lower Range 1" under the heading “"Accrual Condition 1", and "Reference
Observation 2" and/or "Lower Range 2" under the heading "Accrual Condition 2",
for each Interest Period if different.

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and an
interest payment date is an amount calculated on the basis of the
interest rate multiplied by the accrual rate multiplied by the relevant
day count fraction. The interest amount may be zero. Interest will be
payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in arrears on [ ]
[and [ ] in each [year] [month] [from, and including, [e] to and
including, [e]].

The "interest rate" will be determined by reference to the [fixed rate of
interest which is [®] per cent. per annum] / [floating rate of interest
which is calculated by reference to [[ ]-month] [LIBOR/ EURIBOR/
STIBOR / NIBOR / CIBOR / TIBOR / HIBOR / BBSW (being the
Sydney average mid rate for Australian dollar bills of exchange) /
BKBM (being the Wellington rate of New Zealand dollar bills of
exchange)] / [Insert if "Single CMS Interest Rate" applies: CMS
reference rate calculated by reference to the mid-market swap rate for
swap transactions in [insert currency] with a maturity of [ ] years]
[plus/minus] the relevant Margin [specified below/of [insert margin
(ifany)] per cent. per annum] [and] [multiplied by the relevant
Interest Participation Rate [specified below/of [insert]]] / [Insert if
"Worse of CMS Interest Rates” or "CMS Spread Interest Rate"
applies: the [lesser of/difference between] (i) the mid-market swap
rate for swap transactions in [insert currency] with a maturity of [ ]
years] ("CMS ReferenceRate 1") [, plus orminus (as specified below)
Margin 1 [specified below/of [insert]]] [and] [multiplied by [the
Interest Participation Rate 1 [specified below/of [insert]], [and/minus]
(ii) the mid-market swap rate for swap transactions in [insert currency]
with a maturity of [ ] years] ("CMS Reference Rate 2") [, plus or
minus (as specified below) Margin 2 [specified below/of [insert]]]
[and] [multiplied by [the Interest Participation Rate 2 [specified
below/of [insert]].] (repeatas necessary ifthere are different rates for
different periods or tabulate this information by inserting the
paragraph below andthe relevant table set outabove at " FIXED RATE
NOTES:" or "FLOATING RATE NOTES/CMS INTEREST LINKED
NOTES:")

[The Notes are [Fixed Rate Notes/Floating Rate Notes/CMS Interest
Linked Notes] which means that they bear interest from|[ ] at a rate
calculated by reference to the [Specified Fixed Rate [(specified
below)/of [insert] per cent. per annum]] / [Floating Rate] / [CMS
Reference Rate]/ [the [lesser of/difference between] CMS Reference
Rate 1 [plus or minus (as specified below) Margin 1] [and] [multiplied
by the Interest Participation Rate 1]and CMS Reference Rate 2 [plus or
minus (as specified below) Margin 2] [and] [multiplied by the Interest
Participation Rate 2]] [Insert for Floating InterestRateor "Single CMS
Interest Rate":, plus orminus (as specified below) the Margin] [, and
multiplied by the InterestParticipation Rate] [each] in respect of each
Interest Periodending onthe Interest Period End Date(s) (as specified
below).] (insert relevant table set out above at "FIXED RATE
NOTES:" or "FLOATING RATE NOTES/CMS INTEREST LINKED
NOTES:")]
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[The interest rate in respect of the interest period(s) ending on the
interest periodenddate(s) [falling on: [insert date(s)]/specified above]
is subject to a [maximum interest rate (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the
table above)]]/ [minimum interest rate (floor) [of [®]/(as specified in
the table above)]] / [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate
(collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table
above)]].] (Specify for each interestperiodifdifferent or tabulate this
informationby inserting the relevant table set out above at " FIXED
RATE NOTES:" or "FLOATING RATE NOTES/CMS INTEREST
LINKED NOTES:")

[In relation to [reference rate [one[s]] [and] [reference rate [two[s]], [it
is/theyare] [each] subject to a [maximum rate (cap) [specified below/of
[e]] [minimum rate (floor) [specified below/of [e]] [maximum rate and
minimum rate (collar) [of [e] and [e] respectively/(eachas specified in
the table above)] for [each/the] interest period ending on the interest
period end date(s) [falling on: [insert date(s)]/specified below].]

[reference rate][one[s]] | [reference rate two[s]]*

Interest
Period End [maximum / [and] [maximum / [and]
Date(s) minimum rate] (Cap/ [minimumrate] (Cap/Floor
_ Floor / Collan)]* / Collan]*
[m(srzr; ed aattg(ss)] [specify] (repeat as [specify] (repeat as
required) required) required)

*insert additional columns as required

[The interestamountin respect of the interest payment date(s) [falling
on:[insert date(s)]/specified above] is subject to a [maximum interest
amount (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the table above)]] / [minimum
interest amount (floor) [of [®@]/(as specified in the table above)]] /
[maximum interest amount and minimum interest amount (collar) [of
[®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table above)]].]
(repeat as required or tabulate this information for each interest
payment date if different by inserting the relevant table set out at
"INFLATION RATE NOTES:" above)

[The "interest participation rate" or "IPR" in respect of [each/the]
[interest paymentdate(s)/interest period ending on the interest period
end date(s)] falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details of relevant
IPR]. (repeat as required or tabulate this information for each Interest
Period if different by inserting the relevant table set out above at
"FIXED RATE NOTES:" or "FLOATING RATE NOTES/CMS
INTEREST LINKED NOTES:")]

The "calculation amount" is [@®].]

[DIGITAL NOTES: The Notes are Digital Notes which means that the
rate of interest in respect of [an interest period] [the following interest
periods [@]] will either be:

() the back up rate, being [®]; or

(xvi) if thedigitalreference rate, being [®] as of [®], is [less than]

[less than or equal to] [greater than] [greater than or equal to] the
reserve rate, being [®] as of [®],
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the digital rate, being [®]

[, and in respect of the following interest periods [®] will either be (i)
the backup rate, being [@®] or (ii) if the digital reference rate, being [@®]
as of [@] is [less than] [less than orequal to] [greater than] [greater than
or equalto]the reserverate, being [®] as of [@], the digital rate being
[®] (Specify relevantinterest periods and repeat as necessary if there
are different rates for different interest periods).]

[The [back up rate]/[digital reference rate][reserve rate]/[digital rate]
will be determined by reference to [®] [and will be subject to a
[maximum rate (cap) of [®]] [and] [minimum rate (floor) of [@]]
[maximum rate and minimum rate (collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively]
for [each/the] interest period ending on the interest period end date(s)
falling on: [insert date(s)].] (Specify relevant maximum or minimum
rate(s) and repeat as necessary if there are different maximum or
minimum rates for different interest periods)

[The interest rate in respect of the interest period(s) ending on the
interest period end date(s) falling on: [insert date(s)] is subject to a
[maximum interest rate (cap) of [e]] / [minimum interest rate (floor) of
[e]] / [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate (collar) of [e]
and [e] respectively].] (Specify relevant maximum or minimum interest
rate(s) and repeat as necessary if there are different maximum or
minimum interest rates for different interest periods)

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly]
in arrears on [®] [and [®]] in each [year][month] [from, and
including,

[e] to and including, [e].

The "calculation amount” is [@].

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and each
interest payment date and the relevant interest period is an amount
calculated on the basis of the relevant day count fraction.]

[DIGITAL BAND NOTES: The Notes are Digital Band Notes which
means that the rate of interest in respect of [an interest period] [the
following interest periods [®]] will be determined by reference to
where in the following Bands (specified in the table below) [the
reference rate specified below determined on the relevant interest
determination date falls] [the result of reference rate one minus

reference rate two, in each case as specified below and determined on
the relevant interest determination date, falls].

The rate of interest for an interest period will be equal to the rate
(which may be a fixed rate, a floating rate,a CMSrate ora rate equal to
the relevant Band Rate One minus the relevant Band Rate Two and
plus or minus a margin if specified) specified as the "Band Rate" for
the appropriate Band (specified in the table below) within which [the
relevant specified referencerate falls] [the result of reference rate one
minus reference rate two falls].

[Reference Rate] [Reference Rate One and | Interest Determination
Reference Rate Two] Date for [Reference Rate]
[Reference Rate One and
Reference Rate Two]
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(Specify relevant reference rate (which should
include all relevant details such as, if a floating
rate, whether it is to be determined by reference
to Screen Rate Determination or ISDA
Determination, and any margin, interest
participation rate, any minimum rate (floor),
maximum rate (cap) or maximum rate and
minimum  rate (collar)) and interest
period[s]/interest payment date[s] to which it
applies and repeat as necessary if there are
different reference rates for different interest
periods and/or interest payment dates)

[Reference Rate One]

(Specify relevant reference rate one (which
should include all relevant details such as, if a
floating rate, whether it is to be determined by
reference to Screen Rate Determination or ISDA
Determination, and any margin, interest
participation rate, any minimum rate (floor),
maximum rate (cap) or maximum rate and
minimum  rate  (collar)) and interest
period[s]/interest payment date[s] to which it
applies and repeat as necessary if there are
different reference rate ones for different
interest periods and/or interest payment dates)

[Reference Rate Two]

(Specify relevant reference rate two (which
should include all relevant details such as, if a
floating rate, whether it is to be determined by
reference to Screen Rate Determination or ISDA
Determination, and any margin, interest
participation rate, any minimum rate (floor),
maximum rate (cap) or maximum rate and
minimum  rate  (collar)) and interest
period[s]/interest payment date[s] to which it
applies and repeat as necessary if there are
different reference rate twos for different
interest periods and/or interest payment dates)

(Specify  relevant interest
determination date and
interest payment date[s] to
which it applies and repeat
as necessary)

(Specify relevant interest
determination date and
interest payment date[s] to
which it applies and repeat
as necessary)

(Specify relevant interest
determination date and
interest payment date[s] to
which it applies and repeat
as necessary)

[Details of interest Bands Band Rate

period[s] and/or

interest payment

date|[s]]

(Specify relevant | (i) Band One:|[The Band Rateis [®]
interest periods and/or [The (specify all relevant
interest payment reference details in the same
date[s] and repeat as rate] way as for the
necessary if there are [Reference reference rate)] [T he
different bands and/or rate one|Band Rate is Band
rates for different minus Rate One minus Band

interest periods and/or

reference rate

interest payment two] is [less
date[s]) than] [less
than or equal

to] [®] per
cent.:

Rate Two where Band
Rate One is (specify
all relevant details for
Band Rate One in the
same way as for
Reference Rate One)
and Band Rate Two is
(specify all relevant
detailsforBand Rate
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(i) Band Two:
[The
Reference
rate]
[Reference
rate one
minus
reference rate
two] is
[greater than]
[greater than
or equal to]
[®] but [less
than] [less
than or equal
to] [®] per
cent.:

[Gii)  (only include

Band 3 if
applicable)
Band Three:
[The
Reference
rate]
[Reference
rate one
minus
reference rate
two] is

[greater than]
[greater than
or equal to]
[®] but [less
than] [less
than or equal
to] [®] per
cent.:]

(If there are additional
bands and band rates
occurring after band 3
but before the last
occurring band which
shall be as described
below repeat (iii)
above for such
additional bands and
band rates but with the
relevant bands and
band levels

[(®)] Band [®][The
reference

Two in the same way
as for Reference Rate
Two)] [[plus/minus]
[®] per cent. per
annum].]

[The Band Rate is [®]
(specify all relevant
details in the same way
as for the reference
rate)]] [The Band Rate
is Band Rate One
minus Band Rate Two
where Band Rate One
is (specify all relevant
details for Band Rate
One in the same way
as for Reference Rate
One) and Band Rate
Two is (specify all
relevant  details  for
Band Rate Two in the
same way as for
Reference Rate Two)]
[[plus/minus] [®] per
cent. per annum].]

[The Band Rate is [®]
(specify all  relevant
details in the same way
as for the reference
rate)]] [The Band Rate
is Band Rate One
minus Band Rate Two
where Band Rate One
is (specify all relevant
details for Band Rate
One in the same way
as for Reference Rate
One) and Band Rate
Two is (specify all
relevant  details  for
Band Rate Two in the
same way as for
Reference Rate Two)]
[[plus/minus] [®] per
cent. per annum].]

[The Band Rate is [®]
(specify all relevant
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rate]
[Reference

rate one
minus
reference rate
two] is

[greater than]
[greater than
or equal to]
[®] per cent.:

details in the same way
as for the reference
rate)] [The Band Rate
is Band Rate One
minus Band Rate Two
where Band Rate One
is (specify all relevant
details for Band Rate
One in the same way
as for Reference Rate

One) and Band Rate
Two is (specify all
relevant  details  for
Band Rate Two in the
same way as for
Reference Rate Two)]
[[plus/minus] [®] per
cent. per annum].]

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [@][and [®]] in each [year][month] [from,and including, [e
] to and including, [e].

The "calculation amount” is [@®].

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and each
interest payment date and the relevant interest period is an amount
calculated on the basis of the relevant day count fraction.]

[INVERSE FLOATING RATE NOTES: The Notes are Inverse
Floating Rate Notes which means that the rate of interest in respect of
[the/each] interest period(s) ending on: [insert date(s)] will be (i) an
inverse fixed rate [specified below/of [@®] per cent. per annum] minus
(ii) the inverse reference rate, [plus/minus] therelevant Margin [of [e] /
specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the relevant Interest
Participation Rate (IPR) [of [e]/specified below].

The "inwerse reference rate" is [a specified rate which is [e]]
[specified rate 1 minus specified rate 2].

["specified rate 1" means [®] (insert relevant rate which may be a
floatinginterest rate or a CMS rate or a rate determined by Spread
Notes provisions).]

["specified rate 2" means [®] (insert relevant rate which may be a
floatinginterest rate or a CMS rate or a rate determined by Spread
Notes provisions).]

[In relation to the interestrate, it is subject to a [maximum interest rate
(cap) [specified below/of [®]] [minimum interest rate (floor) [specified
below/of [®]] [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate
(collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively/(each as specified in the table
below)] for [each/the] interest period ending on the interest period end
date(s) [falling on: [insert date(s)]/specified below].]

Interest Period| [maximum / [Margin] / [inverse fixed
End Date(s) [[and] minimum [Interest rate] / [inverse
interest rate] Participation |[reference rate]/

(Cap/Floor/ Rate]* [specified rate

Collar)] 1]* / [specified
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rate 2]*
[insert date(s)] | [specify] (repeat +/-[specify] [specify] (repeat
(repeat as as required) (repeat as as required)
required) required)

* insert additional columnsasrequired

[In relation to [the inverse referencerate/the specified rate 1/ [and] the
specified rate 2], [it is/they are] subject to a [maximum rate (cap)
[specified below/of [@]] [minimum rate (floor) [specified below/of
[®]] [maximum rate and minimum rate (collar) [of [®] and [@]
respectively/(each as specified in the table below)] for [each/the]
interest period ending on the interest period end date(s) [falling on:
[insert date(s)]/specified below].]

[and] minimum
rate] (Cap/Floor
/ Collar)]*

P:;itggeért]d refe[;gx(zerzsreate] [specified rate 1] | [specified rate 2]
Date(s)
[maximum / [maximum / [maximum/[and]

[and] minimum
rate] (Cap/Foor
/ Collar)]*

minimum rate]
(Cap/Floor/
Collan]*

[insert [specify] (repeat | [specify] (repeat | [specify] (repeat
date(s)] as required) as required) as required)
(repeat as
required)

* insert additional columns as required

[Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [@] [and [®]] in each [year][month] [from,and including, [e
] to and including, [e].]

The "calculation amount” is [@].

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and each
interest payment date and the relevant interest period is an amount
calculated on the basis of the relevant day count fraction.]

[SPREAD NOTES: The Notes are Spread Notes which means that the
interest rate in respectof [the/each] interest period(s) endingon: [insert
date(s)] will be the relevant spread rate [, plus/minus] the relevant
Margin [of [ J/specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the relevant
Interest Participation Rate (IPR) [of [#]/specified below]. The relevant
spread rate will be [equalto [(i) one minus (ii) the result of] spread rate

1 minus spread rate 2]/ [calculated as follows:
Min[(Rate X + Spread Cap Margin);(V% + {Multiplier X [Rate Y — Rate Z]})]

"Min" means, whenfollowed by a series of amounts inside brackets,
whichever is the lesser of the amounts separated by a semi-coloninside
those brackets.

"Multiplier" means [@®].

["Rate X" means spread rate [1/2/3].]
['Rate Y" means spread rate [1/2/3].]

['Rate Z" means spread rate [1/2/3].]

["referencerate one" means [@®] (insert relevantreference rate which
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may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate or a CMS rate).]

['referencerate two" means [®] (insert relevant reference rate which
may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate or a CMS rate).]

"+ Spread Cap Margin" means [+/-] [specify].]

"spread rate 1" [is a reference rate which is [®] (insert relevant
reference rate which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest
rate or a CMS rate)] [means reference rate one minus reference rate
two] [sum of the following reference rates: [®] [and] [®] [and] [®]
(insert relevant reference rates which may be a fixed interest rate, a
floatinginterest rate ora CMS rate)] [, [plus/minus] margin ("Spread

Rate 1 Margin") [of [e]/specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the
relevant interestparticipation rate (" IPR 1") [of [®]/specified below]].

"spread rate 2" is [is a reference rate which is [®] (insert relevant
reference rate which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest
rate or a CMS rate)] [means reference rate one minus reference rate
two] [sum of the following reference rates: [®] [and] [@®] [and] [®]
(insert relevant reference rates which may be a fixed interest rate, a
floatinginterest rate ora CMS rate)] [, [plus/minus] margin (*Spread
Rate 2 Margin™) [of [e]/specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the
relevant interestparticipation rate (" IPR 2") [of [®]/specified below]].

['spread rate 3" is [is a reference rate which is [®] (insert relevant
reference rate which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest
rate or a CMS rate)] [means reference rate one minus reference rate
two] [sum of the following reference rates: [®] [and] [®] [and] [@]
(insert relevant reference rates which may be a fixed interest rate, a
floatinginterest rate ora CMS rate)] [, [plus/minus] margin ("*Spread
Rate 3 Margin™) [of [e]/specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the
relevant interestparticipation rate (" IPR 3") [of [@®]/specified below]].]

["V% " means [e] per cent. per annum.]

[Spread rate 1] [and] [spread rate 2] [and] [spread rate 3] is subject to a
[maximum rate (cap) [of [®]/specified below]] [minimum rate (floor)
of [®]] [maximum rate and minimum rate (collar) [of [®] and [®]
respectively] [(each as specified in the table below)] for [each/the]
interest period ending on the interest period end date(s) [falling on:
[insert date(s)]/specified below]. (Specify for eachinterest period and
each spread rate if different or tabulate this information)]

Interest Spread Rate 2
Period End [Spread Rate 1] [ESppread Rate 3]]*
Date(s)
[SpreadRate 1 | [IPR 1]/ | [Spread Rate [IPR 2]
Margin]* [maximu | 2 Margin]* [IPR 3]*
m / [and] [maximum
minimum | [Spread Rate / [and]
rate (Cap/| 3 Margin]* | minimum
Floor / rate (Cap/
Collan]* Floor /
Collan)]*
[insert +/- [specity] [specity] +/- [specity] [specify]
date(s)] (repeat as (repeat as (repeat as (repeat as
(repeat as required) required) required) required)]
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[ required) | | | | |
*insert additional columnsfor "Spread Rate 3", "Spread Rate 3 Margin"
and "IPR 3" and maximum and/or minimum rate, if required.

Interestwill be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [@] [and [®]] in each [year][month] [from,and including, [e
] to and including, [e].

[The interest rate in respect of the interest period(s) ending on the
interest period end date(s) [falling on: [insert date(s)]/specified below]
is subject to a [maximum interest rate (cap) [of [e]/(as specified in the
table below)]] / [minimum interest rate (floor) [of [e]/(as specified in
the table below)]] / [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate
(collar) [of [e] and [e] respectively] [(each as specified in the table
below)].] (Specify for each interest period if different or tabulate this
information as per table above)

[maximum / [and]

i %
minimum interest [Margin]

Interest Period

End Date(s)

relevant swap rate

rate] (Cap / Floor /
Collan)]*

[Interest
Participation Rate]

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as

[specify] (repeat as
required)

[specify] (repeat as
required)

[+/-1[specify]
(repeat as required)

required)

*insert additional columns as required

The "calculation amount” is [@].

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and each
interest payment date and the relevant interest period is an amount
calculated on the basis of the relevant day count fraction.]

[VOLATILITY BONDNOTES: The Notes are Volatility Bond Notes
which means that the interest rate in respect of [the/each] interest
period(s) endingon: [insertdate(s)] will be the relevant volatility bond
rate [, plus/minus] the relevant Margin [of [ ]/specified below]] [and]
[multiplied by the relevant Interest Participation Rate (IPR) [of [e
)/specified below]. The relevant volatility bond rate will be equal to the
absolute value of volatility bond rate 1 minus volatility bond rate 2.

["referencerate one" means [®] (insert relevantreference rate which
may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate or a CMS rate).]

["referencerate two" means [@®] (insert relevant referencerate which
may be a fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate or a CMS rate).]

"wlatility bond rate 1" [is a reference rate which is [®] (insert
relevant reference rate which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating
interest rate or a CMS rate)] [determined [at the beginning of the
relevant interestperiod/[e]]] [means referencerate oneminus reference
rate two] [sumof the following referencerates: [@®] [and] [®] [and] [®
] (insert relevantreference rates which may be a fixed interest rate, a
floating interest rate or a CMS rate)] [, [plus/minus] margin
("Volatility Bond Rate 1 Margin") [of [e]/specified below]] [and]
[multiplied by the relevant interest participation rate ("IPR 1") [of [®
/specified below]].

"wlatility bond rate 2" is [is a reference rate which is [@®] (insert
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relevant reference rate which may be a fixed interest rate, a floating
interest rate or a CMS rate)] [determined [at the end of the relevant
interest period/[e]]] [means reference rate one minus reference rate
two] [sum of the following reference rates: [®] [and] [®] [and] [®]
(insert relevant reference rates which may be a fixed interest rate, a
floatinginterest rate or a CMS rate) [(which[, in each case,] are spot
rates)]] [, [plus/minus] margin ("Volatility Bond Rate 2 Margin") [of
[e]/specified below]] [and] [multiplied by the relevant interest
participationrate ("IPR2") [of [®]/specified below]]. [As the "shout
option"is applicable, following valid exercise of the shout option for a
relevant interest period by all the holders, the reference rate(s)
comprising volatility bond rate 2 forsuch interest period shall instead
be determined by reference to the implied forward rate for such
reference rate(s) as determined by the calculation agent on the date on
which the shout option is exercised]

[Volatility bond rate 1] [and] [volatility bond rate 2] [is/are] subjectto a
[maximum rate (cap) [of [®]/specified below]] [minimum rate (floor)
of [®]] [maximum rate and minimum rate (collar) [of [®] and [®]
respectively] [(each as specified in the table below)] for [each/the]
interest period ending on the interest period end date(s) [falling on:
[insert date(s)]/specified below]. (Specify for eachinterest period and
each volatility bond rate if different or tabulate this information)]

Interest [Volatility Bond Rate 1] [[Volatility Bond Rate 2]
Period End
Date(s) [Volatility [IPR 1] /|[Volatility [IPR 2]
Bond Rate 1|[maximu [Bond Rate 2 |[maximum
Margin]* m / [and] [Margin] / [and]
minimum minimum
rate (Cap/ rate (Cap /
Floor / Floor /
Collan)]* Collar)]
[insert +- [specify] [ [specify] +/- [specify] [[specify]
date(s)] (repeat as|(repeat as|(repeat as | (repeat as
(repeat  as |required) required) |required) required)]
required)

Interestwill be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [®] [and [@®]] in each [year][month] [from,and including, [e
] to, and including, [e].

[The interest rate in respect of the interest period(s) ending on the
interest period end date(s) [falling on:[insert date(s)]/specified below]
is subject to a [maximum interest rate (cap) [of [e]/(as specified in the
table below)]] / [minimum interest rate (floor) [of [e]/(as specified in
the table below)]] / [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate
(collar) [of [e] and [e] respectively] [(each as specified in the table
below)].] (Specify for each interest period if different or tabulate this
information as per table above)

[maximum / [and]

Interest Period minimum interest [Margin]*
relevant swap rate [Interest
End Date(s) Eaglel]al(’;zp / Floor / Participation Rate]

[insert date(s)] | [specify] (repeat as|[specify] (repeat as | [+/-][specify]
(repeat as
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required) required) required) (repeat as required)

*insert additional columns as required

The "calculation amount” is [@®].

The interest amount in respect of each calculation amount and each

interest payment date and the relevant interest period is an amount
calculated on the basis of the relevant day count fraction.]

[SWITCHER OPTION: The interest basis may, at the option of the
Issuer, be switched from[ ] (insertinterest basis or zero coupon)to| ]
(insert new interest basis or zero coupon), effective from[ ] (insert
date or,ifmore than one, insert each date). A conversion amount of
[®@] per calculation amount will be payable by the Issueron [ ].

The "calculation amount" is [@®].]

[PREVIOUS COUPON LINKED NOTES: The Notes are Previous
Coupon Linked Notes whichmeans thatthe interestrate (the "Previous
Coupon Linked Interest Rate") in respect of [the/each] [interest
period(s) endingon: [insertdate(s)] (eacha "Previous Coupon Linked
Period")/interest payment date(s) falling on: [insert date(s)] (each a
"Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date™)] shallbe an amount equal
to the Previous Coupon Reference Rate[, [plus/minus] the relevant
Margin [specified below/of [insert margin (if any)]] [and] [multiplied
by the relevant Interest Participation Rate [specified below/of [insert
interest participation rate (ifany)]].

(repeat as necessary if there are margin or interest participation
rates for different interest periods or tabulate this information by
inserting the paragraph and the table below)

[The Notes are Previous Coupon Linked Notes which means that they
bear interest from the Interest Commencement Date for Previous
Coupon Linked Notes (specified below) at the Previous Coupon
Reference Rate [, plus or minus (as specified below) the Margin] [, and
multiplied by the InterestParticipation Rate] [each] in respect of each
Interest Period ending on (but excluding) the Interest Period End
Date(s) (as specified below).

"Previous Coupon" means, in respect of each [Previous Coupon
Linked Period / Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date], the Previous
Coupon Linked Interest Rate in respectofthe [interestperiod/payment
date] immediately preceding such [Previous Coupon Linked Period /
Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date], PROVIDED THAT if the
interest basis applicable to the [interest period/payment date]
immediately preceding such [Previous Coupon Linked Period /
Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date] is not Previous Coupon
Linked Notes, the Previous Coupon shall be the interest rate
determined in accordance with the interest basis applicable to such

[interest period/payment date] (as set out in the Interest Basis Table
above).

"Previous Coupon Reference Rate" means, in respect of [the/each]
[Previous Coupon Linked Period [ending on the interest period end
date(s) [falling on:[insert date(s) /specified below]] (insert if different
for each interest period)]/ Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date [of:
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[insert date(s)]/specified below]] (insert if different for each interest
payment date)], the Previous Coupon [, [plus/minus] [(i))] Rate 1 [,
multiplied by Rate 1 Participation Rate [of [e]/specified below
corresponding tosuch [interest period end date(s) / Previous Coupon
Linked Payment Date]]] [[plus/minus] (ii) Rate 2 [multiplied by Rate 2
Participation Rate] [of [e]/specified below corresponding to such
[interest period end date(s)/ Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date]]].
(Repeat for eachinterest period/interest payment date if the Previous
Coupon Reference Rate is different)

['Rate 1" means [[®] (insert relevant reference rate which may be a
fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate, a CMS rate, a rate

determined fromthe Spread Notes provisions or other reference rate
determined from the above provisions)/each rate specified below].]

['Rate 2" means [[®] (insert relevant reference rate which may be a
fixed interest rate, a floating interest rate, a CMS rate, a rate

determined fromthe Spread Notes provisions or other reference rate
determined from the above provisions)/each rate specified below].]

(specify foreach Ratel and Rate 2 (if applicable) the relevant fixed
rate note provisions, floating rate note provisions, the CMS rate note
provisions and the Spread Note provisions, or other relevant note
provisions for the determination of such rate(s))

[The interest rate in respect of the [Previous Coupon Linked Period
[ending on the following interest period end date(s) [of: [insert
date(s)]J/specified below]] / Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date
[of: [insert date(s)] /specified below]] is subject to a [maximum
interest rate (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the table below)]] /
[minimum interest rate (floor) [of [®]/(as specified in the table
below)]] / [maximum interest rate and minimum interest rate (collar)
[of [®] and [@] respectively] [(each as specified in the table below)].]
(repeat as required or tabulate this information for each interest
period if different by inserting the relevant table set out below)

[Rate 1] [and] [Rate 2] is subject to a [maximum rate (cap) [of
[®]/specified below]] [minimum rate (floor) of [®]] [maximum rate
and minimum rate (collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively/specified
below] for [each/the] [Previous Coupon Linked Period [ending on the
interest period end date(s) falling on: [insert date(s) ]/s pecified below]]
/ Previous Coupon Linked Payment Date [of: [insert date(s)]/specified
below].] (Specify for each interest periodandeachRate 1 andRate 2 if
different or tabulate this information)

Previous Coupon Linked Interest Rate

Coupon Linked
Payment Date]

Collan)*

[Interest Period | [maximum / [and] [Margin] [Interest
End Date(s) / minimum interest [Rate 1]* Participation Rate]
Previous rate (Cap / Floor / [Rate 2]*

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as

required)

[specify] (repeat as
required)

[+/-] [specify]
(repeat as
required)]

[specify] (repeat as
required)]

*insert additional columnsfor"Rate 1" and "Rate 2" for each Interest

Period if different
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Previous Coupon Reference Rate
Ll nterest Rate 1 Rate 2
Period [Rate 1 ] [Rate 2 [maximum /
End Participation | [maximum/ Participation [and]
Date(s) / Rate] [and] Rate] minimum
Previous minimum rate (Cap /
Coupon rate (Cap / Floor /
Linked Floor / Collar)]
Payment Collar)]
Date]
[insert [specify] [specify] [[specify] (repeat as [specify]

date(s)] (repeat as (repeat as required) (repeat as
(repeat as required) required) required)]

required)

*insert additional columnsfor maximum and/or minimum rate for Rate 1
and Rate 2, if required.

Redemption:

The terms underwhich Notes may be redeemed (including the Maturity
Date and the price at which they will be redeemed on the maturity date
as well as any provisions relating to early redemption) will be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue of the
relevant Notes.

Subject to any early redemption, purchaseand cancellation, the Notes
will be redeemed on [e] at [e] per cent. of their nominal amount.

[The Notes may, at the Issuer's election, be redeemed early on [e] at [e
] per cent. of their nominal amount.]

[The Notes may, at the election of the holder of such Notes, be
redeemed early on [e] at [e] per cent. of their nominal amount.]

The Issuerand its subsidiaries may at any time purchase Notes at any
price in the open market or otherwise.

Indication of yield:
[Indication of yield: [e] per cent. per annum/ Not Applicable]
Early redemption [and adjustments to any underlying]

The Issuermay redeemthe Notes prior to thestated maturity date and,
if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, will in such
circumstances pay, in respect ofeach Calculation Amount of Notes, an
amount equal to the early redemptionamount (a) following an Event of
Default, (b) for certain taxation reasons, (c) if the Issuer determines that
performance of its obligations of an issue of Notes [or the Guarantor
determines that performance of its obligations under the Deed of
Guarantee in respect of such Notes] has or will become unlawful,
illegal or otherwise prohibited in whole or in part for any reason,
[insert if Adjustment Event(s) is/are applicable: [(d)] following an
adjustment eventbeing[insert ifa Change in Law is applicable: [(i)]
[any change in law.] [(ii)] [a change in law materially increasing the
Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations under the Notes
(including due to a tax liability imposed on the relevant hedging
party).];] [insert if a Hedging Disruption is applicable: [(iii)] a
disruption to the Issuer's hedging positions;] [insert ifan Increased
CostofHedgingisapplicable: [(iv)] an increased cost in the Issuer's
hedging positions] [and] [insert ifan Increased Cost of Index Event is
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applicable:[(v)]an increased cost charged by the indexsponsor on the
use ofthe inflation index).];] [insert ifRealisation Disruption Event is
applicable: [(e)] following the occurrence of a realisation disruption
event.];] [insert if Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event is
applicable: [(f)] following the occurrenceofa hedgingdisruption early
termination event]; and] [insert if Section 871(m) Event is applicable:
[(9)] if the Issuer, Guarantor (ifapplicable) and/or any hedging party is
(or the Calculation Agent determines that there is a reasonable
likelihood that, within the next 30 Business Days, the Issuer, Guarantor
(if applicable) and/or any hedging party will become) subject to any
withholding orreporting obligations pursuant to Section 871(m) of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, with respect to the
Notes, Deed of Guarantee (ifapplicable) and/orany hedging positions].

[To be included for Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. [only where
ScheduleAisapplicable]: The optional early redemptionorrepurchase
of any Note that is included in Citigroup Inc.'s capital and total loss
absorbing capacity may be subject to consultation with the Federal
Reserve of the United States, which may not acquiesce in the early
redemption or repurchase of such Note unless it is satisfied that the

capital position andtotal loss absorbing capacity of Citigroup Inc. will
be adequate after the proposed redemption or repurchase.]

[Early redemption amount

The early redemption amount in respect of each Calculation Amount
of Notes is [insert if "Fair Market Value" is applicable: an amount
equal to the Fair Market Value] / [insert if "Principal Amount plus
accrued interest (if any)" is applicable: an amount equal to the
Principal Amount plus accrued interest (ifany)] / [insert if "Principal
Amount plus Option Value plus Option Value Accrued Interest (ifany)
at maturity" is applicable: an amount equal to the principal amount
plus the value (if any) of the option component or embedded
derivative(s) of the Note at or around the date on which the Issuer
gives notice ofthe early redemption of such Note, as calculated by the
Calculation Agent in its commercially reasonable discretion, plus
accrued interest (if any) on such value (if any) of the option
component or embedded derivative(s) up to but excluding the
Maturity Date and such early redemption amount will be payable on
the Maturity Date.]/ [insert if"Principal Amountplusaccrued interest
(if any) at maturity with option for Fair Market Value at early
redemption™isapplicable: an amount determined by the Calculation
Agent in accordance with the following: in relation to a Note of the
Calculation Amount (i) where the Noteholder has exercised the right
to early redemption ofthe Note in accordancewith the Conditions, the
Fair Market Value, or (ii) otherwise,an amount equal to the principal
amount plus accrued interest (if any) at maturity. For the purpose of
determining any accrued interest, the Early Redemption Date specified
in the notice by the Issuerto the relevant Noteholder shall be deemed
to be the date of redemption, notwithstanding that the Early
Redemption Amountwill be payable on the Maturity Date.]/ [insert if
"Principal Amount plus Option Value plus Option Value Accrued
Interest (ifany) at maturity with option for Fair Market Value at early
redemption"isapplicable: an amount determined by the Calculation
Agent in accordance with the following: in relation to a Note of the
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Calculation Amount (i) where the Noteholder has exercised the right
to early redemption ofthe Note in accordance with the Conditions, the
Fair Market Value, or (ii) otherwise,an amount equal to the principal
amount plus the value (ifany) of the option component or embedded
derivative(s) of the Note at or around the date on which the Issuer
gives notice ofthe early redemption of such Note, as calculated by the
Calculation Agent in its commercially reasonable discretion, plus
accrued interest (if any) on such value (if any) of the option
componentorembeddedderivative(s) up to butexcluding the Maturity
Date and such early redemption amount will be payable on the
Maturity Date.] / [insert for Zero Coupon Notes and if "Amortised
Face Amount" is applicable: an amount equal to the amortised face
amount, being an amount equal to the product of (i) the reference price
[of [e]], multiplied by (ii) the sum of one (1), plus the amortisation
yield [of [e]], all to the power of the relevant day count fraction]
[insert other amount].

['Fair Market Value" means an amount equal to the fair market value
of each Calculation Amountofthe Notes notwithstanding the relevant
taxation reasons or illegality resultingin the early redemption) [delete if
DeductionofHedge Costsisnotapplicable: less the cost to the Issuer
and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements as determined by the Calculation Agent], PROVIDED
THAT in the case ofan early redemption following an event of default,
for the purposes of determining the fair market value, the Issuer will be
presumed to be able to performfully its obligations in respect of the
Notes.]]

[In addition, the terms and conditions of the Notes contain
provisions, as applicable, relating to events affecting the relevant
underlying(s), modification or cessation of the relevant underlying(s),
realisation disruption event provisions relating to subsequent
corrections of the level of an underlying and details of the
consequences of such events. Such provisions may permit the Issuer
eitherto require the calculation agent to determine what adjustments
should be made following the occurrence ofthe relevant event (which
may include defermentofany requiredvaluation or the substitution of
another underlying and/or, in the case of an increased cost of
hedging, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders such increased cost of
hedging (including, butnotlimited to, reducing any amounts payable in
respect ofthe Notes to reflect any such increased costs) and/or, in the
case ofthe occurrence of a realisation disruption event, payment in the
relevant local currency rather than in the relevant specified currency,
deductionofamounts in respect of any applicable taxes, or to cancel
the Notes and to pay an amountequal to the early redemptionamount.]

C.10

If the Note has
a  derivative
component in
the interest
payment, a
clear and
comprehensive
explanation to
help investors

[Not Applicable]

[The Notes are interestbearing notes and shall bear interest as specified
in the Final Terms and are Credit Linked Interest Notes meaning that
they shall cease tobear interest fromthe date of the interest period end
date (or if earlier the issue date of the Notes) priorto the date on which
a credit eventis determined pursuantto the terms and conditions of the
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understand how
the value of
theirinvestment
is affected by
the value of the
underlying
instrument(s),
especially under
the
circumstances
when the risks
are most
evident.

Credit Linked Interest Notes.]

[The Notes are Inflation Rate Notes which means that the Notes are
linked to [®]. Interest willbe payable on therelevant interest payment
date and will be calculated by thecalculationagent by multiplying the
calculation amount by the year-on-year change in the inflation rate as
determined by dividing [®] (the " Inflation Index™) [®] months prior to
the relevant interest payment date by the Inflation Index [ ®] months
prior to the relevant interest payment date and subtracting 1 [as
adjusted fora Margin of [[+[®]] [-[®]] per cent. per annum]/specified
below] multiplied by the relevant day count fraction [[and] [multiplied
by the relevant Interest Participation Rate (IPR) specified therein]].

Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [®] [and [®]] in each [year][month] [from, and including,
[e] to and including, [e].

[maximum / [and]

S . Interest
Interest Payment | minimum interest . [ .
Date(s) amount (Cap / [Margin] Pamm([l)ggc))]n Rate

Floor / Collan)]*
[specify] (repeat as
required)

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as
required)

*Insert additional columns as required

[specify] (repeat as
required)]

[+/-] [specify]
(repeat as
required)]

[The interestamountin respect ofthe interest payment date(s) [falling
on: [insert date(s)]/as specified above] is subject to a [maximum
interest amount (cap) [of [®]/(as specified in the table above)]] /
[minimum interest amount (floor) [of [®]/(as specified in the table
above)]] / [maximum interest amount and minimum interest amount
(collar) [of [®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table
above)]].] (repeat as required or tabulate this information for each
interest payment date if different by inserting the table above)

The "calculation amount” is [@].

[The "interest participation rate” or "IPR" in respect of [an/the]
interest payment date[s] falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details
of relevant IPR]. (repeat as required or tabulate this information for
each Interest Period if different)]

[The Notes are DIR Inflation Linked Notes which means that the Notes
are linked to [®]. Interest will be payable on the relevant interest
payment date and will be calculated by the calculation agent by
multiplying the calculation amount by the DIR indexratio which shall
be determined by reference to two specified monthly levels of [®] (the
"Inflation Index""") and the relevant interest payment date minus one
and the number of days in the month of such interest payment date to
determine an interpolated rate and divided by a specified base figure of
the Inflation Index] [as adjusted fora Margin [of [+[®]] [-[®]] per cent.
per annum]/specified below] multiplied by the relevant day count
fraction [[and] [multiplied by the relevant Interest Participation Rate
(IPR) specified therein]].
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Interest will be payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears on [®] and [®] in each [year/month].

[maximum / [and]

Floor / Collan)]*

Paym minimum in Interest

Interest Payment inimum interest . Inter
Margin P

Date(s) amount (Cap / [Margin] al‘tICI([I)atl()J]n Rate

[insert date(s)]
(repeat as

[specify] (repeat as
required)]

[+/-] [specify]
(repeat as

[specify] (repeat as
required)]

required) required)]

*Insert additional columns as required

[The interestamountin respect ofthe interest payment date(s) [falling
on: [insert date(s)]/specified above] is subject to a [maximum interest
amount (cap) [of [@]/(as specified in the table above)]] / [minimum
interest amount (floor) [of [@]/(as specified in the table above)]] /
[maximum interest amount and minimum interest amount (collar) [of
[®] and [®] respectively] [(each as specified in the table above)]].]
(repeat as required or tabulate this information for each interest
payment date if different by inserting the table above)

The "calculation amount" is [@®].

[The "interest participation rate” or "IPR" in respect of [each/the]
interest payment date[s] falling on: [insert date(s)], is [insert details of
relevant IPR]. (repeatas required or tabulate thisinformation for each
Interest Payment Date if different)]

Subject to any early redemption, purchaseand cancellation, the Notes
will be redeemed on [e] at [e] per cent. of their nominal amount.

The Issuermay redeemthe Notes priorto the stated maturity date and,
if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, will in such
circumstances pay, in respect ofeach Calculation Amount of Notes, an
amount equal to the early redemptionamount (a) following an Event of
Default, (b) for certain taxation reasons, () if the Issuer determines that
performance ofits obligations of an issue of Notes [or the Guarantor
determines that performance of its obligations under the Deed of
Guarantee in respect of such Notes] has or will become unlawful,
illegal or otherwise prohibited in whole or in part for any reason,
[insert if Adjustment Event(s) is/are applicable: [(d)] following an
adjustment event being [insert if a Change in Law is
applicable: [())] [any change in law.] [(ii)] [a change in law materially
increasing the Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations
underthe Notes (including due to a taxliability imposed on therelevant
hedgingparty).];] [insert ifa Hedging Disruptionisapplicable: [(iii)] a
disruption to the Issuer's hedging positions;] [insert ifan Increased
CostofHedgingisapplicable: [(iv)] an increased cost in the Issuer's
hedging positions] [and] [insert ifan Increased Cost of Index Event is
applicable:[(v)]an increased cost charged by the indexsponsor on the
use ofthe inflation index).];] [insert if Realisation Disruption Event is
applicable: [(e)] following the occurrence of a realisation disruption
event.];] [insert if Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event is
applicable: [(f)] following the occurrenceofa hedgingdisruption early
termination event]; and] [insert if Section 871(m) Event is applicable:
[(9)] if the Issuer, Guarantor (ifapplicable) and/orany hedging party is
(or the Calculation Agent determines that there is a reasonable
likelihood that, within the next 30 Business Days, the Issuer, Guarantor
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(if applicable) and/or any hedging party will become) subject to any
withholding or reporting obligations pursuant to Section 871(m) of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, with respect to the
Notes, Deed of Guarantee (ifapplicable) and/orany hedging positions].

[Insert "Early redemption amount” from C.9 above]

cl1

Admission
trading

to

[Application [has been/is expected to be] made for the Notes to be
admitted to trading on the [regulated market of the] [Irish Stock
Exchange]/ [Luxembourg Stock Exchange]/ [London Stock Exchange]/
[electronic "Bond Market" organised and managed by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A.J/ [Open Market (Regulated Unofficial Market) (Freiverkehr) of
the][Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Bdrse Frankfurt AG)])/ [Not
Applicable. The Notes are not admitted to trading on any exchange].

SECTION D - RISKS

Element

Title

D.2

Key
regarding
Issuers

risks
the

[Citigroup Inc.][CGMHI][CGMFL] believes that the factors
summarised below may affect its ability to fulfilits obligations under
the Notes. Allofthese factors are contingencies which may or may
not occurand [Citigroup Inc.]J[JCGMHI][CGMFL] is notin a position
to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency
occurring.

There are certain factors that may affect [CGMFL's/Citigroup
Inc.'s/CGMHI's] ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued
by it [and Citigroup Inc.'s/CGML's ability to fulfil its obligations as
guarantorin respectof Notesissued by CGMHI/CGMFL], including
that such ability is dependent on the earnings of Citigroup Inc.'s
subsidiaries, that Citigroup Inc. may be required to apply its available
funds to support the financial position of its banking subsidiaries,
rather than fulfil its obligations under the Notes, that Citigroup Inc.'s
businessmay be affected by economic conditions, credit, market and
market liquidity risk, by competition, country risk, operational risk,
fiscal and monetary policies adopted by relevant regulatory
authorities, reputational and legal risks and certain regulatory
considerations.

[There are certain additional factors that may affect
[CGMHI's/CGMFL's] ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes
issued by it, including that such ability is dependent on the group
entities to which it on-lends and funds raised through the issue of the
Notes performing their obligations in respect of such funding in a
timely manner. In addition, such ability and [Citigroup
Inc.'s/CGML's] ability to fulfil its obligations as guarantor in respect
of Notes issued by [CGMHI/CGMFL] is dependent on economic
conditions, credit, market and market liquidity risk, by competition,
countryrisk, operational risk, fiscaland monetary policies adopted by
relevant regulatory authorities, reputational and legal risks and certain
regulatory considerations.]

D.3

Key
regarding

risks
the

Investors should note that the Notes (including Notes which are
expressedto redeemat par) are subject to the credit risk of [CGMFL
and CGML][Citigroup Inc.JJCGMHI and Citigroup Inc.].
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Notes

Furthermore, the Notes may be sold, redeemed or repaid early, and if
50, the price forwhich a Note may be sold, redeemed or repaid early
may be less than the investor's initial investment. [There are other
certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the
risks associated with investing in any issue of Notes, which include,
without limitation (in each case, where applicable), (i) risk of
disruption to valuations, (ii) adjustment to the conditions, substitution
of the relevant underlying(s) and/or early redemption following an
adjustment event or an illegality, (iii) postponement of interest
payments and/or minimum and/or maximum limits imposed on
interest rates, (iv) cancellationor scaling back of public offers or the
issue date beingdeferred, (v) hedging activities of the Issuer and/or
any ofits affiliates, (vi) conflicts of interestbetweenthe Issuerand/or
any of its affiliates and holders of Notes, (vii) modification of the
terms and conditions of Notes by majority votes binding all holders,
(viii) discretions ofthe Issuerand Calculation Agent being exercised
in a manner that affects the value of the Notes or results in early
redemption, (iX) change in law, (X) illiquidity of denominations
consisting of integral multiples, (xi) payments being subject to
withholding or other taxes, (xi) fees and commissions notbeing taken
into account when determining secondary market prices of Notes,
(xii) there being no secondary market, (xiv) exchange rate risk, (xv)
market value of Notes being affected by various factors independent
of the creditworthiness of [CGMFL and CGML][Citigroup
Inc.][CGMHI and Citigroup Inc.] such as market conditions, interest
and exchangerates and macroeconomic and political conditions and
(xvi) credit ratings not reflecting all risks.]

[The ability of the Issuer to convert the interest rate on Notes from
one interest basis to another will affect the secondary market value of
such Notes since the Issuer may be expected toconvert the rate when
it is likely to producea loweroverallcost of borrowing and to a rate
which is lower than other comparable notes (as applicable).]

SECTION E - OFFER

Element

Title

E2b

Use of proceeds

[The net proceeds ofthe issue of the Notes by CGMFL will be used
primarily to grant loans orother forms of funding to CGML and any
entity belonging to the same group, and may be used to finance
CGMFL itself.]

[The net proceeds of the issue of the Notes by Citigroup Inc. will be
used for general corporate purposes, which may include capital
contributions to its subsidiaries and/or the reduction or refinancings of
borrowings of Citigroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. Citigroup Inc. expects
to incur additional indebtedness in the future.]

[The net proceeds ofthe issue of the Notes by CGMHI will be used
for general corporate purposes, which include making a profit.]

[In particular, the proceeds will be used to/for [@].]

E3

Terms and
conditions of

[Not Applicable. The Notes are not the subject of a Non-exempt
Offer][The Notes are the subject of a Non-exempt Offer, the terms
and conditions of which are further detailed as set out below and in
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the offer

the applicable Final Terms.]

A Non-exempt Offer of the Notes may be made in [e] (the "[e]
Offer™)during the period from(and including) [e] to (and including)
[e]. [Such period may be [lengthened] [or] [shortened] at the option
of the Issuer.] [The Issuerreserves the right to cancel the [e] Offer].

The offer price is [e] per calculation amount. [In addition to any
expensesdetailed in Element E.7 below, an Authorised Offeror may
charge investors under the [e] Offer a [e] [fee] [commission] of [up
to][e] per cent. ofthe principalamount ofthe Notesto be purchased
by the relevantinvestor]. The minimum subscription amount is [[e]]
[the offer price]. [The Issuer may decline in whole or in part an
application for Notes under the [@] Offer.]

(If required, summarise any additional termsand conditions of each
relevant Non-exempt Offer as set out in the section entitled " Terms
and Conditions of the Offer™ in the applicable Final Terms))]

E4

Interests of
natural and
legal persons
involved in the
issue/offer

[The Dealerand/oranydistributors will be paid [e] as fees In relation
to the issue of Notes.][So far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the
Offer(s)][A description of any interest that is material to the
issue/offer including conflicting interests.]

E7

Estimated
expenses
charged to the
investor by the
Issuer or an
Authorised
Offeror

No expenses are being charged toan investor by the Issuer. [[There is
no Non-exempt Offer of Notes andtherefore no Authorised Offeror]
[No expenses are being charged to an investor by an Authorised
Offer] [except as follows: (insert details)]].
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SECTION B - RISKFACTORS

In purchasing Notes, you assume the risk that the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor or where CGMFL isthe Issuer,the CGMFL Guarantor may become insolvent
or otherwise be unable to satisfy their obligations in respect of the Notes. There is a wide range of
factorswhichindividually or together could result in the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer,
the CGMHI Guarantor or where CGMFL is the Issuer,the CGMFL Guarantor becoming unable to
satisfy their obligations in respect of the Notes. It is not possible to identify all such factors or to
determine which factors are most likely tooccur, as the Issuer and, where CGMHI is the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor or, where CGMFL isthe Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor may notbe aware of all
relevant factors and certain factors which they currently deem not to be material may become
materialasa result of the occurrence of events outside the Issuer's and, where CGMHI isthe Issuer,
the CGMHI Guarantor's or, where CGMFL is the Issuer, the CGMFL Guarantor's control. The
Issuer and, where CGMHI isthe Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor or, where CGMFL isthe Issuer, the
CGMFL Guarantor have identified in this Base Prospectus a number of factors which could
materiallyadverselyaffecttheir businesses and ability to make payments due under, or to deliver
assets on or in connection with, the Notes.

Eachofthe risks highlighted belowcouldadversely affect the trading price of the Notes and, as a
result, you could lose some or all of your investment.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Notes issued under this Base Prospectus are also described below.

You must read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus including any
documents incorporated by reference herein and reach your own views prior to making any
investment decision.

RISKS RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC., CGMHI, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR, 12
CGMFL AND THE CGMFL GUARANTOR

GENERAL RISKS RELATING TO THE NOTES 93
RISKS SPECIFIC TO NOTES LINKED TO INFLATION INDICES 108
RISKS SPECIFIC TO NOTES LINKED TO AN UNDERLYING INTEREST RATE 109
RISKS SPECIFIC TO CREDIT LINKED INTEREST NOTES 110

RISKS RELATING TO THE STRUCTURE OF APARTICULAR ISSUE OF NOTES 115

RISKS RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC., CGMHI, THE CGMHI GUARANTOR, CGMFL
AND THE CGMFL GUARANTOR

Set out below are certain risk factors which could have a material adverse effect on the business,
operations, financial condition or prospects of one or more of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and/or the CGMFL Guarantor and cause one or more of Citigroup Inc.'s,
CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's, CGMFL's and/or the CGMFL Guarantor's future results to be
materially different from expected results. Citigroup Inc.'s, CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's,
CGMFL's and/or the CGMFL Guarantor's results could also be affected by competition and other
factors. The factors discussed below should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive
statement of all potential risks and uncertainties Citigroup Inc.'s, CGMHI's, the CGMHI Guarantor's,
CGMFL's and the CGMFL Guarantor's businesses face. Each of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor has described only thoserisks relating to its operations
that it considers to be material. There may be additional risks that Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI
Guarantor, CGMFL and/orthe CGMFL Guarantor currently considers notto be material or of which it
is not currently aware, and any of these risks could have theeffects set forth above. You should note
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that you bear the Issuer's, the CGMHI Guarantor's (where the Issuer is CGMHI) and the CGMFL
Guarantor's (where the Issuer is CGMFL) solvency risk.

The abilityofeach of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL

Guarantor to fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued by Citigroup Inc., CGMHI or CGMFL, as
the case may be, is dependent on the earnings of Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries.

Citigroup Inc. is aholding company that does not engagein any materialamount of business activities
that generaterevenues. Citigroup Inc. services its obligations primarily with dividends and advances
from its subsidiaries. Its subsidiaries thatoperate in the banking, insurance and securities businesses
can only pay dividends if they are in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements imposed on
them by federal and state regulatory authorities. Its subsidiaries may also be subject to credit
agreements that also may restrict their ability to pay dividends. If such subsidiaries did not realise
sufficient earnings to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements, or if such requirements were changed
to furtherrestrict theability of such subsidiaries to pay dividends to Citigroup Inc., Citigroup Inc.'s
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued by it oras guarantor in respectof Notes issued by
CGMHI may be adversely affected.

In addition, CGMHI is a holding companythat does not engage in any material amount of business
activities that generate revenues. CGMHI services its obligations primarily with dividends and
advances fromits subsidiaries. Its subsidiaries thatoperate in the securities businesses can only pay
dividends if they are in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements imposed on themby
federaland state regulatory authorities. Their respective subsidiaries may also be subject to credit
agreements that also may restrict their ability to pay dividends. If such subsidiaries do not realise
sufficient earnings to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements, or if such requirements are changed to
further restrict theability of suchsubsidiaries to pay dividends to CGMHI, CGMHI's ability to fulfil its
obligations underthe notes issued by it may be adversely affected. Notes issued by CGMHI will have
the benefit of a guarantee of Citigroup Inc. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you should note that the
Events of Default in respect of the CGMHI Guarantor are limited to the events stated in General
Condition 9(a)(i) and 9(a)(ii) (Events of Default) of the Notes relating to default in payment of
principal or interest in respectof the Notes but will not include the insolvency or bankruptcy of the
CGMHI Guarantor (orany similar event), any other default of the CGMHI Guarantor or the CGMHI
Deed of Guarantee not being (or being claimed not to be) in full force and effect. Therefore, even
though the CGMHI Guarantor may be declared insolvent or have entered into bankruptcy proceedings
or disclaimed the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee, you, notwithstanding that you are a holder of Notes
issuedby CGMHI will not be able to trigger an Event of Default under the Notes and thus will not be
able to cause the Notes to be immediately due and payable, and the Notes will not redeemuntil
maturity (unless there has been an Event of Default due to non-payment of interest or principal or
bankruptcy or other default of CGMHI in the meantime). It is possible that you may receive a lower
return at maturity than if you were able to accelerate the Notes for immediate repayment in such
circumstances.

In addition, the ability of CGMFL to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued by it (which Notes
will not havethe benefit of any guarantee of Citigroup Inc. but will have the benefit of a guarantee of
the CGMFL Guarantor which is an indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.) will be dependent on the
group entities towhich it on-lends the funds raised through the issue of such Notes performing their
obligations in respect of such funding in a timely manner. Accordingly, you should consider the risk
factors applicable to Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as set out elsewhere in this section of the Base
Prospectus.

Under U.S. banking law, Citigroup Inc. may be requiredto apply its available funds to support the
financial position of its banking subsidiaries, rather than to fulfil its obligations under the Notes.

Under longstanding policy of The Board of Governors of the U.S. Federal Reserve System, a bank
holding company (such as Citigroup Inc.) is expected to act as a source of financial strength for its
subsidiary banks andto commit resources to support such banks. As a result of that policy, Citigroup
Inc. may be required to commit resources (in the formofinvestments orloans) to its subsidiary banks

in amounts or at times that could adversely affect its ability to also fulfil its obligations under the
Notes.
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Areductionofthe Issuer's and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor's and/or,
where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor's ratings may reduce the market value and
liquidity of the relevant Notes.

The value ofthe Notes is expectedto be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the Issuer's,
the CGMHI Guarantor's, the CGMFL Guarantor's and/or their affiliates' creditworthiness. Such
perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings accorded to the outstanding securities of the
relevant Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantorand/or any of their affiliates by standard
statistical rating services, suchas Moody's, S&P and Fitch. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded
to outstanding debt securities (if any) of the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor, the CGMFL Guarantor
and/orthesecurities issued by any of their affiliates by one of these rating agencies could result in a
reduction in the trading value of the Notes.

Each rating agency may reduce, suspend or withdraw any such credit ratings of an Issuer, the CGMHI
Guarantor and/or the CGMFL Guarantor at any time in the future if, in its judgment, circumstances
warrant a change. No rating agency is obligated to maintain its ratings at their currentlevels. If a rating
agency reduces, suspends or withdraws its rating ofan Issuer and/or, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the
CGMHI Guarantorand/or, where the Issueris CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor or any affiliate thereof,
the liquidity and market value of the Notes of the Issuer are likely to be adversely affected.

The credit rating agencies continuously review the ratings of Citi (as defined below) and its
subsidiaries, and reductions in Citi‘sand its subsidiaries’ credit ratings could have a significant and
immediate impacton Citi's funding and liquidity through cash obligations, reduced funding capacity
and collateral triggers.

Citi's long-term/short-termsenior debtratings are currently rated investment grade by Fitch, Moody's
and S&P. The rating agencies continuously evaluate Citiand its subsidiaries, and their ratings of Citi's
and its subsidiaries' long-termand short-termdebt are based on a number of factors, including financial
strength, as wellas factors notentirely within the control of Citi and its subsidiaries, such as conditions
affecting the financial services industry generally.

Citi and its subsidiaries may not be able to maintain their current respective ratings. Ratings
downgrades by Fitch, Moody's or S&P could havea significant and immediate impact on Citi's funding
and liquidity through cash obligations, reduced funding capacity and derivative triggers and additional
margin requirements. Ratings downgrades could also have a negative impact on other funding sources,
such as secured financingand other margin requirements, for which there are no explicit triggers. Some
entities may also have ratings limitations as to their permissible counterparties, of which Citi may or
may not be aware. A reductionin Citi's or its subsidiaries' credit ratings could also widen Citi's credit
spreads or otherwise increase its borrowing costs and limit its access to the capital markets.

Credit Ratings - Rating Agencies of the Issuers, the CGMHI Guarantor andthe CGMFL Guarantor

Citigroup Inc. has a long termy/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by S&P, Baal/P-2 by
Moody'sand A/F1 by Fitch. CGMHI has a long term/short term senior debt rating of BBB+/A-2 by
S&P and A/F1by Fitch and a long termsenior debt rating of Baal by Moody's. CGMFL has a long
term/short termsenior debt rating of A+/A-1by S&P and A/F1by Fitch. CGML has a long term/short
term senior debt rating of A+/A-1 by S&P, A2/P-1 by Moody's and A/F1 by Fitch. The rating of a
specific Tranche of Notes may be specified in the applicable Issue Terms.

S&P is not established in the European Union and has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The S&P ratings have beenendorsed by Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe
Ltd. Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe Ltd. is established in the European Union and
registeredunderthe CRA Regulation. As such, Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe Ltd.
is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities Market Authority
("ESMA") on its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAS) in
accordancewith the CRA Regulation. ESMA has indicated thatratings issued in the United States of
Americawhich have beenendorsed by Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe Ltd. may be
used in the European Union by the relevant market participants.

Moody'sis not established in the European Unionand has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The Moody's ratings have been endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Ltd. in accordance
with the CRA Regulation. Moody's Investors Service Ltd. is established in the European Union and
registeredunderthe CRA Regulation. Assuch, Moody's Investors Service Ltd. is included in the list of
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credit rating agencies published by ESMA on its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-
registered-and-certified-CRAS) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. ESMA has indicated that
ratings issued in the United States of America which have been endorsed by Moody's Investors Service
Ltd. may be used in the European Union by the relevant market participants.

Fitchis not established in the European Union and has not applied for registration under the CRA
Regulation. The Fitch ratings have been endorsed by Fitch Ratings Limited in accordance with the
CRA Regulation. Fitch Ratings Limited is established in the European Union and registered under the
CRA Regulation. As such, Fitch Ratings Limited is included in the list of credit rating agencies
published by ESMA on its website (at http:/Aww.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-
CRAS) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. ESMA has indicated thatratings issued in the United
States of America which have been endorsed by Fitch Ratings Limited may be used in the European
Union by the relevant market participants.

Citi Resolution Plan (CSA, etc.) in relation to Notes issued by Citigroup Inc.

On 15 December 2016, the Federal Reserve issued a final total loss-absorbing capacity (" TLAC") rule
that will require Citigroup Inc. to (i) maintain minimum levels of external TLAC and long-term debt
and (ii) adhere to various "clean holding company" requirements. Citigroup Inc. continues to review
and consider the implications ofthe final TLACrule, including the impact of (w) the amount of its debt
securities issued priorto 31 December 2016 that will benefit fromthe grandfathering provided by the
final TLAC rule, (X) the effectiveness date of 1 January 2019 for all aspects ofthe final TLAC rule, (y)
a new anti-evasion provisionthat authorises the Federal Reserveto exclude froma holding company's
outstanding eligible long-term debt any debt having certain features that would, in the Federal
Reserve's view, "significantly impair” the debt's ability to absorb losses and (z) the consequences of
any breach ofthe external long-termdebt or clean holdingcompany requirements. In response to the
final TLAC rule, Citigroup Inc. has amended the Events of Default under the Notes, as required by the
final TLAC rule.

Under Title I of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the
"Dodd-Frank Act"), Citigroup has developed a ""single point of entry" resolution strategy and plan
underthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the " Resolution Plan™). Under Citigroup Inc.'s Resolution Plan, only
Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company, would enter into bankruptcy, while Citigroup Inc.'s
material legal entities (as definedin the public section of its 2017 Resolution Plan, which can be found
on the Federal Reserve and FDIC websites) would remain operational and outside of any resolution or
insolvency proceedings. Citigroup Inc. believes its Resolution Plan has been designed to minimize the
risk of systemic impact to the U.S. and global financial systems, while maximizing the value of the
bankruptcy estate for the benefit of Citigroup Inc.'s creditors. In addition, in line with the Federal
Reserve's finaltotal loss-absorbing capacity (" TLAC") rule, Citigroup Inc. believes it has developed
the Resolution Plan sothatin the event ofa Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding,
Citigroup Inc.'s lossesand any losses incurred by its subsidiaries would be imposed first on Citigroup
Inc.'s shareholders and then on its unsecured creditors, including the holders of Notes issued by
Citigroup Inc.. Further, in a bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding of Citigroup Inc., any value
realized by holders of any Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. may not be sufficient to repay the amounts
owed on such Notes. For more information about the final TLAC rule and its consequences for debt
securities, you should refer to the sectionManaging Global Risk — Liquidity Risk — Long-Term Debt
— Total Loss-Absorbing Capacity (TLAC) " in Citigroup Inc.'s mostrecent Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

In responseto feedback received fromthe Federal Reserve and FDIC (together, the "Agencies™) on
Citigroup Inc.'s 2015 Resolution Plan, Citigroup Inc. took the following actions in connection with its
2017 Resolution Plan submission:

0] Citicorp LLC ("Citicorp"), an existing wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.,
was established as an intermediate holding company (an " IHC") for certain of
Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal entities;

(i) Citigroup Inc. executed an inter-affiliate agreement with Citicorp, Citigroup Inc.'s
operating material legal entities and certain other affiliated entities pursuant to which
Citicorp is required to provide liquidity and capital support to Citigroup Inc.'s
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operating material legal entities in the event Citigroup Inc. were to enter bankruptcy
proceedings (the "Citi Support Agreement");

(iii) pursuant to the Citi Support Agreement:

o Citigroup Inc. made an initial contribution ofassets, including certain high-
quality liquid assets and inter-affiliate loans (the " Contributable Assets"),
to Citicorp, and Citicorp became the business as usual funding vehicle for
Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal entities;

o Citigroup Inc. will be obligatedto continueto transfer Contributable Assets
to Citicorp overtime, subjectto certain amounts retained by Citigroup Inc.
to, among other things, meet Citigroup Inc.'s near-termcash needs;

o in the eventofa Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, Citigroup Inc. will be required
to contribute most of its remaining assets to Citicorp; and

(iv) the obligations ofboth Citigroup Inc. and Citicorp under the Citi Support Agreement,
as well as the Contributable Assets, are secured pursuant to a security agreement.

The Citi Support Agreement provides two mechanisms, besides Citicorp's issuing of dividends to
Citigroup Inc., pursuant to which Citicorp will be required to transfer cash to Citigroup Inc. during
businessas usual so that Citigroup Inc. canfundits debt service — including payments due on Notes
issued by Citigroup Inc. —as well as other operating needs: (i) one or more funding notes issued by
Citicorp to Citigroup Inc.; and (if)a committed line of credit under which Citicorp may make loans to
Citigroup Inc..

In addition to Citigroup Inc.'s required Resolution Plan under Title I of the Dodd-Frank Act, Title 1l of
the Dodd-Frank Act grants the FDIC the authority, under certain circumstances, to resolve systemically
important financial institutions, including Citigroup Inc. This resolution authority is commonly referred
toas the FDIC's "orderly liquidation authority". Under the FDIC's stated preferred "single point of
entry” strategy for such resolution, the bank holding company (Citigroup Inc.) would be placed in
receivership; the unsecured long-termdebt and shareholders of the parent holding company would bear
any losses; and the operating subsidiaries would be recapitalized. The Notes may be fully subordinated
to interests held by the U.S. government in the event of a receivership, insolvency, liquidation or
similar proceedingwith respectto Citigroup Inc., includinga proceeding under the "orderly liquidity
authority"” provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act.

Underthe regulations ofthe Federal Reserve, abankholding company is expected to actas asource of
financial strengthforits subsidiary banks. As a result of this regulatory policy, the Federal Reserve
might require Citigroup Inc. to commit resources toits subsidiary banks whendoingsois not otherwise
in the interests of Citigroup Inc. or its shareholders or creditors.

Citi Resolution Plan (CSA, etc.) inrelation to Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc.

Under Title | of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the
"Dodd-Frank Act"), Citigroup has developed a "'single point of entry” resolution strategy and plan
underthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the " Resolution Plan™). Under Citigroup Inc.'s Resolution Plan, only
Citigroup Inc., the parent holding company, would enter into bankruptcy, while Citigroup Inc.'s
material legal entities (as definedin the public section of its 2017 Resolution Plan, which can be found
on the Federal Reserve and FDIC websites) would remain operational and outside of any resolution or
insolvency proceedings. Citigroup Inc. believes its Resolution Plan has been designed to minimize the
risk of systemic impact to the U.S. and global financial systems, while maximizing the value of the
bankruptcy estate for the benefit of Citigroup Inc.'s creditors. In addition, in line with the Federal
Reserve's final total loss-absorbing capacity (" TLAC") rule, Citigroup Inc. believes it has developed
the Resolution Plan sothat Citigroup Inc.'s shareholders and unsecured creditors — including creditors
claiming underthe Citigroup Inc. guarantee of Notes issued by CGMHI — bear any losses resulting
from Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy or other resolution proceeding. For more information about the final
TLAC rule and its consequences for debt securities, you should referto the section"Managing Global
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Risk — Liquidity Risk — Long-Term Debt — Total Loss-Absorbing Capacity (TLAC)" in Citigroup
Inc.'s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In responseto feedback received fromthe Federal Reserve and FDIC (together, the "Agencies") on
Citigroup Inc.'s 2015 Resolution Plan, Citigroup Inc. took the following actions in connection with its
2017 Resolution Plan submission:

0] Citicorp LLC ("Citicorp"), an existing wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.,
was established as an intermediate holding company (an " IHC") for certain of
Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal entities;

(i) Citigroup Inc. executed an inter-affiliate agreement with Citicorp, Citigroup Inc.'s
operating material legal entities and certain other affiliated entities pursuant to which
Citicorp is required to provide liquidity and capital support to Citigroup Inc.'s
operating material legal entities in the event Citigroup Inc. were to enter bankruptcy
proceedings (the "Citi Support Agreement");

(iii) pursuant to the Citi Support Agreement:

o Citigroup Inc. made an initial contribution of assets, including certain high-
quality liquid assets and inter-affiliate loans (the " Contributable Assets™),
to Citicorp, and Citicorp became the business as usual funding vehicle for
Citigroup Inc.'s operating material legal entities;

o Citigroup Inc. will be obligatedto continueto transfer Contributable Assets
to Citicorp overtime, subjectto certain amounts retained by Citigroup Inc.
to, among other things, meet Citigroup Inc.'s near-termcash needs;

o in the eventofa Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, Citigroup Inc. will be required
to contribute most of its remaining assets to Citicorp; and

(iv) the obligations of both Citigroup Inc. and Citicorp under the Citi Support Agreement,
as well as the Contributable Assets, are secured pursuant to a security agreement.

The Citi Support Agreement provides two mechanisms, besides Citicorp's issuing of dividends to
Citigroup Inc., pursuant to which Citicorp will be required to transfer cash to Citigroup Inc. during
businessas usual so that Citigroup Inc. canfund its debt service as well as other operating needs: (i)
one ormore funding notes issued by Citicorp to Citigroup Inc.; and (iij) a committed line of credit under
which Citicorp may make loans to Citigroup Inc..

Underthe terms and conditions of the Notes, a Citigroup Inc. bankruptcy, insolvency or resolution
proceeding will not constitute an event of default with respect to any series of Notes issued by
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. Moreover, it will not constitute an event of default with
respect toany series of Notes issued by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. ifthe guarantee of the
Notes by Citigroup Inc. (as CGMHI Guarantor) ceases to be (or is claimed not to be) in full force and
effect forany reason, including by Citigroup Inc.'s insolvency or resolution. Should the Citigroup Inc.
guarantee nolonger be in effect, Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc., will become the sole obligor
under its Notes, and there can be noassurance that it would be able to continue to meet its obligations
under such Notes.

In the event that Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. also enters bankruptcy, at the time of
Citigroup Inc.'s bankruptcy filing or at a later time, you, as a holder of Notes issued by Citigroup
Global Markets Holdings Inc., would be an unsecured creditor of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the
Citigroup Inc. guarantee and, accordingly, you cannot be assured that the Citigroup Inc. guarantee
would protectyouagainst losses resulting froma default by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.

The Banking Actconfers substantial powers ona number of UK authorities designedto enablethem
to take arange ofactionsinrelationto UK banks, UK building societies, UK investment firms and
UK recognised central counterparties which are considered to be at risk of failing. The exercise of
any ofthese actionsin relation to the CGMF L Guarantor could materially adversely affectthe value
of any Notes issued by CGMFL
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Underthe Banking Act2009 (the "Banking Act"), substantial powers are granted to HM Treasury, the
Bank of England, the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority (together,
the "Authorities™) as partofaspecial resolution regime (the " SRR™). These powers can be exercised,
as applicable, by the Authorities in respect of a UK bank, UK building society, UK investment firm
(such as the CGMFL Guarantor) or UK recognised central counterparty (each a " relevant entity”) in
circumstances in which the Authorities consider its failure has become likely and if certain other
conditions are satisfied (depending on the relevant power) for example, to protect and enhance the
stability of the financial system of the UK.

The SRR consists of five stabilisation options and two special insolvency procedures (bank
administrationand bank insolvency) which may be commenced by HM Treasury, the Bank of England,
the Prudential Regulation Authority or Secretary of State, as the case may be. The stabilisation options
provide for: (i) private sector transfer of all or part ofthe business of the relevantentity; (ii) transfer of
all orpart ofthe business of the relevantentity to a bridge bank wholly owned by the Bank of England,;
(iii) transferofallor part ofthe business of the relevantentity to an asset management vehicle owned
and controlled by the Bank of England; (iv) writing down certain claims of unsecured creditors of the
relevant entity and/or converting certain unsecured debtclaims to equity, (the " bail-in option™), which
equity could also besubject to any future cancellation, transfer or dilution; and (v) temporary public
ownership (nationalisation) of all or part of the relevant entity or any UK holding company. In each
case, the Authorities have wide powers under the Banking Act including powers to modify contractual
arrangements in certain circumstances and powers for HM Treasury to disapply or modify laws (with
possible retroactive effect) to enable the stabilisation powers under the Banking Act to be used
effectively.

The paragraphs belowsetoutsome ofthe possible consequences of the exercise of the powers under
the SRR.

The SRR may be triggered prior to insolvency of the CGMFL Guarantor

The purposeofthe stabilising options is to address the situation where all or part of a business of a
relevant entity has encountered, or is likely to encounter, financial difficulties, giving rise to wider
public interestconcerns. Accordingly, the relevant stabilisation options may be exercised if (a) the
relevant Authority is satisfied that a relevant entity (such as the CGMFL Guarantor) is failing, or is
likely to fail, (b) following consultation with the other Authorities, the relevant Authority determines
that it is not reasonably likely that (ignoring the stabilising options) action will be taken that will result
in the condition referredto in (a) ceasing tobe met and (c) the Authorities consider the exercise of the
stabilisation optionsto be necessary, having regard to certain public interest considerations (suchas the
stability of the UK financial system, public confidence in the UK banking systemand the protection of
depositors). It is therefore possible thatone of the stabilisation options could be exercised prior to the
point at which any insolvency proceedings with respect to the relevant entity could be initiated.

The terms of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee may be modified without your consent,
notwithstanding that you are a holder of Notes issued by CGMFL

If the stabilisation options were exercised under the SRR in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor, HM
Treasury or the Bank of England may exercise extensive powers including, share transfer powers
(applying to awide range of securities), property transfer powers (including powers for partial transfers
of property, rights and liabilities subject to certain protections in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor) and
resolutioninstrument powers (including powers to make special bail-in provisions, subject to certain
protections afforded under The Banking Act 2009 (Restriction of Special Bail-in Provision, etc.) Order
2014). EBxercise ofthese powers could involve taking various actions in relation to the CGMFL Deed of
Guarantee without your consent, notwithstanding that you are a holder of Notes issued by CGMFL,
including (among other things) modifying or disapplying the terms of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee.

The taking of any such actions could adversely affect your rights, if you hold Notes issued by CGMFL,
the price or value of your investment in such Notes and/or the ability of the CGMFL Guarantor to
satisfy its obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee. In such circumstances, you may have a
claim for compensation under one of the compensation schemes existing under, or contemplated by,
the Banking Act, butthere can be noassurance that you would thereby recover compensation promptly
or equal to any loss actually incurred.
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A partial transfer of the CGMFL Guarantor's business may result in a deterioration of its
creditworthiness

If the CGMFL Guarantorwere made subject to the SRRand a partial transfer of its business to another
entity were effected, the quality of the assets and the quantum of the liabilities not transferred and
remaining with the CGMFL Guarantor (which may include the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee) will result
in a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the CGMFL Guarantor and, as a result, increase the risk
that it will be unable to meet its obligations in respect of the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee and/or
eventually become subject to administration proceedings pursuant to the Banking Act. In such
circumstances, ifyou are a holder of Notes issued by CGMFL, you may have a claim for compensation
underone of the compensation schemes existing under, or contemplated by, the Banking Act, butthere
can be no assurance that you would thereby recover compensation promptly or equal to any loss
actually incurred.

As at the date ofthis Base Prospectus, therelevant Authorities have not made an instrument or order
underthe Banking Act in respect of the CGMFL Guarantor and there has been no indication that they
will make any suchinstrument ororder. However, there canbe no assurance that this will not change
and/orthatyou, ifyou are a holder of Notes issued by CGMFL, will not be adversely affected by any
such order or instrument if made.

The Council ofthe European Union has adopteda bank recovery and resolution directive which is
intended toenable a range of actions to be taken in relation to credit institutions and investment
firmsconsideredto be at risk of failing. The implementation of the directiveunder Luxembourg law
orthe taking ofany action under it could materially affectthe value of any Notes issuedby CGMFL

On 2 July 2014, Directive 2014/59/EU providing for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for
the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms (the "Bank Recowery and
Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") entered into force. The BRRD is designed to provide authorities
with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in an unsound or failing
institution soas toensure the continuity of the institution’s critical financial and economic functions,
while minimising the impact of an institution’s failure on the economy and financial system.

Implementation of BRRD in Luxembourg

The BRRD was implemented by the Luxembourg act dated 18 December 2015 on the recovery,
resolutionand liquidation of credit institutions and certain investment firms, as amended (the "BRR
Act 2015™). Underthe BRR Act 2015, the competentauthority is the Commission de surveillance du
secteur financier (the "CSSF") and the resolution authority is the CSSF acting as resolution council
(Conseil de résolution) (the "Resolution Council").

The BRR Act 2015 contains four resolution tools and powers which may be used alone or in
combination where the Resolution Council considers that (a) an institution is failing or likely to fail, (b)
there is no reasonable prospectthatanyalternative private sector measures would prevent the failure of
such institution within a reasonable timeframe, and (c) a resolution action is in the public interest.

In particular, the BRR Act 2015 provides for certain resolution measures, including the power to
impose in certain circumstances a suspension of activities. Any suspension of activities can, to the
extent determined by the Resolution Council, result in the partial or complete suspension of the
performance of agreements entered into by a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope firm (such as
CGMFL). The BRR Act 2015 also grants the power to the Resolution Council to take a number of
resolutionmeasures including (i) a forced sale of a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope firm (sale of
business), which enables the Resolution Councilto direct the sale of the Luxembourg incorporated in-
scope firm or all or part of its business on commercial terms, (ii) the establishment of a bridge
institution, which may limit the capacity of a Luxembourg incorporated in-scope firm to meet its
repayment obligations or, (iii) the forced transfer of all or part of the assets, rights or obligations of a
Luxembourg incorporated in-scope firm (asset separation), which enables the Resolution Council to
transfer (impaired or problem) assets, rights or liabilities to one or more publicly owned asset
management vehicles to allow them to be managed with a view to maximising their value through
eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used together with another resolution tool only) and
(iv) the application of the general bail-in tool, which gives the Resolution Council the power, among
others, to write down certainclaims of unsecured creditors of a failing Luxembourg incorporated in-
scope firm (which write-down may result in the reduction of such claims to zero) and to convert certain

79



Risk Factors

unsecured debt claims (including Notes issued by CGMFL) to equity or other instruments of
ownership, which equity or other instruments could alsobe subject to any future cancellation, transfer
or dilution. The powers set out in the BRR Act 2015 will impact how in-scope credit institutions,
investment firms or relevant financial institutions (such as CGMFL) established in Luxembourg, are
managed as well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors.

If the general bail-in tooland the statutory write-down and conversion power become applicable to
CGMFL, Notes issuedby CGMFL may be subject to write-down or conversion into equity (ordinary
sharesorother instrumentof ownership forthe purpose of stabilisation and loss absorption) on any
application of the bail-in tool, which may result in holders of such Notes losing some or all of their
investment (notably, theamount ofthe relevantoutstanding Notes may be reduced, including to zero).
Subject to certain conditions, theterms of the obligations owed under the Notes may also be varied by
the Resolution Council (e.g. as to maturity, interest and interest payment dates) and the payments may
be suspended for a certain period. The exercise of any power under the BRR Act 2015 or any
suggestion of suchexercise could materially adversely affect the rights of the holders of Notes issued
by CGMFL, the price or value oftheirinvestment in any such Notes and/or the ability of CGMFL to
satisfy its obligations under any such Notes.

Any application of the general bail-in tool under the BRR Act 2015 shall be in accordance with the
hierarchy of claims in normal Luxembourg insolvency proceedings generally applicable to companies
that have their centraladministration (siege de I'administration central), the principal place ofbusiness
(principal établissement) and the centre of main interests (within the meaning given to such termin
Regulation (EU) 2015/848 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on
insolvency proceedings (recast), as amended) in Luxembourg and that are not in scope of the BRR Act
2015. Accordingly, the impact of such application on you, if you are a holder of Notes issued by
CGMFL will dependon your ranking in accordance with such hierarchy, including any priority given
to other creditors such as depositors (if any).

To the extent any resultingtreatmentofholders of Notes issued by CGMFL pursuant to the exercise of
the general bail-in tool is less favourable thanwould have beenthecase undersuch hierarchy in normal
Luxembourg insolvency proceedings (i.e. not governed by the BRR Act 2015), a holder of Notes has a
right to compensationunder the BRR Act 2015 basedon an independent valuation of the Luxembourg
incorporated in-scope firm (which is referred to as the "no creditor worse off" safeguard under the
BRRD). Thereis likely to be aconsiderable delay in the recovery of such compensation. Compensation
payments (ifany)are also likely to be made considerably later thanwhen amounts may otherwise have
been due under such Notes.

Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 July 2014
establishing uniformrules and a uniformprocedure for the resolution of significant credit institutions
and financial groups, in the framework of a Single Resolution Mechanismand a Single Resolution
Fund, established a centralised power of resolution and entrusted to a Single Resolution Board and to
the national resolutionauthorities of participating EU Member States (including Luxembourg and the
CSSF throughthe Resolution Council). Since 1 January 2015, the Single Resolution Board works in
close cooperationwith the Resolution Council, in particular in relation to the elaboration of resolution
planning, and has assumed full resolution powers since 1 January 2016.

Risks relatingto the exercise of any bail-in power by the relevant resolution authority in respect of
New York Law Notes issued by CGMFL and Noteholder agreement to be bound thereby

Each Noteholder of New York Law Notes issued by CGMFL (" CGMFL New York Law Notes")
(including a holder of a beneficial interest in such CGMFL New York Law Notes) you acknowledge,
accept, consentand agree, notwithstanding any other termof the CGMFL New York Law Notes orany
otheragreements, arrangements, or understandings between CGMFL and you, by your acquisition of
such CGMFLNew York Law Notes (a) to be bound by the effect of the exercise of the bail-in power
by the relevant resolution authority if the latter were to consider that the amounts due under the
CGMFL New York Law Notes would fall within the scope of the bail-in power. This bail-in power
may include and result in any of the following, or a combination thereof (i) the reduction ofall, ora
portion, of the amounts due under the CGMFL New York Law Notes, (ii) the conversion of all, or a
portion, of the amounts due under the CGMFL New York Law Notes into shares, other securities or
otherobligations of CGMFL or another person, including by means of an amendment, modification or
variation of the terms and conditions of the CGMFL New York Law Notes, in which caseyouagree to
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accept, in lieu ofany rights under the CGMFL New York Law Notes, any such shares, other securities
or otherobligations of CGMFL oranother person, (iii) the cancellation of the CGMFL New York Law
Notes, (iv) the amendment or alteration of the maturity of the CGMFL New York Law Notes or
amendment of the amount of interest payable on the CGMFL New York Law Notes, or the date on
which the interest becomes payable, including by suspending paymentfor a temporary period, and (b)
if applicable, thatthe terms and conditions of the CGMFL New York Law Notes are subject to, and
may be varied, if necessary, to give effect to, the exercise of the bail-in power by the relevant
resolutionauthority. Accordingly, any bail-in power may be exercised in such a manner as to result in
you losing allora part ofthe value of your investment in such Notes or receiving a different se curity
from such Notes, which may be worth significantly less than such Notes and which may have
significantly fewer protections thanthose typically afforded to debt securities (and holders of those
securities may be subject to liabilities to which they would not be subject as the holder of debt
securities). Moreover, the relevant resolution authority may exercise its authority to implement the bail-
in power without providingany advance notice to Noteholders of the CGMFL New York Law Notes.

See General Condition 19 (Agreement and acknowledgement with respectto the exercise ofthe bail-in
power in respectofNew York Law Notes issuedby CGMFL) and also risk factor "The Council of the
EuropeanUnion has adopted a bankrecoveryandresolutiondirective which is intended to enable a
range ofactionsto be takenin relationto credit institutions and investment firms considered to be at
risk offailing. The implementation ofthe directiveunder Luxembourg lawor the taking of any action
under it could materially affect the value of any Notes issued by CGMFL" above.

OECD base erosion and profit shifting

In May 2013, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (" OECD") Council at
Ministerial Level adopted a declaration on base erosion and profit shifting urging the OECD's
Committee on Fiscal Affairs to developan actionplan toaddress base erosion and profit shifting in a
comprehensive manner and in July 2013 the OECD launched an Action Plan on Base Erosion and
Profit Shifting, identifying 15 specific actions to achieve this (the "BEPS Project™"). These action
points relate to, amongst other things, restricting the deductibility of interest payments (Action 4),
preventing the granting of taxtreaty benefits in inappropriate circumstances (Action 6) and preventing
the artificial avoidance of permanent establishment status (Action 7).

All of the action points have been subject to public consultation and on 5 October 2015 the OECD
Secretariat published 13final reports andan explanatory statement outlining consensus actions. The
BEPS Project is expected to generate changes to taxpolicy and systems in numerous jurisdictions.
While some aspects of the BEPS Project have beenprovided for in some jurisdictions (such as in the
European Union by Council Directive (EU) 2016/1164 of 12 July 2016 laying down rules against tax
avoidance practices thatdirectly affect the functioning of the internal market laying down rules against
taxavoidance, which is to be implemented in the national laws of EU Member States by nolaterthan 1
January 2019), it remains unclearthe extent to which actions will be implemented and which countries
will implement them. It is not possible to assess at this stage what impact the BEPS Project will have
on the taxpayable by Citior whetherthere would be any other adverse taxconsequences, any of which
could reduce amounts available for distribution to Noteholders.
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The following risk factors hawe been extracted from the ""Risk Factors' section of the Citigroup
Inc. 2016 Form 10-Kincorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus and reproduced without
material amendment and references therein to "'Citigroup™ and "'Citi** are to "'Citigroup Inc.
and its Consolidated Subsidiaries™ and other terms used but not defined thereinare as definedin
the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Citi's Inability to Address the Shortcomings Identified by the Federal Reserve Board and FDIC as a
Result ofthe Agencies' Reviewof Citi's 2015 Resolution Plan Submission and the 2017 Resolution
Plan Guidance Could SubjectCitito More Stringent Capital, Leverage or Liquidity Requirements,
or Restrictions on Its Growth, Activities or Operations, and Could Eventually Require Citi to Divest
Assets or Operations.

Title | of the Dodd-Frank Act requires Citi annually to prepare and submit a plan to the Federal
Reserve Board andthe FDICforthe orderly resolution of Citigroup (the bank holding company) and its
significant legal entities, under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the event of future material financial
distressor failure (" Resolution Plan™). Citi's next Resolution Plan submission is due by 1 July 2017.

In April 2016, the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC notified Citi of certain "shortcomings™ (as
opposed to "deficiencies") they had jointly identified in Citi's 2015 Resolution Plan which Citi is
required to address in its 2017 Resolution Plan submission. The shortcomings relatedto (i) governance
mechanisms, includingthe lack of detail regarding Citi's entry into resolution, specific actions to be
taken at each stage surrounding Citi's entry into resolution and a more robust analysis of potential
challenges to Citi's provision of capital and liquidity support to its subsidiaries prior to entry into
resolutionas wellas mitigants to those challenges; (ii) certain of Citi's assumptions regarding its ability
to successfully wind downits derivatives portfolios under its Resolution Plan; and (iii) Citi's approach
to estimating the minimum operating liquidity for its key operating subsidiaries and the minimum
amount of liquidity needed for daily operations of such subsidiaries during resolution.

In addition, also in April 2016, the Federal Reserve Board and FDIC issued guidance for 2017
Resolution Plan submissions (*2017 Guidance"). The 2017 Guidance sets forth regulatory
expectations for 2017 Resolution Plans across numerous areas, including (i) capital; (ii) liquidity; (iii)
governance mechanisms; (iv) operational matters such as management information systems and
payment and clearing activities; (v) legal entity rationalizationand separability; and (vi) derivatives and
trading activities. Citimust also address the 2017 Guidance in its 2017 Resolution Plan submission. For
additional information on certain actions Citi currently expects to take in connection with its 2017
ResolutionPlan submission, see" Liquidity Risks— Resolution Plan™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form
10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus).

Under Title I, if the Federal Reserve Boardandthe FDIC jointly determine that Citi's Resolution Plan
is not "credible" (which, although not defined, is generally believed to mean the regulators do not
believe the plan is feasible orwould otherwise allow the regulators to resolve Citiin a way that protects
systemically important functions withoutseveresystemic disruption), or would notfacilitate an orderly
resolution of Citi under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, and Citi fails to resubmit a resolution plan that
remedies any identified deficiencies, Citi could be subjected to more stringent capital, leverage or
liquidity requirements, or restrictions on its growth, activities or operations. If within two years from
the imposition of any requirements or restrictions Citi has still not remediated any identified
deficiencies, then Citicould eventually be required to divest certain assets or operations. Any such
restrictions or actions would negatively impact Citi's reputation, market and investor perception,
operations and strategy.

Citi's Abilityto Retum Capital to Shareholders Substantially Depends on the CCAR Process and the
Results of Regulatory Stress Tests.

In addition to Board of Director approval, any decision by Citi to return capital to shareholders,
whetherthrough its common stock dividend or through a share repurchase program, substantially
depends on regulatory approval, including through the CCAR process required by the Federal Reserve
Board and the supervisory stress tests required under the Dodd-Frank Act.

82



Risk Factors

Citi's ability to accurately predict, interpret or explain to stakeholders the outcome of the CCAR
process, and thus address any such market or investor perceptions, is difficult as the Federal Reserve
Board's assessmentof Citi's capitaladequacy is conducted using the Board's proprietary stress test
models, as well as a number of qualitative factors, including a detailed assessment of Citi's "capital
adequacy process," as defined by the Board. The Federal Reserve Board has stated that it expects
leading capital adequacy practices will continue to evolve and will likely be determined by the Board
each yearas aresult of its cross-firmreview of capital plan submissions. Similarly, the Federal Reserve
Board has indicated that, as part of its stated goal to continually evolve its annual stress testing
requirements, several parameters of the annual stress testing process may be altered fromtime to time,
including the severity of the stress test scenario, the Federal Reserve Board modelling of Citi's balance
sheetandtheaddition of components deemed importantby the Federal Reserve Board (e.g., additional
macroprudential considerations such as funding and liquidity shocks).

Moreover, duringthe latter part of 2016, senior officials at the Federal Reserve Board indicated that the
Board was considering integration ofthe annual stress testing requirements with ongoing regulatory
capital requirements. While there has beenno formal proposal fromthe Federal Reserve Board to date,
changesto the stress testing regime being discussed, among others, include introduction of a firm-
specific "stress capital buffer" ("SCB") which would be equal to the maximumdecline in a firm's
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio under a severely adverse scenario over a nine-quarter CCAR
measurement period, subject to a minimum requirement of 2.5%. Accordingly, a firm's SCB would
change annually based on its stresstestresults in the prior year. Officials discussed the idea that the
SCB would replace the capital conservation buffer in both the firm's ongoing regulatory capital
requirementsand as part of the floor for capital distributions in the CCAR process. Federal Reserve
Board senior officials also noted thatintroduction of the SCBwould havethe effect of incorporating a
firm's then-effective GSIB surcharge into its post-stress test minimum capital requirements, which the
Board has previously indicated it is considering.

Althoughvarious uncertainties exist regarding theextent of, and the ultimate impact to Citi from, these
changesto the Federal Reserve Board's stress testing and CCAR regimes, these changes would likely
furtherincreasethe level of capital Citi must hold as part of the stress tests, thus potentially impacting
the extent to which Citi is able to return capital to shareholders.

Citi, its Managementand Businesses Must Continually Review, Analyze and Successfully Adapt to
Ongoing Regulatory Uncertainties and Changes in the U.S. and Globally.

Despite the adoption of final regulations in numerous areas impacting Citiand its businesses over the
past several years, Citi, its management and businesses continually face ongoing regulatory
uncertainties and changes, both in the U.S. and globally. While the areas of ongoing regulatory
uncertainties and changes facing Citi are too numerous to list completely, various examples include,
but are not limited to: (i) uncertainties and potential changes arising froma new U.S. Presidential
administrationand Congress, including the potential modification or repeal of regulatory requirements
enacted and implemented by Citi in recent years; (ii) potential changes to various aspects of the
regulatory capital framework applicable to Citi (see the CCAR risk factor above and "Capital
Resources — Regulatory Capital Standards Developments™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K
incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus); and (iii) the terms of and other uncertainties
resulting fromthe U.K.'s vote to withdraw fromthe European Union ("EU") (see the U.K. referendum
risk factor below).

Ongoing regulatory uncertainties and changes make Citi's and its management's long-term business,
balance sheet and budget planning difficult or subject to change. For example, the new U.S.
Presidentialadministration has discussed various changes to certain regulatory requirements, which
would require ongoingassessment by managementas to the impact to Citi, its businesses and business
planning. Business planning is required to bebased on possible or proposed rules or outcomes, which
can change dramatically upon finalization, or upon implementation or interpretive guidance from
numerous regulatory bodies worldwide, and such guidance can change.

Moreover, U.S. and international regulatory initiatives have not always been undertaken or
implemented on a coordinated basis, and areas of divergence have developed and continue to develop
with respect to the scope, interpretation, timing, structure orapproach, leading to inconsistent or even
conflicting regulations, including within a single jurisdiction. For example, during the latter part of
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2016, the European Commissionproposedto introduce a new requirement for major banking groups
headquartered outside the EU (which would include Citi) to establish an intermediate EU holding
company where the foreign bank has two or more institutions (broadly meaning banks, broker-dealers
and similar financial firms) established in the EU. While the proposal mirrors an existing U.S.
requirement for non-U.S. banking organizations to form U.S. intermediate holding companies, if
adopted, it could lead to additional complexity with respect to Citi's resolution planning, capital and
liquidity allocation and efficiency in various jurisdictions. Regulatory changes have also significantly
increased Citi's compliance risks and costs (see "OPERATIONAL RISKS" below).

Uncertainties Arisingas a Resultofthe Vote inthe U.K. to Withdraw from the EU Could Negatively
Impact Citi's Businesses, Results of Operations or Financial Condition.

As aresult ofareferendumheld in June 2016, the U.K. elected to withdraw fromthe EU. The result of
the referendumhas raised numerous uncertainties, including as to whenthe U.K. may begin the official
process of withdrawal (despite indications this may occur by the end of March 2017) and the
commencement of negotiations with the EU regarding the withdrawal as well as the terms of the
withdrawal.

Additionalareas of uncertainty thatcould impact Citiinclude, among others: (i) whether Citi will need
to make changesto its legal entity and booking model strategy and/or structure in both the U.K. and the
EU based on the outcome of negotiations relating to the regulation of financial services; (ii) the
potential impact of the withdrawal to the U.K. economy as well as more broadly throughout Europe;
(i) the potential impact to Citi's exposures to counterparties as a result of any macroeconomic
slowdown; (iv) the impact of any withdrawal or the terms of the withdrawal on U.S. monetary policy,
such as changesto interest rates; and (v) the potential impact to foreign exchange rates, particularly the
Euro and the pound sterling, and the resulting impacts to Citi's results of operations or financial
condition. Theseor other uncertainties arising fromany U.K. decision to withdraw from the EU could
negatively impact Citi's businesses, results of operations or financial condition.

The Value of Citi's DTAs Could Be Significantly Reduced if Corporate Tax Rates in the U.S. or

Certain State, Local or Foreign Jurisdictions Decline or as a Result of Other Changes in the U.S.
Corporate Tax System.

Overthe past several years, there have beendiscussions regarding decreasing the U.S. federal corporate
tax rate, and such discussions have taken on a new focus and prominence given the new U.S.
presidential administration and Congress. Similar discussions have taken place in certain local, state
and foreign jurisdictions.

While Citi may benefit on a prospective net income basis fromany decrease in corporate taxrates,
proposals being discussed currently—such as lowering the corporate tax rate or moving from a
worldwide taxsystemto a territorial tax system—could result in a material decrease in the value of
Citi's DTAs, which would alsoresult in a material reduction to Citi's net income during the period in
which the change is enacted. Citi's regulatory capital could also bereduced ifthe decrease in the value
of Citi's DTAs exceeds certain levels (for additional information on the potential impact to Citi's
regulatory capital arising from U.S. corporate taxreform, see the notes to the tables regarding the
components of Citi's regulatory capital under both current (transitional) and Basel 11l full
implementation in "' Capital Resources" in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference
into the Base Prospectus). Given the number of uncertainties relating to the ultimate form any
corporate tax reform may take, it is not possible to quantify the potential negative impact to Citi's
income or regulatory capital that could result from corporate tax reform.

Citi's Ability to Utilize Its DTAs, and Thus Reduce the Negative Impact of the DTAs on Citi's
Regulatory Capital, Will Be Driven by Its Ability to Generate U.S. Taxable Income.

At 31 December 2016, Citi's net DTAs were approximately $46.7 billion, of which approximately
$29.3 billion was excluded from Citi's Common Equity Tier 1 Capital, on a fully implemented basis,
under the U.S. Basel Ill rules (for additional information, see "Capital Resources — Components of
Citigroup Capital Under Basel Il (Advanced Approaches with Full Implementation)™ in the Citigroup
Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference intothe Base Prospectus). In addition, of the net DTAs
as ofyear-end 2016, approximately $14.2 billion related to foreign taxcredit carry-forwards ("FTCs").
The carry-forward utilization period for FTCs is 10 years and represents the most time- sensitive
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component of Citi's DTAs. Of the FTCs at year-end 2016, approximately $2.7 billion expire in 2018
and the remaining $11.5 billion expire over the period of 2019-2025. Citi must utilize any FTCs
generated in the then-current year taxreturn prior to utilizing any carry-forward FTCs.

The accounting treatment for realization of DTASs, including FTCs, is complexand requires significant
judgment and estimates regarding future taxable earnings in the jurisdictions in which the DTAs arise
and available taxplanning strategies. Citi's ability to utilize its DTASs, including the FTC components,
and thus use the capital supportingthe DTAs for more productive purposes, will be dependent upon
Citi's ability to generate.

U.S. taxable income in the relevant tax carry-forward periods. Failure to realize any portion of the
DTAs would also have a corresponding negative impact on Citi's net income.

In addition, with regard to FTCs, utilization will be influenced by actions to optimize U.S. taxable
earnings for the purpose of consuming the FTC carry-forward component of the DTAs prior to
expiration. These FTCactions, however, may serve to increase the DTAS for other less time sensitive
components. Moreover, taxreturn limitations on FTCs and general business credits that cause Citi to
incur current tax expense, notwithstanding its taxcarry-forward position, could impact the rate of
overall DTA utilization. DTA utilization will also continueto be driven by movements in Citi's AOCI,
which can be impacted by changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Foradditional information on Citi's DTAs, including the FTCs, see " Significant Accounting Policies

and Significant Estimates — Income Taxes" and Note 9to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the
Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus.

Citi's Interpretation or Application of the Extensive Tax Laws to Which It Is Subject Could Differ
from Those of the Relevant Governmental Authorities, Which Could Result in the Payment of
Additional Taxes, Penalties or Interest.

Citi is subject to the various tax laws of the U.S. and its states and municipalities, as well as the
numerous foreign jurisdictions in which it operates. These tax laws are inherently complexand Citi
must make judgments and interpretations aboutthe application ofthese laws to its entities, operations
and businesses. Citi's interpretations and application of the tax laws, including with respect to
withholding tax obligations and stamp and other transactional taxes, could differ fromthat of the
relevant governmental taxing authority, which could result in the payment of additional taxes, penalties
or interest, which could be material.

Citi'sOngoing Investments in Its Businesses May Not Be as Successful as it Projects or Expects.

Citi continues to make targeted investments in its businesses, including in its global cards and wealth
management businesses in Global Consumer Banking aswellas in certain businesses in Institutional
Clients Group. Citi also continuesto invest in its technology systems to enhance its digital capabilities.
In addition, during the latter part of 2016, Citi announced a more than $1 billion investment in
Citibanamex expected to be completed by 2020. Citi's investment strategy will likely continue to
evolve and change as its business strategy and priorities change.

There is no guarantee that investments Citi has made, or may make, in its businesses or operations will
be as productive or effective as Citi expects or at all. Further, Citi's ability to achieve its expected
returns onits investments in part depends on factors which it cannot control, such as macroeconomic
conditions, customer and client reactions, and ongoing regulatory changes, among others.

Citi Has Co-Branding and Private Label Credit Card Relationships with Various Retailers and

Merchants andthe Failureto Maintain These Relationships Could Have a Negative Impact on Citi's
Results of Operations or Financial Condition.

Throughits Citi-branded cards and Citi retail services credit card businesses, Citihas co-branding and
private label relationships with various retailers and merchants globally in the ordinary course of
businesswhereby Citiissues credit cards tocustomers ofthe retailers ormerchants. Citi's co-branding
and private labelagreements provide for sharedeconomics between the parties and generally have a
fixed term. The five largest relationships constituted an aggregate of approximately 11% of Citi's
revenues for 2016.
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Competition among card issuers, including Citi, for these relationships is significant and it has become
increasingly difficult in recent years tomaintain such relationships on the same terms or at all. These
relationships could also be negatively impacted dueto,among other things, operational difficulties of
the retailer or merchant, termination due to a breach by Citi, the retailer or merchant of its
responsibilities, or external factors, including bankruptcies, liquidations, restructurings, consolidations
and other similar events. While various mitigating factors could be available to Citi if any of these
events were to occur—such as by replacing the retailer or merchantor offering other card products—
such events could negatively impact Citi's results of operations or financial condition, including as a
result of loss of revenues, impairment of purchased credit card relationships and contract related
intangibles or other losses (for information on Citi's credit card related intangibles generally, see Note
16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by
reference into the Base Prospectus).

Macroeconomicand Geopolitical Challenges Globally Could Have a Negative Impact on Citi's
Businesses and Results of Operations.

Citi has experienced, and could experience in the future, negative impacts to its businesses and results
of operationsasaresult of macroeconomic and geopolitical challenges, uncertainties and volatility.

Forexample, energy and other commodity prices significantly deteriorated during the second half of
2015 and into 2016, which impacted various financial markets, countries and industries. The econo mic
and fiscal situations of several European countries remain fragile, and concerns and uncertainties
remain in Europe overthe potential exit of additional countries fromthe EU. In addition, governmental
fiscal and monetary actions, or expected actions, have impacted the volatilities of global financial
markets, foreign exchange rates and capital flows among countries. Moreover, the new U.S.
Presidentialadministration has indicated it may pursue protectionist trade and other policies, which
could result in additional macroeconomic and/or geopolitical challenges, uncertainties and volatilities.

These and other global macroeconomic and geopolitical challenges, uncertainties and volatilities have
negatively impacted, and could continueto negatively impact, Citi's businesses, results of operations
and financial condition, including its credit costs, revenues in its Markets and securities services and
otr;er)businesses, and AOCI (which would in turn negatively impact Citi's book and tangible book
value).

Citi's Presence in the Emerging Markets Subjects It to Various Risks as well as Increased
Compliance and Regulatory Risks and Costs.

During 2016, emerging markets revenues accounted for approximately 36% of Citi's total revenues
(Citi generally defines emerging markets as countries in Latin America, Asia (other than Japan,
Australia and New Zealand), Central and Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Africa).

Citi's presence in the emerging markets subjects it to a number of risks, including sovereign volatility,
political events, foreign exchange controls, limitations on foreign investment, sociopolitical instability
(including from hyper-inflation), fraud, nationalization or loss of licenses, business restrictions,
sanctions or asset freezes, potential criminal charges, closure of branches or subsidiaries and
confiscation of assets. For example, Citi operates in several countries that have, or have had in the
recent past, strict foreignexchange controls, suchas Argentina and Venezuela, that limit its ability to
convertlocal currency into U.S. dollars and/or transfer funds outside the country. In prior years, Citi
has also discovered fraud in certain emerging markets in which it operates. Political turmoil and other
instability have occurred in certain countries, such as in Russia, Ukraine and the Middle East, which
have required managementtime and attention in prioryears (e.g., monitoring the impact of sanctions
on the Russian economy as well as Citi's businesses and results of operations).

Citi's emerging markets presence also increases its compliance and regulatory risks and costs. For
example, Citi's operations in emerging markets, including facilitating cross-border transactions on
behalf of its clients, subjectit to higher compliance risks under U.S. regulations primarily focused on
various aspects of global corporate activities, such as anti-money-laundering regulations and the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. These risks can be more acute in less developed markets and thus
require substantial investment in compliance infrastructure or could result in a reduction in certain of
Citi's business activities. Any failure by Citito comply with applicable U.S. regulations, as well as the
regulations in the countries and markets in which it operates as a result of its global footprint, could
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resultin fines, penalties, injunctions or other similar restrictions, any of which could negatively impact
Citi's results of operations and its reputation.

The Federal Reserve Board's Recently Issued Final Total Loss-Absorbing Capacity Requirements

Raise Uncertainties Regarding the Consequences of Noncompliance and the Potential Impact on
Citi's Estimates of its Eligible Debt.

Title Il of the Dodd-Frank Act grants the FDICthe authority, under certain circumstances, to resolve
systemically importantfinancial institutions, including Citi. The FDIC has releaseda notice describing
its preferred "single point of entry strategy" for such resolution, pursuant to which, generally, a bank
holding company, such as Citigroup, would be placed into resolution, Citi's operating subsidiaries
would be recapitalized and remain outside of any resolution proceedings, and the shareholders and
unsecured creditors of Citigroup—including unsecured long-termdebt holders—would bear any losses
resulting from Citi's resolution.

Consistent with this strategy, on 15 December 2016, the Federal Reserve Board issued final rules
requiring GSIBs, including Citi, to (i) issue and maintain minimum levels of external "total loss -
absorbing capacity” (" TLAC")and long-termdebt ("LTD"), and (ii) adhere to various "clean holding
company” requirements at the bank holding company level. For a summary of the final TLAC
requirements, see "LIQUIDITY RISKS — Total Loss Absorbing Capacity (TLAC)" in the Citigroup Inc.
2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus.

While the final TLAC rules addressed several areas of uncertainty arising fromthe proposed rules,
uncertainties regarding certain key aspects of the recently-issued rules remain and will likely require
additional clarification or interpretive guidance. First, the consequences of a breach of the external
LTD requirement are not clear. Given that there is no “cure™ period in the final rules, Citi could be
required to issue additional external LTD above the minimum requirements to ensure compliance.
Similarly, the consequences ofabreach ofthe cleanholdingcompany requirements are uncertain, and
there is no cure period. Accordingly, Citi will need to determine if it should reduce its third party, non-
contingent liabilities at the bank holding company level to well below the 5% cap required under the

clean holding company requirements in order to avoid inadvertently breaching the 5% cap, particularly
since certain of the liabilities at issue are outside of Citi's control.

In addition, the final rules introduced a new "anti-evasion" provision that authorizes the Federal
Reserve Board to exclude froma bankholding company's outstanding external LTD any debt having
certain features that would, in the Board's view, "significantly impair” the debt's ability to absorb
losses. In effect, this provision could allow the Federal Reserve Board, after notice and opportunity for
Citi to respond, to exclude certain LTD, such as certain customer-related debt, from Citi's reported
external LTD. This could result in noncompliance with the required external LTD minimums, leading
to the uncertainty described above, and negatively impact Citi's reputation in the market.

CREDIT RISKS

Concentrations of Risk Can Increase the Potential for Citi to Incur Significant Losses.

Concentrations of risk, particularly credit and market risk, can increase Citi's risk of significant losses.
As of 31 December 2016, Citi's most significant concentration of credit risk was with the U.S.
government and its agencies, which primarily results fromtrading assets and investments issued by the
U.S. government and its agencies (for additional information, see Note 23 to the Consolid ated
Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base
Prospectus). Citialso routinely executes a high volume of securities, trading, derivative and foreign
exchange transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry, including banks, insurance
companies, investment banks, governments, central banks and other financial institutions.

To the extent regulatory or market developments lead to increased centralization of trading activity
throughparticular clearing houses, central agents, exchanges or other financial market utilities, Citi
could also experiencean increasein concentration of risk to theseindustries. These concentrations of
risk as well as the risk of failure of a large counterparty, central counterparty clearing house or

financial market utility could limit the effectiveness of Citi's hedgingstrategies and cause Citi to incur
significant losses.
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LIQUIDITY RISKS

The Maintenance of Adequate Liquidity and Funding Depends on Numerous Factors, Including
Those Outside of Citi's Control, Such as Market Disruptions and Increases in Citi's Credit Spreads.

As a global financial institution, adequate liquidity and sources of funding are essential to Citi's
businesses. Citi's liquidity and sources of funding can be significantly and negatively impacted by

factors it cannot control, suchas general disruptions in the financial markets, governmental fiscal and
monetary policies, regulatory changes or negative investor perceptions of Citi's creditworthiness.

In addition, Citi's costs to obtain and access deposits, secured funding and long-termunsecured funding
are directly related to its credit spreads. Changes in credit spreads constantly occur and are market
driven, including both external market factors and factors specific to Citi, and can be highly volatile.
Citi's credit spreads may also be influenced by movements in the costs to purchasers of credit default

swaps referenced to Citi's long-termdebt, which are also impacted by these external and Citi-specific
factors.

Moreover, Citi's ability to obtain funding may be impaired if other market participants are seeking to
access themarkets at the same time, or if market appetite is reduced, as is likely to occur in a liquidity
or other market crisis. A sudden drop in market liquidity could also cause a temporary or more lengthy
dislocation of underwriting and capital markets activity. In addition, clearing organizations, regulators,
clients and financial institutions with which Citi interacts may exercise the right to require additional
collateralbasedon these market perceptions or market conditions, which could further impair Citi's
access to and cost of funding.

As aholding company, Citi relies on interest, dividends, distributions and other payments fromits
subsidiaries to funddividends as well as to satisfy its debt and other obligations. Several of Citi's U.S.
and non-U.S. subsidiaries are or may be subject to capital adequacy or other regulatory or contractual
restrictions on their ability to provide such payments, including any local regulatory stress test
requirements. Limitations on the payments that Citi receives fromits subsidiaries could also impact its
liquidity.

The Credit Rating Agencies Continuously Review the Credit Ratings of Citi and Certain of Its
Subsidiaries, and Ratings Downgrades Could Have a Negative Impact on Citi's Funding and
Liquidity Due to Reduced Funding Capacityand Increased Funding Costs, Including Derivatives
Triggers That Could Require Cash Obligations or Collateral Requirements.

The credit rating agencies, such as Fitch, Moody's and S&P, continuously evaluate Citi and certain of
its subsidiaries, andtheir ratings of Citiand its more significant subsidiaries' long-ternmv/senior debt and
short-term/commercial paper, as applicable, are based on a number of factors, including standalone
financial strength, as well as factors notentirely within the control of Citi and its subsidiaries, such as
the agencies' proprietary rating agency methodologies and assumptions and conditions affecting the
financial services industry and markets generally.

Citi and its subsidiaries may not be able to maintain their current respective ratings. Ratings
downgrades could negatively impact Citi's ability to access the capital markets and other sources of
funds as well as the costs of those funds, and its ability to maintain certain deposits. A ratings
downgrade could also have a negative impact on Citi's funding and liquidity due to reduced funding
capacity, aswellas the impact of derivative triggers, which could require Citito meet cash obligations
and collateral requirements. In addition, a ratings downgrade could also have a negative impact on
other funding sources, such as secured financing and other margined transactions for which there may
be no explicit triggers, as well as on contractual provisions and other credit requirements of Citi's
counterparties and clients, which may contain minimum ratings thresholds in order for Citi to hold
third- party funds.

Moreover, credit ratings downgrades can have impacts, which may not be currently known to Citi or
which are not possible to quantify. Forexample, some entities may have ratings limitations as to their
permissible counterparties, of which Citi may or may not be aware. In addition, certain of Citi's
corporate customers and trading counterparties, among other clients, could re-evaluate their business
relationships with Citi and limit the trading of certain contracts or market instruments with Citi in
response to ratings downgrades. Changes in customer and counterparty behavior could impact not only
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Citi's funding and liquidity but alsotheresults of operations of certain Citi businesses. For additional
information on the potential impact ofa reduction in Citi's or Citibank's credit ratings, see "Managing
Global Risk — Liquidity Risk" in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the
Base Prospectus.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

A Disruption of Citi's Operational Systems Could Negatively Impact Citi's Reputation, Customers,
Clients, Businesses or Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

A significant portion of Citi's operations relies heavily on the secure processing, storage and
transmission of confidential and other information as well as the monitoring of a large number of
complextransactions on a minute-by-minute basis. Forexample, throughits Global Consumer Banking
and credit card and securities services businesses in Institutional Clients Group, Citiobtainsand stores
an extensive amount of personal and client-specific information for its retail, corporate and
governmental customers and clients and must accurately record and reflect their extensive account
transactions.

With the evolving proliferation of new technologies and the increasing use of the Internet, mobile
devices and cloud technologies to conduct financial transactions, large, global financial institutions
such as Citihave been, andwill continue to be, subjectto an increasing risk of operational disruption or
cyber or information security incidents from these activities (for additional information on
cybersecurity risk, see the discussion below). These incidents are unpredictable and can arise from
numerous sources, notall of which are in Citi's control, includingamong others human error, fraud or
malice on the part of employees, accidental technological failure, electrical or telecommunication
outages, failures of computer servers or other similar damage to Citi's property or assets. These issues
canalso arise as aresult of failures by third parties with which Citi does business such as failures by
Internet, mobile technology, cloud service providers or other vendors to adequately safeguard their
systems and prevent systemdisruptions or cyber attacks.

Such events could cause interruptions or malfunctions in the operations of Citi (such as the temporary
loss of availability of Citi's online banking system or mobile banking platform), as well as the
operations of its clients, customers or other third parties. Given Citi's global footprint and the high
volume oftransactions processed by Citi, certain errors or actions may be repeated or compounded
before they are discoveredand rectified, which would further increase these costs and consequences.
Any such events could alsoresult in financial losses as well as misappropriation, corruption or loss of
confidential and other information or assets, which could negatively impact Citi's reputation,
customers, clients, businesses or results of operations and financial condition, perhaps significantly.

Citi's Computer Systems and Networks Have Been, and Will Continue to Be, Subject to an
Increasing Risk of Continually Evolving Cybersecurity Risks Which Could Result in the Theft, Loss,
Misuse or Disclosure of Confidential Client or Customer Information, Damage to Citi's Reputation,
Additional Costs to Citi, Regulatory Penalties, Legal Exposure and Financial Losses.

Citi's computer systems, software and networks are subject to ongoing cyber incidents such as
unauthorized access, loss or destruction of data (including confidential client information), account
takeovers, unavailability of service, computer viruses or other malicious code, cyberattacks and other
similar events.

These threats can arise from external parties, including criminal organizations, e xtremist parties and
certain foreign stateactors thatengage in cyberactivities. Third parties with which Citidoes business,
as well as retailers and other third parties with which Citi's customers do business, may also be sources
of cybersecurity risks, particularly where activities of customers are beyond Citi's security and control
systems. For example, Citi outsources certain functions, such as processing customer credit card
transactions, uploading content on customer- facing websites, and developing software for new
products and services. These relationships allow for the storage and processing of customer
information by third-party hosting of oraccess to Citi websites, which could result in compromise or
the potential to introduce vulnerable or malicious code, resulting in security breaches impacting Citi
customers. Furthermore, because financial institutions are becoming increasingly interconnected with
centralagents, exchanges and clearing houses, including asaresult of the derivatives reforms over the
last few years, Citi has increased exposure to cyber attacks through third parties.
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As furtherevidence of the increasing and potentially significant impact of cyber incidents, in recent
years, several U.S. retailers and financial institutions and other multinational companies reported cyber
incidents thatcompromised customer data, resulted in theft of funds or theft or destruction of corporate
information or other assets. In addition, in prior years, the U.S. government as well as several
multinational companies reported cyber incidents affecting their computer systems that resulted in the
data of millions of customers and employees being compromised.

While Citi has notbeenmaterially impacted by thesereported or other cyber incidents, Citi has been
subject tootherintentional cyber incidents fromexternal sources over the last several years, including
(i) denial of service attacks, which attempted to interrupt service to clients and customers; (ii) data
breaches, which obtained unauthorized access to customer account data; and (iii) malicious software
attacks onclient systems, which attemptedto allow unauthorized entrance to Citi's systems under the
guise ofaclient and the extraction of client data. While Citi's monitoring and protection services were
able to detect andrespond tothe incidents targeting its systems before they became significant, they
still resulted in limited losses in some instances as wellas increases in expenditures to monitor against
the threat of similar future cyber incidents. There canbe no assurance thatsuch cyber incidents will not
occur again, and they could occur more frequently and on a more significant scale.

Further, although Citi devotes significant resources to implement, maintain, monitor and regularly
upgrade its systems and networks with measures such as intrusion detection and prevention and
firewalls to safeguard critical business applications, thereis no guarantee that these measures or any
other measures can provideabsolute security. In addition, because the methods used to cause cyber
attacks changefrequently or, in some cases, are not recognized until launched, Citi may be unable to
implement effective preventive measures or proactively address these methods until they are
discovered. In addition, while Citi engages in certain actions to reduce the exposure resulting from
outsourcing, suchas performing onsite security controlassessmentsand limiting third -party access to
the least privileged level necessary to performjob functions, these actions cannot prevent all external
cyber attacks, information breaches or similar losses.

Cyberincidents canresult in the disclosure of personal, confidential or proprietary customer or client
information, damage to Citi's reputation with its clients and the market, customer dissatisfaction,
additional costs (including credit costs) to Citi (such as repairing systems, replacing customer payment
cards oradding new personnel or protectiontechnologies), regulatory penalties, exposure to litigation
and other financial losses, including loss of funds, to both Citi and its clients and customers (for
additional information on the potential impact fromcyber incidents, see the operational systems risk
factor above).

While Citi maintains insurance coverage that may, subject to policy terms and conditions including

significant self-insured deductibles, cover certain aspects of cyber risks, such insurance coverage may
be insufficient to cover all losses.

Incorrect Assumptions or Estimates in Citi's Financial Statements Could Cause Significant
Unexpected Losses inthe Future, and Changesto Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards

or Interpretations Could Have a Material Impact on How Citi Records and Reports Its Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Citi is required to use certain assumptions and estimates in preparingiits financial statements under U.S.
GAAP, including reserves related to litigation and regulatory exposures, valuation of DTAs, the
estimate of the allowancefor credit losses and the fair values of certain assets and liabilities, among
otheritems. If Citi's assumptions or estimates underlyingits financial statements are incorrect or differ
from actual future events, Citi could experience unexpected losses, some of which could be significant.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") has issued several financial accounting and
reporting standards thatwill govern key aspects of Citi's financial statements or interpretations thereof
when those standards become effective, including those areas where Citi is required to make
assumptions or estimates. Forexample, the FASB's new accounting standard on credit losses, which
will become effective for Citi on 1 January 2020, will require earlier recognition of credit losses on
financialassets. The newaccounting model requires thatlifetime "expected credit losses" on financial
assets notrecorded at fair value throughnetincome, such as loans and held - to-maturity securities, be
recorded at inception of the financial asset, replacing the multiple existing impairment models under
U.S. GAAP which generally require that a loss be "incurred" before it is recognized (for additional
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information on this and other accounting standards, see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus).

Changesto financial accounting or reporting standards or interpretations, whether promulgated or
required by the FASB or other regulators, could present operational challenges and could require Citi
to change certain of the assumptions or estimates it previously used in preparing its financial
statements, which could negatively impact how it records and reports its financial condition and results
of operations generally and/or with respectto particular businesses. For additional information on the
key areas forwhich assumptions and estimates are used in preparing Citi's financial statements, see
"Significant Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates" and Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus.

Ongoing Implementation and Interpretation of Regulatory Changes and Requirements in the U.S.
and Globally Have Increased Citi's Compliance Risks and Costs.

As referenced above, over the past several years, Citi has been required to implement a significant
number of regulatory changes across all of its businesses and functions, and these changes continue. In
some cases, Citi's implementation of a regulatory requirement is occurring simultaneously with
changingor conflicting regulatory guidance, legal challenges or legislative action to modify or repeal
final rules. Moreover, in many cases, these are entirely new regulatory requirements or regimes,
resulting in much uncertainty regarding regulatory expectations as to what is definitely required in
order to be in compliance with the requirements. Accompanying this compliance uncertainty is
heightened regulatory scrutiny and expectations in the U.S. and globally for the financial services
industry with respect to governance and risk management practices, including its compliance and
regulatoryrisks (foradiscussionof heightened regulatory expectations on "conduct risk™ at, and the
overall"culture” of, financial institutions such as Citi, see the legal and regulatory proceedings risk
factor below). All of these factors have resulted in increased compliance risks and costs for Citi.

Examples of regulatory changes that haveresulted in increased compliance risks and costs include (i)
the Volcker Rule, which requires Citi to maintain an extensive global compliance regime, including
significant documentation to support the prohibition against proprietary trading, and (ii) a proliferation
of laws relating to the limitation of cross-border data movement, including data localization and
protection and privacy laws, which can conflict with or increase compliance complexity with respectto
anti-money laundering laws.

Extensive compliance requirements can result in increased reputational and legal risks, as failure to
comply with regulations and requirements, or failure to comply as expected, can result in enforcement
and/orregulatory proceedings (foradditional discussion, seethe legalandregulatory proceedings risk
factorbelow). In addition, increased and ongoing compliance requirements and uncertainties have
resulted in higher costs for Citi. For example, Citi employed approximately 29,000 risk, regulatoryand
compliance staff as of year-end 2016, out of a total employee population of 219,000, compared to
approximately 14,000 as of year-end 2008 with a totalemployee population of 323,000. These higher
regulatoryand compliance costs canimpede Citi's ongoing, business -as-usual cost reduction efforts,
and can also require management to reallocate resources, including potentially away from ongoing
business investment initiatives, as discussed above.

Citi IsSubject to Extensive Legal and Regulatory Proceedings, Investigations and Inquiries That
Could Result in Significant Penalties and Other Negative Impacts on Citi, Its Businesses and
Results of Operations.

Atany given time, Citi is defending a significant number of legal and regulatory proceedings and is
subject tonumerous governmental and regulatory examinations, investigations and other inquiries.
Overthe last several years, the frequency with which such proceedings, investigations and inquiries are
initiated have increased substantially, and the global judicial, regulatory and political environment has
generally been unfavorable for large financial institutions. The complexity of the federal and state
regulatoryand enforcementregimes in the U.S., coupled with the global scope of Citi's operations, also
means that asingle event orissue may give rise to a large number of overlapping investigations and
regulatory proceedings, either by multiple federal and state agencies in the U.S. or by multiple
regulators and other governmental entities in different jurisdictions.
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Moreover, U.S.and non-U.S. regulators have beenincreasingly focused on "conduct risk,” a term that
is used to describe the risks associated with behavior by employees and agents, including third -party
vendors utilized by Citi, that could harm clients, customers, investors or the markets, such as
improperly creating, selling, marketing or managing products and services or improper incentive
compensation programs with respect thereto, failures to safeguard a party's personal information, or
failures to identify and manage conflicts of interest. In addition to increasing Citi's compliance risks,
this focus on conduct risk could lead to more regulatory or other enforcement proceedings and civil
litigation, including for practices which historically were acceptable but are now receiving greater
scrutiny. Further, while Citi takes numerous steps to prevent and detect conduct by employees and
agentsthat could potentially harmclients, customers, investors or the markets, such behavior may not
always be deterred or prevented. Banking regulators have also focused on the overall culture of
financial services firms, including Citi. In addition to regulatory restrictions or structural changes that
could result from perceived deficiencies in Citi's culture, such focus could also lead to additional
regulatory proceedings.

Further, the severity of the remedies sought in legal and regulatory proceedings to which Citiis subject
has increased substantially in recent years. U.S. and certain international governmental entities have
increasingly brought criminal actions against, or have sought criminal convictions from, financial
institutions, and criminal prosecutors in the U.S. have increasingly sought and obtained criminal guilty
pleas or deferred prosecution agreements againstcorporate entities and other criminal sanctions from
those institutions. In May 2015 an affiliate of Citi pleaded guilty to an antitrust violation and paid a
substantial fine to resolvea DOJ investigation into Citi's foreign exchange business practices. These
types ofactions by U.S. and international governmental entities may, in the future, have significant
collateral consequences for a financial institution, including loss of customers and business, and the
inability to offer certain products or services and/or operate certain businesses. Citi may be required to
acceptorbe subject to similar types of criminal remedies, consentorders, sanctions, substantial fines
and penalties or other requirements in the future, including for matters or practices not yet known to
Citi, any of which could materially and negatively affect Citi's businesses, business practices, financial
condition or results of operations, require material changes in Citi's operations or cause Citi
reputational harm.

Further, many large claims—both private civil and regulatory—asserted against Citi are highly
complex, slow to develop and may involve novel or untested legal theories. The outcome of such
proceedings is difficult to predict or estimate until late in the proceedings. Although Citi establishes
accruals forits legaland regulatory matters according to accounting requirements, Citi's estimates of,
and changes to, these accruals, involve significant judgment and may be subject to significant
uncertainty and the amount of loss ultimately incurred in relation to those matters may be substantially
higherthan the amounts accrued. In addition, certain settlements are subject to court approval and may
not be approved.

Foradditionalinformation relating to Citi's legal and regulatory proceedings and matters, including

Citi's policies on establishing legal accruals, see Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus).

If Citi's Risk Models Are Ineffective or Require Modification or Enhancement, Citi Could Incur
Significant Losses or Its Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios Could Be Negatively Impacted.

Citi utilizes models extensively as partofits risk management and mitigation strategies, including in
analyzing and monitoring the various risks Citiassumes in conducting its activities. For example, Citi
uses models as part of its various stress testing initiatives across the firm. Management of these risks is
made even more challenging within a global financial institution such as Citi, particularly given the
complex, diverse and rapidly changing financial markets and conditions in which Citi operates.

These models andstrategies are inherently limited because they involvetechniques, including the use
of historical data in many circumstances, and judgments that cannot anticipate every economic and
financial outcome in the markets in which Citioperates, nor can they anticipate the specifics and timing
of such outcomes. Citi could incur significant losses if its risk management models or strategies are
ineffective in properly anticipating or managing these risks.

Moreover, Citi's Basel 1l regulatory capital models, including its credit, market and operational risk
models, currently remain subject to ongoing regulatory review and approval, which may result in
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refinements, modifications orenhancements (required or otherwise) to these models. Modifications or
requirements resulting fromtheseongoing reviews, as well as any future changes or guidance provided
by the U.S. banking agencies regarding the regulatory capital framework applicable to Citi, have
resulted in,and could continue to result in, significant changes to Citi's risk-weighted assets. These
changes can negatively impact Citi's capital ratios and its ability to achieve its regulatory capital
requirements as it projects or as required.

Citi's Performance andthe Performance of Its Individual Businesses Could Be Negatively Impacted
if Citi Is Not Able to Hire and Retain Highly Qualified Employees for Any Reason.

Citi's performance andthe performance of its individual businesses is largely dependent on the talents
and efforts of highly skilled employees. Specifically, Citi's continued ability to compete in its
businesses, to manage its businesses effectively and to continue to execute its overall global strategy
dependson its ability to attract newemployees and toretain and motivate its existing employees. If Citi
is unable to continue to attract and retain the most highly qualified employees for any reason, Citi's
performance, including its competitive position, the successful execution of its overall strategy and its
results of operations could be negatively impacted.

Citi's ability to attract andretain employees depends on numerous factors, some of which are outside of
its control. For example, given the heightened regulatory and political environment in which Citi
operates relativeto competitors for talent both within and outside ofthe financial services area, it may
be more difficult for Citi to hire or retain highly qualified employees in the future. Other factors that
impact Citi's ability to attract and retain employees include its culture, compensation, the management
and leadership of the company as well as its individual businesses, Citi's presence in the particular
market or region at issue and the professional opportunities it offers. Generally, the bankingindustry is
subject tomore stringent regulation of executive and employee compensation than other industries,
including deferraland clawback requirements for incentive compensation and other limitations. Citi
often competes in the market for talent with entities thatare not subject to such significant regulatory
restrictions on the structure of incentive compensation.

GENERAL RISKS RELATING TO THE NOTES
Suitability of the Notes as an investment

Before investingin Notes, youshould determine whether an investment in Notes is appropriate in your
particular circumstances and should consult with your legal, business and taxadvisersto determine the
consequences ofan investment in Notes and to arrive at your own evaluation of the investment. In
particular, the Issuerand (if applicable) the Guarantor recommend that you take independent taxadvice
before committing to purchaseany Notes. None ofthe Issuerand (ifapplicable) the Guarantor provides
taxadvice and therefore responsibility forany taximplications ofinvestingin any Notes rests entirely
with you. You shouldnote that the taxtreatment will differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. You will
assume andbe solely responsible forany and all taxes of any jurisdictionor governmental or regulatory
authority, including (withoutlimitation) any stateor local taxes or other similar assessment or charge
that may be applicable to any payment in respect of the Notes.

An investment in Notes is only suitable for you if you:

@) have the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business mattersto evaluate the
merits and risks of an investment in Notes;

(b) have accessto, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate such merits and
risks in the context of your financial situation;

(©) are capable ofbearing theeconomic risk ofan investmentin Notes for an indefinite period of
time; and

(d) recognise that it may not be possible to dispose of Notes fora substantial period of time, if at
all.

You should make your own independentdecisionto invest in Notes andas to whether theinvestmentin
Notes is appropriate or properforyou based upon your own judgement and upon advice fromsuch
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advisersas youmay deemnecessary. You should not rely on any communication (written or oral) of
the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor, any Dealer or any of their affiliates or their respective
officers oragentsas investmentadvice oras arecommendationto invest in Notes, it being understood
that information and explanations related to Notes shall not be considered to be investment advice or a
recommendationto invest in Notes. No communication (written or oral) received fromthe Issuer and

(if applicable) the Guarantor, any Dealer or any oftheir affiliates or their respective officers or agents
shallbe deemed to be an assurance or guaranteeas to the expected results of an investment in Notes.

An investmentin Notes involves risks andshould only be made after assessing the direction, timing
and magnitude of potential future market changes (e.g. in the value of the inflation indices, currencies
or other items which comprise or relate to the Underlying(s)), as well as the terms and conditions of the
Notes. More thanonerisk factor may have simultaneous effects with regard to the Notes such that the
effect ofa particularrisk factor may not be predictable. In addition, more than one risk factor may have
a compounding effect, which may not be predictable. No assurance can be given as to the effect that
any combination of risk factors may have on the value of the Notes.

Credit risk of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor

All Notes will be unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuerand all Notes issued by it will
rank equally among themselves and with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer.

The obligations ofthe CGMFL Guarantor underthe CGMFL Deed of Guarantee will be unsecuredand
unsubordinated and will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations ofthe CGMFL Guarantor. The Issuer's obligations under the Notes issued by it and the
CGMFL Guarantor's obligations under the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee represent general contractual
obligations ofeach respective entity and of no other person. Only Notes issued by CGMFL will be
guaranteed by the CGMFL Guarantor. Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. and/or CGMHI will not be
guaranteed by the CGMFL Guarantor.

The obligations ofthe CGMHI Guarantor underthe CGMHI Deed of Guarantee will be unsecured and
unsubordinated and will rank pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations ofthe CGMHI Guarantor. The Issuer's obligations under the Notes issued by it and the
CGMHI Guarantor's obligations under the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee represent general contractual
obligations ofeach respective entity and of no other person. Only Notes issued by CGMHI will be
guaranteed by the CGMHI Guarantor. Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. and/or CGMFL will not be
guaranteed by the CGMHI Guarantor.

You should note that all payments under the Notes are subject to the credit risk of the Issuer and (if
applicable) the Guarantor. Furthermore, the Notes may be traded or redeemed early, and, if so, the
price for which a Note may be sold orredeemed early may be less than the principal amount of such
Note and your initial investment in such Notes.

Early redemption of Notes

The Issuer may redeemthe Notes prior to thestated maturity date and, ifand to the extent permitted by
applicable law, will in such circumstances pay to each Noteholder, in respect of each Calculation
Amount of Notes, an amount equal to the Early Redemption Amount (as described in the subsequent
paragraph):

@) following an event of default;
(b) if the Issuer determines that performanceofits obligations in respect of an issue of Notes, or
(if applicable) the Guarantor determines that performance of its obligations under the Deed of

Guarantee in respect of such Notes, has or will become unlawful, illegal or otherwise
prohibited in whole or in part for any reason;

(©) if applicable, for certain taxation reasons;

94



Risk Factors

(d)

©)

()

if an applicable Adjustment Event (as described in risk factor " Adjustment Events™ below)
occurs and 'Early Redemption following Adjustment Event' is specified as applicable in the
applicable Issue Terms, and the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can
reasonably be made following such an Adjustment Event;

if an applicable Additional Early Redemption Event (as described in risk factor " Additional
Early Redemption Event" below) occurs;

if applicable, following the occurrence of a Realisation Disruption Event (as described in risk
factor "Realisation Disruption Event"” below);

The Early Redemption Amount in respect of each Calculation Amount of Notes will be:

@)

(b)

©

(d)

©)

where the applicable Issue Terms states that" Fair Market Value" is applicable, in respect of
each Calculation Amountheld by suchholder, an amountequal to the fair market value of each
such Calculation Amount notwithstanding the relevant taxation reasons or illegality resulting in
the early redemption less (except (i) if the applicable Issue Terms states that "Deduction of
Hedge Costs" is notapplicable and (ii) in the case ofany early redemption following an event
of default) the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related
hedging arrangements as determined by the Calculation Agent;

where the applicable Issue Terms states that" Principal Amount plusaccrued interest (ifany)"
is applicable, an amount equal to the principal amount plus accrued interest (if any);

where the applicable Issue Terms states that " Principal Amount plus Option Value plus Option
Value Accrued Interest (if any) at maturity" is applicable, an amount equal to the principal
amount plus the value (ifany) ofthe option componentorembedded derivative(s) of the Note
ator around the date onwhich the Issuer gives notice of the early redemption of such Note, as
calculated by the Calculation Agent in its commercially reasonable discretion, plus accrued
interest (ifany) on such value (ifany) of the option component orembedded derivative(s) up
to but excluding the Maturity Dateand such Early Redemption Amount will be payable on the
Maturity Date;

where the applicable Issue Terms states that" Principal Amount plus accrued interest (if any)
at maturitywith optionfor Fair Market Value atearlyredemption™ is applicable, an amount
determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the following, in relation to a Note of
the Calculation Amount:

0) where the Noteholder has exercised the right to early redemption of the Note in
accordancewith the terms and conditions of the Notes, an amountdetermined by the
Calculation Agent as an amount equal to the fair market value of each such
Calculation Amount notwithstanding the relevant taxation reasons or illegality
resulting in the early redemption, less (except (i) if the applicable Issue Terms states
that "Deduction of Hedge Costs™ is not applicable and (ii) in the case of any early
redemption following an event of default) the cost to the Issuerand/or its affiliates of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements as determined by the
Calculation Agent; or

(i) otherwise, an amountequalto the principalamount plus accrued interest (if any). For
the purpose of determining accrued interest (if any), the Early Redemption Date
specified in the notice by the Issuerto therelevant Noteholder shall be deemed to be
the date of redemption, notwithstanding that the Early Redemption Amount will be
payable on the Maturity Date;

where the applicable Issue Terms states that™Principal Amount plus Option Value plus Option
Value Accrued Interest (if any) at maturity with option for Fair Market Value at early

redemption" is applicable, an amount determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with
the following, in relation to a Note of the Calculation Amount:
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(i) where the Noteholder has exercised the right to early redemption of the Note in
accordancewith the terms and conditions of the Notes, an amountdetermined by the
Calculation Agent as an amount equal to the fair market value of each such
Calculation Amount notwithstanding the relevant taxation reasons or illegality
resulting in the early redemption, less (except (i) if the applicable Issue Terms states
that "Deduction of Hedge Costs" is not applicable and (ii) in the case of any early
redemption following an event of default) the cost to the Issuerand/or its affiliates of

unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements as determined by the
Calculation Agent; or

(i) otherwise, an amount equal to the principal amount plus the value (if any) of the
option component or embedded derivative(s) of the Note at or around the date on
which the Issuer gives noticeofthe early redemptionof such Note, as calculated by
the Calculation Agent in its commercially reasonable discretion, plus accrued interest
(if any) on suchvalue (ifany) of the option component orembedded derivative(s) up

to butexcluding the Maturity Dateand such early redemption amountwill be payable
on the Maturity Date;

® where the applicable Issue Terms states that "Amortised Face Amount" is applicable, in
respect of each Calculation Amount held by such holder, an amount equal to the Amortised
Face Amount; or

()] in the case ofany Note, an amount specified in the conditions of the Notes (including in the
applicable Issue Terms).

In the case of paragraphs (a), (d) and (e) immediately above, and with respect to an early redemption of
the Notes following an event of default, for the purposes of determining the fair market value, the
Issuer will be presumed to be able to performfully its obligations in respect of the Notes.

There is no guarantee that the amount repaid to you will be equal to or higher than your initial
investment in the Notes and such amount may be substantially less than your initial investment.

Adjustment Events

If the Calculation Agent determines that any of the following Adjustment Events (in each case if
specified as applicable in the applicable Issue Terms) occurs in respectofany Underlying orthe Notes
(as relevant):

@) any change in law;
(b) any change in law affecting any underlying hedging position in relation to the Notes or

materially increasingthe Issuer's costs in relation to performing its obligations in respect of
the Notes (including due to a tax liability imposed on the relevant hedging party);

(©) a disruption to the Issuer's hedging positions;
d) an increased cost in the Issuer's hedging positions; and/or
(e) if the Underlying(s) is/are inflationindex(ices), an increased costcharged by the indexsponsor

on the use of the inflation index,

then the Calculation Agentwill make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation
Agent determines necessary to accountfor the effect of such Adjustment Eventincluding, in the case of
an increasedcost in the Issuer's hedging positions, adjustments to pass onto Noteholders any such
increased costs (including, butnotlimited to, reducing any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of
the Notes to reflect any such increased costs). Any suchadjustments may havean adverse effecton the
value of such Notes and, if 'Early Redemption following Adjustment Event'is specified as applicable in
the applicable Issue Terms, and the Calculation Agent determines that no adjustment can reasonably be
made following such an Adjustment Event, then the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in
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the terms and conditions of such Notes. See risk factor " Early redemption of Notes" above for whenthe
Notes are early redeemed.

Additional Early Redemption Events

If the Calculation Agent determines that any of the following Additional Early Redemption Events
occurs:

@) any of the Additional Early Redemption Events described in risk factor " Risks specific to
Notes linked to Inflation Indices";

(b) if *Hedging Disruption Early Termination Event" is specified as applicable in the applicable
Issue Terms, anyaction, orany announcement of the intentionto take any such action that (i)
affects the definition of "bona fide hedging" as that termis used in United States Commodity
Futures Trading Commission (" CFTC") regulations adopted under Section4a(a) of the United
States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the " Commodity Exchange Act") (as at the
Trade Date 17 CFR 150.3) or that withdraws or limits as a matter of practice or policy any
"hedge exemptions" previously granted by the CFTCorany such exchange or trading facility
acting under authority granted pursuant to the Commodity Exchange Act, or affects or
otherwise amends such other applicable laws ofany jurisdictionwhich has an analogous effect
to any of the events specified in this sub-paragraph (i) or (ii) increases the cost of the
performance of the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Notes or the cost of acquiring,
establishing, re-establishing, substituting, maintaining, unwinding or disposing of any
transaction(s) or asset(s) thatthe Calculation Agent deems necessary to hedge the price risk of
the Issuerissuingand performing its obligations under the Notes, whether individually or on a
portfolio basis, in each case occurring after the Trade Date; and

(©) if “Section871(m) Event" is specified as applicable in the applicable Issue Terms, a Section
871(m) Event (as described in risk factor "Possible U.S. Federal Withholding Tax under
Section 871(m) " below) occurs,

then the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of such Notes. See
risk factor "Early redemption of Notes" above for when the Notes are early redeemed.

Realisation Disruption Event

If "Realisation Disruption Event" is specified as applicable in the applicable Issue Terms and a
Realisation Disruption Eventoccurs (being, in summary, either (i) an event which imposes restrictions
or taxes, charges ordeductions in respect of the Notes and/or on hedging arrangements in respect of the
Notes which would materially restrict, or materially increasethe costof, the Issuer's obligations under
the Notes or materially restrict, or materially increase the cost of, any Hedging Party's obligations
underany such hedging arrangements or (ii) the occurrence or existence of any event which either
materially restricts the exchange, delivery ortransfer of the currency of payment of the Notes or of any
hedgingarrangementsin respect of the Notes or restricts the determination of any exchange rate in
relation to any such currency), then either (a) the terms of the Notes (including any payment
obligations) may be adjusted in order to reflect the economic effect of the particular Realisation
Disruption Event or (b) the Notes may be redeemed as more fully set outin the terms and conditions of
such Notes. See risk factor " Early redemption of Notes" above forwhen the Notes are early redeemed.

You should note that any such adjustments by the Calculation Agent may include (but are not limited
to): (i) payments under the Notes being made in a different currency to the previously specified
payment currency of the Notes; (ii) deduction of applicable taxes, charges or deductions frompayments
duein respect of the Notes resulting in reduced amounts paid in respect of the Notes; (iii) delayed
payments in respect of the Notes until the relevant restrictions are lifted and (iv) determination of
relevant exchange rates by the Calculation Agent taking into consideration all available information
that it deems relevant, which may result in a different rate to that which would have applied had the
Realisation Disruption Event not occurred. All the above could produce a materially different
redemption to that originally anticipated in respect of the Notes.

97



Risk Factors

Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

An optional redemption featureof Notes s likely to limit their market value. During any period when
the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This may also be true prior to any
redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected toredeemNotes whenits cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate
on the Notes. At those times, you would generally not be able to reinvestthe redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as theinterestrate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to

do so atasignificantly lower rate. You should consider reinvestmentrisk in light of other investments
available at that time.

You should note, inter alia, the circumstances in General Condition 5 (Redemption and Purchase) in

which the Issueris entitled to redeem the Notes and the related provisions set out in the applicable
Issue Terms.

The secondary market

Notes may have noestablishedtrading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market
does develop, it may not be very liquid and may be sensitive to changes in financial markets and you
may not be able to find a timely and/or suitable counterpart. Therefore, youmay not be able to sell your
Notes easily orat prices that will provide you with a yield comparable to similar investments that have
a developed secondary market or at prices higher than your initial investment. If you seek to
liquidate/sell positions in the Notes prior to the stated maturity date, you may receive substantially less
than youroriginal purchase price. Therefore, in establishing your investment strategy, you should
ensure that the termofthe Notes is in line with your future liquidity requirements. This is particularly
the case shouldthe relevantissuer be in financial distress which may result in any sale of the Notes
having to be at a substantial discount to their principalamount or for Notes thatare especially sensitive
to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific investmentobjectives or strategies or
have beenstructured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These
types of Notes generally would have a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than
conventional debt securities. llliquidity may have a severely adverse effect on the market value of
Notes. The liquidity of Notesis also influenced by the type of investor to whomsuch Notes are sold.
To the extent that an issue of Notes is or becomes illiquid, you may have to hold the Notes until
maturity before they are able to realise value.

The Issuermay, but is not obliged to, list an issue of Notes ona stockexchange or regulated market. If
Notes are not listed or traded onany stock exchange or regulated market, pricing information for the
Notes may be more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of such Notes may be adversely affected.

If Notes are not listed ortraded on a stock exchange or regulated market, they may be traded on trading
systems governed by the laws and regulations in force fromtime to time (e.g. multilateral trading
systems or' MTFs') orin othertrading systems (e.g. bilateral systems or equivalent trading systems). In
the event thattrading in such Notes takes place outside any such stock exchange, regulated market or
trading systems, the manner in which the price of such Notes is determined may be less transparentand
the liquidity of such Notes may be adversely affected. You should note that none of the Issuer and (if
applicable) the Guarantorandany Dealer grants any warranty to Noteholders as to the methodologies
used to determine the price of Notes which are traded outside a trading system. However, where the
Issuerorany of its affiliates determines the price of such Notes, it will take into account the market
parameters applicable at such time in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Even if Notes are
listed and/or admitted to trading, this will not necessarily result in greater liquidity.

Each of the Issuerand (ifapplicable) the Guarantorand any Dealer may, but is not obliged to, at any
time purchase Notes at any price in the open market or by tender or private agreement. Any Notes so
purchased may be held or resold or surrendered for cancellation. If any Notes are redeemed in part,
then the number of Notes outstanding will decrease, which will reduce liquidity for the outstanding
Notes. Any such activities may have an adverse effect on the price of the Notes in the secondary
market and/or the existence of a secondary market.
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Any of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor or any Dealer or affiliate thereof, as, where
applicable, part of its activities as a brokerand dealer in fixed income and equity securities and related
products or otherwise, may make a secondary market in relation to any Notes and may provide an
indicative bid price on a daily basis. Any indicative prices so provided shall be determined by the
relevant party in its sole discretion taking into account prevailing market conditions and shall not be a
representation by such party that any Notes can be purchased or sold at such prices (or at all).

Notwithstanding the above, any of the parties specified above may suspend or terminate making a
market and providing indicative prices without notice, at any time and for any reason.

Consequently, there may be no market for the Notes and you should notassume that such a market will
exist. Accordingly, you must be prepared to hold the Notes until the maturity date.

Where a market does exist, to the extent that youwant to sellany Notes, the price may, or may not, be
at a discount on the outstanding principal amount.

If it is possible to sell Notes, theywould be sold for the prevailing bid price in the market and may be
subject toatransactionfee. The prevailing bid price may be affected by several factors including the
performance of any relevant Underlying, prevailing interestrates at the time of sale, the time remaining
to the stated maturity date, the creditworthiness of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor, and
factors affecting the capital markets generally. The introduction of additional or competing products in
the market may also have a negative effect onthe price ofany Notes. It is therefore possible that you

may receive substantially less than your original purchase price if you sell the Notes in the secondary
market.

Impact of fees, commissions and/or inducements on the Issue Price and/or offer price

You should note that the Issue Price and/or offer price of Notes may include fees and/or other
commissionsand inducements (e.g. placement fees, distribution fees, structuring fees). Any such fees
and/or other commissions and inducements will not be taken into account for the purposes of
determining the price of such Notes in the secondary market and will result in a difference between the
Issue Price and/or offer price of the Notes and the bid/offer price quoted by any intermediary in the
secondary market. Any such difference will result in a decrease in the value of an issue of Notes,
particularly in relation to any such Notes sold immediately following the issue date or offer period
relating to such Notes.

Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market value of any Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium on their principal amount
tends tofluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional
interest-bearing notes. Generally, the longer the remaining term of such Notes, the greater the price
volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing notes with comparable maturities.

Substitution of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor

You should note that, in relation to any Notes, either the Issuer and/or (if applicable) the Guarantor
may, without your consent but subject to certain conditions, substitute for itself in respect of such
Notes or, if applicable, in respect ofthe relevant Deed of Guarantee any company whichis, on the date
of such substitution, in the opinion of the Issuerand (if applicable) the Guarantor of at least equivalent
standing and creditworthiness to it.

Determinations by the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and certain other persons

The terms of the Notes confer on the Issuer, the Calculation Agent and certain other persons some
discretionin making determinations and calculations in relation to, inter alia, the Underlying(s) and the
occurrence of various events. The Issuer, the Calculation Agent or such other persons will act in good
faith and in its sole and absolute discretion or in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner
(as specified in the applicable Issue Terms) but there canbe no assurance that the exercise of any such
discretion will not affect the value of the Notes or the occurrence of an early repayment.
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Potential conflicts of interest

Where the Calculation Agent is an affiliate of the Issuer, potential conflicts of interest may exist
between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders, including with respect to certain determinations and
judgements that the Calculation Agentmay make pursuantto the Notes that may influence the amount
receivable or specified assets deliverable in respect of the Notes.

Any of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor and/or their affiliates may be the sponsor of an
Underlying and may publish values or prices in respect of an Underlying. Any of the Issuer and (if
applicable) the Guarantor and/or any of their affiliates may also from time to time engage in
transactions involving Underlying(s) for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their
management, subject to requirements of allapplicable laws and regulations. Any of the Issuer and (if
applicable) the Guarantorand/or their affiliates may also issue other derivative instruments in res pect
of any Underlying(s). Any of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor and/or their affiliates may
also act as underwriter in connection with future offerings of shares or other securities related to an
issue of Notes or may act as financial adviser to certain companies or companies whose securities are
Underlying(s) in respect of oneor more issues of Notes or in a commercial banking capacity for such
companies. These activities may have a positive or negative effect on the value of the relevant
Underlying(s) and consequently upon the value of the Notes.

Any ofthe Issuerand (if applicable) the Guarantor, any Dealer and/or any of their affiliates may at the
date hereoforat any time hereafter be in possession of information in relation to an Underlying that is
or may be material and may or may not be publicly available to Noteholders. There is no obligation on
any of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor or any Dealer to disclose to you any such
information.

Any ofthe Issuerand (ifapplicable) the Guarantor, any Dealerand/or any of their affiliates may have
existing or future business relationships with the issuer of, or other entity associated with, any
Underlying(s) (including, but not limited to, lending, depositary, risk management, ad visory and
banking relationships), and will pursue actions and take steps that they or it deems necessary or
appropriate to protect theirand/or its interests arising therefromwithoutregardto the consequences for
a Noteholder.

Where Notes are offeredto the public, as the relevant Dealer(s) andany distributors act pursuant to a

mandate granted by the Issuerandthey receive fees on thebasis of services performed and the outcorre
of the placement of such Notes, potential conflicts of interest could arise.

Risks relating to implementation of U.S. federal financial reform legislation

Implementation of U.S. federal financial reform legislation may affect the value of Underlying(s),
which may ultimately affect the value, trading price and viability of Notes. For example, the Dodd-
Frank Act would, upon fullimplementation, impose limits on the maximum positionthatcould be held
by asingle dealerin certain of the Underlying(s) and may subjectcertain transactions to new forms of
regulation that could create barriers to some types of hedging activity by the Issuerand/or any Hedging
Party orany oftheirrespective affiliates. Other provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act could require certain
Underlying(s) or hedgingtransactions to be cleared, traded on a regulated exchange and reported to
regulators, central datarepositories and, in some cases, thepublic. The Dodd-Frank Act also expands
entity registration requirements and imposes business conduct requirements on persons active in the
swaps market (which may include new capital and margin requirements), which may affect the value of
Underlying(s) or value and/or costof hedging transactions. Such regulation may consequently affect
the value, trading price and viability of the Notes. The implementation of the Dodd -Frank Act and
future rule-making thereunder could potentially limit or completely restrict the ability of the Issuer to

hedge its exposure on Notes, increase the costs of hedging or make hedging strategies less effective,
which may then constitute an Adjustment Event in respect of certain Notes.

Possible U.S. Federal Withholding Tax under Section 871(m)

Section 871(m) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the " Code™),
imposes a 30per cent. (or lower treaty rate) withholding taxon certain "dividend equivalents" paid or
deemed paid to Non-U.S. Holders (as defined under "Section E.8—Taxation of Notes" in this Base
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Prospectus) with respect to financial instruments linked to U.S. equities or indices that include U.S.
equities under certain circumstances. Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 871(m) may
require withholdingon Non-U.S. Holders in respect of dividend equivalents deemed paid under certain
Notes, regardless of whetherthe Notes are issued by the U.S. Issuer orthe Non-U.S. Issuer (as defined
under "Section E.8—Taxation of Notes™ in this Base Prospectus). Under these regulations, this
withholding regime generally applies to Notes that substantially replicate the economic performance of
one or more underlying U.S. equities, as determined based on one of two tests set forth in the
regulations. However, based on an Internal Revenue Service (" IRS™) notice, Notes issued in 2017 or
2018 will generally be subject to withholdingtaxonly if they have a "delta" of one with respect to the
relevant underlying U.S. equity. The regulations provide certain exceptions to this withholding regime,
in particular for instruments linked to certain broad-based indices that meet requirements set forth in
the regulations as well as instruments linked to securities that track such indices. The Issuer will not be
required to pay any additional amounts in respect of amounts withheld under Section 871(m).

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their taxadvisors regarding the potential application
of Section 871(m) to a particular Note.

If the Issuer determines that amounts paid with respect to the Notes or any underlying hedging
arrangements of the Issuer in respect of the Notes will be subject to any withholding or reporting
obligations pursuant to Section 871(m), the Issuer may cancel such Notes and, if and to the extent
permitted by applicable law, may pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Note an amount equal to
the fair market value of such Note,and may also deduct the cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements from such amount.

Benchmark reforms and discontinuation

The regulationandreformof "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of and return on Notes
linked to or referencing such "benchmarks"

Published levels used as benchmarks have come under increasing regulatory scrutiny in recent years,
and are now the subject of a number of national and international regulatory initiatives and
investigations. Such levels include high profile market rates, (e.g. the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") and the Euro Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR™")) but also many other rates, levels,
indices and strategies that are determined to be used as benchmarks (including many interest rate,
equity, commodity, foreign exchangeand other types ofindices). Some of these regulatory initiatives
are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented.

Key international regulatory initiatives relating to the reform of benchmarks include (i) IOSCO’s
Principles for Financial Benchmarks (the "IOSCO Principles™) and Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial
instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance ofinvestment funds and amending
Directive 2008/48/EC and 2014/17/EC and Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 (the "Benchmarks
Regulation™). The I0SCO Principles aim to create an overarching framework of principles for
benchmarks tobe used in financial markets, specifically covering (among other things) governance and
accountability as well as the quality, integrity and transparency of benchmark design, determination
and methodologies. A review published by IOSCO in February 2016 of the status of the voluntary
market adoption ofthe IOSCO Principles noted that there have been significant but mixed progress on
implementation of IOSCO Principles but that as the benchmarks industry is in a state of change, further
stepsmay needto be takenby I0SCOin the future. On 16 December 2016, IOSCO publisheda report
settingout guidance to improvethe consistency and quality of reporting on compliance with its July
2013 Principles for Financial Benchmarks.

Most of the provisions of the Benchmarks Regulation will apply from 1 January 2018 with the
exception of certain provisions mainly on critical benchmarks that applied from 30 June 2016. The
Benchmarks Regulation applies to the provision of benchmarks, the contribution of input data to a
benchmarkand theuse of a benchmark within the European Union and will, among other things, (i)
require benchmarkadministratorsto be authorised or registered (or, if located outside the EU, to be
subjecttoan equivalent regime or otherwise recognised or endorsed) and to comply with extensive
requirements in relation to the administration of "benchmarks" and (ii) prevent certain uses by EU
supervised entities of "benchmarks" of administrators thatare not authorised/registered (or, if located
outside the EU, deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed). The scope of the Benchmarks
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Regulation is wide and, in addition to so-called "critical benchmark” indices, such as EURIBOR, it
applies, forexample, to many interest rates, foreign exchange rate indices, equity indices, commodity
indices and other indices (including "proprietary" indices or strategies) where such indices used to
determine amounts payable under or the value of certain financial instruments traded on a trading
venue (beingan EU regulated market, EU multilateral trading facility (MTF) or EU organised trading
facility (OTF)) or via a systematic internaliser or to measure the performance of certain investment
funds with the purpose of tracking the return or defining the asset allocation or computing the
performance fees.

The Benchmarks Regulation could have a material impact on any Notes traded on a trading venue or

via a "systematic internaliser" that are linked to an index that qualifies as a "benchmark™ for
Benchmark Regulation purposes, including in any of the following circumstances:

e subjecttoany applicable transitional provisions, an indexwhich is a "benchmark may not be
used by asupervised entity in certainways if its administrator, or the benchmark is not entered
in oris removed fromESMA’s register of Benchmarks Regulation approved benchmarks (e.g.
in circumstances where (i) an administrator located in the EU does not obtain or retain
authorisation orregistrationor (ii) an administrator located outside the EU does not obtain or
retain recognition or endorsementor benefit fromequivalence (whetheras an administrator or
in respectofthe relevant "benchmark™), in each case under the Benchmarks Regulation); or

o the methodology orotherterms ofthe "benchmark" could be changedin orderto comply with
the terms of the Benchmarks Regulation; or

o fallback provisions specified in the terms of the Notes may apply orthe relevant Issuer or the
Calculation Agentmay amend the terms ofthe Notes in the event a "benchmark" materially
changes or ceasesto be provided in order to comply with the provisions of the Benchmarks
Regulation.

Any ofthe above changes orany other consequential changes to any benchmark or its discontinuance
as aresult of international, national or other reforms orinvestigations, could potentially havea material

adverseeffect onthe relevantbenchmark or have other unforeseen consequences including, without
limitation, that such changes could:

o affectthe level ofthe publishedrate orthe level ofthe benchmark, including causing it to be
lower or more volatile than in the past;

e increasethecosts ofadministering or otherwise participating in the setting of a "benchmark”
and complying with such regulations or requirements;

o discourage market participants from continuing to administer or contribute to certain
"pbenchmarks";

e trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in certain "benchmarks";

e lead to the disappearance of certain "benchmarks™ (or certain currencies or tenors of
benchmarks).

Any such consequences could have a materialadverseeffect onthe value of and return on any Notes
and/or could lead to the Notes being de-listed, adjusted, redeemed early, subject to discretionary
valuation by the Calculation Agent or otherwise impacted depending on the particular "benchmark"
and the applicable terms of the Notes.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the

potential risks imposed by benchmark reforms and investigations in making any investment decision
with respect to the Notes.
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Industry solutions for tacklingthe risk of a permanent discontinuation of widely used —IBORs may
adversely affect the value of and return on Notes linked to or referencing such "benchmarks"

In July 2014 the Financial Stability Board ("FSB") published a report on Reforming Major Interest
Rate Benchmarks. This report called on the —IBOR administrators to address the recommendations
arising from the first review of the IOSCO Benchmark Principles and made additional
recommendations around underpinning the benchmarks, to the greatest extent possible, in transaction
data - this process was referredto as —IBOR+ - and developing alternative risk-free rates. In October
2017 the FSB published a progress report which concluded that —IBOR administrators have continued
to take important steps to implement the FSB’s recommendations but foundthat in the case of some —
IBORs such as LIBOR and EURIBOR, underlying reference transactions in some currency-tenor
combinations are scarceandsubmissions therefore necessarily remain based on a mixture of factors
including transactions and judgment by submitters. Regulators have takenanumber of steps toaddress
these issues, but it remains challengingto ensure theintegrity and robustness of benchmarks and it is
uncertain whether submitting banks will continue to make submissions over the mediumto long-term.

Regulators in some FSB jurisdictions have made good progress in supportingworkstreams focused on
identifying new or existing risk-free rates thatcould be usedinstead of —IBORs in arange of contracts,
in particular derivatives. However, limited progress has been made on migration from major —IBORs
torisk free rates. The FSBnotes that for jurisdictions that intend to more proactively promote the use
of risk free rates it is important momentum is maintained to fulfil the FSB’s risk-free rate
recommendations. The FSB also mention ISDA’s work on tackling the risks associated with a
permanent discontinuation of a widely used —IBORs and places great importance on all industry
stakeholders adopting ISDA’s solution for derivative contracts and extending such work on contractual
robustness to other non-derivative markets where contracts reference —IBORs.

It should be noted that any industry solutions to tackle the risks associated with a permanent
discontinuation of widely used —IBORs may result in the migration of contracts referencing —IBOR to
alternative benchmarks, require the payment of adjustments or potentially result in divergentprovisions
applying as betweenthe Notesand any related hedging arrangements in respect of the Notes entered
into by the hedging parties. The effects of this are uncertain but have a material adverse effect on the
value or liquidity of the Notes.

Future discontinuance of an —IBOR may adversely affect the value of Notes which reference such
benchmark

The sustainability of LIBOR has also been questioned by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct
Authority asaresult of the absence of relevantactive underlying markets and possible disincentives
(including possibly as a result of regulatory reforms) for market participants to continue contributing to
such benchmarks.

Investors should be aware that, if an —IBOR were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, amounts
payable on the Notes which reference such —IBOR will be determined for the relevant period by the
fall-back provisions applicable to such Notes which may (depending on market circumstances at the
relevant time) not operate as intended. Depending onthe manner in which the relevant —IBOR rate is
to be determined under the Conditions, this may in certain circumstances (i) be reliant upon the
provision by reference banks of offered quotations for the —IBOR rate which, depending on market
circumstances, may not be available at therelevant time or (ii) where the applicable fallback is to use
the rate which applied in the previous period when the relevant —IBOR was available, result in the
effective application of a fixed rate based on the rate which appliedin the previous period or (iii) result
in the Calculation Agent determining the relevant rate in its discretion. Any of the foregoing could
have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and return on, any the Notes.
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Change of law

The terms and conditions of the Notes are based on relevant laws in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. No assurance canbe given asto the impact ofany possible judicial decision or change to
such laws or administrative practices after the date of this Base Prospectus.

Changes in exchange rates and exchange controls

An investment in Notes denominated in a specified currency other than the currency of your

jurisdiction ("your currency") entails significantrisks that are notassociated with a similar investment
in a security denominated in your currency. These risks include, but are not limited to:

@ the possibility of significant market changes in rates of exchange between your currency and
the specified currency;

(b) the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange between your currency and the
specified currency resulting fromthe official redenomination or revaluation of the specified
currency; and

(c) the possibility of the imposition or modification of foreign exchange controls by either the
jurisdiction of the investor's or foreign governments.

These risks generally depend onfactors over which neitherthe Issuer nor (if applicable) the Guarantor
has any control and which cannot be readily foreseen, such as:

@) economic events;
(b) political events; and
(©) the supply of, and demand for, the relevant currencies.

In recent years, rates of exchange between some foreign currencies in which the Notes may be
denominated have beenvolatile. This volatility may be expected in the future. Fluctuations that have
occurred in any particular exchange rate in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of
fluctuation that may occur in the rate during the term of any Note. Depreciation of the specified
currency ofa Note against your currency would result in a decrease in the effective yield of such Note
below its coupon rate (if applicable) and could result in a substantial loss to you in terms of your
currency.

Governments haveimposed fromtime to time, and may in the future impose, exchange controls that
could affect exchange rates as well as the availability ofa specified currency at the time of payment of
principal, any premium, or interest onany Note. There can be no assurance that exchange controls will
not restrict or prohibit payments of principal, any premium, or interest denominated in any such
specified currency.

Even if there are no actual exchange controls, it is possible that a specified currency would not be
available to the Issuerand/or (if applicable) the Guarantor when payments ona Note are due because of
circumstances beyond the control of the Issuerand/or (if applicable) the Guarantor. You should consult

your own financial and legal advisers as to the risks of an investment in Notes denominated in a
currency other than your currency.

The above risks may be increased ifany specified currency and/or your currency is the currency of an
emerging market jurisdiction. The above risks could result in a loss of the value of the Notes and
payments in respect thereof in relation to your currency.

Unavailability of currencies

The currency in which payments on a Note are required to be made may be redenominated, for
example, because such currency is:

@ unavailable due to the imposition of exchange controls or other circumstances beyond the
Issuer's and/or (if applicable) the Guarantor's control;
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(b) no longer used by the government of the country issuing the currency; or

(c) no longer used forthe settlement of transactions by public institutions of the international
banking community.

Where the currency in which payments in respect ofa Note is officially redenominated, otherthan as a
result of Economic and Monetary Union, such as by an official redenomination of any such currency
that is a composite currency, then the payment obligations of the Issuer and/or (if applicable) the
Guarantor on such Note immediately following the redenomination will be the amount of
redenominated currency that represents theamount of the Issuer'sand/or (if applicable) the Guarantor's
obligations immediately before the redenomination. The Notes will not provide for any adjustment to
any amount payable as a result of:

@) any change in the value of the specified currency of those Notes relative to any other currency
due solely to fluctuations in exchange rates; or

(b) any redenomination of any component currency of any composite currency, unless that
composite currency is itself officially redenominated.

As such, the unavailability of currencies could result in a loss of value of the Notes and payments
thereunder.

Certain considerations regarding hedging

If you intend to purchase Notes to hedge against the market risk associated with investing in the
particular Underlying(s), youshould recognise the complexities of utilising Notes in this manner. For
example, the value of Notes may not exactly correlate with the value of the relevant Underlying(s).
Due to fluctuating supply and demand for Notes, there is no assurance that their value will correlate
with movements of the Underlying(s). For these reasons, among others, it may not be possible to
purchase or liquidate securities in a portfolio at the prices used to calculate the value of any relevant
index

Leveraging risk

Borrowing to fund the purchase of the Notes (leveraging) can have a significantnegative impact on the
value of and return on the investment. If you consider leveraging the Notes, you should obtain further
detailed information as to the applicable risks fromthe leverage provider.

Meetings of Noteholders and modifications

The terms and conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to
consider matters which may have a general or specific effect upon your interests. These provisions
permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders, including those Noteholders who did not attend and
vote at the relevant meeting, and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The terms and conditions ofthe Notes also provide that the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor
may make, without the consent of the Noteholders, (i) any modification to the Notes, the Fiscal Agency
Agreement, Swedish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the Finnish Notes Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement, (in respectof Notes otherthan New York Law Notes) the relevant Deed of
Covenant, the relevant Deed of Guarantee which, in the opinion of the Issuer, is not materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders or (ii) any modification to the Notes, the Fiscal Agency
Agreement, Swedish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, the Finnish Notes Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement, (in respectof Notes other than New York Law Notes) the relevant Deed of
Covenant, the relevant Deed of Guaranteewhich is of a formal, minor or technical natureor is made to
correct a manifest error or proven error or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law.

In determining what is "materially prejudicial”, the Issuer shall not consider the individual
circumstances of any Noteholder or the tax or other consequences of such modification in any
jurisdiction. Any suchamendmentmay have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes or, without
limitation, a Noteholder's tax, regulatory or accounting treatment of such Notes.
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Trading different types of Notes

It should be assumedthatthe market for trading different types of Notes varies even though they are
issuedunderthesame Programme. By way of example, a Zero Coupon Note may be more difficult to
trade and its price more variable than a Fixed Rate Note. It may also be more difficult to trade a Zero
Coupon Note that has just been issued than a Zero Coupon Note nearer its redemption, as returns on
Zero Coupon Notes will be paid to investors only a redemption.

New York Law Notes which pay interest at a variable rate

Any tranche of New York Law Notes with an aggregate principal amount of less than $2,500,000 is
subject tousury limits which limit the amount of interest which may be paid on such Notes. In addition
to any maximum interest rate thatmay be applicable to any Notes which pay interest at a variable rate,
the interestrate on such Notes will in no eventbe higher than the maximum rate permitted by the law
of the State of New York. As ofthe date ofthis Base Prospectus, the maximum rate of interest under

provisions of the New York penal law, with a few exceptions, is 25 per cent. per annumon a simple
interest basis.

Risks in investing in the form of certificate-less depositary interests in CREST

You may also hold interests in Notes through Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (formerly known as
CRESTCo Limited) ("CREST") through theissuance of dematerialised depository interests (" CDIs")
issued, held, settled and transferred through CREST, representing interests in the Notes. CDIs are
independentsecurities constituted under English lawand transferred through CREST and will be issued
by CREST Depository Limited (the "CREST Depository") pursuant to the global deed poll dated
25 June 2001 (as subsequently modified, supplemented and/or restated) (the * CREST Deed Poll™).

Therights of CDIHolders to Notes are represented by the relevant entitlements against the CREST
Depository which (through the CREST Nominee (as defined herein)) holds interests in such Notes.
Accordingly, rights under Notes underlying CDIs cannotbe enforced by CDI Holders except indirectly
throughtheintermediary depositaries and custodians. The enforcement of rights under such Notes will
be subject to the local law of the relevant intermediaries. This could result in an elimination of or
reductionin the payments that otherwisewould have been made in respect of such Notes in the event
of any insolvency or liquidation of any oftherelevant intermediaries, in particular where Notes held in
clearing systems are not held in special purpose accounts and are fungible with other securities held in
the same accounts on behalf of other customers of the relevant intermediaries.

The rights of the CDI Holders will be governed by the arrangements between CREST, Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg and the Issuer, including the CREST Deed Poll. You should note that the
provisions of the CREST Deed Poll, the CREST Manual and the CREST Rules contain indemnities,
warranties, representations and undertakings to be given by CDI Holders and limitations on the liability
of the CREST Depository. CDI Holders are bound by such provisions and may incur liabilities
resulting fromabreach of any suchindemnities, warranties, representations and undertakings in excess
of the amounts originally invested by them. As a result, the rights of and returns received by CDI
Holders may differ fromthose of holders of Notes which are not represented by CDls.

In addition, CDI Holders may be required to pay fees, charges, costs and expenses to the CREST
Depository in connectionwith the use ofthe CREST International Settlement Links Service. These will
include the fees and expenses charged by the CREST Depository in respect ofthe provisionofservices
by it underthe CREST Deed Polland any taxes, duties, charges, costs or expenses which may be or

become payable in connection with the holding of Notes through the CREST International Settlement
Links Service.

You should note that none of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor, any Dealer, any distributor,
any Paying Agent, the Registrar and any Transfer Agent will have any responsibility for the

performance by any intermediaries or their respective direct or indirect participants or accountholders
of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.
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Certain considerations relating to public offers of Notes in the EEA

As describedin the applicable Final Terms, Notes that are not Exempt Notes may be distributed by
means of a public offer made in the specified Member State(s) of the EEA during an offer period
specified in the applicable Final Terms. During such offer period, the Issuer and/or any other person
specified in the applicable Final Terms may reserve the right to cancel such offer and/or to scale back
applications for such offer in the event of over-subscription. In such circumstances, an applicant
investor may not be issued any Notes or may be issued a number of Notes which is less than the
amount forwhich such applicant investor applied. Any payments made by an applicant investor or, in
the case of public offers in Italy any amount segregated by a distributor as intended payment of the
offer price by an applicant investor, for Notes thatare not issuedto such applicant investor for any such
reason will be refunded. However, there will be a time-lag in making any reimbursement, no interest
will be payable in respect of any such amounts and the applicant investor may be subject to
reinvestment risk.

In addition, the Issuer and/or the other entities specified in the applicable Final Terms may terminate
the offerearly by immediate suspension of the acceptance of further subscription requests and by
giving notice to the public in accordance with the applicable Final Terms. Any such termination may
occureven where the maximum amount for subscription in relation to that offer (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) has notbeenreachedand, in suchcircumstances, the early closing of the offer
may have an impact on the aggregate number of Notes issued and, therefore, may have an adverse
effect on the liquidity of the Notes.

Further, you should note that, in certain circumstances, Notes may not be issued on the originally
designated issue date, forexample because eitherthe Issuer and/or any other person specified in the
applicable Final Terms has reserved the right to postpone suchissue date or, following the publication
of asupplement to this Base Prospectus, the Issuer has decided to postpone such issue date to allow
investorswho had made applications to subscribe for Notes before the date of publication of such
Supplement to exercise their right to withdraw their acceptances. In the event that the issue date is so
delayed, no interest shallaccrue (ifapplicable) untilthe issuedate of the Notes and no compensation
shall be payable.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One ormore independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to securities issued under the
Programme, including any Notes. The credit rating agencies may havedifferent rating methodologies,
criteria, models and requirements fromone another. The ratings may not reflect the potential impact of
all risks relating to structure, market, additional factors discussed above and other factors that may
affect the value ofthe Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and
may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time. The ratings of any Notes may be
reduced, withdrawn or qualified at any time by the applicable ratingagency. If the ratings of any Notes
are reduced, withdrawn or qualified, it could adversely affect the liquidity or the market value of such
Notes.

Additionally, the global landscape of financial sector regulation itself is undergoing significantchange.
In the U.S., the Dodd-Frank Act,amongotherthings, expands regulatory oversight of Citigroup Inc.
(and its subsidiaries) and credit rating agencies. It is not clear how this expanded regulatory oversight
will impact on the ratings of the Notes or the rating of the Issuer and (if applicable) the Guarantor.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as
amended) (the "CRA Regulation") fromusing credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such
ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA
Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional
provisionsthat apply in certain circumstances). Such general restriction will also apply in the case of
credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by
an EU-registered credit ratingagency ortherelevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance
with the CRA Regulation (and suchendorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not
been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances).
The list of registered and certified ratingagencies published by the European Securities and Markets
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Authority ("ESMA™) on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulationis not conclusiveevidence
of the status oftherelevant ratingagency included in such list, as there may be delays between certain
supervisory measures beingtakenagainst a relevant ratingagency and the publication of the updated
ESMA list. Certain information with respectto the credit ratingagencies and ratings is set out above
and will be disclosed in the applicable Issue Terms. Information relating to the current ratings of
Citigroup Inc., CGMHI and the CGMFL Guarantor is available at www.citigroup.com.

Legal investment considerations

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities and may therefore be restricted by such legal investment
considerations. You should consult your legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent (a)
Notes are suitable legal investments foryou, (b) Notes can be used as collateral for various types of
borrowing and (c) other restrictions apply to your purchase or pledge of any Notes. If you are a
financial institution, you should consult your legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine
the appropriate treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Changes in any applicable tax law or practice

Any relevant taxlaw or practice applicable as at the date of this Base Prospectus and/or the date of
purchase or subscription of any Notes may change at any time (including during any subscription
period orthe termof any Notes). Any such change may have an adverse effect on you, including that
your Notes may be redeemed before their due date, their liquidity may decrease and/or the tax
treatment of amounts payable or receivable by or to you may be less favourable than otherwise
expected by you and may have an adverse effect on you.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO NOTES LINKED TO INFLATION INDICES

If you are investing in Notes linked to inflation indices, you should be familiar with investments in
global capital markets and with indices generally.

Therisks ofa particular Note linked to inflation indices will depend on the terms of that Note. Many
economic and market factors may influence an inflation indexand consequently the value of Notes
linked to inflation indices, including:

@ general economic, financial, political or regulatory conditions and/or events; and/or

(b) fluctuations in the prices of various assets, goods, services and energy resources (including in
response to supply of, and demand for, any of them); and/or

(©) the level of inflation in the economy of the relevant country and expectations of inflation.

In particular, the level of an inflation indexmay be affected by factors unconnected with the financial
markets. Any such factor may either offset or magnify one or more of the other factors.

If an underlying closing level for an inflation index for a specified reference month has not been
published orannounced by five business days prior to the relevant payment date, then the Calculation
Agent shalldetermine a substitute indexlevel. Any such substitution may havean adverse effect on the
value of such Notes.

If "Revision"is specified as applicable for an inflation indexin the applicable Issue Terms, then any
revision to an underlying closing level of an inflation indexoccurring before therelevant revision cut-
off date shall be considered finaland conclusiveforthe purpose of any determination made in respect
of the Notes. If "No Revision™ is specified asapplicable in the applicable Issue Terms (or if "Revision"
is not specified as applicable), then the first publication and announcement of an underlying closing
level for such inflation indexshall be final and conclusive.

Further, if the Calculation Agent determines thatthe indexsponsor of an inflation indexhas corrected
an underlying closing level forsuch indexto correct a manifest error no later than the earlier to occur
of (i) the relevant manifesterror cut-off date and (ii) thirty calendar days following thefirst publication
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and announcement of such level, then the Calculation Agent may use the corrected level of such
inflation indexfor the purposes of any calculation in respect of the relevant payment date. In the event
of any inconsistency between a revision anda manifest error correction, the manifest error correction
shall prevail. Any such revision or correction (or absence of revision or correction) to any level of an
inflation index may have an adverse effect on the value of the Notes.

If the Calculation Agent determines that either:

@) a level for an inflation index has not been published or announced for two consecutive
months; and/or

(b) the relevant indexsponsorannounces that it will no longer continue to publish or announce
such inflation index; and/or

(©) the relevant indexsponsor cancels such inflation index,

then the Calculation Agent may replace such inflation indexwith a successor indexand make such
adjustment(s) as the Calculation Agent determines necessary or appropriate to account for such
replacement and determine the effective date(s) of the adjustment(s) to the Notes. Any suchadjustment
may have an adverse effecton the value of the Notes and, if no successor indexcan be determined,
then an " Additional Early Redemption Event" shall be deemed to haveoccurredandthe Notes may be
redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of such Notes. See risk factor "Early
redemption of Notes" above for when the Notes are early redeemed.

If an indexsponsorannounces, in respect of an inflation index, that it will make a material change to a
relevant inflation index, then the Calculation Agentwill make adjustmentsto theterms ofthe Notes (i)
if a fallback bond is specified, as are consistent with any adjustment made to the relevant fallback
bond; or (ii) if no fallback bond is specified, as are necessary for such modified inflation indexto
continue as an inflationindex. Any such adjustments may have an adverseeffect on the value of such
Notes and, if the Calculation Agentdetermines that no adjustment can reasonably be made following
such an Adjustment Event, then an " Additional Early Redemption Event" shall be deemed to have
occurred andthe Notes may be redeemed as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of such
Notes. See risk factor "Early redemption of Notes" above for when the Notes are early redeemed.

If the Calculation Agentdetermines thatan inflation indexhas beenorwill be rebasedat any time, then
the rebased indexwill be used forthe purposes of determining any level of such inflation index from
the date of rebasing. If a fallback bond is specified, then the Calculation Agent shall make such
adjustmentsto the levels of suchrebased indexas are made pursuant to the terms and conditions of
such fallbackbond, so that the levels of such rebased indexreflect the same rate of inflation as the
inflation indexbefore it was rebased. If no fallback bond is specified, then the Calculation Agent shall
make such adjustments to the levels of such rebased index so that the levels of such rebased index
reflect the same rate of inflation as the inflation index before it was rebased. In each case, the
Calculation Agentmay make such adjustment(s) to the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent
determines necessary orappropriateto account for such rebasingand determine the effective date(s) of
the adjustment(s) to the Notes.

If investing in Notes linked to inflation indices you should read the section entitled "Underlying
Schedulel (Inflation Index Conditions)™ in this Base Prospectus, therelevant provisions relating in the
"Valuation and Settlement Schedule" in this Base Prospectus andthe applicable Issue Terms in order to
fully understand the above provisions relating to such Notes.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO NOTES LINKED TO AN UNDERLYING INTEREST RATE

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of interest payable is dependent upon movements in
underlying interestrates. Accordingly an investment in such Notes may bear similar market risks to a
direct interest rate investment and you should take advice accordingly.

You should be aware that, dependingon the terms of such Notes, (i) you may receive no or a limited
amount of interest and (ii) you may lose a substantial portion of your investment. In addition,
movements in interest rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not co rrelate with
changesin otherindices and the timing of changes in the interest rates may affect the actual yield to
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you, even ifthe average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in
interest rates, the greater the effect on yield.

Interest rates are determined by various factors which are influenced by macro-economic, political or
financial factors, speculationand central bank and government intervention. In recent years, interest
rates havebeenrelatively lowand stable, but this may not continue and interest rates may rise and/or
become volatile. Fluctuations that have occurred in any interest rate in the past are not necessarily

indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during thetermofany Note. Fluctuations
in interest rates will affect the value of such Notes.

If the amount of interest payable is dependent upon movements in interest rates and is determined in
conjunctionwith a multiplier greaterthanoneorby reference to some other leverage factor, the effect
of changes in the interest rates on interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of interest payable is dependent
upon movements in interest rates, may depend uponthe time remaining to the redemption date and the
volatility of interest rates. Movements in interestrates may be dependentuponeconomic, financial and
political events in one or more jurisdictions.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO CREDIT LINKED INTEREST NOTES

An investmentin Credit Linked Interest Notes involves risksandshould only be made after assessing
fully the potential direction, timing and magnitude of potential future market changes as well as those
risks that might be specific to the Reference Entity (e.g., in the value of the obligations of, or
creditworthiness or ability to pay of, the Reference Entity), as well as the terms and conditions of the
Credit Linked Interest Notes. More than one circumstance specified in a risk factor may have
simultaneous effects with regard to the Credit Linked Interest Notes such that the effect of a particular
risk factor may not be predictable. In addition, more than one circumstance specified in a risk factor
may have a compounding effect, which may not be predictable. No assurance can be given as to the
effect that any combination of circumstances specified in these risk factors may have on the value of
the Credit Linked Interest Notes.

Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of Credit Linked Interest Notes

The amounts due in respect of the Credit Linked Interest Notes at any time prior to the relevant
maturity date are typically expected to be less than the trading price of such Credit Linked Interest
Notes at thattime. The difference betweenthetrading price and suchamounts will reflect,among other
things, the "time value" of the Credit Linked Interest Notes. The "time value" of the Credit Linked
Interest Notes will depend partly on the length ofthe period remaining to maturity. It will also depend
partly on expectations as to (i) the creditworthiness of any Reference Entity and (ii) any related
hedgingand investment diversification opportunities. The time value will also create some additional
risks with regard to interim value. The interim value of Credit Linked Interest Notes varies as the
creditworthiness or value of the Reference Entity varies. The interim value of Credit Linked Interest
Notes may also vary due to a number of other interrelated factors, including those specified herein.

Before purchasing Credit Linked Interest Notes, youshould carefully consider,among other things, (i)
the trading price of the relevant Credit Linked Interest Notes, (ii) the value, creditworthiness and
volatility of the relevant Reference Entity, (iii) the remaining tenor, (iv) any change(s) in market
interest rates and yield rates, ifapplicable, (v) any change(s) in currency exchange rates, and (vi) any
related transaction costs.

An investment in Credit Linked Interest Notes where the payment of interest is contingent on a

Reference Entity may have significant risks that are not associated with a similar investment in a
conventional security such as a debt instrument that:

@) is denominated in your currency; and
(b) bears interest at either a fixed or a floating rate based on nationally published interest rate
references.
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The risks associated with a particular Credit Linked Interest Note where the payment of interest is
contingent on a Reference Entity willgenerally dependon factors over which the Issuerhas no control
and which cannot readily be foreseen. These risks include:

@ economic events;
(b) political events; and
(©) the supply of, and demand for, and any actual or perceived expectations concerning the value

of, obligations of or the creditworthiness of any relevant Reference Entity.

In recent years, prices for, and perceptions as to the creditworthiness of, various entities which may
constitute a Reference Entity have beenhighly volatile. Such volatility may be expected in the future.
Fluctuationsin the rates, levels, spreads or prices that have occurred in the past are not necessarily
indicative, however, of fluctuations thatmay occur during the termofany Credit Linked Interest Notes
linked to a Reference Entity.

In addition, you should be aware that credit spreads or other projections of the creditworthiness of any
relevant Reference Entity may be determined or published by the Issuer or an affiliate thereof or
determined or published by third parties or entities which are notsubject to regulation under the laws of
the United States or the EEA.

Theriskof loss as aresult oflinking interest payments to the non-occurrence of a Credit Event of a
Reference Entity can be substantial. You should consult your own financialand legal advisers as to the
risks of an investment in Credit Linked Interest Notes.

Cessation of interest

You should be aware that interest will cease to accrue on Credit Linked Interest Notes fromthe start of
the interestperiod immediately preceding the occurrence of the satisfaction of Conditions to Settlement
in respect of a Credit Event. Interest payments may also be suspended in certain circumstances.

Potential conflicts of interest

Where the Calculation Agent is an affiliate of the Issuer, potential conflicts of interest may exist
between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders, including with respect to certain determinations and
judgements that the Calculation Agent may make pursuant to the Credit Linked Interest Notes.

Any of Citigroup Inc. and/or its affiliates may publish credit spreads or other values or prices in respect
of a Reference Entity orthe obligations of a Reference Entity. Citigroup Inc. and/or any of its affiliates
may also fromtime to time engagein transactions with, orin relation to or in respect of, any Reference
Entity for its proprietary accounts or for other accounts under its management, subject to requirements
of all applicable laws and regulations. Citigroup Inc. and/or its affiliates may also issue other derivative
instruments in respect of any Reference Entity. Citigroup Inc. and/or its affiliates may also act as
underwriter or counterparty in connectionwith future offerings of securities, debt or other obligations
related to an issue of Credit Linked Interest Notes or may act as financialadviserto certain companies
or companies who are a Reference Entity in respect of one or more issues of Credit Linked Interest
Notes or in acommercial banking capacity for such companies. These activities may have a positive or
negativeeffect on the value or creditworthiness of, or the likelihood of a Credit Event occurring to a
Reference Entity and consequently upon the value of the Credit Linked Interest Notes.

Any of Citigroup Inc.,any Dealer and/or any of their affiliates may at the date hereof or at any time
hereafter be in possession of information in relation to a Reference Entity that is or may be material in
the context of any Credit Linked Interest Notes and may or may not be publicly available to
Noteholders. There is no obligation on Citigroup Inc. or any Dealer to disclose to any potential
investors in Credit Linked Interest Notes or to Noteholders any such information.

Any of Citigroup Inc., any Dealerand/or any of their affiliates may have existing or future business
relationships with the Issuer, or other entity associated with, or that is, a Reference Entity (including,
but not limited to, lending, derivatives, depositary, risk management, advisory and banking
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relationships), andwill pursueactions andtake steps thatthey or it deems necessary or appropriate to
protect their and/orits interests arising therefromwithout regard tothe consequences fora Noteholder.
See risk factor "Determinations by the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee" below.

General risks

The risk of the loss of some or all of the interest payments related to a Credit Linked Interest Note
where the payment of interest is contingent on a Reference Entity means that, in order to realise a
return uponyour investment, youmust generally be correct about the creditworthiness of the relevant
Reference Entity.

You should understandthat, althoughthe Credit Linked Interest Notes do not create an actual interest
in, or ownership of, the relevant Reference Entities, the coupon payment on the Credit Linked Interest
Notes may attract certain of the same risks as an actual investment in obligations of the relevant
Reference Entity.

Fluctuations in the value or creditworthiness, as applicable, of the relevant Reference Entity or the
obligations of, or creditworthiness of, any other entity or other items which comprise or relate to any
such Reference Entity will affect the value ofthe relevant Credit Linked Interest Notes. You risk losing
yourentire interest ratereturnon your investment if the creditworthiness of any relevant Reference

Entity deteriorates or other items comprising or relating to any such Reference Entity occurs suchthat a
Credit Event occurs.

All Credit Linked Interest Notes will be unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and all
Credit Linked Interest Notes issued by it will rank equally among themselves and with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer. The Issuer's obligations under the Credit
Linked InterestNotes issued by it representgeneral contractual obligations of the Issuerand of no other
person.

A Credit Linked Interest Note will not represent a claimagainst any Reference Entity and a Noteholder
will not haverecourse underany relevant Credit Linked Interest Note to any entity, obligation or other
item which may comprise or be related to the relevant Reference Entity in respect of such Credit
Linked InterestNotes. Althoughthe performance and creditworthiness of the relevant Reference Entity
will have an effect on the market value of the Credit Linked Interest Notes, the obligations of any
relevant Reference Entity and the Credit Linked Interest Notes are separate obligations of different
legal entities.

You will have no legal or beneficial interest in any obligations of any relevant Reference Entity. In
addition, the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates may enter into arrangements to hedge the Issuer's
obligations under the Credit Linked Interest Notes but are not required to doso. If they do so, the Issuer
and/oranysuch affiliate will have certain rights under such hedging arrangements and may pursue
actions and take steps that they deem appropriate to protect their own interests under such hedging
arrangements without regard to the consequences for you. You will not have recourse to the applicable
counterparty under any such hedging arrangements.

The Issuer's obligations in respect of the Credit Linked Interest Notes are not dependent on the
existence oramount of the Issuer's and/orany of its affiliates' credit exposure to any Reference Entity

and the Issuerand/or any affiliate will not need to sufferanyloss nor provide evidence ofanyloss as a
result of the occurrence or existence of any Credit Event.

Explanation ofeffect onvalueofinvestment and associated risksand other information concerning
the risks relating to Credit Linked Interest Notes

Credit Linked Interest Notes may be redeemed by the Issuer on the Maturity Date by payment of the
Final Redemption Amount. On a date priorto the Maturity Date if one or more of certain events (Credit

Events) hasoccurredin respectofa Reference Entity, the Credit Linked Interest Notes may cease to
bear interest.

Events that will constitutea Credit Event for these purposes are as specified in the applicable Issue
Terms and may include, without limitation, the occurrence of one or more of the following:

112



Risk Factors

@ Bankruptcy: the Reference Entity goes bankrupt;

(b) Failure toPay:subject to a minimum threshold amount, the Reference Entity fails to pay any
amounts due on any of its borrowings (including its bonds or loans) or, where applicable,
guarantees;

(©) Governmental Intervention: following an action taken or an announcement made by a

Governmental Authority, any of the Reference Entity's borrowings or, where applicable,
guarantees, subjectto a minimum threshold amount of such borrowings or, where applicable,
guarantees, are restructured in such away as to adversely affecta creditor (suchas a reduction
or postponement of the interest or principal payable on a bond or loan);

d) Obligation Acceleration: the Reference Entity defaults on a minimum amount of its
borrowings (including its bonds or loans) or, where applicable, guarantees andas a result such
obligations are accelerated;

(e) Obligation Default: the Reference Entity defaults on a minimumamount of its borrowings

(including its bonds or loans) or, where applicable, guarantees andas a result such obligations
are capable of being accelerated;

® Restructuring: following a deterioration of the Reference Entity's creditworthiness, any of its
borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees, subjectto a minimumthreshold amount of such
borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees, are restructured in such a way as to adversely
affectacreditor (suchas areductionor postponement of the interest or principal payable on a
bond or loan); and

@ Repudiation/Moratorium: (i) the Reference Entity repudiates or rejects, in whole or in part, its
obligationsin relation to its borrowings or, where applicable, its guarantees, or it declares or
imposes a moratoriumwith respect to its borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees and (ii)
thereafter within a certain period it fails to pay any amounts due on any of its borrowings
(including its bonds or loans) or, where applicable, its guarantees, or it restructures any of its
borrowings or, where applicable, guarantees in such a way as to adversely affect a creditor.

You should note that not all of the possible Credit Events require an actual default with respect to the
obligations ofarelevantReference Entity. You could bear losses to the market value of your Credit
Linked InterestNotes based on deterioration in the credit of any relevant Reference Entity short of a
default, subjectto the provisions set out in the applicable terms and conditions of the Credit Linked
Interest Notes.

No investigation or due diligence of Reference Entities

No investigation, duediligence or other enquiries have been made by the Issuer, any Dealer or any
other related person in respect of any Reference Entity (including its existing or future
creditworthiness) orany Reference Obligation, Obligation or other obligations ofthe Reference Entity
(as applicable). No representations, warranties or undertakings whatsoever have been or will be made
by the Issuer,any Dealerorany other related person in respect of the Reference Entity (including its
existing or future creditworthiness) orany Reference Obligation, Obligationor other obligations of the

Reference Entity (as applicable). You should make your own evaluation as to the creditworthiness of
each Reference Entity and the likelihood of the occurrence of a Credit Event.

Sovereign Reference Entities

Credit Linked Interest Notes may be linked to the credit of sovereign or governmental entities or quasi-
governmental entities, and therefore payment of interest amounts due pursuant to the terms and
conditions ofthe Credit Linked Interest Notes may be subject to sovereign risks. These include the
potential default by such sovereign, government/quasi-government issuer or the occurrence of political
or economic events resulting in or from governmental action such as the declaration of a moratorium
on debt repaymentor negating repayment obligations of the sovereignissuer. Ifany such eventwere to

occur, holders ofsuch Credit Linked Interest Notes may lose up to all of their interest payments for
such Credit Linked Interest Notes.
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Succession Events

The Credit Linked Interest Notes provide that a Reference Entity may be subject to replacement by one
or more Successors. In suchevent, youwill be subjectto thecredit risk of each Successor. You should
note that if Succession EventBackstop Date is applicable in respect of the Credit Linked Interest Notes
the event thatwould otherwise giverise to the relevant Succession Event must occur no more than 90
calendardays priorto the relevant Succession Event Resolution Request Date or date on which the
Calculation Agent becomes aware of the occurrence of a Succession Event.

If more than one Successor has been identified, the Calculation Agent may adjust the terms and
conditions ofthe Notes as it in its sole and absolute discretion acting in a commercially reasonable
manner shall determine to be appropriate to reflect that the relevant Reference Entity has been
succeeded by more than one Successor, and shall determine the effective date of that adjustment.

Notwithstandingthe Calculation Agent's discretion to actin acommercially reasonable manner, forthe
avoidance of doubt, the Calculation Agent shall be deemed to be acting in a commercially reasonable
manner if it amends the terms and conditions of the Notes in such a manneras to reflect the adjustment
toand/ordivision ofany underlying hedging credit derivative transaction(s) related to or underlying the
Credit Linked Interest Notes under the provisions ofthe definitions for credit derivatives transactions
as published by ISDA on its website at www.isda.org (or any successor website thereto) fromtime to
time and as amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof.

Credit Event Backstop Date

You should note that a Credit Event occurring prior to the Issue Date may result in a Credit Event
being triggered under the Credit Linked Interest Notes (you should specifically note that this may
include fromthe Issue Date) if Credit Event Backstop Date is applicable in respect of the Credit Linked
Interest Notes since a look-back period of 60 calendar days will apply fromthe relevant Credit Event
Notice or Credit Event Resolution Request Date (as applicable). You should conduct your own review
of any recentdevelopments with respect to each Reference Entity by consulting publicly available
information. If arequest to convenea Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee (as defined below)
has been delivered prior to the Issue Date to determine whether a Credit Event has occurred with
respect tothe Reference Entity, details of such request may be found on the ISDA website. If a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee has notbeen convenedto determine such matteras ofthe Issue
Date, one may still be convened after the Issue Datein respect of an eventwhich occurs up to 60 days
before the dateofarequest to convenesuch Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee. You should
be aware that this may result in you not being entitled to interest fromand including the Issue Date.

Determinations by the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee

When determining whether ornot a Credit Event has occurred, the Calculation Agentmay (but, for the
avoidance of doubt, shall not be obliged to) take into account a determination of a committee
established by ISDA for the purposes of making certain determinations in connection with credit
derivative transactions that are relevant to the majority of the credit derivatives market (a " Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee™). In such circumstances, determinations pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Credit Linked Interest Notes may be subject to the announcements,
publications, determinations and resolutions made by ISDA and/or the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committees and may be deemed applicable by the Calculation Agent. Such
announcements, publications, determinations and resolutions could therefore affect the amount and
timing of payments of interest onthe Credit Linked Interest Notes. Neither the Issuer, the Dealer nor
any other related person will have any liability to any person for any determination or calculation
and/or any delay or suspension of payments resulting from or relating to any announcements,
publications, determinations and resolutions made by ISDA and/or any of the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committees. Further information regarding the ISDA Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committees can be found at www.isda.org/credit.

You should note that Citigroup Inc. and/or its affiliates may be a member of the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee responsible for determining the occurrence of Credit Events for the
purposes of certain credit derivatives transactions. This may cause conflicts of interest which could
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affect its voting behaviour, and thus the determinations made by a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee, which may be detrimental to you.

No claim against any Reference Entity

A Credit Linked Interest Note will not represent a claimagainst any Reference Entity in respect of
which any amount of interest or coupon payable is dependent.

An investmentin Credit Linked Interest Notes linked to a Reference Entity may entail significant risks
which are not associated with investments associated with conventional debt securities, including but
not limited to the risks set out in this section.

Postponed Maturity Date

Where Conditions to Settlement have not beensatisfiedon or prior to the final Interest Payment Date
before the Scheduled Maturity Date but (a) the Repudiation/Moratorium Extension Conditionhas been
satisfied, (b) a Potential Failure to Pay has occurred or (c) if on the Scheduled Maturity Date, the
Repudiation/Moratorium Evaluation Date or the Grace Period Extension Date (as applicable) the
Calculation Agent determines that a Credit Event may have occurred or a Potential
Repudiation/Moratoriummay have occurred, the relevant Maturity Date of the Credit Linked Interest
Notes may be extended pursuantto the terms and conditions of the Credit Linked Interest Notes such
that you may experience delays in receipt of interest payments that would otherwise have occurred in
accordance with the terms of the Credit Linked Interest Notes.

RISKS RELATING TO THE STRUCTURE OF A PARTICULAR ISSUE OF NOTES

A wide range of Notes may be issued under this Base Prospectus. A number of these Notes may have
features which contain particular risks for potential investors.

Fixed Rate Notes

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that if market interest rates subsequently increase

above the rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate
Notes.

Inverse Floating Rate Notes

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rateequal to a fixed rate minus a specified reference rate
(which may be a rate determined by reference tothe floating rate provisions, the CMS rate provisions
or the Spread Notes provisions as specified in the applicable Issue Terms). The market values of those
Notes typically are more volatile than market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities
based onthe same reference rate (and with otherwise comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes
are more volatile becausean increasein the reference rate not only decreases the interest rate of the
Notes, but may alsoreflect an increasein prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the
market value of these Notes.

Range Accrual Notes

Range Accrual Notes have an interest rate multiplied by an accrual rate which is determined by
reference to the number of days in the relevantinterestperiod on which the accrual condition or both

accrual conditions are satisfied. An accrual condition may be satisfied on any relevant day if the
relevant reference observation is, as specified in the applicable Issue Terms:

@) equal to or above the specified barrier; or
(b) above the specified barrier; or

(c) equal to or below the specified barrier; or
d) below the specified barrier,
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or the relevant reference observation is, as specified in the applicable Issue Terms:
(e) either equal to or above, or above, the specified lower range; and
()] either equal to or below, or below, the specified upper range.

A reference observation may specified in the applicable Issue Terms as (i) a single reference rate, (i) a
basket of two or more reference rates, (iii) the difference between two reference rates, or (iv) the
difference between the sums oftwo sets of reference rates. The interest rate of Range Accrual Notes
may be arate equal or calculated by reference to a specified fixed rate, a floating rate ora CMS swap
rate (or if specified in the applicable Issue Terms, either the lesser of or the difference between two
CMS swap rates). Therefore, Range Accrual Notes are subject to variable interest rates and can be
volatile instruments and may pay no interest in respect of an interest period.

Spread Notes

Spread Notes have an interest rate determined by reference to any of:

@ one (1) minus the result of a specified spread rate minus another specified spread rate; or
(b) a specified spread rate minus another specified spread rate; or
(©) the lesserof: (i) a specified spread rate plus or minus a spread cap margin, and (i) the sum of:

(A) a specified percentage rate perannum, and (B) the product of (I) a multiplier, and (11) the
difference between two specified spread rates,

and, in each case, plus or minus a margin (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms), and multiplied by
an interest participationrate (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms). Therefore, Spread Notes are
subject tovariable interest rates and canbe volatile instruments and may pay no interest in respect of
an interest period.

Each of the specified spread rates referred to in the preceding paragraph may be (i) a single specified
rate, (ii) the sumofmore than one specified rate or (iii) one specified rate minus another specified rate.

Volatility Bond Notes

Volatility Bond Notes havean interestrate determined by reference tothe absolute value of a specified
volatility bondrate 1 minus a specified volatility bond rate2all, plus or minus a margin (if specified in
the applicable Issue Terms), and multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified in the
applicable Issue Terms). Each of the specified spread rates referred to above may be (i) a single
specified rate, (ii) the sum of more than one specified rate or (iii) one specified rate minus another
specified rate. Therefore, Spread Notes are subject to variable interest rates and can be volatile
instruments and may pay no interest in respect of an interest period.

If the "Shout Option" is specified to be applicable in the applicable Issue Terms, following valid
exercise of the ShoutOptionforarelevant interest period by allthe Noteholders, the reference rate(s)
comprising volatility bond rate 2shall be determined by referenceto the implied forward rate for such
reference rate(s) as determined by the Calculation Agent. The reference rate(s) so determined may
result in less interest being paid in respectof the relevant Interest Period if the relevant forward rate(s)
determined on therelevant date are less than the spot reference rate(s) which would have beenused for
the determination of volatility bond rate 2 had the Shout Option not been exercised.

In addition, the Shout Option may only be exercised by the Noteholders ofall the notes outstanding on
the relevant date. Ifthe Shout Option is exercised by less than all the Noteholders on the relevant date,
any such exercise shall not be valid and the Shout Option shall not be validly exercised. This may
result in a Noteholder receiving less interest it would have received had such option been validly
exercised by all the Noteholders.

Digital Notes

Digital Notes have an interest rate which will either be:
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@) the specified back up rate; or

(b) if the specified digital reference rate as of the relevant determination dateis either, as specified
in the applicable Issue Terms, (i) greater than, (ii) greater thanorequal to, (iii) less thanor (iv)
less than or equal to the specified reserve rate, the specified digital rate.

Each of the rates referredto in the preceding paragraph may be (a) a fixed rate or (b) a rate determined
by reference to thefloating rate provisions, the CMS rate provisions or the Spread Notes provisions).

Therefore, Digital Notes are subject to variable interest rates and can be volatile instruments.
Digital Band Notes

Digital Band Notes have an interest rate (which may be a fixed rate, a floating rate, a CMS rate ora
rate equal to one specified rate (which may be a floating rate or a CMS rate) minus another specified
rate (which may be a floating rate or a CMS rate)) which will be determined in relation to an interest
period by reference to within which band either, as specified in the applicable Issue Terms:

@ the specified reference rate falls; or
(b) the result of one specified reference rate minus another specified reference rate falls.

Each of the specified reference rates referredto in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above may be a rate
determined by reference to the floating rate provisions or the CMS rate provisions.

The interest rate for the interest period will be equal to the rate s pecified as the band rate for the
appropriate band within which, in the case of (a) the reference rate falls or, in the case of (b) the result
of one specified rate minus another specified rate falls. In addition, different referencerates may apply
in respect of different interest periods and interest payment dates.

Therefore, Digital Band Notes are subject to the performance of, in the case of (a) the reference rate or,
in the case of (b) the result of one reference rate minus another reference rate and, as any relevant
reference rate is a variable interest rate, the Digital Band Notes can be volatile instruments.

Switcher Option

If the applicable Issue Terms specify " Switcher Option”to be applicable, the Notes may bear interestat
a rate that converts, at the option of the Issuer, from one specified rate to another specified rate (the
"Second Rate"). Where the Issuer has the right to effect such a conversion, this will affect the
secondary market and the market value of such Notes since the Issuer may be expected to convert the
rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. The Second Rate may be less
favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Notes tied to the same reference rate. In
addition, the Second Rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes.

If the Issuer has the right to convert the interest rate on any Notes from one interest basis to another
interest basis, this may affect the secondary market and the market value of the Notes concerned.

Previous Coupon Linked Notes

Previous Coupon Linked Notes are notes which have an interest rate (a " Previous Coupon Linked
Interest Rate™) determined froma previous coupon referencerate, plus orminus a margin (if specified
in the applicable Issue Terms), and multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified in the
applicable Issue Terms). The previous couponreference rate foran interestperiodis a rate equal to: (a)
the interestrate for the immediately preceding interestperiod and/or interest paymentdate (such rate, a
"Previous Coupon™,such period, a "Preceding Interest Period" and such payment date, "Preceding
Payment Date"), (b) plus or minus a specified rate (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms)
multiplied by an interest participation rate (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms), and (c) plus or
minus another specified rate (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms) multiplied by an interest
participationrate (if specified in the applicable Issue Terms). The Previous Coupon for a Preceding
Interest Period and/or Preceding Payment Date (as applicable) is the interest rate determined in
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accordance with the interest basis applicable to such Preceding Interest Period and/or Preceding
Payment Date, which may be the Previous Coupon Linked Interest Rate determined for the Preceding
Interest Period and/or Preceding Payment Date where the interest basis applicable to such Preceding
Interest Period and/or Preceding Payment Date is specified in the applicable Issue Terms as Previous
Coupon Linked Notes.

The Previous Couponfora Preceding InterestPeriod and/or Preceding Payment Date (as applicable)
may also be a fixed rate (if the applicable interest basis for such Preceding Interest Period and/or
Preceding Payment Date is Fixed Rate Notes), floating rate (if the applicable interest basis for such
Preceding Interest Period and/or Preceding Payment Date is Floating Rate Notes), a CMS rate (if the
applicable interestbasis for such Preceding Interest Period and/or Preceding Payment Date is CMS
Interest Linked Notes) or any other rate of interest determined in accordance with the applicable
interest basis for such Preceding Interest Period and/or such Preceding Payment Date.

A specified rate may be a fixed rate, a floating rate, a CMSrate or any other reference rate specified in
the applicable Issue Terms and determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Notes.
Previous Coupon Linked Notes may therefore also be Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes, CMS
Interest Linked Notes, Inverse Floating Rate Notes, Range Accrual Notes, Digital Notes, Spread Notes
and/or Volatility Bond Notes (or any combination of the foregoing).

These Notes are therefore subjectto variable interest rates and can be volatile instruments, and may pay
no interest in respect of an interest period.

Notes with variable interest rates or which include a multiplier or other leverage factor

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include
multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other
similar related features, their market values may be evenmore volatile thanthose for securities that do
not include those features.

Notes may have, at the option of the Issuer, (where the applicable Issue Terms specify "Switcher
Option" applies), or shall have (where the applicable Issue Terms specify "Automatic Change of
Interest Basis" applies), more than one interest basis applicable to different interest periods and/or
interest payment dates. See "Switcher Option" and "Previous Coupon Linked Notes" below.

Such Notes may also be Floating Rate Notes, Inflation Rate Notes, DIR Inflation Linked Notes, CMS
Interest Linked Notes, Inverse Floating Rate Notes, Range Accrual Notes, Digital Notes, Digital Band
Notes, Spread Notes, Volatility Bond Notes and/or Previous Coupon Linked Notes (orany combination
of the foregoing).
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Documents Incorporated by Reference for the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus

SECTION C.1 - DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CITIGROUP

INC. BASEPROSPECTUS

The following documents which have previously been published and filed with the Commission de

Surveillance du Secteur Financier (" CSSF") and the Central Bank are incorporated in, and formpart of,
this Base Prospectus:

(1)

@)

©)

4

©)

(6)

()

)

the Annual Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2016 filed
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC™) on 24 February 2017
(the "CitigroupInc. 2016 Form 10-K")which is published on the website of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8
NJytj8/0sls 2ApUhK{ft2X8mtZKCIJU6IfHNNES SSS6Dx68emPIhgqJHcPUW IEVV Zje Co5xdelT/Sv
P887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0;

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three monthsended 31 March 2017
filed with the SEC on 1 May 2017 (the " Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q") which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089y K+J0/8
NJytj8/0slq2Watp SGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibd LUOXAOFAgEgXYDXL . OQSZ3/67ZYd9L 32]
fOAa/Phxy TY/WFUZN1BtaHfE=&s0_timeout=0;

the Current Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 16 June 2017 (the
"Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017 Form 8-K") in connection with conforming the historical
audited consolidated financial statements for Citigroup Inc.'s Annual Report for 2016 to reflect
internal business and portfolio reclassifications, which is published on the website of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https:/dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy52{\Fitbuuk6wDBrQEle AcccT Bs3B++FUcCz8W cGwBXB
okzufLYzo\W 9A AcDKOOftHKCmISXEKdd W 12Vq0dz0l/Fg 7kh Ky Pi2QKBmO;

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form10-Q for the three and sixmonths ended 30 June
2017 filed with the SEC on 1 August2017 (the " CitigroupInc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q") which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy52zxNFitb uukéwDBgOvUmII4UIptzuqZb5XPVQVBSfS\Wwiz
7+yyxlIZtDaW LixNueq5+ezDz4kP6IChHSm+ZF40PJan P2cUW 5n 9iXvrMoRIMW mNjbmRK
EYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNo TSkk2NFO4BEJ8Nuwn Boss5A052vushvbRIK1K+BA L PFOKT Cg
aZ49ZIPklpg000EhI+PWFJA;

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2017 filed with the SEC on 31 October 2017 (the " Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q") which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy52xNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhIH]M HT KA 3h KATPdZfRPBr7n
zIX30PZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorliflAgptt70M VQmMwVZD2va2VadmSiA 3j1K1cVeh++34wlVO
mkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06X6XKkQi1PHUs 9hHriSH8DCcE12cPAzp X64;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 28 June 2013 (the " 2013 Base Prospectus™) which is published
on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d-84cd-4ff0-a42a-
5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.3) dated 12 March 2014 (the "2013
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.3") which is published on the website of the Irish
Stock Exchange at http://ww.ise.ie/debt documents/Supplements 190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-
a5962c379cle.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 22 July 2014 (the 2014 Base Prospectus™) which is published
on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-
c963add2c123.PDF?v=532015;
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https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBrQE1eAcccTBs3B++FUcCz8WcGwBXBokzufLYzoW9AAcDKO0ftHKCmJSxEKddWl2Vq0dz0l/Fq7khKyPi2QKBm0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBrQE1eAcccTBs3B++FUcCz8WcGwBXBokzufLYzoW9AAcDKO0ftHKCmJSxEKddWl2Vq0dz0l/Fq7khKyPi2QKBm0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d-84cd-4ff0-a42a-5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d-84cd-4ff0-a42a-5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-a5962c379c1e.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-a5962c379c1e.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-c963add2c123.PDF?v=532015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-c963add2c123.PDF?v=532015
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©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement(No.2) dated 1 December 2014 (the " 2014
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2™) which is published on the website of the Irish
Stock Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Supplements_68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-
15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 10 August 2015 (the " 10 August 2015 Base Prospectus")
which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_32861db5-fe24-4e99-b996-
2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.2) dated 16 November 2015 (the
"2015Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2") which is published on the website of the
Irish Stock Exchange at http:/Aww.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements e9374c6f-7d97-4¢c81-
afb0-405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 21 December 2015 (the "21 December 2015 Base
Prospectus") which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-
£40802dd59fd.PDF;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.2) dated 21 March 2016 (the "2015
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2") which is published on the website of the Irish

Stock Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-
20a02643f41a.PDF;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.4) dated 18 May 2016 (the "2015
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.4™) which is published on the website of the Irish

Stock Exchange at http:/Mmww.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-
3e680fed5a69.PDF;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus dated 15 December 2016 (the “2016 Citigroup Inc.
Base Prospectus") which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at

http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Base%20Prospectus 696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-
b136b6b3f06e.PDF;

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.1) dated 26 January 2017 (the 2016
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.1™) which is published on the website of the Irish

Stock Exchange at http:/Mmww.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dcl-
8829392e77b3.pdf; and

the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base Prospectus Supplement(No.4) dated 21 August 2017 (the "2016
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.4") which is published on the website of the Irish
Stock Exchange at http:/Mmww.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-
d96f78dead0f.PDF.

The following information appears on the pages of the relevant document(s) as set out below:

@)

(b)

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2016 and
2015 and for the yearsended 31 December 2016, 2015and 2014, asset out in the Citigroup
Inc. 2016 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 129-131
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 132-133
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http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_32861db5-fe24-4e99-b996-2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_32861db5-fe24-4e99-b996-2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_e9374c6f-7d97-4c81-afb0-405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_e9374c6f-7d97-4c81-afb0-405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-3e680fed5a69.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-3e680fed5a69.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-b136b6b3f06e.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-b136b6b3f06e.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dc1-88a9392e77b3.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dc1-88a9392e77b3.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-d96f78dea40f.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-d96f78dea40f.PDF

Documents Incorporated by Reference for the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus

©)

(d)
©)
()

(b)

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

(b)

Consolidated Statementof Changes in 134-135
Stockholders' Equity

Consolidated Statementof Cash Flows 136-137
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 138-304
Report ofthe Independent Registered Public 127

Accounting Firm— Consolidated Financial
Statements dated 24 February 2017

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form
10-K:

Page(s)
Descriptionofthe principal activities of Citigroup 2-30
Inc.
Descriptionofthe principal markets in which 13-30, 152
Citigroup Inc. competes
Descriptionofthe principal investments of 184-195
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoftrends and events affecting 2-30, 33-62, 120-122, 125, 138-149
Citigroup Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 283-291
Risk Management 63-119

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three months
ended 31 March 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 87-88
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 89-90
Consolidated Statementof Changes in 91-92
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statementof Cash Flows 93-94
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 95-187

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Descriptionofthe principal activities of Citigroup 2-25
Inc.
Descriptionofthe principal markets in which 13-25, 80, 99

Citigroup Inc. competes

122



Documents Incorporated by Reference for the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

@)

(b)

©)

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
@)

(b)

Descriptionofthe principal investments of 110-118
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoftrends and events affecting 2-25, 27-44, 84-85, 95-98
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoflitigation involving Citigroup Inc. 179-180
Risk Management 45-81

Announcementrelating to Citigroup Inc. as set out inthe Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017 Form
8-K:

Page(s)

Exhibit Number99.01 — Segment and Business 5-6
Income (loss) and Revenues of Citigroup Inc. for
the three yearsended 31 December 2016

Bxhibit Number 99.02 — Report of Independent 1 of Bxhibit Number 99.02
Registered Public Accounting Firm —

Consolidated Financial Statements dated 24

February 2017, except as to Notes 3, 6, 14, 15, 16,

18, 24, 26 and 28 which are as of 16 June 2017

BExhibit Number99.02 — Historical Audited 2-179 of BExhibit Number 99.02
Consolidated Financial Statements of Citigroup

Inc.as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 and for the

three years ended 31 December 2016

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and six
months ended 30 June 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 95-96
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 97-98
Consolidated Statementof Changes in 99-100
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statementof Cash Flows 101-102
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 103-212

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out inthe Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Descriptionofthe principal activities of 2-3, 108
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionofthe principal markets in which 9-26

Citigroup Inc. competes
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©

(d)

©)

()

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

10.

@)

11.

@)

Descriptionofthe principal investments of 121-132
Citigroup Inc.

Descriptionoftrends and events affecting 2-26, 27-46, 91-92, 103-105
Citigroup Inc.

Description of litigation involving Citigroup 202-203
Inc.

Risk Management 47-88

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 93-94
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 95-96
Consolidated Statementof Changes in 97-98
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statementof Cash Flows 99-100
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 101-211

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc.,asset outinthe Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Descriptionofthe principal activities of Citigroup 2-26
Inc.
Descriptionofthe principal markets in which 3, 7-26
Citigroup Inc. competes
Descriptionofthe principal investments of 118-130
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoftrends and events affecting 4-6, 28-45, 87, 89-90, 201-202, 212
Citigroup Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 201-202
Risk Management 47-86
As set out inthe 2013 Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes F-1- F-145
As set out in the 2013 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.3:

Page(s)
Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus
Amendments to the Citigroup Inc. Rates Base 4
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(b)

©)

12.

@)

13.

@)
(b)

14.

@)

15.

@)

16.

@)

17.

@)
(b)

18.

Prospectus

Underlying Schedule 3 Credit Linked Coupon
Conditions

Pro Forma Final Terms

As set out in the 2014 Base Prospectus:

Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes

Assetout in the 2014 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2:

Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus

Pro Forma Final Terms
General Conditions of the Notes

As set out in the 10 August 2015 Base Prospectus:

Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes

As set out in the 2015 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2:

Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus

Summary

As set out in the 21 December 2015 Base Prospectus:

Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes

Assetoutin the 2015 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.2:

Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus

Summary
Additional information to be supplemented

Assetoutin the 2015 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.4:

Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates

125

29-53

54-94

Page(s)
195-421

Page(s)

Page(s)
210-435

Page(s)

Page(s)
238-478

Page(s)

10-36

Page(s)



Documents Incorporated by Reference for the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus

Base Prospectus

(@) Pro Forma Final Terms S
() Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 5
(©) Schedule 2 — General Conditions of the Notes 62

19. Assetout in the 2016 Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
@ Section F — Terms and Conditions of the Notes 265-513
20. Assetoutin the 2016 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.1:
Page(s)
Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus
@) Schedule 5 — Amendments to the Terms and 64-65
Conditions ofthe Notes — General Conditions of
the Notes
(b) Schedule 6— Amendments to the Pro Forma Final 66-67
Terms
21. Assetoutin the 2016 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No.4:
Page(s)
Information relating to the Citigroup Inc. Rates
Base Prospectus
(@) Schedule 5— Amendments to the General Conditions of the Notes 70

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interimreports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Reports on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2016, all quarterly earnings releases on Form8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act 0f1934, as amended (the " Exchange Act"), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date ofthe financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).

The Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with any documents
incorporated by reference therein, any supplementto this Base Prospectus or the Citigroup Inc. Base
Prospectus and any applicable Issue Terms. Any statement contained therein or in any document
incorporated by reference thereinshall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this
Base Prospectus orthe Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus tothe extent that any supplement to this Base
Prospectus or the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus or any other subsequently dated document
incorporated by reference therein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or
superseded shallnot be deemed, except as somodified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Base
Prospectus or the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI Base Prospectus

SECTION C.2 - DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CGMHI
BASEPROSPECTUS

The following documents which have previously been published and have been filed with the

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (" CSSF") and the Central Bank are incorporated in,
and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

@) the annual financial report of CGMHI for the year ended 31 December 2015 containing its
audited consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 and for each of
the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2015 (the " CGMHI 2015 Annual
Report") which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/oslslyBOczzypo9p+NarU8G0+Lg+eh6SIPdb KI88M +ujmTEljOrZI/WR4AUVETTNO
hNHhRNM 172ZVNZOZ 3y Rfz3Xxmk=&s0_timeout=0;

2 the annual financial report of CGMHI for the year ended 31 December 2016 containing its
audited consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 and for each of
the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2016 (the " CGMHI 2016 Annual
Report") which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/osinUEelcuOn4ls0gs6J97v+NYSOIAjtpLoiOXrAegxdHOPA LNADD2A pVh WCINIG
K8lyFsTH1hVWa8z+BgVY8n/w=&s0_timeout=0;

(3) the Half-Yearly Financial Report of CGMHI containing its unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements as of and for the sixmonth period ended 30 June 2017 (the " CGMHI
2017 Half-Yearly Financial Report™) which is published on the website of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange at

https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBvmqGthaK7YfgqEadxicw+qg4kr/hplxus
aaXXTdKwIOIJRXFFgflrogX8a/XURAB3hqgo/aTN8vg+zSxn YrUxbhk;

4 the Annual Reportof Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-K for the yearended 31 December 2016 filed
with the SEC on 24 February 2017 (the "Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K") which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application? flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCIUG6IFHNNES SSS6DX68emP1hqJHCPUW IEVA zje Coxdel T
[SvP887UixXn1+vh1vl uK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0;

(5) the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three months ended 31 March
2017 filed with the SEC on 1 May 2017 (the " CitigroupInc. 2017 Q1 Form10-Q")which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089y K+J0/
8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibd LUOXA OF4gEgXYDX. OQSZ3/67Z2Yd9
L3zJfOAa/Phxy TY/WFUZN1BtaHfE=&s0_timeout=0;

(6) the Current Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 16 June 2017 (the
"Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017 Form 8-K") in connection with conforming the historical
audited consolidated financial statements for Citigroup Inc.'s Annual Report for 2016 to
reflect internal business and portfolio reclassifications which is published on the website of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBrQEleAcccTBs3B++FUcCz8WcGwB
XBokzuflL YzoW 9A AcDKOOftHKCmISXEKddW12Vq0dz0l/Fq 7kh Ky Pi2QKBmO;

) the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and sixmonths ended 30
June 2017 filed with the SEC on 1 August 2017 (the " Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q")
which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADYyMFy52xNFitbuukéwDBgOvUmII4UIptzugZb5XPVQVBSTSVw
iz7+yyxl1ZtDaW LpxNueq5+ezDz4kP6ICbH5m+ZF40PJanP2c UW5n 9iXvrMoRIMWmNjbm
RKEYXdBgK42PJfIAoHcnytNoTSkk2NFO4BEJ8NuwnBoss5A052vushvb RIK1IK+BALPFo
KTCgaZ4gZIPklpg00oEhI+PwWFjA
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https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslslyBOczzypo9p+NarU8G0+Lg+eh6SlPdbKl88M+ujmTEljOrZI/WR4UV6TTNOhNHhRNM17zVNZOZ3yRfz3Xxmk=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslslyBOczzypo9p+NarU8G0+Lg+eh6SlPdbKl88M+ujmTEljOrZI/WR4UV6TTNOhNHhRNM17zVNZOZ3yRfz3Xxmk=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslslyBOczzypo9p+NarU8G0+Lg+eh6SlPdbKl88M+ujmTEljOrZI/WR4UV6TTNOhNHhRNM17zVNZOZ3yRfz3Xxmk=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslnUEeIcu0n4Is0gs6J97v+NYSOIAjtpLoiOXrAeqxdH9PALN4DD2ApVhWclNiGK8IyFsTH1hVWa8z+BqV9Y8n/w=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslnUEeIcu0n4Is0gs6J97v+NYSOIAjtpLoiOXrAeqxdH9PALN4DD2ApVhWclNiGK8IyFsTH1hVWa8z+BqV9Y8n/w=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslnUEeIcu0n4Is0gs6J97v+NYSOIAjtpLoiOXrAeqxdH9PALN4DD2ApVhWclNiGK8IyFsTH1hVWa8z+BqV9Y8n/w=&so_timeout=0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBvmqGthaK7YfggEa4xjcw+g4kr/hplxusaaXXTdKwIOiJRXFFgfIr0qX8g/xURAB3hqo/aTN8vq+zSxnYrUxbhk
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBvmqGthaK7YfggEa4xjcw+g4kr/hplxusaaXXTdKwIOiJRXFFgfIr0qX8g/xURAB3hqo/aTN8vq+zSxnYrUxbhk
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBrQE1eAcccTBs3B++FUcCz8WcGwBXBokzufLYzoW9AAcDKO0ftHKCmJSxEKddWl2Vq0dz0l/Fq7khKyPi2QKBm0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBrQE1eAcccTBs3B++FUcCz8WcGwBXBokzufLYzoW9AAcDKO0ftHKCmJSxEKddWl2Vq0dz0l/Fq7khKyPi2QKBm0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBg0vUm9I4UlptzuqZb5XPVQvBSfSVwiz7+yyxIlZtDaWLjxNueq5+ezDz4kP6lCbH5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n9iXvrMoR1MWmNjbmRKEYXdBgK42PJflAoHcnytNoTSkk2NF04BEJ8NuwnBoss5Ao52vu5hvbRfK1K+BALPFokTCgaZ4gZlPklpg0OoEhl+PwFjA

Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI Base Prospectus

)

©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

13)

(14)

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2017 filed with the SEC on 31 October 2017 (the "Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q") which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https:/dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyM Fy5zxNFitbuukéwDBjmL+rRhIH]MHTKA3hKATPdZfRPBr
7nzIX30PZ6ZRAT6XD0px5dgorliflAgptt70MVOmw\VZD2va2Va9mSiA 3j1 KlcVeh++34wl
VOmMkNbLEZOItUgwJwHO06x6XKkQi1PHUs 9hHriSH8DCcE12cPAzp X64;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 21 December 2015 (the "21 December 2015 Base
Prospectus") which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-
£40802dd59fd.PDF;

the CGMHI Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.2) dated 21 March 2016 (the *2015
CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.2")which is published on the website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-
20a02643f41a.PDF;

the CGMHI Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.4) dated 18 May 2016 (the "2015
CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.4™)which is published on the website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-
3e680fed5a69.PDF;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 15 December 2016 (the *2016 CGMHI Base Prospectus")
which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-
b136b6b3f06e.PDF;

the CGMHI Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.1) dated 26 January 2017 (the "2016
CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.1")which is published on the website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dcl-
88a9392e77b3.pdf; and

the CGMHI Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.4) dated 21 August 2017 (the "2016
CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.4")which is published on the website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-
d96f78dead0f.PDF.

The following information appears onthe specified pages of the relevant documents as set out below:

@)
(b)

©

(d)

©)

Audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of 31 December 2015 and 2014
for the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2015, as set out in the
CGMHI 2015 Annual Report, namely:

Page(s) of the section entitled
""Consolidated Financial Statements""

Consolidated Statements of Operations 1

Consolidated Statements of 2
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Consolidated Statements of Financial 34
Condition
Consolidated Statements of Changes in 5

Stockholders' Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6

128


https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhlHjMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr7nzIX3OPZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorIlf1Agptt70MVQmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1K1cVch++34wIVOmkNbLEZOItUgwJwH06x6XkQi1PHUs9hHri5H8DcE12cPAzpX6g
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-3e680fed5a69.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-3e680fed5a69.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-b136b6b3f06e.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-b136b6b3f06e.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dc1-88a9392e77b3.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dc1-88a9392e77b3.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-d96f78dea40f.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-d96f78dea40f.PDF
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(f)
C);

@)

@)
(b)

©)

(d)

©)
()
©))

@)

@)
(b)

©)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments 7-73
Independent Auditor's Report 28 ofthe published CGMHI 2015 Annual
Report

The ManagementReportofthe Issuer, assetoutinthe CGMHI 2015 Annual Report:

Page(s) of the sectionentitled
""Management Report"

Management Report 1-22

Audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of 31 December 2016 and 2015
for the years in the three year period ended 31 December 2016, as set out in the
CGMHI 2016 Annual Report, namely:

Page(s) of the section entitled
""Consolidated Financial Statements™

Consolidated Statements of Operations 1

Consolidated Statements of 2
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Consolidated Statements of Financial 34

Condition

Consolidated Statements of Changes in 5

Stockholders' Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-71

Independent Auditor's Report 28 ofthe published CGMHI 2016 Annual
Report

The ManagementReportofthe Issuer,assetout inthe CGMHI 2016 Annual Report:
Page(s) of the section entitled

""Management Report"

Management Report 1-22

Unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of CGMHI as of and for the six
month period ended 30 June 2017, as set out in the CGMHI 2017 Half-Yearly
Financial Report:

Page(s) of the section entitled
""Consolidated Financial Statements""

Consolidated Statements of Operations 1

Consolidated Statements of 2
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statements of Financial 3-4
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(d)

©)
(f)

@)

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)
(f)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

@)

Condition

Consolidated Statements of Changes in 5
Stockholders' Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7-47

The Management Report of CGMHI, as set out in the CGMHI 2017 Half Yearly
Financial Report:

Page(s) of the section entitled
""Management Report™

Management Report 1-22

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2016
and 2015 andfor the yearsended 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014, as set out in the
Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 129-131
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 132-133
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 134-135
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 136-137
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 138-304
Report of the Independent Registered Public 127

Accounting Firm — Consolidated Financial
Statements dated 24 February 2017

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., asset out inthe Citigroup Inc.2016 Form
10-K:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of 2-30
Citigroup Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 13-30, 152
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 184-195
Citigroup Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting 2-30, 33-62, 120-122, 125, 138-149
Citigroup Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup 283-291
Inc.
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(f)

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

10.

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

()

11.

@)

(b)

©)

@)

Risk Management 63-119

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three
monthsended 31 March 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 87-88
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 89-90
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 91-92
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 93-94
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 95-187

Other information relatingto Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of 2-25
Citigroup Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 13-25, 80, 99
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 110-118
Citigroup Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting 2-25, 27-44, 84-85, 95-98
Citigroup Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup 179-180
Inc.
Risk Management 45-81

Announcementrelating to Citigroup Inc. as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017
Form 8-K:

Page(s)

Bxibit Number 99.01 - Segment and 5-6
Business Income (loss) and Revenues of

Citigroup Inc. for the three years ended 31

December 2016

Bxhibit Number 99.02 - Report of 1 of Bxhibit Number 99.02
Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm — Consolidated Financial Statements
dated 24 February 2017, except as to Notes 3,

6, 14, 15, 16, 18, 24, 26 and 28 which are as of
16 June 2017

Exhibit Number 99.02 — Historical Audited 2-179 of BExhibit Number 99.02
Consolidated Financial Statements of
131



Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMHI Base Prospectus

12.

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

13.

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

(f)

14.

@)

(b)
©

Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2016 and
2015 and for the three years ended 31
December 2016

Unauditedinterim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and
six monthsended 30 June 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 95-96
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 97-98
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 99-100
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 101-102
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 103-212

Other information relatingto Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2
Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of 2-3, 108
Citigroup Inc.
Description of the principal markets in 9-26
which Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 121-132
Citigroup Inc.
Description of trends and events affecting 2-26, 27-46, 91-92, 103-105
Citigroup Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup 202-203
Inc.
Risk Management 47-88

Unauditedinterim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and
nine months ended 30 September 2017, as set out inthe Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 93-94
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 95-96
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 97-98

Stockholders' Equity
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(d)
©)

15.

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)

)

16.

@)

17.

@)
(b)

18.

@)
(b)
©)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 99-100

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 101-211

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3
Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of 2-26
Citigroup Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 3, 7-26
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 118-130

Citigroup Inc.

Description of trends and events affecting 4-6, 28-45, 87, 89-90, 201-202, 212
Citigroup Inc.

Description of litigation involving Citigroup 201-202
Inc.
Risk Management 47-86

As set out inthe 21 December 2015 Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes 238-478
Assetoutin the 2015 CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.2:

Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMHI Rates Base
Prospectus
Summary 7
Additional information to be supplemented 10-36
As set out inthe 2015 CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.4:

Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMHI Rates Base
Prospectus
Pro Forma Final Terms 9
Pro Forma Pricing Supplement 9
Schedule 2 — General Conditions of the Notes 62
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19. Assetoutinthe 2016 CGMHI Base Prospectus:
Page(s)
(a) Section F—Terms and Conditions of the Notes 265-513
20. As set out in the 2016 CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.1:
Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMHI Rates Base
Prospectus
@ Schedule 5— Amendmentsto the Terms and 64-65
Conditions ofthe Notes — General Conditions of
the Notes
(b) Schedule 6—- Amendments to the Pro Forma 66-67
Final Terms
21. As set out in the 2017 CGMHI Rates BP Supplement No.4:
Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMHI Rates Base
Prospectus
(@) Schedule 5— Amendments to the General 70

Conditions ofthe Notes

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interimreports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Reports on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2016, all quarterly earnings releases on Form8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act 0f 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).

The CGMHI Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with any documents
incorporated by reference therein, any supplement to this Base Prospectus or the CGMHI Base
Prospectus and any applicable Issue Terms. Any statement contained therein or in any document
incorporated by reference thereinshall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this
Base Prospectus or the CGMHI Base Prospectus to the extent that any supplement to this Base
Prospectus orthe CGMHI Base Prospectus orany other subsequently dated documentincorporated by
reference thereinmodifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded
shallnot be deemed, except as somodified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Base Prospectus or
the CGMHI Base Prospectus.
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SECTION C.3- DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FOR THE CGMFL
BASEPROSPECTUS

The following documents which have previously been published and have been filed with the

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (" CSSF") and the Central Bank are incorporated in,
and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

@) the annual report of CGMFL containing its audited non-consolidated financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2015 (the "CGMFL 2015 Annual Report™) which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/osluSod2yaKZsLdDuZZSZhc6DXUmrxGrCDeECRRyIBhOrlzOly18ZUloVotmRIS
jS530DKWe6bcID+wgoNBGgkPOY=&s0_timeout=0;

2 the annual report of CGMFL containing its audited non-consolidated financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2016 (the "CGMFL 2016 Annual Report™) which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/0sloxPztO/shOGs IWsWThRqiDY4a4mjOMfEtDstR8rgN70Eh/nf/4ZOM3uds vrljDk
pXPbO2b1spxEjCLWerESWIc=&s0_timeout=0;

(3) the interim financial report of CGMFL containing its unaudited non-consolidated interim
financial statements as of and for the sixmonth period ended 30 June 2017 (the "CGMFL
2017 Interim Financial Report™) which is published on the website of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange. at

https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyM Fy5zxNFitb uukéwDBkmrIflh GuifDI9Pzxxy zs 20UV+Ed KS4
AMJI+Z7i19V7IvAA6B2LotPXLBBJAASUaUlp7SY6CvglfcnPcdJpp+nD2U;

4 the annual report and audited financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (the "CGMFL Guarantor 2015 Annual Report™) which is

published on the  website of the Irish Stock  Exchange  at
http://www.ise.ie/app/announcementDetails.aspx?1D=12875029;

(5) the annual report and audited financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (the "CGMFL Guarantor 2016 Annual Report™) which is
published on  the  website  of the Irish ~ Stock  Exchange  at
http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Annual%20Financial%20Statement_b141178d -ffd0-405c-
9db4-010c3c692b28.pdf;

(6) the unaudited interimreport and financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor containing its
unaudited non-consolidated interim financial statements as at and for the sixmonth period
ended 30 June 2017 (the "CGMFL Guarantor 2017 Interim Financial Report™) which is

published on  the  website  of the Irish  Stock  Exchange  at
http://www.ise.ie/app/announcementDetails.aspx?1D=13403884;

(M the Annual Reportof Citigroup Inc. on Form10-K for the yearended 31 December 2016 filed
with the SEC on 24 February 2017 (the "Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K") which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&Vv=089y K+J0/
8sNJytj8/osls2A pUhKft2X8mtZKCIUGIfHNNES SSS6Dx68emPIhgJHCPUW IEVV zje Cox4elT
[SvP887UixXn1+vhivl uK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0;

(8) the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three months ended 31 March
2017 filed with the SEC on 1 May 2017 (the " CitigroupInc. 2017 Q1 Form10-Q") which is
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowld=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/
8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibd LUOXAOF4gEgXYDX. OQSZ3/677Yd9
L3zJfOAa/Phxy TY/WFUZN1BtaHfE=&so0_timeout=0;

9 the Current Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 16 June 2017 (the
"Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017 Form 8-K") in connection with conforming the historical
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https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osluSod2yaKZsLdDuZZSZhc6DXUmrxGrCDeEcRRylBhOr1zOlyI8ZU1oVotmRlSjS53gDKWe6bcJD+wgoNBGqkPOY=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osluSod2yaKZsLdDuZZSZhc6DXUmrxGrCDeEcRRylBhOr1zOlyI8ZU1oVotmRlSjS53gDKWe6bcJD+wgoNBGqkPOY=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osluSod2yaKZsLdDuZZSZhc6DXUmrxGrCDeEcRRylBhOr1zOlyI8ZU1oVotmRlSjS53gDKWe6bcJD+wgoNBGqkPOY=&so_timeout=0
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https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osloxPztO/shOGsIWsWThRqiDY4a4mjOMfEtDstR8rqN7oEh/nf/4ZOM3u4svrIjDkpXPbO2b1spxEjCLWerE5WIc=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osloxPztO/shOGsIWsWThRqiDY4a4mjOMfEtDstR8rqN7oEh/nf/4ZOM3u4svrIjDkpXPbO2b1spxEjCLWerE5WIc=&so_timeout=0
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBkmrIflhGuifDl9Pzxxyzs20UV+EdKS44MJ+Z7i9V7vAA6B2LotPXLBBJAASUaUlp7SY6Cvq1fcnPcdJpp+nD2U
https://dl.bourse.lu/dl?v=ADyMFy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBkmrIflhGuifDl9Pzxxyzs20UV+EdKS44MJ+Z7i9V7vAA6B2LotPXLBBJAASUaUlp7SY6Cvq1fcnPcdJpp+nD2U
http://www.ise.ie/app/announcementDetails.aspx?ID=12875029
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Annual%20Financial%20Statement_b141178d-ffd0-405c-9db4-010c3c692b28.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Annual%20Financial%20Statement_b141178d-ffd0-405c-9db4-010c3c692b28.pdf
http://www.ise.ie/app/announcementDetails.aspx?ID=13403884
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/osls2ApUhKft2X8mtZKCJU6IfHnNEsSSS6Dx68emPIhqJHcPUWIEVvzjeC5x4elT/SvP887UixXn1+vh1vLuK7Xi0=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
https://www.bourse.lu/Bourse/application?_flowId=DownloadOAMGEDFlow&v=089yK+J0/8sNJytj8/oslq2W4tpSGe7/++TXY3nDkvDc+rz/ibdLUOXAOF4gEgXYDxLOQSZ3/67ZYd9L3zJfOAa/PhxyTY/wFUZN1BtaHfE=&so_timeout=0
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

17

(18)

(19)

audited consolidated financial statements for Citigroup Inc.'s Annual Report for 2016 to
reflect internal business and portfolio reclassifictions which is published onthe website of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy52xNFitbuuk6wDBrQEleAcccTBs 3B++FUcCz8W cGwB
XBokzufLYzoW 9A AcDKOOftHKCmISXEKddW12Vq0dz0l/Fq 7kh Ky Pi2QKBmO;

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended 30
June 2017 filed with the SEC on 1 August 2017 (the " Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q")
which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyMFy52xNFitbu uk6wDBgO0vUm9I4UIptzugZb5XPVQVBSS\Vw
iz7+yyxl1ZtDaW LpxNueq5+ezDz4kP6IChb H5m+ZF40PJanP2cUW5n 9iXviMoRIMWmNjbm
RKEYXdBgK42PJfIAoHcnytNoTSkk2NFO4BEJ8NuwnBoss5A052vubhvb RIK1K+BALPFo
KT Cgaz4gZIPklpg0O0oEhI+PWFA;

the Quarterly Report of Citigroup Inc. on Form10-Q for the three and nine months ended 30
September 2017 filed with the SEC on 31 October 2017 (the " Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q") which is published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
https://dl.bourse.lu/dI?v=ADyM Fy5zxNFitbuuk6wDBjmL+rRhIHIMHTKA3hK4TPdZfRPBr

7nzIX30PZ6ZRdT6XD0px5dgorlifiAgptt70M VOmwVZD2va2Va9mSiA3j1KicVeh++34wl
VOmkNb LEZOItUgwJwHO6X6XkQi1PHUs 9ShHriSH8DCE12cPAzp X64;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 28 June 2013 (the “2013 Base Prospectus™) which is
published on  the  website  of the Irish  Stock  Exchange  at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d -84cd-4ff0-a42a-
5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015;

the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.3) dated 12 March 2014 (the "2013
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3") which is published on the website of Citi at

http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements 190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-
a5962c¢379c1e.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 22 July 2014 (the "2014 Base Prospectus™) which is
published on  the  website  of the Irish ~ Stock  Exchange  at

http://www.ise.ie/debt _documents/Base%20Prospectus ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-
€963add2c123.PDF?v=532015;

the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.2) dated 1 December 2014 (the *2014
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.2") which is published on the website of Citi at

http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements 68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-
15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 10 August 2015 (the "10 August 2015 Base Prospectus™)
which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at

http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Base%20Prospectus 32861db5-fe24-4¢99-b996-
2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015;

the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.3) dated 16 November 2015 (the "2015
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3") which is published on the website of Citi at

http://www.ise.ie/debt _documents/Supplements e9374c6f-7d97-4¢81-afb0-
405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015;

the Rates Base Prospectus dated 21 December 2015 (the "21 December 2015 Base
Prospectus") which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at

http://www.ise.ie/debt documents/Base%20Prospectus 79300e07 -6ae0-4d78-83b0-
£40802dd59fd.PDF;

the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.2) dated 21 March 2016 (the "2015
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.2™") which is published onthe website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-
20a02643f41a.PDF;
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http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d-84cd-4ff0-a42a-5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_8ba9313d-84cd-4ff0-a42a-5dba62f1d875.PDF?v=742015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-a5962c379c1e.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_190ac5cd-59ca-46be-b3dc-a5962c379c1e.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-c963add2c123.PDF?v=532015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_ee474483-9539-45be-ac5c-c963add2c123.PDF?v=532015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_68c35972-1e7e-4d2b-8f33-15eb8a3b5295.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_32861db5-fe24-4e99-b996-2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_32861db5-fe24-4e99-b996-2b20d0850933.PDF?v=1492015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_e9374c6f-7d97-4c81-afb0-405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_e9374c6f-7d97-4c81-afb0-405538532c9a.PDF?v=2112015
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Base%20Prospectus_79300e07-6ae0-4d78-83b0-e40802dd59fd.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_f14287b0-eaa6-4aa0-9f8a-20a02643f41a.PDF

Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL Base Prospectus

(20) the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.4) dated 18 May 2016 (the "2015
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.4™")which is published onthe website of the Irish Stock

Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_d3594b08-44a6-4e52-8719-
3e680fed5a69.PDF;

(21) the Rates Base Prospectus dated 15 December 2016 (the *2016 CGMFL Base Prospectus™)
which is published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange at

http://www.ise.ie/debt _documents/Base%20Prospectus 696ca3a7-5105-463c-b682-
b136b6b3f06e.PDF;

(22) the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.1) dated 26 January 2017 (the "2016
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.1")which is published onthe website of the Irish Stock

Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_8c46317c-151d-44ed-8dcl-
8829392e77b3.pdf; and

(23) the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.3) dated 12 May 2017 (the "2016
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3")which is published onthe website of the Irish Stock

Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements ec706e91-b957-41c2-b9fa-
ad02eda3a25b.PDF;

(24) the CGMFL Rates Base Prospectus Supplement (No.4) dated 21 August 2017 (the "2016
CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.4")which is published onthe website of the Irish Stock
Exchange at http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Supplements_a9d6c10f-11e4-4029-9125-
d96f78dead0f.PDF.

Citigroup Inc. has not guaranteed, and is not otherwise liable for, the obligations of CGMFL or
the CGMFL Guarantor in respect of Notes issued by CGMFL. Holders of Notes issued by
CGMFL are subject to the credit risk of CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor, without recourse
to Citigroup Inc., or any other party, and are dependent on the ability of CGMFL and the
CGMFL Guarantor to make payments on their respective obligations as they become due.

The following information appears onthe specified pages of the relevant documents as set out below:

1. Audited historical non-consolidated financial information of CGMFL in respect of the
period ended 31 December 2015, as set out in the CGMFL 2015 Annual Report:
Page(s)
@ Statement of Profit or Loss and other 1
Comprehensive Income
(b) Statement of Financial Position 2
(©) Statements of Changes in Equity 3
(d) Cash Flow Statement 4
(e) Notes to the Financial Statements 5-32
)] Report on the financial statements by KPMG  10-11 of the published CGMFL 2015
Luxembourg SAr.l.: Annual Report
2. Audited historical non-consolidated financial information of CGMFL in respect of the
period ended 31 December 2016, as set out in the CGMFL 2016 Annual Report:
Page(s)
@ Statement of Profit or Loss and other 1
Comprehensive Income
(b) Statement of Financial Position 2
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Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL Base Prospectus

©
(d)
©)
(f)

@)

@)
(b)
©)
(d)

@)
(b)
©)
(d)
©)
()

@)
(b)
©)
(d)
©)
()

Statements of Changes in Equity 3
Cash Flow Statement 4
Notes to the Financial Statements 5-35

Report on the financial statements by KPMG  10-11 of the published CGMFL 2016
Luxembourg S.a.r.l. Annual Report

Unaudited non-consolidated interim financial statements of CGMFL as of and for the six
month period ended 30 June 2017, as set out in the CGMFL 2017 Interim Financial
Report:

Page(s)
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive 6
Income
Condensed Interim Balance Sheet 7
Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement 9
Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial 10-14
Statements

Audited historical financial information of the CGMFL Guarantor in respect of the years

ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, as set out in the CGMFL Guarantor 2015 Annual
Report:

Page(s)
Income Statement 18
Statement of Comprehensive Income 19
Statement of Changes in Equity 19
Balance Sheet 20
Notes to the Financial Statements 21-83
Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of 17

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Audited historical financial information ofthe CGMFL Guarantor in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2016, as set out in the CGMFL Guarantor 2016 Annual Report:

Page(s)
Income Statement 18
Statement of Comprehensive Income 19
Statement of Changes in Equity 19
Balance Sheet 20
Notes to the Financial Statements 21-83
Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of 17
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@)
(b)
©)
(d)
©)

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)
(f)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

(.

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Unaudited interim financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor as at and for the six-
month periodended 30 June 2017, as set out inthe CGMFL Guarantor 2017 Interim
Financial Report:

Page(s)
Interim Income Statement 7
Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income 8
Interim Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Interim Balance Sheet 9
Notes to the Financial Statements 10-19

Audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2016 and
2015 and for the yearsended 31 December 2016, 2015and 2014, as set out inthe Citigroup
Inc. 2016 Form 10-K:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 129-131
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 132-133
Consolidated Statementof Changes in Stockholders' 134-135
Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 136-137
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 138-304
Report of the Independent Registered Public 127
Accounting Firm - Consolidated Financial

Statements dated 24 February 2017

Other information relatingto Citigroup Inc.,as set out inthe Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-
K:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 2-30
Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 13-30, 152
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 184-195

Citigroup Inc.

Descriptionoftrends and events affecting Citigroup 2-30, 33-62, 120-122, 125, 138-149
Inc.

Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 283-291

Risk Management 63-119
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@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

10.

(b)

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

11.

@)

(b)

©)

(‘

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three months
ended 31 March 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated  Statements of Income and 87-88
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 89-90
Consolidated Statementof Changes in Stockholders' 91-92
Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 93-94
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 95-181

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 2-25
Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 13-25, 80, 99
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 110-118
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoftrends and events affecting Citigroup 2-25, 27-44, 84-85, 95-98
Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 179-180
Risk Management 45-81

Announcement relating to Citigroup Inc. as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 16 June 2017
Form 8-K:

Page(s)
Exhibit Number 99.01 — Segment and Business 5-6
Income (loss) and Revenues of Citigroup Inc. for the
three years ended 31 December 2016
Bxhibit Number 99.02 — Report of Independent 1 of Bxhibit Number 99.02
Registered Public Accounting Firm — Consolidated
Financial Statements dated 24 February 2017,
except as to Notes 3, 6, 14, 15, 16, 18, 24, 26 and 28
which are as of 16 June 2017

Bxhibit Number 99.02 - Historical Audited 2-179 of BExhibit Number 99.02
Consolidated Financial Statements of Citigroup Inc.

as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 and for the three

years ended 31 December 2016

140



Documents Incorporated by Reference for the CGMFL Base Prospectus

12.

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

13.

@)

(b)

©)

(d)

©)
(f)

14.

@)

(b)
©)

(d)
©)

15.

@)

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and six
months ended 30 June 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 95-96
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 97-98
Consolidated Statementof Changes in Stockholders' 99-100
Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 101-102
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 103-212

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., asset outin the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)
Description of the principal activities of Citigroup 2-3, 108
Inc.
Description of the principal markets in which 9-26
Citigroup Inc. competes
Description of the principal investments of 121-132
Citigroup Inc.
Descriptionoftrends and events affecting Citigroup 2-26, 27-46, 91-92, 103-105
Inc.
Description of litigation involving Citigroup Inc. 202-203
Risk Management 47-88

Unaudited interim financial information of Citigroup Inc. in respect of the three and nine
months ended 30 September 2017, as set out in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q:

Page(s)
Consolidated Statements of Income and 93-94
Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet 95-96
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 97-98
Stockholders' Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 99-100
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 101-211

Other information relating to Citigroup Inc., asset outin the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form
10-Q:

Page(s)

Description of the principal activities of 2-26
Citigroup Inc.
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(b)

©)

(d)

©)

()

16.

@)

17.

@)

(b)

©

18.

@)

19.

@)
(b)

20.

@)

Descriptionofthe principal markets in which 3, 7-26
Citigroup Inc. competes

Description of the principal investments of 118-130
Citigroup Inc.

Description of trends and events affecting 4-6, 28-45, 87, 89-90, 201-202, 212
Citigroup Inc.

Description of litigation involving Citigroup 201-202
Inc.

Risk Management 47-86

As set out in the 2013 Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
Section F— Terms and Conditions of the Notes F-1- F-145
As set out in the 2013 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3:

Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus
Amendments to the CGMFL Rates Base 6
Prospectus
Underlying Schedule 3 Credit Linked Coupon 29-53
Conditions
Pro Forma Final Terms 54-94
As set out in the 2014 Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
Section F— Terms and Conditions of the Notes 195-421
As set out in the 2014 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.2:

Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus
Pro Forma Final Terms 8
General Conditions of the Notes 9
As set out in the 10 August 2015 Base Prospectus:

Page(s)
Section F— Terms and Conditions of the Notes 210-435
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21.

@)

22.

@)

23.

@)
(b)

24.

@)
(b)
©)

25.

@)

26.

@)

(b)

©)

As set out in the 2015 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3:

Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus

Summary

As set out inthe 21 December 2015 Base Prospectus:

Section F — Terms and Conditions of the Notes

Assetoutinthe 2015 CGMFLRates BP SupplementNo.2:

Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus

Summary
Additional information to be supplemented

Assetoutin the 2015 CGMFL Rates BP SupplementNo.4:

Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus

Pro Forma Final Terms

Pro Forma Pricing Supplement

Schedule 2 — General Conditions of the Notes
Assetoutinthe2016 CGMFLBase Prospectus:

Section F — Terms and Conditions of the Notes

As set out in the 2016 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.1:

Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus

Schedule 5 — Amendments to the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — General Conditions of
the Notes

Schedule 6— Amendments to the Pro Forma Final
Terms

Schedule 7 — Amendments to the Pro Forma
Pricing Supplement
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Page(s)

10-36

Page(s)

12-13
13
62

Page(s)
265-513

Page(s)

64-65

66-67

68-69
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27. As set out inthe 2016 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.3:

Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus
@ Schedule 3— Amendments to the Pro Forma Final 63
Terms
() Schedule 4 — Amendments to the Pro Forma 64
Pricing Supplement
28. As set out in the 2016 CGMFL Rates BP Supplement No.4:
Page(s)
Information relating to the CGMFL Rates Base
Prospectus
(@) Schedule 5 — Amendments to the General 70

Conditions of the Notes

Any information not listed in the cross-reference list above but included in the above mentioned
documents is additional information given for information purposes only.

In addition, all quarterly interimreports on Form 10-Q of Citigroup Inc., its Annual Reports on Form
10-K for fiscal years after 2016, all quarterly earnings releases on Form8-K and any other reports filed
by Citigroup Inc. with the SEC pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the United States Securities
Exchange Act 0f 1934, as amended (the " Exchange Act"), and the rules and regulations thereunder,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K and
the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q referred to above will be available to the public on the SEC's
website (address: http://www.sec.gov).

The CGMFL Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with any documents
incorporated by reference therein, any supplement to this Base Prospectus or the CGMFL Base
Prospectus and any applicable Issue Terms. Any statement contained therein or in any document
incorporated by reference thereinshall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this
Base Prospectus or the CGMFL Base Prospectus to the extent that any supplement to this Base
Prospectus orthe CGMFL Base Prospectus orany other subsequently dated document incorporated by
reference thereinmodifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded
shallnot be deemed, except as somodified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Base Prospectus or
the CGMFL Base Prospectus.
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Documents Available for Inspection

@)

SECTION C.4 - DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

For so long as the Programme remains in effect or any Notes remains outstanding, the
following documents will be available for inspectionin electronic formand (in the case of the
items listed under (iv), (v), (iX) and () below)obtainable, during normalbusiness hours free
of charge on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted), at the specified
office of the Fiscal Agent and each of the other Paying Agents:

(i) the Fiscal Agency Agreement, as amended or supplemented (which includes the form
of the Global Registered Note Certificates and the definitive Registered Note
Certificates);

(i) the Dealership Agreement, as amended or supplemented;

(iii) the Swedish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement and the Finnish Notes
Issuingand Paying Agency Agreement, in each case, onceentered into in respect of
the Swedish Notes and the Finnish Notes, respectively;

(iv) the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee;

V) the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee;

(vi) the Deeds of Covenant, as amended or supplemented;

(vii)  the Rule 144A Deed Polls, as amended or supplemented;

(viii)  the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of Citigroup Inc.;
(iX) the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of CGMHI;

(x) the articles of incorporation of CGMFL;

(xi) the articles of association of the CGMFL Guarantor;

(xii)  theannualreportandaudited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc. for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the annual report and
audited consolidated financial statements of CGMHI for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015, the annual report and audited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL for the period ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 and the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of the
CGMFL Guarantor for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, in each case
together with any relevant audit reports prepared in connection therewith;

(xiii)  the most recently publishedinterimunaudited consolidated financial statements of
Citigroup Inc., the most recent interim unaudited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMHI, the most recent interimunaudited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL and the most recent unaudited interim non-consolidated
financial statements of the CGMFL Guarantor;

(xiv)  the 2013 Base Prospectus, the 2013 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No. 3, the
2014 Base Prospectus, the 2014 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No. 2, the 10
August 2015 Base Prospectus, the 2015 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No. 2,
the 21 December 2015 Base Prospectus, the 2016 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP
Supplement No. 2, the 2016 Citigroup Inc. Rates BP Supplement No. 2, the 2016
Citigroup Inc. Rates BP SupplementNo. 4, the 2016 Base Prospectus, the 2017 Rates
BP Supplement No. 1 and the 2017 Rates BP Supplement No.4;

(xv) each Final Terms; and

(xvi)  acopy ofthis BaseProspectus together with any supplement to this Base Prospectus
or further Base Prospectus.
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(b)

Copies ofthe latestannual report and audited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup
Inc. and the latestquarterly interimunaudited consolidated financial statements of Citigroup
Inc. may be obtained at the specified offices of each of Fiscal Agent and the other Paying
Agents duringnormal business hourssolong asany of the Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. is
outstanding. Copies ofthe latest annual reportand audited consolidated financial statements of
CGMHI and the latest quarterly interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of
CGMHI may be obtained at the specified offices of each of the Fiscal Agent and the other
Paying Agents duringnormal business hourssolong asany ofthe Notes issued by CGMHI is
outstanding. Copies of the latest annual report and audited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL and the latest half yearly interimunaudited non-consolidated financial
statements of CGMFL may be obtained at the specified offices of each of the Fiscal Agentand
the Paying Agents during normal business hours so long as any of the Notes issued by
CGMFL is outstanding. Copies of the latest annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements of the CGMFL Guarantor may be obtained at the specified offices ofeach of Fiscal
Agentand theother Paying Agents duringnormal business hourssolong as any of the Notes
issued by CGMFL is outstanding
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Supplements to the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus or the CGMHI Base Prospectus or the CGMFL
Base Prospectus

SECTION C.5 - SUPPLEMENTS TO THE CITIGROUP INC. BASEPROSPECTUS OR THE
CGMHI BASEPROSPECTUS OR THE CGMFL BASEPROSPECTUS

Citigroup Inc. and/or CGMHI and/or the CGMHI Guarantor and/or CGMFL and/or the CGMFL
Guarantor, as the case may be, will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or
inaccuracy relating to information included in the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus and/or the CGMHI
Base Prospectus and/orthe CGMFL Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of
any Notes, prepare a supplement to the Citigroup Inc. Base Prospectus and/or the CGMHI Base
Prospectus and/or the CGMFL Base Prospectus, as the case may be, or publish a new Citigroup Inc.
Base Prospectus and/or CGMHI Base Prospectus and/or CGMFL Base Prospectus, as the case may be,
for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Notes.

147



Information relating to the Issuers and the Guarantors

SECTION D — INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ISSUERS AND THE GUARANTORS
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SECTION D.1 — DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP INC.

Citigroup Inc. ("Citi", the "Company", or "Citigroup") is a global diversified financial services
holding company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations, governments and institutions
with a broad, yet focused, range of financial products and services. Citigroup Inc. has approximately
200 million customer accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and jurisdictions.
Citigroup Inc. is abankholding company within the meaning ofthe U.S. Bank Holding Company Act
of 1956 registered with, and subjectto examination by, the Board of Governors ofthe Federal Reserve
System (the "Federal Reserwe"). Some of Citi's subsidiaries are subject to supervision and
examination by theirrespective federal and stateauthorities. At 31 December 2016, Citigroup Inc. had
approximately 219,000 full-time employees worldwide

Citigroup Inc.'s objectsand purpose is to "engage in any lawfulact or activity for which a corporation
may be organised under the General Corporation Law of Delaware", as stated in Article THIRD of
Citi's Restated Certificate of Incorporation. As of 31 December 2016, Citigroup operated, for
management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments: Citicorp, consisting of
Citigroup’s Global Consumer Banking businessand Institutional Clients Group; and Citi Holdings,
consisting of businesses and portfolios ofassets that Citigroup has determined are not central to its core
Citicorp businesses. Beginningin the first quarter of 2017, the remaining businesses and portfolios of
assets in Citi Holdings were reported as part of Corporate/Other and Citi Holdings ceased to be a
separately reported business segment. Its businesses conducttheir activities across the North America,
Latin America, Asiaand Europe, Middle East and Africa regions. Citigroup's principal subsidiaries are
Citibank, N.A., Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Grupo Financiero Banamex, S.A. de C.V.,, each of
which is a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of Citigroup.

Citigroup Inc. is a holding company and services its obligations primarily by earnings from its
operating subsidiaries. Citigroup Inc. may augment its capital through issuances of common stock,
perpetual preferred stock and equity issued throughawards under employee benefit plans,among other
issuances. Citigroup Inc.and Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries that operate in the banking and securities
businesses can only pay dividends if they are in compliance with the applicable regulatory
requirementsimposed onthemby federal and state bank regulatory authorities and securities regulators
in the United States. Citigroup Inc.'s subsidiaries may be party to credit agreements that also may
restrict their ability to pay dividends. Citigroup Inc. currently believes thatnone ofthese regulatory or
contractual restrictions on the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends will affect Citigroup Inc.'s
ability to service its own debt. Citigroup Inc. must also maintain the required capital levels of a bank
holding company, and must submit a capital plan, subjectedto stresstesting, to the Federal Reserve, to
which the Federal Reserve does not object, before it may pay dividends on its stock.

Underlongstanding policy of the Federal Reserve, a bank holding company is expected to act as a
source of financial strength for its subsidiary banks. As a result of this regulatory policy, the Federal
Reserve might require Citigroup Inc. to commit resources to its subsidiary banks when doing so is not
otherwise in the interests of Citigroup Inc. or its shareholders or creditors.

The principal offices for Citigroup Inc. are located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY 10013, and
its telephone numberis +1 212 559-1000. Citigroup Inc.was establishedas a corporationincorporated
in Delaware on 8 March 1988, registered at the Delaware Division of Corporations with perpetual
duration pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law with file number 2154254, Citi's
authorised capital stock consists of 6 billion shares of common stockand 30 million shares of preferred
stock. As at 30 September 2017, there were 2,644,001,999 fully paid common stock shares o utstanding
and 770,120 preferred shares outstanding. A common stock share carries onevote, andno pre-emptive
or othersubscription rights or conversion rights. A preferred stock share carries no general voting
rights. No shareholder, orassociated group of shareholders acting together, owns enough shares of
Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise control over Citi.

No shareholder, orassociated group of shareholders acting together, owns enough shares of Citigroup
Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise control over Citi.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF CITIGROUP INC.

The members of the board of directors of Citigroup Inc. are:

Board of Directors
Michael E. O'Neill
Michael L. Corbat

Anthony M. Santomero

Diana L. Taylor

Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Leon

Eugene M. McQuade

Peter B. Henry

Franz B. Humer
Duncan P. Hennes
Gary M. Reiner
James S. Turley

Ellen Costello

Renée James

John C. Dugan

S. Leslie Ireland

Deborah C. Wright

Title
Chairman

CEO

Main duties outside Citigroup Inc.

Former President, Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia.

Vice Chair, Solera Capital

Director, Center for the Study of Globalization
and Professor in the Field of International
Economics and Politics, Yale University

Retired Vice Chairman, Citigroup Inc.

Dean, New York University Stern School of
Business

Former Chairman, Roche Holding Ltd.
Co-Founder and Partner, Atrevida Partners, LLC
Operating Partner, General Atlantic LLC

Former Chairman and CEO, Ernst & Young
Retired Chief Executive Officer of BMO Financial
Corporation and the U.S. Country Head of BMO
Financial Group

Operating Executive, The Carlyle Group

Former Chairman, Financial Institutions Group,
Covington & Burling LLP

Former Assistant Secretary for Intelligence and
Analysis, U.S. Department of the Treasury

Former Chairman of Carver Bancorp, Inc.

The executive officers of Citigroup Inc. are: Francisco Aristeguieta, Stephen Bird, Don Callahan,
Michael L. Corbat, James C. Cowles, Barbara Desoer, James A. Forese, Jane Fraser, John C. Gerspach,
Bradford Hu, William J. Mills, J. Michael Murray, Jeffrey R. Walsh and Rohan Weerasinghe. The
business address of each director and executive officer of Citigroup Inc. in such capacities is 388

Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing between any duties owed to Citigroup Inc. by its
senior management listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.

Citigroup Inc. is in compliance with the laws and regulations of the United States relating to corporate

governance.
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Committees of the Board of Directors
The standing committees of Citigroup Inc.'s board of directors are:

The audit committee, which assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to (i) the
integrity of Citigroup Inc.'s financial statements and financial reporting process and Citigroup Inc.'s
systems of internal accounting and financial controls; (ii) the performance of the internal audit
function; (iii) the annual independent integrated audit of Citigroup Inc.'s consolidated financial
statements and internal control over financial reporting, the engagement of the independent registered
public accounting firm and the evaluation of the independent registered public accounting firm's
qualifications, independence and performance; (iv) policy standards and guidelines for risk assessment
and risk management; (v) the compliance by Citigroup Inc. with legal and regulatory requirements,
including Citigroup Inc.'s disclosure controls and procedures; and (vi) the fulfilment of the other
responsibilities set out in its charter, as adopted by the board.

The members ofthe audit committee are Ellen M. Costello, John C. Dugan, Peter B. Henry, Anthony
M. Santomero, James S. Turley and Deborah C. Wright.

The risk management committee, which assists the board in fulfilling its responsibility for (i) oversight
of Citigroup Inc.'s risk management framework, including the significant policies, procedures and
practices used in managing credit, market, operational and certain other risks; (ii) oversight of
Citigroup Inc.'s policies and practices relating to funding risk, liquidity risk and price risk, which
constitute significant components of market risk, and risks pertaining to capital management; and (iii)
oversight of the performance of the Fundamental Credit Risk credit review function.

The members ofthe risk management and finance committee are John C. Dugan, Duncan P. Hennes,
Franz B. Humer, Renee J. James, Eugene M. McQuade, Michael E. O’Neill, Anthony M. Santomero,
James S. Turley and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Ledn.

The personnel and compensation committee, which is responsible for determining the compensation
for the Chief Executive Officer and approvingthe compensation of other executive officers and other
members of senior management. The Committee is also responsible for approving the incentive
compensation structure for other members of senior management and certain highly compensated
employees (includingdiscretionary incentive awards to covered employees as defined in applicable
bank regulatory guidance), in accordance with guidelines established by the committee fromtime to
time. The committee also has broad oversight over compliance with bank regulatory guidance
governing Citigroup Inc.'s incentive compensation.

The members of the personnel and compensation committee are Duncan P. Hennes, Michael E.
O'Neill, Gary M. Reiner and Diana L. Taylor.

The nomination, governance and public affairs committee is responsible for (i) identifying
individuals qualified to become Board members and recommending to the Board the director nominees
for the next annual meeting of stockholders; (i) leading the Board in its annual review of the Board's
performance; (iii) recommending to the Board directors for each committee for appointment by the
Board; (iv) shaping corporate governance policies and practices and monitoring Citigroup Inc.'s
compliance with such policies and practices; and (v) reviewing and approving all related party
transactions. The committee also has responsibility for reviewing political and charitable contributions
made by Citigroup Inc. and the Citigroup Foundation, reviewing Citigroup's policies and practices
regarding supplier diversity, reviewing Citigroup Inc.'s business practices and reviewing Citigroup
Inc.'s sustainability policies and programs, including environmental, climate change and human rights.

The members ofthe nomination, governanceand public affairs committee are John C. Dugan, Peter B.
Henry, Michael E. O'Neill, Diana L. Taylor and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Ledn.

The executivecommittee is responsible for acting on behalf of the Board if a matter requires Board
action before a meeting of the full Board can be held.

The members of the executive committee are Duncan P. Hennes, Franz B. Humer, Michael E. O'Neill,
Anthony M. Santomero, Diana L. Taylor and James S. Turley.
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The operations and technology committee is responsible for oversightof the scope, direction, quality,
and execution of Citigroup Inc.'s technology strategies formulated by management and providing

guidanceon technology as it may pertain to,among other things, Citigroup Inc. business products and
technology platforms.

The operations and technology committee is comprised of Gary M. Reiner, Ellen M. Costello, S. Leslie
Ireland and Renee J. James.

The ethicsand culture committee is responsible for (i) oversight of management's efforts to foster a
culture ofethics within the organization; (ii) oversight and shaping the definition of Citigroup Inc.'s
value proposition; (i) oversightof management's efforts toenhance and communicate Citigroup Inc.'s
value proposition, evaluating management's progress, and providing feedback on these efforts; (iv)
reviewing and assessing the culture of the organization to determine if further enhancements are
needed to foster ethical decision-making by employees; (v) oversight of management's efforts to
support ethical decision-making in the organization, evaluating management's progress, and providing
feedbackon these efforts; and (vi) reviewing Citigroup Inc.'s Code of Conductand the Code of Ethics
for Financial Professionals.

The members of the ethics and culture committee are Franz B. Humer, Michael E. O'Neill, Deborah C.
Wright and Ernesto Zedillo Ponce de Leon.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CITIGROUP INC.

The table below sets out a summary of key selected financial information for Citigroup Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries. Such information is extracted fromthe consolidated financial statements of
Citigroup Inc. contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on 24 February
2017.

At or for the year ended 31 December
2016 2015
(audited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 69,875 76,354
Income from continuing operations 15,033 17,386
Net Income 14,912 17,242
Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 1,792,077 1,731,210
Total deposits 929,406 907,887
Long-term debt (including U.S.$ 26,254 and U.S.$ 206,178 201,275

25,293 as of 31 December 2016 and 2015,
respectively, at fair value)
Total stockholders' equity 225,120 221,857

Thetable belowsets out asummary of key financial information for Citigroup Inc. and its consolidated

subsidiaries. Suchinformation is extracted fromthe consolidated financial statements of Citigroup Inc.
contained in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q as filed with the SEC on 31 October 2017.

For the nine months ended 30 September

2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 54,194 52,863
Income from continuing operations 12,138 11,442
Net Income 12,095 11,339
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For the three months ended 30 September

2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Income Statement Data:

Total revenues, net of interest expense 11,442 11,479
Income from continuing operations 4,137 3,887
Net Income 4,133 3,840
At 30 September At 30 September
2017 2016
(unaudited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 1,889,133 1,818,117
Total deposits 964,038 940,252
Long-termdebt 232,673 209,051
Total stockholders' equity 227,634 231,575
Auditors

The auditors of Citigroup Inc. are KPMG LLP of 345 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10154, United
States of America. KPMGLLP is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is regulated by the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

KPMG LLP audited the consolidated balance sheets of Citigroup Inc. as of 31 December 2016 and
2015 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended 31 December 2016. KPMG LLP expressed an
unqualified opinion on such financial statements in its report dated 24 February 2017.

Material Contracts

Citigroup Inc. has no contracts that are material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes
issued by it.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of theissue of Notes by Citigroup Inc. will be used for general corporate purposes,
which may include capital contributions to its subsidiaries and/or the reduction or refinancings of
borrowings of Citigroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. Citigroup Inc. expectsto incuradditional indebtedness
in the future.

Corporate authorities

Citigroup Inc. has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in the United States in
connectionwith the establishment and update of the Programme, the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee and
theissue and performance ofthe Notes. The [update] of the Programme and the issue of the Notes by
Citigroup Inc. under the Programme was authorised by certificates of the Funding Committee of
Citigroup Inc. dated 16 June 2016 and pursuant to resolutions of the board of directors of Citigroup Inc.
dated 25 January 2017. The giving of the CGMHI Deed of Guarantee was authorised by a certificate of
the Funding Committee of Citigroup Inc., dated 10 December 2015.

Legal proceedings

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referenced above, neither Citigroup Inc. nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in, or has
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been involved in, any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that may have had, in the twelve
months before the date of this Base Prospectus, a significant effect on the financial position or
profitability of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole, nor, so far as Citigroup
Inc. is aware, are any such proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adverse change

There has been nosignificantchange in the financial or trading position of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup
Inc.and its subsidiaries as awhole since 30 September 2017 (the date of Citigroup Inc.'s most recently
published unaudited interimfinancial statements), and there has been no material adverse change in the
financial position or prospects of Citigroup Inc. or Citigroup Inc. and its subsidiaries as a whole since
31 December 2016 (the date of Citigroup Inc.'s most recently published audited annual financial
statements).
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SECTIOND.2 — DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. ("CGMHI"), operating through its subsidiaries, engages in
full-service investment banking and securities brokerage business. As used in this description, CGMHI
refers to CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries.

CGMHI's parent, Citigroup Inc. ("Citigroup" or "Citi") is a global diversified financial services
holding company whose businesses provide consumers, corporations, governments and institutions
with a broad range of financial products and services. Citigroup has approximately 200 million
customer accounts and does business in more than 160 countries and jurisdictions. Citigroup Inc.
currently operates, for management reporting purposes, via two primary business segments: Citicorp,
consisting of Citigroup Inc.'s Global Consumer Banking businesses and the Institutional Clients Group;
and Citi Holdings, consisting of businesses and portfolios of assets that Citigroup Inc. has determined
are not central to its core Citicorp businesses. There is also a third segment, Corporate/Other.

The principal offices of CGMHI are located at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013,
telephone number (212) 816-6000. CGMHI was incorporatedin New York on 23 February 1977 and is
the successor to Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation, following a statutory
merger effective on 1July 1999, the purpose ofwhich was to change the state of incorporation from
Delaware to New York. On 7 April 2003 CGMHI filed a Restated Certificate of Incorporation in the
State of New York changingits name from Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. to Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc. CGMHI is a New York corporation, and New York State does not issue
corporation numbers. Its Federal Employee Identification Number (" FEIN" or "EIN") issued by the
US Internal Revenue Service is 11-2418067.

Institutional Clients Group

Institutional Clients Group (" ICG") provides corporate, institutional, public sectorand high-net-worth
clients around the world with a full range of wholesale banking products and services, including fixed
income and equity sales andtrading, foreign exchange, prime brokerage, derivative services, equity and
fixed income research, corporate lending, investment bankingandadvisory services, private banking,
cash management, trade finance and securities services. ICG transacts with clients in both cash
instruments and derivatives, including fixed income, foreign currency, equity and commodity products.

ICG revenueis generated primarily from fees and spreads associated with these activities. ICG earns
fee income for assisting clients in clearing transactions, providing brokerage and investment banking
servicesand other such activities. Revenue generated fromthese activities is recorded in Commissions
and feesand Investment Banking. In addition, as a market maker, ICG facilitates transactions, including
holding product inventory to meet client demand, and earns the differential betweenthe price at which
it buys andsells the products. These price differentials and the unrealised gains and losses on the
inventory are recorded in Principal transactions.

ICGs international presence is supported by trading floors in approximately 80 countries and a
proprietary network in over 98 countries and jurisdictions. At 30 June 2017, ICG had approximately
$1.4 trillion of assets and $624 billion of deposits, while two of its businesses, securities services and
issuer services, managed approximately $16.5 trillion of assets under custody compared to $15.3
trillion at the end of the prior-year period.

Description of corporate structure/governance

Corporate system

CGMHI is a corporation organised under the laws of the State of New York in the United States of
America. To the best of its knowledge and belief, CGMHI complies with the federal laws and

regulations of the United States and ofthe laws and regulations of New York State regarding corporate
governance.

155



Description of Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc.

Corporate objects

CGMHI was "formed for the purposeofengaging in any lawfulact or activity for which corporations
may be organised under the Business Corporation law" of New York, as stated in Article SECOND of
CGMHI's Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

Authorisedandissuedshare capital

CGMHI's authorisedshare capital is 1,000 Common Stock of par value $0.01 and 10,000,000 Preferred

Stock of parvalue $1.00. CGMHI's issuedshare capital is 1,000 Common Stock which is fully paid up
and held by Citigroup Inc. No Preferred Stock has been issued.

Voting power of shareholders

Subject to the provisions of any applicable law or except as otherwise provided by the reso lution or
resolutions providing for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of outstanding shares of
Common Stockshallexclusively possess voting power for the election of directors and for all other
purposes, each holder of record of shares of Common Stock being entitled to one vote for each share of
Common Stock standing in his name on the books of CGMHI. At present, CGMHI has a single
shareholder of Common Stock being Citigroup Inc. and no holders of Preferred Stock. As such, the
shareholder of Common Stock has a controlling vote with respect to all matters submitted to a
shareholder vote. No Shareholder, orassociated group of shareholders acting together, owns enough
shares of Citigroup Inc.'scommon stock to directly or indirectly exercise control over Citigroup Inc.

Election of directors

The directors of CGMHI are as follows:

Name Title

James A. Forese See below

Scott L. Flood See below

The other officers of CGMHI are as follows:

Name Title

James A. Forese Chairman
Chief Executive Officer
President

Daniel S. Palomaki
Daniel S. Palomaki
Charles Marquardt
Gonzalo Martin
Victor Spadafora
Scott L. Flood

Donald Bendernagel
Sara Blotner

Robert F. Klein
Eugene Kwon
Stacey Berg Keller
Myongsu Kong
Moshe Malina
Anne Moses

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Accounting Officer
Controller

Treasurer

Assistant Treasurer
General Counsel
Secretary

Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
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Name Title

Rachel Stine Assistant Secretary
Regina Cameron Anderson Assistant Secretary
Ronny Ostrow Assistant Secretary
Sofia Rahman Assistant Secretary
Bogdana Sokolov Assistant Secretary
Carol Warren Assistant Secretary
Elizabeth Lidones Assistant Secretary

The members of the Notes Committee of CGMHI are as follows:
Notes Committee

Joseph Bonocore

John Gerspach

Gregory P. Kapp

Gonzalo Martin

Peter A. Mozer

Daniel S. Palomaki

Michael Verdeschi

Jeffrey Walsh

The main duties outside CGMHI performed by the directors and officers listed above are not
significant with respect to CGMHI.

The business address of each director and officer of CGMHI is 388 Greenwich Street, New York, NY
10013, United States of America.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing betweenany duties owed to CGMHI by the senior
management listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.

Audit Committee
CGMHI does not have an audit committee.
Dividends

Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of any series of
Preferred Stock, after payment shall have been made to the holders of Preferred Stock of the full
amount of dividends to whichthey shall be entitled pursuantto the resolution or resolutions providing
for the issueof any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled, to the
exclusion ofthe holders of Preferred Stock of any and all series, to receive such dividends as from time
to time may be declared by theboard of directors. At present, no series of Preferred Stock is issuedand
outstanding.

Liquidation, dissolution or winding up; pre-emptive rights

Except as otherwise provided by the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of any series of
Preferred Stock, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of CGMHI, whether
voluntary orinvoluntary, after payment shall have been made to the holders of Preferred Stock of the
fullamount to which they shall be entitled pursuant to the resolution or resolutions providing for the
issue ofany series of Preferred Stock, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled, to the exclusion
of the holders of Preferred Stock of any and all series, to share rateably according to the number of
shares of Common Stock held by them, in all remaining assets of CGMHI available for distribution. At
present, no series of Preferred Stock is issued and outstanding.
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No shareholders shall be entitled to any pre-emptive rights in respect of any securities of CGMHI.

Preferred stock

The board of directors is authorised, subject to limitations prescribed by lawand the provisions of the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to provide for the issuance of the shares of Preferred Stock in
series, and by filing a certificate pursuant tothe applicable law of the State of New York, to establish
fromtime to time the numberofshares tobe included in each such series, and to fixthe designation,
powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions of such shares.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CITIGROUP GLOBAL
MARKETS HOLDINGS INC.

The selectedfinancial information for CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries presented below is
extracted fromthe CGMHI 2016 Annual Report.

At or for the year ended 31 December
2016 (audited) 2015 (audited) 2014 (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Consolidated revenues, net of 9,877 11,049 11,760
interest expense

Consolidated income (loss) from 2,179 2,481 (1,052)
continuing  operations  before

income taxes

Consolidated net income (loss) 1,344 2,022 (1,718)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 420,815 390,817 412,264
Termdebt 49,416 53,702 42,207
Stockholder’s equity (fully paid):

Common 32,747 26,603 24,883

The selectedfinancial information for CGMHI and its consolidated subsidiaries presented below is
extracted fromthe CGMHI 2017 Half-Yearly Financial Report.

For the six months ended 30 June

2017 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Revenues, net of interest expense 5,451 4,737
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Income before income taxes 1,093 736
CGMHI's net income 607 431
At 30 June 2017 At 31 December 2016
(unaudited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 451,496 420,815
Termdebt 45,506 49,416
Stockholder’s equity (fully paid):

Common 33,340 32,747
Auditors

CGMHI's annual accounts as of 31 December 2016 and 2015 and for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2015 and 2014 were audited without qualification in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards in the United States by KPMG LLP, independent registered public accountants, 345 Park
Avenue, New York, New York 10154. The auditors of CGMHI have no material interest in CGMHI.
KPMG LLP is a member ofthe American Institute of Certified Public Accountants andis regulated by
the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

Use of Proceeds

A portion of the proceeds of any issue of Notes will be used by CGMHI and/or its subsidiaries for
general corporate purposes, which include making a profit.

Material Contracts

CGMHI has no contracts thatare material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued
by it.

Corporate Authorities

The accession of CGMHI to the Programme was duly authorised by a certificate of the Notes
Committee of CGMHI dated 23 December 2015 and pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors
of CGMHI on 21 December 2015 and the update of the Programme has been duly authorised by
certificates of the Notes Committee of CGMHI dated 13 December 2016 and 15 December 2017 and
pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of CGMHI on 15 April 2016, as amended on 22
December 2016.

Legal proceedings

Fora discussionof CGMHI's material legal and regulatory matters, see Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in the CGMHI 2016 Annual Report and Note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in the CGMHI 2017 Half-Yearly Financial Report. For a discussion of
Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, of which the matters discussed in Notes 15 and
14 (as specified above) are a part, see (i) Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the documents referenced
above, neither CGMHI nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in, or has been involved in, any
governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that may have hadin the twelve months before the date
of the CGMHI Base Prospectus, a significanteffect onthe financial position or profitability of CGMHI
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or CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, nor, so far as CGMHI is aware, are any such
proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adverse change

There has been nosignificantchange in the consolidated financial or trading position of CGMHI and
its subsidiaries takenas awhole since 30 June 2017 (the date of the most recently published unaudited
interim financial statements of CGMHI) and there has beenno material adverse change in the financial
positionorprospects of CGMHI and its subsidiaries taken as a whole since 31 December 2016 (the
date of the most recently published audited annual financial statements of CGMHI).
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SECTION D.3 — DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS FUNDING
LUXEMBOURG S.C.A

Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A. ("CGMFL") was incorporated as a corporate
partnership limited by shares (société en commandite par actions) on 24 May 2012 under the laws of
Luxembourg, including the law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies asamended from time to
time (the "Companies Act 1915") for an unlimited duration with its registered office at 31, Z.A.
Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Luxembourg and is registered with the Register of Trade and
Companies of Luxembourg (Registre de commerce et des sociétiés, Luxembourg) under number B
169.199. CGMFL has been established for the purpose, among others, of granting loans or other forms
of funding directly or indirectly in whatever formor means to any entities in the same group.

The issued share capital of CGMFL is two million and fifty-one Euro (EUR2,000,051) divided into:

. one (1) share with a nominal value of one Euro (EURL.-) (action de commandité, the
"Unlimited Share™) held by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.ar.l., a
private limited liability company (sociétéa responsabilité limitée) incorporated under the laws
of Luxembourg, having its registered office at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg, having a share capital of twenty-seven thousand and five hundred Euro
(EUR27,500) and registeredwith the Register of Trade and Companies of Luxembourg under
number B 169.149 (the "Unlimited Shareholder");

. one million nine hundred ninety-ninethousand nine hundred ninety-nine (1,999,999) shares
with a nominal value of one Euro (EURL.-) each (actions de commanditaire, the "Limited
Shares") held (i) by the Unlimited Shareholder for one (1) Limited Share and (ii) by Citigroup
Global Markets Limited ("CGML"), a private limited company, incorporated under the laws
of the United Kingdom, having its registered office at Citigroup Centre, Canada Square,
Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB, United Kingdom, registration number 1763297 for one
million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-eight (1,999,998) Limited
Shares (the "Limited Shareholders™ and together with the Unlimited Shareholder the
"Shareholders"); and

. fifty-one (51) classes of limited preference shares with a nominal value of one Euro (EURL.-)
each held by CGML.

CGMFL is managed by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.a r.I. The Board of
Managers (as defined below) provides independent management of CGMFL. CGMFL is a wholly
owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. No shareholder, or associated group of shareholders acting
together, owns enough shares of Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly or indirectly exercise
control over Citigroup Inc.

CGMFL's registered office is situated at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht, L-8070 Bertrange, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg and the telephone number is +352 45 14 14 447.

The amended and restated articles (statuts coordonnés) of CGMFL dated 14 September 2017 (the
Articles) have been published in the "Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations” on 27
September 2017. The Articles have been as amended by thenotarial deeds dated 16 October 2017 and
15 November 2017, published in the "Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations" on 23
November 2017 and 28 November 2017, respectively, and they will be further amended via a notarial
deed to be passedon orabout 15 December 2017 for the purpose of reflecting and instrumenting the
resolutions ofthe board of managers ofthe Corporate Manager of CGMFL to increasethe Company’s
share capital by way ofthe issuance of new classes of limited preference shares within the Company’s
authorised share capital adopted on 28 November 2017 (in relation to the limited preference share
class 48), on 29 November 2017 (in relation to the limited preference share class 49 and the limited
preference share class 50) and on 30 November 2017 (in relation to the limited preference share
class 51 and the limited preference share class 52). As at the date hereof, the limited preference
share class 47 has not been issued.
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Management of CGMFL

CGMFL is managed by Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg GP S.a r.l. in its capacity as
manager (the " Corporate Manager™).

The following table sets forth the names of the members of the board of managers of the Unlimited
Shareholder being the Corporate Manager (the "Board of Managers") as of the date of this Base
Prospectus:

@ Ms Alberta Brusi, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg;

(b) Mr. Vincent Mazzoli, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg; and

(c) Mr. Steven Caluwaerts, with professional address at 31, Z.A. Bourmicht L-8070 Bertrange,
Luxembourg.

Alberta Brusi is the Citi Country Officer ("CCO") for Luxembourg and Head of Operations and
Technology for the Beneluxcluster.

She joined Citi in December 1996, in the Italy Financial Control team. She was responsible for the
Capital Markets business reporting and US legal entity regulatory reporting for Institutional Client
Group ("ICG"). She transferred to Citi London in 2003 and was given the responsibility for ICG
Finance oversightof Western Europe, comprising eighteen countries with responsibility as Controller
for the Benelux franchises. In late 2005 she returned to Milan to become Chief of Staff to the Citi

Country Officer for Italy. In 2012, she expanded her responsibilities and was appointed Chief
Administrative Officer and Operations and Technology head for the country.

Alberta Brusihas a Bachelor of Arts degree in Classical Literature and a Bachelor of Commerce after
degree, both from University of Alberta, and Edmonton Canada.

Alberta Brusi was appointed as Manager on 10 September 2015 for an unlimited duration.

Vincent Mazzoli is Conducting Officer within Citigroup Global Markets Luxembourg since October
2014.

Vincent Mazzoli has been with Citigroup for over 19 years and has had several responsibilities in

Operations, Investor Services, product, control and governance. He is amember ofthe EMEA Issuance
Solutions teamwithin the Multi-Asset Group.

Vincent Mazzoli was appointed as Manager on 19 March 2015 for an unlimited duration.

Vincent Mazzoli holds adegree and a master degree in Finance and Banking fromthe University of
Liege (Belgium).

Steven Caluwaerts is the Luxembourg Global Funds Services Head, responsible for the Luxembourg
funds business.

He joined Citi in 2000 as the Business Implementation and Support Head within our Luxembourg
operations. In 2005, Steven Caluwaerts transferred to Funds Product, where he had several positions

and participated in numerous key initiatives.
Prior to joining Citi, Steven Caluwaerts worked for FASTNET/CACEIS.

Steven Caluwaerts holds a Civil Engineer degree from Vrije Universiteit Brussel and an MBA from
KU Leuven (Belgium).

Steven Caluwaerts was appointed as Manager on 1 August 2016 for an unlimited duration.

There are no potential conflicts of interest existing betweenany duties owed to CGMFL by the board
of managers listed above and their private interests and/or other duties.
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Principal activities

As set out in Clause 4 in the Articles of CGMFL, the corporate object of CGMFL is the granting of
loans or other forms of funding directly or indirectly in whatever form or means to any entities
belongingto thesame group (e.g. including, butnotlimited to, by subscription of bonds, debentures,
otherdebtinstruments, advances, thegranting of pledges orthe issuing of other guarantees ofany kind
to secure the obligations of any entities, through derivatives or otherwise).

CGMFL may finance itself in whatever form including, without limitation, through borrowing or
throughissuance of listed or unlisted notes and other debt or equity instruments, convertible or not (e g.
including butnot limited to bonds, notes, loan participation notes, subordinated notes, promissory
notes, certificates, shares (whether preference or not) and warrants) including under stand-alone issues,
medium termnote and commercial paper programmes.

CGMFL may also:

@) grant security for funds raised, including notes and other debt or equity instruments issued,
and for the obligations of CGMFL,; and

(b) enterinto allnecessary agreements, including, but not limited to underwriting agreements,
marketing agreements, management agreements, advisory agreements, administration
agreementsand other contracts for services, selling agreements, deposit agreements, fiduciary
agreements, hedging agreements, interest and/or currency exchange agreements and other
financial derivative agreements, bank and cash administration agreements, liquidity facility
agreements, credit insurance agreements and any agreements creating any kind of security
interest.

In addition to the foregoing, CGMFL can perform all legal, commercial, technical and financial
investments oroperations and, in general, all transactions which are necessary or useful to fulfil its

objects aswellas all operations connected directly or indirectly to facilitating the accomplishment of
its purpose in all areas described above.

CGMFL's Articles and Luxembourg law however prohibit it fromentering into any transaction which
would constitute a regulated activity of the financial sector or require a business licence under
Luxembourg law without due authorisation under Luxembourg law.

CGMFL grants loans and other forms of fundingto entities belonging to the same group and therefore
competes in any market in which the Group has a presence.

Corporate Governance

No corporate governance regime to which CGMFL would be subject exists in Luxembourg as of the
date of this Base Prospectus.

Share Capital

CGMFL has a share capital of two million and fifty-one Euro (EUR2,000,051.-), represented by two
million and fifty-one (2,000,051) shares, divided into (i) one million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand
nine hundred ninety-nine (1,999,999) Limited Shares, (ii) one (1) Unlimited Share and (iii) fifty-one
(51) classesof limited preference shares (the "Preference Shares™), having a nominal value of one
Euro (1.-) each. All the 500,000 ofthe limited shares and theunlimited share have been partially paid
up and the Preference Shares have been fully paid up, foran amount of five hundred and five thousand
five hundred and thirty-two Euro and fifty cents (EUR505,532.50).

Limited Unlimited  Preference  Subscription
Shares: Share: Share Price in Euro
Citigroup  Global  Markets 1 - - 0.25

Funding Luxembourg GP S.ar.l.
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Limited Unlimited  Preference  Subscription
Shares: Share: Share Price in Euro
1 0.25
Citigroup  Global  Markets
Limited 1,999,998 - 499,999.50
- - 51 5,532.50
Total Shares/Subscription
Price 1,999,999 1 51 505,532.50
Total Capitalisation EUR 2,000,051

CGMFL has an authorised capital of one hundred thousand Euro (EUR100,000.-) represented by a
maximum ofone hundred thousand (100,000) limited preference shares, havinganominal value ofone
Euro (EURL.-) each and which may be divided into different classes. As of the date of this Base
Prospectus, ninety-ninethousand nine-hundred and forty-nine Euro (EUR99,949.-) of such authorised
capital remains available.

Approved Statutory Auditor (Réviseur d'entreprises agréé) and financial year

CGMFL's approvedstatutory auditor (réviseur d'enterprises agréé) is KPMG Luxembourg Société
Coopérative (formerly KPMG Luxembourg S.a.r.l), a private limited liability company (société a
responsibilité limitée) incorporated and existing under Luxembourg law, havingits registered office at
39, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg and registered with the Register of Commerce and
Companies of Luxembourg under number B 149 133 ("KPMG Luxembourg"), who has been
appointedforan unlimited duration by the first extraordinary general meeting of the Shareholders of
CGMFL by a resolution dated 24 May 2012. KPMG Luxembourg is a member of the Institut des
Réviseurs d'Entreprises.

CGMFL's fiscal year startson 1 January and ends on 31 December each year, except for the first fiscal
year that started on the date of incorporation of CGMFL and ended on 31 December 2012.

KPMG Luxembourg audited the CGMFL 2016 Annual Report. KPMG Luxembourg expressed an
unqualified opinion on the CGMFL 2016 Annual Report.

Taxation

CGMFL is subjectto thetaxlaws of Luxembourg on income and does not have any special tax status.
It is, therefore, in principle entitled to the benefits of taxtreaties concluded between the Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg and other countries (subject to the acceptance of such contracting states).
Employees

CGMFL has no employees.

Selected Financial Information

The tables belowset out, in summary form, key financial information for CGMFL. The summary was
extracted fromCGMFL's Annual Report forthe period ended on 31 December 2016, which was filed

for publication with the Register of Commerce and Companies of Luxembourg on 28 April 2017:

At or for the year ended At or for the year ended

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
(audited) (audited)
EUR EUR
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 681,476 822,481
Structured notes purchased 2,283,259,926 455,484,248
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Index linked certificates purchased

Derivatives assets

Current income taxassets
Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Bank loans and overdrafts
Structured notes issued

Index linked certificates issued
Derivatives liabilities
Redeemable preference shares
Other liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

At or for the year ended

31 December 2016

(audited)

81,407,634
71,586,573

8,838
141,203

2,437,085,650

2,283,259,926
81,407,634
71,586,573
1,234

388,353

6,144

2,436,649,864

500,000
(64,214)

435,786
2,437,085,650

At or for the year ended
31 December 2015
(audited)

792,416

8,838
3,786

457,111,769

93,496
455,484,248

792,416
1
291,328

456,661,489

500,000
(49,720)

450,280
457,111,769

The tables belowset out asummary of key financial information extracted from CGMFL's unaudited
interim report and financial statements for the sixmonth period ended 30 June 2017:

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Structured notes purchased

Indexlinked certificates purchased

Derivative assets
Current income taxassets
Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Bank loans and overdrafts
Structured notes issued

At 30 June 2017 At 30 June 2016
(unaudited) (unaudited)

EUR

599,642 924,143

2,659,765,264 1,669,142,697

520,665,896 -

214,964,815 7,382,059

16,198 8,839

497,460 40,620

3,396,509,275 1,677,498,358

- 93,496

2,659,765,264 1,669,142,698
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Index linked certificates issued
Derivative liabilities
Redeemable preference shares
Other liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Other Comprehensive Income
Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

Total liabilities and equity

Interest and similar income

Interest expense and similar charges

Net interest expense

Net fee and commission income
Net trading income

Net income from financial instruments at

fair value through profit or loss
Other income

Total operating income

General and administrative expenses

Profit (Loss) before income tax

Income taxexpense

Profit (Loss) for the period/year

Other comprehensive income for the

period/year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the

financial period

Accounts

520,665,896
214,964,815
2,700
613,367
6,144

3,396,018,186

500,000
11,508
(20,419)
491,089

3,396,509,275

For the six months

7,382,059
439
164,533
79,507

1,676,862,732

500,000
135,626;
635,626
1,677,498,358

ended 30 June 2017 For the six months ended

(unaudited) 30 June 2016 (unaudited)
EUR EUR

175,152 162,019

175,152 162,019

(131,358) 102,834

43,794 264,853

- (79,507)

43,794 185,346

43,794 185,346

CGMFL prepares annual and half yearly non-consolidated accounts. The first annual accounts were
prepared in respectofthe period fromthe date of its incorporationto 31 December 2012 in accordance
with the Articles and were published by CGMFL on 7 June 2013.
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In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1915, CGMFL will publish its audited annual
accountsonan annual basis following approval of the annual accounts by the annual general meeting
of the Shareholders.

Any future published audited annual accounts orunaudited half yearly accounts prepared for CGMFL
will be obtainable free of charge fromthe registered office of CGMFL in Luxembourg, as described in
the section entitled "Documents Available for Inspection”.

Material Contracts

Apart fromany agreements entered into by it in connection with the Programme or the Citi Warrant
Programme, CGMFL has not entered intoany material contracts otherthanin the ord inary course of its
business.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of theissue of Notes by CGMFLwill be used primarily to grant loans or other forms
of funding to Citigroup Global Markets Limited and any entity belongingto the same group, and may
be used to finance CGMFL itself.

Corporate authorities

The issuance of the Notes by CGMFL and any other relevant corporate actions in relation to the
issuanceofthe Notes havebeenauthorised pursuant to resolutions of the board of managers of the
Corporate Manager of CGMFL on 26 June 2013, 24 September 2013, 24 September 2014,
25 September 2015, 16 December 2015, 7 December 2016 and 14 December 2017.

Legal proceedings

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q and (iv) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referenced above, CGMFL has not beeninvolved in any governmental, legal or arbitration
proceedings that may have had, in the twelve months preceding the date of the CGMFL Base
Prospectus, a significant effect on CGMFL's financial position or profitability nor, so far as CGMFL is
aware, are any such proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant change and material adwerse change

There has been nosignificantchange in the financial or trading position of CGMFL since 30 June 2017
(the date of its most recently published unaudited interimfinancial statements) and there has been no
material adversechange in the financial positionor prospects of CGMFL since 31 December 2016 (the
date of its most recently published audited annual financial statements).

All Monies Guarantee Granted by CGML

On 11 May 2017 CGML granted a guarantee (the formofwhich is set out in Section D.50n pages 172
to 176 below)underwhich CGML unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees payment of all sums
payable by CGMFL in respect of any liability of CGMFL of any kind and in any currency (whether
presentor future, actual or contingentandwhether incurred alone or jointly with another) together with
all the charges, commission, interest and expenses payable by CGMFL in connectionwith the relevant
liability (the " All Monies Guarantee™). The AllMonies Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional,
unsubordinatedand unsecured obligations of CGML and ranks and will rank pari passu (subject to

mandatorily preferred debts under applicable laws) with all other outstanding, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of CGML.

While the All Monies Guarantee given by CGML will cover cash payment obligations of CGMFL
under its Notes, the AllMonies Guarantee does not materially change the position of Noteholders asall
obligations of CGMFL in connection with the Notes are already guaranteed by CGML under the
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existing CGMFL Deed of Guarantee. The AllMonies Guaranteeis without prejudice to, and does not
affectin any way, the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee or CGML's obligations under the CGMFL Deed of
Guarantee.
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SECTION D.4 — DESCRIPTION OF CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED

Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") is a private company limited by shares and was
incorporated in England and Wales on 21 October 1983. CGML operates under the laws of England
and Wales including the Companies Act and is domiciled in England. Its registered office is at
Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB and its telephone number is +44
(0)20 7986 4000. The registration number of CGML is 01763297 on the register maintained by
Companies House.

Directors of CGML
The directors of CGML are:

Name Position at CGML
J.C. Cowles Director
D.L. Taylor Director
S.H. Dean Director
P. McCarthy Director
J. Bardrick Director
L. Arduini Director
R. Goulding Director
C. Ardalan Director

Thebusiness address of each director of CGML in his capacity as such is Citigroup Centre, Canada
Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB. There are no potential conflicts of interest existing between
any duties owedto CGML by the board of directors listed above and their private interests and/or other
duties. There are no principal activities performed by the directors outside of CGML which are
significant with respect to CGML.

Principal activities

CGML is awholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. and has a major international presence
as a dealer, market maker and underwriter in equity, fixed income securities and commodities, as well
as providingadvisory services to awide range of corporate, institutional and government clients. It is
headquarteredin London, and operates globally. CGML is authorised by the Prudential Regulation

Authority ("PRA") and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") and the PRA.
Corporate Governance

To the best of its knowledge and belief, CGML complies with the laws and regulations of England
regarding corporate governance.

Share capital of CGML and major shareholders

As at 30 June 2017, the fully paid up issued share capital of CGML was U.S.$1,499,626,620 made up
of 1,499,626,620 ordinary shares of U.S.$1.

All of the issued share capital of CGML is owned by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas
Limited (100 per cent.)which is an indirect subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. No shareholder or associated

group of shareholders acting together owns enoughshares of Citigroup Inc.'s common stock to directly
or indirectly exercise control over Citigroup Inc.
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Selected Financial Information

The following table sets out, in summary form, selected financial information for CGML. The
summary was extracted from the audited financial information of CGML for the year ended 31
December 2016, which was published on 18 July 2016.
At or for the year ended 31 December
2016 (audited) 2015 (audited)
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Gross Profit 2,735 3,259
Commission income and fees 1,320 2,063
Net dealing income 1,612 1,237
Operating profit/loss ordinary

activities before taxation 380 373

Balance Sheet Data:

Totalassets 345,608 323,339
Debt (Subordinated) 4,585 5,437
Total Shareholder's funds 13,880 13,447

Thetable below sets out a summary of key financial information extracted from CGML's unaudited
interim report for the six-month period ended 30 June 2017.

At or for the six month period ended

30 June 2016
30 June 2017 (unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Income Statement Data:

Gross Profit......cccccevveeiecciiceeseesennn 1,775 1,423
Commission income and fees ........cc....... 583 593
Net dealing INCOME......cccvvvvvvvveeriririirie 1,391 942
Operating profit/loss ordinary activities
before taxation..........ccccoveevvcv i, 474 277
30 June 2017 31 December 2016
(unaudited) (audited)

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Balance Sheet Data:

TOtal @SSELS ..ovvviiicicice e 372,404 345,608
Debt (Subordinated) .........cccoeovvnccninenn. 2,918 4,585
Total Shareholder's funds........c.cccveveneee. 15,957 13,880

Auditor of CGML

CGML's auditor is KPMG LLP, having its registered office at 15 Canada Square, London E14 5GL.
KPMG LLP is regulated by the Financial Reporting Council. KPMG are members of the UK's
chartered accountants' professional body, ICAEW, of Chartered Accountants' Hall, Moorgate Place,
London EC2R 6EA.
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KPMG LLP audited the financial statements of CGML for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2016 and expressed an unqualified opinionon such financial statements in its reports
dated 31 March 2016 and 30 March 2017.

Material Contracts

CGML has no contracts that are material to its ability to fulfil its obligations under any Notes issued by
CGMFL.

Corporate authorities

CGML has obtainedall necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in England in connection with
the CGMFL Deed of Guarantee.

Significant or Material Adwerse Change

There has been (i) no significantchange in the financial or trading position of CGML or CGML and its
subsidiaries as awhole since 30 June 2017 (the date of its most recently published unaudited interim
financial statements) and (ii) no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of
CGML or CGML and its subsidiaries as awhole since 31 December 2016 (the date of its most recently
published audited annual financial statements).

Litigation

For a discussion of Citigroup Inc.'s material legal and regulatory matters, see (i) Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K, (ii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q, (iii) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q, and (iv) Note 23 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3 Form 10-Q. Save as disclosed in the
documents referencedabove, CGML is notand has not been involved in any governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which
CGML is aware) in the twelve months preceding the date of the CGMFL Base Prospectus which may
have orhave in such period hada significant effecton the financial position or profitability of CGML
or CGML and its subsidiaries as a whole.
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SECTION D.5 - FORM OF CGMFL ALL MONIES GUARANTEE

THIS DEED OF GUARANTEE is made on 11 May 2017 by Citigroup Global Markets Limited (the
Guarantor) in favour of each Beneficiary (as defined below).

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

1.

DEFINITIONS
As defined herein:

"Beneficiary” meansany personwho is owedany sum or amount which is due and payable
by CGMFL under or in respect of any Liability;

"CGMFL" means Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg S.C.A,;

"Liabilities" means all the liabilities of CGMFL of any kind and in any currency (whether
present or future, actual or contingent and whether incurred alone or jointly with another)
together with all the charges, commission, interest and expenses payable by CGMFL in
connection with the relevant liability; and

"Taxes" includes all present and future income and other taxes, levies, duties, imposts,
deductions charges, fees and withholdings, in each case as imposed or levied by or on behalf
of the United Kingdom, together with interest thereon and penalties with respect thereto (if
any).

Where the context so admits, the singular includes the pluraland vice versa. Headings are for
convenience of reference only.

DEED OF GUARANTEE

Subject as provided herein, the Guarantor irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees by way
of deed pollto each Beneficiary that if, for any reason, CGMFL does not pay any sumpayable
by it to such Beneficiary under or in respect of any Liability including any premiumor any
otheramounts of whatever nature oradditional amounts which may become payable under the
foregoing as andwhen the same shall become due and payable under any of the foregoing, the
Guarantor will duly and promptly payto such Beneficiary on therequest of such Beneficiary
the sumor the amount payable by CGMFL to or for such Beneficiary.

GUARANTOR AS PRINCIPAL OBLIGOR

Without affecting CGMFL's obligations, the Guarantor will be liable under this Deed of
Guarantee as if it were the sole principal obligorand not merely a surety. Accordingly, it will
not be discharged, norwill its liability be affected, by anything which would not discharge it
or affect its liability if it were the sole principal obligor (including (a) any time, indulgence,
waiveror consent at any time given to CGMFL or any other person, (b) any amendment to
any Liability or to any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (¢) the making or absence of
any demand on CGMFL orany other person for payment, (d) the enforcement or absence of
enforcement of any Liability or of any security or other guarantee or indemnity, (€) the release
of any such security, guarantee orindemnity, (f) the dissolution, amalgamation, reconstruction
or reorganisation of CGMFL or any other person, (g) the illegality, invalidity or
unenforceability of or any defect in any provision of any Liability or any of CGMFL's
obligationsunderorin respectofa Liability or (h) any otheract, event oromission which but
for this sub-Clause might operate to discharge, impair or otherwise affect the obligations
expressedto be assumed by the Guarantor herein or any of the rights, powers or remedies
conferred upon the Beneficiaries or any of them by this Deed of Guarantee or by law).
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GUARANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS CONTINUING

The Guarantor's obligations under this Deed of Guarantee are irrevocable and are and will
remain in full force and effect by way of continuing security in respect of any outstanding
Liabilities. Furthermore, these obligations of the Guarantor are additional to, and not instead
of, any security or other guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of a
Beneficiary, whether fromthe Guarantor or otherwise. The Guarantor irrevocably waives all
notices and demands whatsoever.

REPAYMENT TO CGMFL

If any payment or amount received by a Beneficiary is, on the subsequent liquidation or
insolvency of CGMFL, avoided under any laws relating to liquidation or insolvency, such
payment will not be considered as having discharged or diminished the liability of the
Guarantorand this Deed of Guarantee will continue to apply as if such payment or amount
had at all times remained owing by CGMFL.

INDEMNITY

As aseparate andalternative stipulation, the Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably agrees
thatany sumamount expressedto be payable by CGMFL underor in respect of any Liability
but which is forany reason (whether or not now known or becoming known to CGMFL, the
Guarantororany Beneficiary) notrecoverable fromthe Guarantor on the basis of a guarantee
will nevertheless be recoverable fromit as if it were the sole principal debtor and will be paid
by it to the Beneficiary on therequest of such Beneficiary subject as provided herein. This
indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation fromthe other obligations in this
Deed of Guarantee, givesrise to a separate and independent cause of action and will apply
irrespective of any indulgence granted by any Beneficiary.

STATUS OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

This Deed of Guarantee shall take effect as a deed poll for the benefit of each Beneficiary
fromtime to time and for the time being, each of which shall be entitled severally to enforce
this Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor. The payment obligations of the Guarantor
underthis Deed of Guarantee constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Guarantor and rank and will at all times at least rank pari passu with all
otherunsecured and unsubordinated outstanding obligations of the Guarantor, save for such
oblilgati(_)ns asmay be preferred by provisions of lawthat are both mandatory and of general
application.

SETTLEMENT CONDITIONAL

Any settlementordischarge between the Guarantor and the Beneficiaries orany of themshall
be conditionaluponno paymentto the Beneficiaries or any of them by the Guarantor or any
otherpersonon the Guarantor's behalf beingavoided or reduced by virtue of any laws relating
to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws of generalapplication for the time being
in force and, in the eventofany suchpaymentbeingsoavoided orreduced, the Beneficiaries
shallbe entitled to recoverthe amount by which such paymentis so avoided or reduced from
the Guarantor subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred PROVIDED
THAT such recovery is not contrary to any law applicable thereto.

NO PRIOR ACTION REQUIRED

No Beneficiary shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies
conferred upon it by this Deed of Guarantee or by law:

(@) to make any demand of CGMFL;

(b) to take any action or obtain judgment in any court against CGMFL,; or
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

(c) to make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up or dissolution of CGMFL,

and the Guarantor hereby expressly waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of
dishonour in respect of each Liability.

POSTPONEMENT OF GUARANTOR'S RIGHTS

The Guarantor agrees that, so long as any sums and or amounts are or may be owed by
CGMFL under or in respect of the Liabilities or CGMFL is under any other actual or
contingent obligation thereunder or in respect thereof, the Guarantor will not exercise any
right which the Guarantor may at any time have by reason of the performance by the
Guarantor of its obligations hereunder:

(@) to claim any contribution fromany other guarantor of CGMFL's obligations under or
in respect of the Liabilities;

(b) to take the benefit (in whole or in part) of any security enjoyed in connection with the
Liabilities by any Beneficiary; or

(c) to be subrogated to the rights of any Beneficiary against CGMFL in respect of
amounts paid by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee.

TAXATION

All payments by the Guarantorunder or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee shall be
made free and clear of and without deduction for or on account of all Taxes. All Taxes in
respect of this Deed of Guarantee and payments thereunder shall be for the account of and
shallbe paid by the Guarantor for its own accountprior to the date on which penalties attach
thereto. If the Guarantor is compelled by law to make payment subject to any Taxand a
Beneficiary does not actually receive for its own benefit on the due date the fullamount
provided for hereunder, the Guarantor will pay all necessary additional amounts to ensure
receipt by the Beneficiary of the fullamount so provided for. The Guarantor will indemnify
each Beneficiary in respect of all such Taxes.

POWER TO EXECUTE

The Guarantor hereby warrants, represents and covenants with each Beneficiary that it has all
corporate power, and that it has taken all necessary corporate or other steps, to enable it to
execute, deliver and perform this Deed of Guarantee, and that this Deed of Guarantee
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Guarantor in accordance with its terms.

NO SET-OFF OR COUNTERCLAIM

All paymentsto be made by the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee will be calculated
and be made without (and free and clear of any deduction for) set-off or counterclaim.

PRODUCTION OF DEED OF GUARANTEE

The Guarantor hereby acknowledges the right of every Beneficiary to the production of, and
the right of every Beneficiary to obtain (upon payment of a reas onable charge) a copy of, this
Deed of Guarantee, and further acknowledges and covenants that the obligations binding upon
it contained herein are owed to, and shall be for the account of, each and every Beneficiary,

and that each Beneficiary shall be entitled severally to enforce the said obligations against the
Guarantor.

STAMP DUTIES

The Guarantor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes and duties (including any
interest and penalties thereon or in connection therewith) which are payable upon orin
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

connectionwith the execution and delivery of this Deed of Guarantee, and shall indemnify
each Beneficiary against any claim, demand, action, liability, damages, cost, loss or expense
(including, without limitation, legal fees and any applicable value added tax) which it incurs
as aresultorarising out of or in relation to any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the
same.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If at any time any provision thereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any
respect under the laws of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity orenforceability of the
remaining provisions hereof northe legality, validity or enforceability of such provisionunder
the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

NOTICES

All notices, demands and other communications to the Guarantor hereunder shall be made in
writing (by letter) and shall be sent to the Guarantor at:

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

Canada Square, Canary Wharf
London, El4 5LB

England

Attention: Company Secretary

or to such other address or for the attention of such other person or department as the
Guarantor has notified to the Beneficiaries.

Every notice, demand or other communication sent in accordance with this Clause 17 shall be
effective uponreceipt by the Guarantor PROVIDED THAT any suchnotice, demand or other
communication which would otherwise take effecton a day whichis not a business day in the
place of the Guarantor or after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until
10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business day in the place of the Guarantor.

GOVERNING LAW
This Deed of Guarantee and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection

with this Deed of Guarantee are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with,
English law.

RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES
No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

to enforce any termofthis Deed of Guarantee, butthis does notaffect any right or remedy of
any person which exists or is available apart fromthat Act.

JURISDICTION

The English courts haveexclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute including a dispute relating
to non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this Deed of Guarantee.
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IN WITNESS whereofthe Guarantor has caused this Deed of Guarantee to be duly executed on the
day and year first above mentioned.

Executed as a deed )
by CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LIMITED )
acting by )

acting underthe authority of that
company, in the presence of:

Witness's Signature:
Name:

Address:
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SECTION D.6 — ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES - CITIGROUP INC.

CITIGROUP INC. 2016 FORM 10-K

The Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K contains several alternative performance measures (" APMs"). For
further details on (i) the components of the APMs, (ii) how these APMs are calculated, (iii) an
explanation of why such APMs provide useful information for investorsand (iv) a reconciliation to the
nearest equivalent US GAAP measures, please see references to " Non-GAAP Financial Measures" in
the Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K and the table below:

APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form
10-K Page Reference for
Basis of Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Results of Operations
Excluding the impact of
CVA/DVA

Results of Operations
Excluding the impact of
Foreign Currency
Translation ("FX
translation™)

Common Equity Tier 1
Capitalratio

Supplementary Leverage
Ratio

Citi’s results of operations excluding
the impact of CVA/DVA are non-
GAAPfinancial measures. Beginning
in the first quarter of 2016, the portion
of the change in the fair value of on
liabilities related to changes in
Citigroup’s own credit spreads
("DVA")are reflected as acomponent
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income; previously these amounts
were recognized in Citigroup’s
revenues and net income. In the
Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form 10-K,
results for 2015 and 2014 exclude the
impact of CVA/DVA, as applicable,
for consistency with the currentyear’s
presentation.

Citi’s results of operations excluding
the impact of FX translation are non-
GAAP financial measures. Citi
believes the presentation of its results
of operations excluding the impact of
FX translation provides a more
meaningful depiction for investors of
the underlying fundamentals of its
businesses.

Citi’s Basel III capital ratios and
related components, on a fully
implemented basis, are non-GAAP
financial measures. Citibelieves these
ratios and the related components
provide useful information to
investors and others by measuring
Citi’s progress against future
regulatory capital standards.

Citi’s Basel III capital ratios and
related components, on a fully
implemented basis, are non-GAAP
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APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2016 Form
10-K Page Reference for
Basis of  Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Tangible Common Equity
and Tangible Book Value
per Share

Return on Average
Tangible Common Equity

Results of Operations
Excluding the Impact of
gains/losses on Loan
Hedges

financial measures. Citibelieves these
ratios and the related components
provide useful information to
investors and others by measuring
Citi’s progress against future
regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information, as they
are used by investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes this capital metric
provides useful information, as they
are used by investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of gain/(loss) on loan hedges
related to accrual loans provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

CITIGROUP INC. 2017 Q1 FORM 10-Q

Pages 9and 53

Page 53

Pages 7 and 25

The Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1 Form 10-Q contains several APMs. For further details on (i) the
components ofthe APMs, (ii) howthese APMs are calculated, (iii) an explanation of why such APMs
provide usefulinformation for investors and (iv) a reconciliation to the nearest equivalent US GAAP
measures, please see references to "Non-GAAP Financial Measures™ in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q and the table below:

APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q Page Reference
for Basis of Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Results of Operations
Excluding the impact of
Foreign Exchange
Translation

Common Equity Tier1
Capitalratio

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of FX translation provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

Citi believes this ratio and its related

components provide useful

information to investors and others by

measuring Citi’s progress against

future regulatory capital standards.
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APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q1
Form 10-Q Page Reference
for Basis of Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Supplementary Leverage
Ratio

Tangible Common Equity
and Tangible Book Value
per Share

Core Net Interestrevenue
and Core Net Interest
Margin

Return on Tangible
Common Equity and
Return on Tangible
Common Equity excluding
Deferred Tax Asset

Results of Operations
Excluding the Impact of
gains/losses on Loan
Hedges

Citi believes thisratiosand its related
components provide useful
information to investors and others by
measuring Citi’s progress against
future regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information, as they
are used by investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes thepresentation of Core
Net Interest Revenue and Core Net
Interest Margin provides useful
information for investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information for
investors and industry analysts.

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of gain/(loss) on loan hedges
related to accrual loans provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

CITIGROUP INC. 2017 Q2 FORM 10-Q

Page 8, 27, 28, 33, 34, 35 40-
41

Page 8, 44, 72

Page 73

Page 44

5,23

The Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2 Form 10-Q contains several APMs. For further details on (i) the
components ofthe APMs, (ii) howthese APMs are calculated, (i) an explanation of why such APMs
provide usefulinformation for investors and (iv) a reconciliation to the nearest equivalent US GAAP
measures, please see references to "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" in the Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2
Form 10-Q and the table below:

APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2
Form 10-Q Page Reference
for Basis of Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Results of Operations
Excluding the impact of
Foreign Exchange
Translation

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of FX translation provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors  of the underlying
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APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q2
Form 10-Q Page Reference
for Basis of Calculation,
Components, Reconciliation
and Comparatives to
Previous Reporting Periods

Common Equity Tier1
Capitalratio

Supplementary Leverage
Ratio

Tangible Common Equity
and Tangible Book Value
per Share

Core Net Interestrevenue
and Core Net Interest
Margin

Return on Tangible
Common Equity and
Return on Tangible
Common Equity excluding
Deferred Tax Asset

Results of Operations
Excluding the Impact of
gains/losses on Loan
Hedges

fundamentals of its businesses.

Citi believes this ratio and its related
components provide useful
information to investors and others by
measuring Citi’s progress against
future regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes thisratiosand its related
components provide useful
information to investors and others by
measuring Citi’s progress against
future regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information, as they
are used by investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes thepresentation of Core
Net Interest Revenue and Core Net
Interest Margin provides useful
information forinvestorsandindustry
analysts.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information for
investors and industry analysts.

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of gain/(loss) on loan hedges
related to accrual loans provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

CITIGROUP INC. 2017 Q3 FORM 10-Q

Pages 5, 8, 37-43

Page 5, 8, 37, 44

Page 8 and 46,

Page 76

Page 8 and 46

5, 23-24

The Citigroup Inc. Q32017 Quarterly Report on Form10-Q contains several APMs. For further detaiks
on (i) the components of the APMs, (ii) how these APMs are calculated, (iii) an explanation of why
such APMs provide useful information for investors and (iv) a reconciliation to the nearest equivalent
US GAAP measures, pleaseseereferences to ""Non-GAAP Financial Measures" in the Citigroup Inc.
Q3 Quarterly Report and the table below:
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APM

Explanation of why use of APM
provides useful information

Citigroup Inc. 2017 Q3
Quarterly Report Page
Reference for Basis of
Calculation, Components,
Reconciliation and
Comparatives to Previous
Reporting Periods

Results of Operations
Excluding the impact of
Foreign Exchange
Translation

Common Equity Tier1
Capitalratio

Supplementary Leverage
Ratio

Tangible Common Equity
and Tangible Book Value
per Share

Core Net Interestrevenue
and Core Net Interest
Margin

Return on Tangible
Common Equity and
Return on Tangible
Common Equity excluding
Deferred Tax Asset

Results of Operations
Excluding the Impact of
gains/losseson Loan
Hedges

Results of Operations
Excluding the Gain on Sale

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of FX translation provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

Citi believes this ratio and its related
components provide useful
information to investors and others by
measuring Citi’s progress against
future regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes thisratiosand its related
components provide useful
information to investors and others by
measuring Citi’s progress against
future regulatory capital standards.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information, as they
are used by investors and industry
analysts.

Citi believes thepresentation of Core
Net Interest Revenue and Core Net
Interest Margin provides useful
information for investorsandindustry
analysts.

Citi believes these capital metrics
provide useful information for
investors and industry analysts.

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
impact of gain/(loss) on loan hedges
related to accrual loans provides a
more meaningful depiction for
investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.

Citi believes the presentation of its
results of operations excluding the
gain of sale related to accrual loans
providesamore meaningful depiction
for investors of the underlying
fundamentals of its businesses.
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SECTION D.7 — ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES - CGMFL GUARANTOR

CGMFL GUARANTOR 2016 ANNUAL REPORT

The CGML 2016 Annual Report contains several APMs. For further details on the components of the
APMs, howthese APMsare calculated, an explanation of why such APMs provide useful information
for investorsandareconciliation tothe nearestequivalent US GAAP measures, please see references
to "Non-GAAP Financial Measures™ in the CGML 2016 Annual Report and the table below:

APM Components  Basis of Reconciliation Explanation Comparatives
of APM calculation with financial of why useof and
(including statements APM reconciliations
any provides for
assumptions) useful corresponding
information  previous
reporting
period
Other Income "Other Sumof"Other Sumof"Other Acts as a Other Income
and Expenses  Finance Finance Finance subtotal/ and Bxpenses
(containedin  Income” and Income” and Income"™ and summary was presented
the Strategic  "Other "Other "Other in the Strategic
Report) Income" inthe Income”inthe Income"in the Report in the
Income Income Income CGML 2015
Statement Statement Statement Annual Report
and was
calculated in
the same
manner
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General Information relating to the Programme and the Notes

SECTION E - GENERAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE PROGRAMME AND THE
NOTES
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General Description of the Programme

SECTION E1 — GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Underthe Programme, each Issuer may fromtime to time issue notes pursuant to this Base Prospectus
(for the purpose of this Base Prospectus, the "Notes") including, for the avoidance of doubt, Notes
issued denominated or payable in any currency, subjectas set out herein. The applicable terms of any
Notes will be agreed betweenthe Issuerand, where applicable, therelevant Dealer prior to the issue of
the Notes and will be set out in the terms and conditions of the Notes which, for the purpose of Notes
issued pursuant to this Base Prospectus, shall mean the " Terms and Conditions ofthe Notes™" endorsed
on, scheduled to, orincorporated by reference into, the Notes, as completed by Part A ofthe applicable
Final Terms or as modified and/or supplemented, as applicable, by Part A of the applicable Pricing
Supplement in each case, as attached to, or endorsed on, such Notes.

All Notes issued by the Issuers under the Programme will be governedeither by English law or by the
law of the State of New York as specified in the applicable Issue Terms.

The aggregate principal amount of securities outstanding under the Programme will not at any time

exceed U.S.$30,000,000,000 (orthe equivalent in other currencies), subject to any increase or decrease
described herein.
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General Information relating to the Issue of Notes under this Base Prospectus

SECTION E2 — GENERAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ISSUE OF NOTES

UNDER THIS BASEPROSPECTUS

Applicationhas been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for Notes to be admitted to trading on
the Irish Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be listed on the Official List. The Irish

Stock Exchange's regulated market is a regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive.

Applicationmay be made for Notes to be listed onthe Italian Stock Exchange and admitted to
trading on the MoT orany other relevant market organised and managed by Borsa Italiana

S.p.A. butthere can beno assurance that any such listing will occuron or prior to the date of
issue of any Notes or at all.

Applicationmay be made for Notes to be listed on the London Stock Exchange and admitted
to trading on the regulated market of the London Stock Exchange, but there can be no
assurance that any such listing will occuron or priorto the date ofissue ofany Notes or at all.

Application may be made for the Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. to be listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, but there canbe no assurance that any such listing will occur
on or prior to the date of issue of any Notes or at all.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for Notes to be admitted to the
Official List and to tradingon the Irish Stock Exchange's global exchange market. The Irish
Stock Exchange's global exchange market is not a regu lated market for the purposes of the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive.

Applicationmay be made forthe Notes to be listed on the official list and admitted to trading
on the regulated market of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) but there can
be no assurancethatanysuch listing willoccuron or priorto the date ofissue ofany Notes, as
the case may be, or at all.

Applicationmay be made forthe Notes to be listed to the official list and admitted to trading
on the Open Market (regulated Unofficial Market) (Freiverkehr) of the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Borse Frankfurt AG) but there canbe no assurancethatany such listing will occur
on or prior to the date of issue of any Notes, as the case may be, or at all.

As specified in the applicable Issue Terms, an issue of Notes may or may not be listed or
admitted to trading, as the case may be, on the Irish Stock Exchange and/or the Italian Stock
Exchange and/orthe Luxembourg Stock Exchange and/or any other stock exchange or market
as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and
DTC. The address of Euroclear is 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert 1l, B-1210 Brussels, Belgium,
the address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg and the address of DTCis 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, United
States.

The Issuer may make an application for any Notes issued by it in registered formto be
accepted fortrading in book-entry formby DTC. The Common Code or CUSIP, as applicable
and the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for each Tranche of Notes will
be set out in the applicable Issue Terms.

The Issuer may make an application for clearance of Notes through Euroclear Sweden and
Euroclear Finland. The address of Euroclear Sweden is Euroclear Sweden AB, Box 191, 101
23 Stockholm, Sweden, the address of Euroclear Finland is Euroclear Finland Ltd., Visiting
Address, Urho Kekkosen katu 5C, PO Box 1110 001001 Helsinki, Finland.

None of the Issuers and Guarantors will provide any post issuance information, except if
required by any applicable laws and regulations.
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Issue of Notes

SECTION E3 - ISSUE OF NOTES

Notes will be issuedon a continuous basis in series (each a "Series"). The Notes of each Series are
intended to be interchangeable with all other Notes of that Series.

Each Series of Notes may be issued in tranches (eacha " Tranche™) having different issue dates but the
terms otherwise identical to other Tranches constituting such series (or identical other than in respect of

the first payment of interest).

The specific terms of each Tranche will be set forth in the applicable Issue Terms.
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SECTION E4 — FORM OF THE NOTES

Subject as provided below in relation to Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes, the Notes of each Series
will beinregistered form. Registered Notes may be offered andsold either outside the United States to
non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation Sunderthe Securities Act (" Regulation S") or, in the case
of Registered Notes issued by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI, within the United States to QIBs (as defined
below) in reliance on Rule 144A under the Securities Act ("Rule 144A").

Notes (that are not Swedish Notes or Finnish Notes) and are Registered Notes

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offeredandsold in reliance on Regulation S, which will be sold
in offshore transactions to persons thatare not U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) outside the
United States, will be represented by a Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate (a " Regulation
S Global RegisteredNote Certificate"). Beneficial interests in a Regulation S Global Registered Note
Certificate may not be offered, sold or transferred at any time in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, a U.S. person and may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg and such Regulation S Global Registered Note Certificate will beara legend
regarding such restrictions on transfer.

Each Note Certificate will be numbered serially with an identifying number which will be recorded in
the Register.

The Registered Notes of each Tranche offeredandsoldin reliance on Rule 144A, which will be iss ued
by Citigroup Inc. or CGMHI, may only be offered and sold in private transactions to "qualified
institutional buyers” within the meaning of Rule 144A ("QIBs"). The Registered Notes of each
Tranche sold to QIBs will be represented by a Rule 144A Global Registered Note Certificate (a "Rule
144 A Global RegisteredNote Certificate" and, together with a Regulation S Global Registered Note
Certificate, the "Global Registered Note Certificates™), and beneficial interests therein may not be
offered, sold or otherwise transferred at any time except to a QIB purchasing (or holding) the Notes for
its account or for the account of one or more QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A.

Global Registered Note Certificates will either (i) be depositedwith a custodian for, and registered in
the name ofa nominee of, the Depository TrustCompany (*DTC") for the accounts of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg or (ii) be deposited with a common depositary or, if the Global Registered
Note Certificate is to be held underthe newsafekeepingstructure (the "NSS") a common safekeeper
(the "Common Safekeeper™), as the case may be, for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, and
registered in the name of acommon nominee ofa common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the Common Safekeeper, as specified in the applicable
Issue Terms. Persons holding beneficial interests in Global Registered Note Certificates will be entitled
or required, as the case may be, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully registered form.

Where the Global Registered Note Certificate issue in respect of any Tranche is intended to be held
underthe NSS, the applicable Issue Terms will indicate whether or not such Global Registered Note
Certificate is intended tobe held in a manner which would allow Eurosystemeligibility. Any indication
that the Global Registered Note Certificate are to be so held does notnecessarily mean that the Notes
of the relevant Tranchewill be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystemeitheruponissue orat any time during their life as such
recognition depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The common safekeeper
for a Global Registered Note Certificate held under the NSS will be held either by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The Rule 144A Global Note will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer set forth therein and will
bear a legend regarding such restrictions.

Swedish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing Swedish Notes will be issued in dematerialised and uncertificated book-
entry form in accordance with the Swedish Act on Central Securities Depositories and Financial
Instruments Accounts (Sw. lag (1998:1479) omvardepapperscentraler och kontoféring av finansiella
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instrument) (the "SFIA Act"), other applicable Swedish legislation and the rules and regulations
applicable to, and/orissued by, Euroclear Sweden. Swedish Notes will not be issued in definitive or
global form.

Swedish Notes will be registered in a register kept by Euroclear Sweden on behalf of the Issuer (the
"Swedish Notes Register") and payments of principal, interestorany otheramounts on Swedish Notes
will be made by Euroclear Sweden onbehalf ofthe Issuerto the persons registered as holders of such
Swedish Notes in the Swedish Notes Register on the fifth StockholmBanking Day priorto the due date
of the relevant payment.

Finnish Notes

Notwithstanding the foregoing Finnish Notes will be issuedin uncertificated and dematerialised book
entry formin accordance with the Finnish Act on the Book-Entry Systemand Clearing (Fin. laki arvo-
osuusjarjestelmasta ja selvitystoiminnasta (749/2012, as amended)) and with the Finnish Acton Book-
Entry Accounts, (Fin. laki arvo osuustileistd (827/1991, as amended)) other applicable Finnish
legislation andthe rulesand regulations applicable to, and/or issued by, Euroclear Finland. Finnish
Notes will not be issued in definitive form.

Relationship of Accountholders with Clearing Systems

Forso long as any ofthe Notes is represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate held on behalf of
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream,
Luxembourg as the holder of a particular principal amount of such Notes (in which regard any
certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the principal
amount of such Notes standingto the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the CGMHI Guarantor
(where the Issueris CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issueris CGMFL) and the Agents as
the holder of such principal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the
payment of principal or interest on such principal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the
registered holder ofthe relevant Global Registered Note Certificate shall be treated by the Issuer, the
CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issueris CGMHI), the CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issueris CGMFL)
and each Agentasthe holder of such principalamount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to
the terms of the relevant Global Registered Note Certificate and the expressions " Noteholder" and
"holder of Notes" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner or holder of a Global Registered Note
Certificate, DTC or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of
the Notes represented by such Global Registered Note Certificate for all purposes under the Fiscal
Agency Agreement and such Notes except to the extent that, in accordance with DTC's published rules
and procedures, any ownership rights may be exercised by its participants or beneficial owners through
participants.

Notes which are represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate will be transferable only in
accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or DTC, as the case may be, subject to the restrictions on transfer described herein.
Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC as the
beneficialholder of a particular principalamount of Notes represented by such Global Registered Note
Certificate must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or DTC, as the case may be, for
his share of each payment made by the Issuer, where the Issuer is CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor or,
where the Issuer is CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor to the holder of such Global Registered Note
Certificate and the obligations of the Issuer in respect thereof will be discharged by payment to the
holder of such Global Registered Note Certificate in respect of each amount so paid.
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Exchanges
Exchange of Global Registered Note Certificates

A Global Registered Note Certificate may be exchanged in whole but not in part (free of charge) for
definitive Registered Note Certificates only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event.

An "Exchange Bent” means:

(@) an Event of Default (as defined in General Condition 9 (Events of Default)) has occurred and
is continuing; or

(b) if the Global Registered Note Certificate is registered in the name ofanominee for a common
depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the
Common Safekeeper, as the case may be, the Issuer has been notified that Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, has/have been closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or
has/have announced an intention permanently to cease business or has/have in fact done so
and no successor clearing systemis available; or

(©) if the Global Registered Note Certificate is registered in the name of a nominee for DTC,
either DTC has notified the Issuerthat it is unwilling or unable to continueto act as depository
for the Notes and noalternative clearingsystemis available or DTC has ceased to constitute a
clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and no successor clearing system s
available; or

d) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be
suffered were the Notes represented by the Registered Note Certificate in definitive form.

The Issuerwill promptly give noticeto Noteholders upon the occurrence ofan Exchange Event. In the
event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (a) to (c) above, Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, and/or DTC, as the case may be, acting onthe instructions of any holder of
an interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate may give notice to the Registrar requesting
exchange and, in the event ofthe occurrence ofan Exchange Event as described in (a) to (d) above, the
Issuermay also give noticeto the Registrar requesting exchange. Any exchange shall occur no later
than 10 days after the date of receipt of the relevant notice by the Registrar.

Any exchanges of a Global Registered Note Certificate will be made upon presentation of the Global
Registered Note Certificate at the specified office of the Registrar by the holder of it on any day (other
than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for general business in the city of the specified
office of the Registrar.

Deeds of Covenant in respect of English Law Notes (other than Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes)

In relation to English Law Notes (other than Swedish Notes and Finnish Notes), where any Note is
represented by a Global Registered Note Certificate and (a) the Global Registered Note Certificate (or
any part thereof) has become dueand repayable in accordance with the Conditions of such Notes or the
Maturity Date has occurredand, in either case, payment in full of the amount due has not been made to
the holder of an interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate through the relevant Clearing
System(s) on such date, or (b) following an Exchange Event, the Global Registered Note Certificate is
not duly exchanged for Registered Note Certificates in definitive form by the date provided in the
Global Registered Note Certificate, then from 8.00pm (London time) on such date each holder of an
interest in such Global Registered Note Certificate through the relevant Clearing System(s) will
become entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer on, and subject to, the terms of the relevant
Deeds of Covenant, the relevant registered holder will have no further rights under the Global
Registered Note Certificate (butwithout prejudice to therights any person may have under the relevant
Deed of Covenant).
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Clearing Systems
Any referenceherein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, DTC, Euroclear Sweden and/or

Euroclear Finland shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearance systemspecified in the applicable Issue Terms.
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SECTION E5 - BOOK ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

The informationset outbelowissubjectto any changein or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations
and procedures of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear Sweden or Euroclear
Finland (together, the "Clearing Systems") currently in effect.

The informationin this section concerning the Clearing Systems has been obtained from sources that
the Issuers believe to be reliable, but none of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor,
CGMFL, the CGMFL Guarantor andany Dealer takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof,
except that the Issuers and the CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the CGMFL
Guarantor (wherethe Issueris CGMFL) accept(s) responsibility for accurately reproducing such
informationand, as far asthe Issuers andthe CGMHI Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMHI) or the
CGMFL Guarantor (where the Issuer is CGMFL) is/are aware and is/are able to ascertain from
informationpublished by the relevant Clearing Systems, no facts have been omitted which wou ld
render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. This paragraph should be read in
conjunctionwith thefirst two paragraphs set outunder the heading " Responsibility statement” onpage
iX.

Investors wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the
continued applicability ofthe rules, regulations and procedures ofthe relevant Clearing System. None
of Citigroup Inc., CGMHI, the CGMHI Guarantor, CGMFL and the CGMFL Guarantor, and any
other party to the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Swedish Notes Issuingand Paying Agency Agreement
or the Finnish Notes Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, as the case may be, will have any
responsibilityor liabilityfor any aspectofthe records relating to, or payments made on account of,
beneficial ownership interests in the Notes held through the facilities of any Clearing System or for
maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Book-entry Systems

DTC

DTC has advisedthe Issuers thatit is a limited purpose trustcompany organised under the New York
Banking Law, a "banking organisation™ within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a
member of the Federal Reserve System, a " clearing corporation” within the meaning ofthe New York
Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its participants (" Direct Participants")
deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic
computerised book-entry changes in Direct Participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S.
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other
organisations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depositary Trust & Clearing Corporation
("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and
Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, allof which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by
the usersof its regulation subsidiaries. Access to the DTC System s also available to others such as
securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (" Indirect Participants" and,
together with Direct Participants, " Participants"). More information about DTCC can be found at
www.dtcc.comand www.dtc.org.

Underthe rules, regulations and procedures creatingand affecting DTC and its operations (the "DTC
Rules™), DTC makes book-entry transfers of Registered Notes among Direct Participants on whose
behalf it acts with respect to Notes accepted into DTC's book-entry settlement system ("DTC Notes")
as described belowandreceivesand transmits distributions of principal and interest on DTC Notes.
The DTC Rules are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Direct Participants and
Indirect Participants with which beneficial owners of DTC Notes (" Owners") have accounts with
respect tothe DTC Notes similarly are required to make book-entry transfers and receive and transmit
such paymentson behalf of their respective Owners. Accordingly, although Owners who hold DTC
Notes through Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will not possess Registered Notes, the DTC
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Rules, by virtue of the requirements described above, provide a mechanism by which Direct
Participants will receive payments and will be able to transfer their interest in respect of the DTC
Notes.

Purchases of DTC Notes underthe DTCsystemmust be made by or through Direct Participants, which
will receive a credit for the DTC Notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaserofeach DTC Note (" Beneficial Owner")is in turn to be recorded on the Direct Participant's
and Indirect Participant's records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation fromDTC
of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing
details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, fromthe Direct Participant or
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the DTC Notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in DTC Notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry
system for the DTC Notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all DTC Notes deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co, or such other name as may be requested by an
authorisedrepresentative of DTC. The deposit of DTC Notes with DTC and their registration in the
name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTChas no
knowledge ofthe actual Beneficial Owners ofthe DTC Notes; DTC's records reflect only the identity
of the Direct Participants to whoseaccounts such DTC Notes are credited, which may or may not be
the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings
on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTCto Direct Participants, by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will
be governed by arrangements among them, subject toany statutory or regulatory requirements as may
be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shallbe sentto DTC. If less than all of the DTC Notes within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot theamountofthe interest of each Direct Participant in
such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (norany other DTCnominee) will consent or vote with respect to DTC
Notes unlessauthorised by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MM Procedures. Under its
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soonas possible afterthe record date.
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to
whose accounts the DTC Notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the
Omnibus Proxy).

Principaland interestpayments on the DTC Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee
as may be requested by an authorised representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information fromthe
Issuerorthe relevantagent (or such othernomineeas may be requested by an authorised representative
of DTC), on the relevantpayment date in accordance with their respective holdings shown in DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners willbe governedby standing instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers, and will be the
responsibility of such Participant andnotof DTCor the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect fromtime to time. Payment of principal and interest to DTC is the
responsibility of the Issuer, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility
of DTC, and disbursement of suchpayments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct
Participants and Indirect Participants.

Under certain circumstances, DTC will exchange the DTC Notes for definitive Registered Notes,
which it will distribute to its Participants in accordance with their proportionate entitlements and which
will be legended assetforth under " Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions™.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to electto have its DTC Notes purchased or tendered, through its
Participant, to the relevant agent, and shall effect delivery of such DTC Notes by causing the Direct
Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the DTC Notes, on DTC's records, to the relevant
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agent. The requirementfor physical delivery of DTC Notes in connection with an optional tender or a
mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the DTC Notes are

transferred by Direct Participantson DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered
DTC Notes to the relevant agent's DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depositary with respectto the DTC Notes at any time by
giving reasonable noticeto the Issuer orthe relevant agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that
a successor depositary is notobtained, DTC Note certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Issuermay decide to discontinue use of the systemofbook-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depositary). In that event, DTC Note certificates will be printed and delivered to
DTC.

Since DTC may only act on behalf of Direct Participants, who in turn act on behalf of Indirect
Participants, any Owner desiring to pledge DTC Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in

DTC, or otherwise take actions with respect to such DTC Notes, will be required to withdraw its
Registered Notes from DTC as described below.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg each holds securities for its customers and facilitates the
clearance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their
respective accountholders. Euroclearand Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services including
safekeeping, administration, clearance andsettlementof internationally traded securities and securities
lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg also deal with domestic securities
markets in several countries through established depository and custodial relationships. Euroclear and
C